
LOCATION OF MEETING:
City Hall Council Chambers, 627 N. Adams Street, Carroll, Iowa 51401

NOTICE
In addition to attending the meeting in person, the public can watch the meeting live from the City's
Cable Access Channel CAAT6 available on Western Iowa Network and Mediacom or on the City’s
YouTube channel by going to: https://www.youtube.com/CityofCarrollIowa If you choose to watch
live on YouTube you are encouraged to subscribe to the City's YouTube channel so you can access
the meeting live when it starts. CAAT6 and YouTube meeting feeds are a view only option and you
will not be able to participate in the meeting via CAAT6 or YouTube.

The City of Carroll will make the meeting available telephonically via zoom for those individuals who
wish to attend remotely. Individuals wishing to attend remotely need to contact the City at 712-792-
1000 by 3:00 PM the day of the meeting to make arrangements.

AGENDA

1. Pledge of Allegiance
2. Roll Call
3. Consent Agenda

a. Approval of Minutes of the October 23, 2023 Meeting
b. Approval of Bills and Claims
c. Licenses and Permits:

New Special 5-day Class "C" Retail Alcohol License with Outdoor Service (November
24, 2023, Black Friday Event at Katy Lynn Boutique) - Lucky Wife Wine Slushies

New Class "B" Retail Alcohol License - Kimmes Carroll Country Store #2

d. 2023 Municipal Golf Course Booster Pump Station Project

Construction Materials Inspection and Testing Proposal

Also see item 7.a - June 27, 2022 - Professional Services Agreement - JEO Consulting Group
Inc. - Golf Course Well Improvements Project
and item 7.a - December 12, 2022 - 2022 Golf Course Pump House Project

City Council Meeting
Monday, November 13, 2023 at 5:15 pm

Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1

https://www.youtube.com/CityofCarrollIowa
https://towncloud.io/go/carroll-ia/agendas/105
https://towncloud.io/go/carroll-ia/agendas/120


and item 7.a - March 13, 2023 - 2022 Golf Course Well Improvements Project - Resolution
and Professional Services Agreement with JEO Consulting Group, Inc.
and item 6.d - September 25, 2023 - 2023 Municipal Golf Course Booster Pump Station
Project - Public Hearing and Adopting Plans, Specifications, Form of Contract and Estimated
Cost 
and item 7.a - October 9, 2023 - 2023 Municipal Golf Course Booster Pump Station Project -
Award of Construction Contract

e. Merchants Park Lease - Carroll Merchants Baseball - 2024
f. Bid Opening Report - Parks Tractor and Bucket

g. Annual Urban Renewal Report for Fiscal Year 2022 - 2023
h. State Annual Financial Report for Fiscal Year 2022 - 2023
i. City Street Finance Report for Fiscal Year 2022 - 2023

4. Oral Requests and Communications from the Audience
Members of the public wishing to address the Council for items not on the agenda are asked to
approach the podium and wait to be recognized. After recognition, the person shall state their name
and address for the record. Statement or questions are limited to five (5) minutes.

5. Ordinances
a. Rolling Hills South Condominiums Second Urban Renewal Plan

Consideration of Ordinance for the division of revenues under Iowa Code Section
403.19 for Rolling Hills South Condominiums Second Urban Renewal Plan - 2nd
Reading

Resolution Authorizing or Confirming Advancement of Costs for Urban Renewal
Projects and Authorizing Certification of Expenses Incurred by the City for Payment
Under Iowa Code Section 403.19

Also see item 6.b – July 10, 2023 – Rolling Hills South Condominiums Second Urban Renewal
Plan and Development Agreement - Resolution Accepting an Engagement Agreement with
Ahlers & Cooney, P.C.
and item 8.c - September 11, 2023 – Rolling Hills South Condominiums Second Urban
Renewal Plan and Development Agreement - Resolution Setting Public Hearing
and item 6.a - October 23, 2023 – Rolling Hills South Condominiums Second Urban Renewal
Plan and Development Agreement - Public Hearing and Adopting the Urban Renewal Plan

6. Resolutions
a. Region XII COG, Inc. Home Construction & Rehabilitation Agreement

Also see item 8.c – June 26, 2023 – Housing Discussion - Region XII COG, Inc. - Home
Construction Agreement
and item 7.a – July 10, 2023 – Housing Discussion - Region XII COG, Inc. - Home
Construction Agreement
and item 6.a – July 25, 2023 – Region XII COG, Inc. - Home Construction Agreement
and item 9.c – September 11, 2023 – Region XII COG, Inc. - Home Construction Agreement
Amendment

b. FY 2023/2024 Budget Amendment #1

Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2

https://towncloud.io/go/carroll-ia/agendas/114
https://towncloud.io/go/carroll-ia/agendas/175
https://towncloud.io/go/carroll-ia/agendas/176
https://towncloud.io/go/carroll-ia/agendas/170
https://towncloud.io/go/carroll-ia/agendas/174
https://towncloud.io/go/carroll-ia/agendas/177
https://towncloud.io/go/carroll-ia/agendas/169
https://towncloud.io/go/carroll-ia/agendas/170
https://towncloud.io/go/carroll-ia/agendas/171
https://towncloud.io/go/carroll-ia/agendas/174


Public Hearing

Resolution Amending the Current Budget for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024

Also see FY 2023/2024 Budget Proposal
and item 7.d – October 23, 2023 – Set Public Hearing Date for FY 2023/2024 Budget
Amendment #1

c. Ninth Amended and Restated Central Business District Urban Renewal Plan, a new
Ziegler Urban Renewal Plan and related development agreements

Resolution Accepting an Engagement Agreement with Ahlers & Cooney, P.C.

d. U.S. 30 W Sanitary Sewer & Watermain Extension - 2024

Professional Services Agreement

e. Biokinemetrics Holdings LLC and DMBA Properties & Consulting, Inc.

Annual Tax Increment Finance Appropriations for FY 2025

f. BTC, Inc. (Western Iowa Networks)

Annual Tax Increment Finance Appropriations Resolution for FY 2025

g. Seatbelt Policy
7. Reports

a. Wastewater Treatment Plant - Digester Evaluation
Also see item 7.c – April 25, 2022 – Wastewater Treatment Plant–Anaerobic Digester
Evaluation - Resolution Approving the Engineering Agreement with Veenstra and Kim, Inc.

b. West Golfview Subdivision - Paving Section Selection
Also see item 8.c – June 26, 2023 – Housing Discussion – JEO Design-Golf Course Site and
Region XII COG, Inc.-Home Construction Agreement

and item 6.a – July 10, 2023 – N. West Street – Golf Course Property Development –
Professional Services Agreement

c. U.S. 30 Traffic Signal Removal Study - Adams Street, Court Street
d. Police Vehicle Purchase

8. Committee Reports (Informational Only)
9. Comments from the Mayor

10. Comments from the City Council
11. Comments from the City Manager
12. Adjourn

November Meetings:
* Airport Commission – November 13, 2023 – Airport Terminal Building - 21177 Quail Ave
* Library Board of Trustees – November 20, 2023 – Carroll Public Library – 118 E 5th St

Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3

https://www.cityofcarroll.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/03/2324budgetbookforwebsite.pdf
https://towncloud.io/go/carroll-ia/agendas/177
https://towncloud.io/go/carroll-ia/agendas/66
https://towncloud.io/go/carroll-ia/agendas/169
https://towncloud.io/go/carroll-ia/agendas/170


* City Council – November 27, 2023 – City Hall – 627 N Adams St

www.cityofcarroll.com
The City of Carroll will make every attempt to accommodate the needs of persons with disabilities,

please notify us at least three business days in advance when possible at 712-792-1000, should

special accommodations be required.

| Agenda published on 11/09/2023 at 3:11 PM

Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4



 

COUNCIL MEETING 

OCTOBER 23, 2023 

(Please note these are draft minutes and may be amended by Council before final approval.) 
 

The Carroll City Council met in regular session on this date at 5:15 p.m. in the Council 

Chambers, City Hall, 627 N Adams Street. Council Members present: Kyle Bauer, Misty Boes, 

Tom Bordenaro, LaVern Dirkx, Carolyn Siemann and JJ Schreck. Absent: None. Mayor Mark 

Beardmore presided and City Attorney Dave Bruner was in attendance.  

* * * * * * * 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by the City Council.  No Council action taken. 

* * * * * * * 

 It was moved by Bordenaro, seconded by Boes, to approve the following items on the 

consent agenda: a) minutes of the October 9, 2023 Council meeting, as written; b) bills and 

claims in the amount of $658,418.76; c) the following licenses and permits: Renewal of Class 

“C” Retail Alcohol License with Outdoor Service – Rancho Grande, and New 5-day Special 

Class “C” Retail Alcohol License (Jingle & Mingle Event at Carroll Design & Salvage on 

November 9, 2023) – Lucky Wife Wine Slushies; and d) Resolution No. 23-85, Merchants Park 

Lease Between the City of Carroll and The Carroll Community School District for the 2024 

baseball season, Resolution 23-86, Merchants Park Lease Between the City of Carroll and 

Kuemper Catholic School System for the 2024 baseball season, Resolution 23-87, Farm Lease 

Between the City of Carroll and the Carroll Area FFA Chapter (Carroll Community High 

School), Resolution 23-88, The Youth Sports Complex – Field 7 Lease Between the City of 

Carroll and the Kuemper Catholic School System for the 2024 softball season, and Resolution 

No. 23-89, the Carroll Merchants Park Concession Stand Lease Between the City of Carroll and 

the Kuemper Catholic School System. On roll call, all present voted aye. Nays: None. Abstain: 

None. Absent: None.  Motion carried 6-0. 

* * * * * * * 

There were no oral requests or communications from the audience. 

* * * * * * * 
At 5:18 p.m. Mayor Beardmore opened a public hearing on the proposed Rolling Hills 

South Condominiums Second Urban Renewal Plan. Mayor Beardmore closed said public hearing 

at 5:20 p.m. 
Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5



It was moved by Siemann, seconded by Bordenaro, to approve Resolution No. 23-90, 

Determining an Area of the City to be an Economic Development Area, and that the 

Rehabilitation, Conservation, Redevelopment, Development, or a Combination Thereof, Of Such 

Area is Necessary in the Interest of the Public Health, Safety or Welfare of the Residents of the 

City; Designating Such Area as Appropriate for Urban Renewal Projects; and Adopting the 

Rolling Hills South Condominiums Second Urban Renewal Plan. On roll call, all present voted 

aye. Nays: None. Abstain: None. Absent: None. Motion carried 6-0. 

It was moved by Dirkx, seconded by Bordenaro, to approve the first reading an 

Ordinance for the Division of Revenues under Iowa Code Section 403.19 for the Rolling Hills 

South Condominiums Second Urban Renewal Plan. On roll call, all present voted aye. Nays: 

None. Abstain: None. Absent: None. Motion carried 6-0. 

* * * * * * * 
At 5:22 p.m. Mayor Beardmore opened a public hearing on the proposal to enter into a 

Development Agreement with 704 Development Corp. Mayor Beardmore closed said public 

hearing at 5:24 p.m. 

It was moved by Dirkx, seconded by Bordenaro, to approve Resolution No. 23-91, 

Authorizing Execution of a Development Agreement By and Between the City of Carroll and 

704 Development Corp. On roll call, all present voted aye. Nays: None. Abstain: None. Absent: 

None. Motion carried 6-0. 

* * * * * * * 
It was moved by Dirkx, seconded by Bordenaro, to approve the purchase of a propane 

forklift from Forklifts of Des Moines at a cost of $33,200.00 plus a Safety Training Package at a 

cost of $495.00. On roll call, all present voted aye. Nays: None. Abstain: None. Absent: None. 

Motion carried 6-0. 

 * * * * * * * 
It was moved by Bauer, seconded by Schreck, to approve the purchase of a pressure 

washer from Hotsy Cleaning Systems, Inc. at a cost of $23,507.00. On roll call, all present voted 

aye. Nays: None. Abstain: None. Absent: None. Motion carried 6-0. 

* * * * * * * 
It was moved by Bordenaro, seconded by Siemann, to approve Change Order No. 7 in the 

amount of $5,523.00 for the Carroll Recreation Center Improvements Project – 2021. The effect 

of the proposed Change Order No. 7 on the project is as follows: 

   

Original Contract   $6,265,300.00 

  Approved Change Orders 1 – 6      223,026.00 
Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6



  Proposed Change Order No. 7          5,523.00 

  Contract with Change Orders  $6,493,849.00 

 On roll call, all present voted aye. Nays: None. Abstain: None. Absent: None. Motion 

carried 6-0. 

* * * * * * * 
It was moved by Bordenaro, seconded by Boes, to set Monday, November 13, 2023, as 

the date for a public hearing on the FY 2023/2024 Budget Amendment #1. On roll call, all 

present voted aye. Abstain: None. Absent: None. Motion carried 6-0. 

* * * * * * * 
It was moved by Bordenaro, seconded by Schreck, to adjourn at 5:39 p.m.  On roll call, 

all present voted aye. Nays: None. Abstain: None. Absent: None.  Motion carried 6-0.  

    

 

_________________________________ 

       Mark E. Beardmore, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________________ 

Laura A. Schaefer, City Clerk 

Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7



11-09-2023 11:04 AM                               A C C O U N T S   P A Y A B L E                                        PAGE:     1

VENDOR SET: 01  City of Carroll                   O P E N   I T E M   R E P O R T                                        BANK: AP

REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL                           S U M M A R Y

                       ======PAYMENT DATES=======     =======ITEM DATES=========     ======POSTING DATES=======

PAID ITEMS DATES     : 10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

UNPAID ITEMS DATES   :                                10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

VENDOR    ---- VENDOR NAME -----    DESCRIPTION                           GROSS AMT        PAYMENTS  CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 

01-001704 ACCO                      POOL CHEMICALS                           561.48            0.00  000000  0/00/00         561.48

01-001704 ACCO                      WINTER PLUG WITH 2" O-RING               460.14            0.00  000000  0/00/00         460.14

                                                        ** TOTALS **       1,021.62            0.00                        1,021.62

 

01-001621 ACE HARDWARE              SUPPLIES                                   2.99            0.00  000000  0/00/00           2.99

01-001621 ACE HARDWARE              SUPPLIES                                  35.97            0.00  000000  0/00/00          35.97

01-001621 ACE HARDWARE              SUPPLIES                                  14.99            0.00  000000  0/00/00          14.99

01-001621 ACE HARDWARE              SCREWS                                    16.99            0.00  000000  0/00/00          16.99

01-001621 ACE HARDWARE              PAINT                                     73.94            0.00  000000  0/00/00          73.94

01-001621 ACE HARDWARE              PAINT                                     42.99            0.00  000000  0/00/00          42.99

01-001621 ACE HARDWARE              PAINT                                     48.96            0.00  000000  0/00/00          48.96

01-001621 ACE HARDWARE              PAINT                                     42.99            0.00  000000  0/00/00          42.99

01-001621 ACE HARDWARE              SUPPLIES                                  12.75            0.00  000000  0/00/00          12.75

01-001621 ACE HARDWARE              REPAIR PARTS                             119.98            0.00  000000  0/00/00         119.98

01-001621 ACE HARDWARE              POOL AREA REPAIRS                         29.98            0.00  000000  0/00/00          29.98

01-001621 ACE HARDWARE              DIVING BOARD PARTS                        29.90            0.00  000000  0/00/00          29.90

01-001621 ACE HARDWARE              DIVING BOARD REPAIRS                       6.49            0.00  000000  0/00/00           6.49

01-001621 ACE HARDWARE              SUPPLIES                                  14.97            0.00  000000  0/00/00          14.97

01-001621 ACE HARDWARE              CLEANING SUPPLIES                         36.94            0.00  000000  0/00/00          36.94

01-001621 ACE HARDWARE              SUPPLIES                                  36.45            0.00  000000  0/00/00          36.45

01-001621 ACE HARDWARE              SUPPLIES                                  49.97            0.00  000000  0/00/00          49.97

                                                        ** TOTALS **         617.25            0.00                          617.25

 

01-001698 ADVANCED LASER TECHNOLOGI TONER CARTRIDGES                         139.85            0.00  000000  0/00/00         139.85

                                                        ** TOTALS **         139.85            0.00                          139.85

 

01-001910 AHLERS  & COONEY P.C.     MISC LEGAL MATTERS                       108.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00         108.00

01-001910 AHLERS  & COONEY P.C.     MISC UR MATTERS                          165.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00         165.00

01-001910 AHLERS  & COONEY P.C.     ROLLING HILLS S 2ND URP                  318.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00         318.00

01-001910 AHLERS  & COONEY P.C.     704 DEV. CORP (2023) DA                   79.50            0.00  000000  0/00/00          79.50

                                                        ** TOTALS **         670.50            0.00                          670.50

 

01-012650 ALLIANT ENERGY-IES UTILIT GAS BILLS                              8,339.53        8,339.53- 128511 11/08/23           0.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **       8,339.53        8,339.53-                           0.00

 

01-029040 ANTHONY A. VONNAHME       CLEANER                                  302.16            0.00  000000  0/00/00         302.16

                                                        ** TOTALS **         302.16            0.00                          302.16

 

01-002370 ARNOLD MOTOR SUPPLY       SHOCKS FOR #53                           137.98            0.00  000000  0/00/00         137.98

01-002370 ARNOLD MOTOR SUPPLY       #28 BATTERIES                            325.72            0.00  000000  0/00/00         325.72

01-002370 ARNOLD MOTOR SUPPLY       #28 FAN                                   75.99            0.00  000000  0/00/00          75.99

01-002370 ARNOLD MOTOR SUPPLY       AIR COMPRESSOR BATTERY                   191.99            0.00  000000  0/00/00         191.99

                                                        ** TOTALS **         731.68            0.00                          731.68

 

Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8



11-09-2023 11:04 AM                               A C C O U N T S   P A Y A B L E                                        PAGE:     2

VENDOR SET: 01  City of Carroll                   O P E N   I T E M   R E P O R T                                        BANK: AP

REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL                           S U M M A R Y

                       ======PAYMENT DATES=======     =======ITEM DATES=========     ======POSTING DATES=======

PAID ITEMS DATES     : 10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

UNPAID ITEMS DATES   :                                10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

VENDOR    ---- VENDOR NAME -----    DESCRIPTION                           GROSS AMT        PAYMENTS  CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 

01-001557 ATCO INTERNATIONAL        SUPPLIES                                 195.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00         195.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **         195.00            0.00                          195.00

 

01-002805 BADDING CONSTRUCTION CO.  REC CENTER #14                       396,739.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00     396,739.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **     396,739.00            0.00                      396,739.00

 

01-000949 BOHLMANN INC.             BENCH - PICKLEBALL ASSN                2,235.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00       2,235.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **       2,235.00            0.00                        2,235.00

 

01-003515 BOMGAARS                  SUPPLIES                                  11.56            0.00  000000  0/00/00          11.56

01-003515 BOMGAARS                  SPOTLIGHT                                 89.99            0.00  000000  0/00/00          89.99

01-003515 BOMGAARS                  #28 - SPRAY PAINT                         46.73            0.00  000000  0/00/00          46.73

01-003515 BOMGAARS                  SUPPLIES                                  41.88            0.00  000000  0/00/00          41.88

01-003515 BOMGAARS                  PRESSURE WASHER PARTS                     45.45            0.00  000000  0/00/00          45.45

01-003515 BOMGAARS                  SPRAYER REPAIRS                          247.55            0.00  000000  0/00/00         247.55

01-003515 BOMGAARS                  SUPPLIES                                  42.97            0.00  000000  0/00/00          42.97

01-003515 BOMGAARS                  SUPPLIES                                  11.97            0.00  000000  0/00/00          11.97

01-003515 BOMGAARS                  SUPPLIES                                  29.99            0.00  000000  0/00/00          29.99

01-003515 BOMGAARS                  #29 - BRINE PUMP                         154.99            0.00  000000  0/00/00         154.99

01-003515 BOMGAARS                  SUPPLIES                                 121.93            0.00  000000  0/00/00         121.93

01-003515 BOMGAARS                  PARTS FOR ENGINE 1                        48.44            0.00  000000  0/00/00          48.44

01-003515 BOMGAARS                  REPAIR PARTS                              44.47            0.00  000000  0/00/00          44.47

01-003515 BOMGAARS                  #33 REPAIR PARTS                          14.98            0.00  000000  0/00/00          14.98

01-003515 BOMGAARS                  TAPE                                      25.97            0.00  000000  0/00/00          25.97

                                                        ** TOTALS **         978.87            0.00                          978.87

 

01-003661 BREDA TELEPHONE CORPORATI LOCAL AND LONG DISTANCE                3,502.17        3,502.17- 128499 11/01/23           0.00

01-003661 BREDA TELEPHONE CORPORATI 1/2 FY 24 TIF REFUNDING               28,732.35            0.00  000000  0/00/00      28,732.35

                                                        ** TOTALS **      32,234.52        3,502.17-                      28,732.35

 

01-003670 BRIGGS INC OF OMAHA       WATER COOLER                           1,877.29            0.00  000000  0/00/00       1,877.29

01-003670 BRIGGS INC OF OMAHA       HVAC FILTERS                              91.80            0.00  000000  0/00/00          91.80

01-003670 BRIGGS INC OF OMAHA       FLOOR DRAIN                               45.64            0.00  000000  0/00/00          45.64

                                                        ** TOTALS **       2,014.73            0.00                        2,014.73

 

01-003693 BRUNER & BRUNER           NUISANCE AND GENERAL WORK                883.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00         883.00

01-003693 BRUNER & BRUNER           7TH STREET/GENERAL WORK                  486.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00         486.00

01-003693 BRUNER & BRUNER           POLICE/MAGISTRATE                        783.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00         783.00

01-003693 BRUNER & BRUNER           PUBLIC WORKS                             270.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00         270.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **       2,422.00            0.00                        2,422.00

 

01-003791 CAPITAL ONE               SUPPLIES                                   6.82            6.82- 128504 11/06/23           0.00

01-003791 CAPITAL ONE               SUPPLIES                                  29.98           29.98- 128504 11/06/23           0.00

01-003791 CAPITAL ONE               OFFICE SUPPLIES                           25.69           25.69- 128504 11/06/23           0.00

Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9



11-09-2023 11:04 AM                               A C C O U N T S   P A Y A B L E                                        PAGE:     3

VENDOR SET: 01  City of Carroll                   O P E N   I T E M   R E P O R T                                        BANK: AP

REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL                           S U M M A R Y

                       ======PAYMENT DATES=======     =======ITEM DATES=========     ======POSTING DATES=======

PAID ITEMS DATES     : 10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

UNPAID ITEMS DATES   :                                10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

VENDOR    ---- VENDOR NAME -----    DESCRIPTION                           GROSS AMT        PAYMENTS  CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 

01-003791 CAPITAL ONE               COMPUTER KEYBOARD                         21.48           21.48- 128504 11/06/23           0.00

01-003791 CAPITAL ONE               BATTERIES AND CLEANER                     24.50           24.50- 128504 11/06/23           0.00

01-003791 CAPITAL ONE               CLEANING SUPPLIES                          5.72            5.72- 128504 11/06/23           0.00

01-003791 CAPITAL ONE               SUPPLIES                                   6.82            6.82- 128504 11/06/23           0.00

01-003791 CAPITAL ONE               SUPPLIES                                   2.84            2.84- 128504 11/06/23           0.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **         123.85          123.85-                           0.00

 

01-004138 CAPITAL SANITARY SUPPLY   SUPPLIES                                 123.49            0.00  000000  0/00/00         123.49

                                                        ** TOTALS **         123.49            0.00                          123.49

 

01-004146 CARROLL CONTROL SYSTEMS   REPAIRS                                   12.50            0.00  000000  0/00/00          12.50

                                                        ** TOTALS **          12.50            0.00                           12.50

 

01-004155 CARROLL COUNTY            GASOLINE                               5,939.30            0.00  000000  0/00/00       5,939.30

                                                        ** TOTALS **       5,939.30            0.00                        5,939.30

 

01-004165 CARROLL COUNTY ENGINEER   MAINT ST/RANDALL RD STM DRAIN            335.30            0.00  000000  0/00/00         335.30

                                                        ** TOTALS **         335.30            0.00                          335.30

 

01-004170 CARROLL COUNTY RECORDER   RECORDING FEES                           134.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00         134.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **         134.00            0.00                          134.00

 

01-024005 CARROLL EYE CARE ASSOC.   SAFETY GLASSES - WEBER                   146.75            0.00  000000  0/00/00         146.75

                                                        ** TOTALS **         146.75            0.00                          146.75

 

01-002977 CARROLL REFUSE SERVICE    OCT. TRASH COLLECTIONS                14,247.37       14,247.37- 128503 11/06/23           0.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **      14,247.37       14,247.37-                           0.00

 

01-004237 CARROLL VETERINARY CLINIC DEC. DOG CARE CONTRACT                   650.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00         650.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **         650.00            0.00                          650.00

 

01-004375 CENTRAL STATES ROOFING    ROOF DRAIN REPAIRS                     1,065.82            0.00  000000  0/00/00       1,065.82

                                                        ** TOTALS **       1,065.82            0.00                        1,065.82

 

01-002998 CENTURYLINK               BACKUP PHONE LINE                        160.14          160.14- 128472 10/25/23           0.00

01-002998 CENTURYLINK               BACKUP PHONE LINE                         70.27           70.27- 128473 10/25/23           0.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **         230.41          230.41-                           0.00

 

01-001148 CERTIFIED TESTING SERVICE REC CENTER TESTING                       120.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00         120.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **         120.00            0.00                          120.00

 

01-004137 CHAMBER OF COMMERCE       CARROLL CO. LEADERSHIP TIEMEYE           250.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00         250.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **         250.00            0.00                          250.00

 

Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10



11-09-2023 11:04 AM                               A C C O U N T S   P A Y A B L E                                        PAGE:     4

VENDOR SET: 01  City of Carroll                   O P E N   I T E M   R E P O R T                                        BANK: AP

REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL                           S U M M A R Y

                       ======PAYMENT DATES=======     =======ITEM DATES=========     ======POSTING DATES=======

PAID ITEMS DATES     : 10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

UNPAID ITEMS DATES   :                                10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

VENDOR    ---- VENDOR NAME -----    DESCRIPTION                           GROSS AMT        PAYMENTS  CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 

01-003959 CHASE PAYMENTECH MERCHANT CC PROCESSING FEES                     1,071.11        1,071.11- 000000 11/06/23           0.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **       1,071.11        1,071.11-                           0.00

 

01-004525 CITY OF CARROLL           DOWNTOWN RESTROOM WATER BILL              39.87           39.87- 128480 10/25/23           0.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **          39.87           39.87-                           0.00

 

01-003633 CLEANING SOLUTIONS INC    CITY HALL & TILE CLEANING              2,380.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00       2,380.00

01-003633 CLEANING SOLUTIONS INC    OCT. PD CLEANING                         624.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00         624.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **       3,004.00            0.00                        3,004.00

 

01-004835 COMMERCIAL SAVINGS BANK   OCT. ACH PROCESSING FEES                 126.48          126.48- 000000 10/31/23           0.00

01-004835 COMMERCIAL SAVINGS BANK   FEDERAL WITHHOLDINGS                  15,056.16       15,056.16- 001666 11/02/23           0.00

01-004835 COMMERCIAL SAVINGS BANK   FICA WITHHOLDING                      15,612.56       15,612.56- 001666 11/02/23           0.00

01-004835 COMMERCIAL SAVINGS BANK   MEDICARE WITHHOLDING                   5,012.58        5,012.58- 001666 11/02/23           0.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **      35,807.78       35,807.78-                           0.00

 

01-002071 COMPUTER REPAIR & SERVICE MISC COMPUTER ISSUE                      120.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00         120.00

01-002071 COMPUTER REPAIR & SERVICE ANTI-VIRUS RENEWAL                        30.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00          30.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **         150.00            0.00                          150.00

 

01-001384 COPY SYSTEMS INC.         FOLDER/INSERTER REPAIRS                  185.25            0.00  000000  0/00/00         185.25

                                                        ** TOTALS **         185.25            0.00                          185.25

 

01-005110 CULLIGAN SOFT WATER       WATER SOFTNER REPAIRS                    316.45            0.00  000000  0/00/00         316.45

                                                        ** TOTALS **         316.45            0.00                          316.45

 

01-002648 D/R ELECTRIC INC.         CONDUIT REPAIRS                        1,302.56            0.00  000000  0/00/00       1,302.56

                                                        ** TOTALS **       1,302.56            0.00                        1,302.56

 

01-000854 DEARBORN NATIONAL         NOV. LIFE INSURANCE PREMIUMS             331.33          331.33- 128469 10/25/23           0.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **         331.33          331.33-                           0.00

 

01-003618 DIRECT MAILER             408 W 7TH ST REQUEST FOR BIDS             48.00           48.00- 128476 10/25/23           0.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **          48.00           48.00-                           0.00

 

01-003008 DMBA PROPERTIES & CONSULT 1/2 FY 24 TIF REFUNDING               11,400.55            0.00  000000  0/00/00      11,400.55

                                                        ** TOTALS **      11,400.55            0.00                       11,400.55

 

01-006270 DREES HEATING & PLUMBING  STORM DRAIN PIPE REPLACEMENT           4,975.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00       4,975.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **       4,975.00            0.00                        4,975.00

 

01-006275 DREES OIL CO. INC.        #2 DIESEL FUEL                         1,665.29            0.00  000000  0/00/00       1,665.29

01-006275 DREES OIL CO. INC.        UNLEADED GASOLINE                      1,272.88            0.00  000000  0/00/00       1,272.88

                                                        ** TOTALS **       2,938.17            0.00                        2,938.17

Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11



11-09-2023 11:04 AM                               A C C O U N T S   P A Y A B L E                                        PAGE:     5

VENDOR SET: 01  City of Carroll                   O P E N   I T E M   R E P O R T                                        BANK: AP

REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL                           S U M M A R Y

                       ======PAYMENT DATES=======     =======ITEM DATES=========     ======POSTING DATES=======

PAID ITEMS DATES     : 10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

UNPAID ITEMS DATES   :                                10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

VENDOR    ---- VENDOR NAME -----    DESCRIPTION                           GROSS AMT        PAYMENTS  CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 

 

01-001075 E & F CUSTOM PUMPING INC. LAGOON CLEANING                       18,810.75            0.00  000000  0/00/00      18,810.75

                                                        ** TOTALS **      18,810.75            0.00                       18,810.75

 

01-006725 EARL MAY STORE            SUPPLIES                                  99.50            0.00  000000  0/00/00          99.50

                                                        ** TOTALS **          99.50            0.00                           99.50

 

01-012590 ECHO ELECTRIC SUPPLY      SUPPLIES                                  19.19           19.19- 128481 10/25/23           0.00

01-012590 ECHO ELECTRIC SUPPLY      FUSES                                    135.13          135.13- 128481 10/25/23           0.00

01-012590 ECHO ELECTRIC SUPPLY      BALLAST FOR LIGHTS                        20.10           20.10- 128502 11/01/23           0.00

01-012590 ECHO ELECTRIC SUPPLY      LIGHTS                                    53.26           53.26- 128502 11/01/23           0.00

01-012590 ECHO ELECTRIC SUPPLY      LIGHTS                                     8.85            8.85- 128502 11/01/23           0.00

01-012590 ECHO ELECTRIC SUPPLY      LIGHTS                                    50.21           50.21- 128502 11/01/23           0.00

01-012590 ECHO ELECTRIC SUPPLY      AIR COMPRESSOR PARTS                      80.06           80.06- 128481 10/25/23           0.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **         366.80          366.80-                           0.00

 

01-003971 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT SYSTEMS  NOV. HRA PARTICIPANT FEES                385.00          385.00- 000000 11/01/23           0.00

01-003971 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT SYSTEMS  HRA CHECKS                             1,970.82        1,970.82- 000000 10/31/23           0.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **       2,355.82        2,355.82-                           0.00

 

01-008027 FAREWAY STORES            DISTILLED WATER                          241.92            0.00  000000  0/00/00         241.92

                                                        ** TOTALS **         241.92            0.00                          241.92

 

01-008050 FASTENAL COMPANY          DIVING BOARD BOLTS                        35.20            0.00  000000  0/00/00          35.20

01-008050 FASTENAL COMPANY          NUTS & BOLTS                              83.33            0.00  000000  0/00/00          83.33

01-008050 FASTENAL COMPANY          MARKING PAINT FOR LOCATES                 40.58            0.00  000000  0/00/00          40.58

                                                        ** TOTALS **         159.11            0.00                          159.11

 

01-006860 FELD FIRE EQUIPMENT CO.   SUPPLIES                                  53.90            0.00  000000  0/00/00          53.90

01-006860 FELD FIRE EQUIPMENT CO.   SECURITY MONITORING ISSUE                 62.50            0.00  000000  0/00/00          62.50

01-006860 FELD FIRE EQUIPMENT CO.   BUNKER GEAR REPAIRS                       47.56            0.00  000000  0/00/00          47.56

                                                        ** TOTALS **         163.96            0.00                          163.96

 

01-000633 FILTER CARE               FILTER CLEANING                          159.25            0.00  000000  0/00/00         159.25

                                                        ** TOTALS **         159.25            0.00                          159.25

 

01-003848 FIRST IMPRESSION          OCT. MALL RESTROOM CLEANING              300.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00         300.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **         300.00            0.00                          300.00

 

01-001386 FORD W HALL COMPANY INC   FORD ALGAE SWEEP AUTO SYSTEMS            700.30            0.00  000000  0/00/00         700.30

01-001386 FORD W HALL COMPANY INC   FORD ALGAE SWEEP AUTO SYSTEM             706.98            0.00  000000  0/00/00         706.98

                                                        ** TOTALS **       1,407.28            0.00                        1,407.28

 

01-004072 FORKLIFTS OF DES MOINES   FORKLIFT                              33,695.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00      33,695.00

Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12



11-09-2023 11:04 AM                               A C C O U N T S   P A Y A B L E                                        PAGE:     6

VENDOR SET: 01  City of Carroll                   O P E N   I T E M   R E P O R T                                        BANK: AP

REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL                           S U M M A R Y

                       ======PAYMENT DATES=======     =======ITEM DATES=========     ======POSTING DATES=======

PAID ITEMS DATES     : 10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

UNPAID ITEMS DATES   :                                10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

VENDOR    ---- VENDOR NAME -----    DESCRIPTION                           GROSS AMT        PAYMENTS  CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 

                                                        ** TOTALS **      33,695.00            0.00                       33,695.00

 

01-002806 FOUNDATION ANALYTICAL LAB LAB TESTING                            1,031.50            0.00  000000  0/00/00       1,031.50

01-002806 FOUNDATION ANALYTICAL LAB LAB TESTING                              904.50            0.00  000000  0/00/00         904.50

                                                        ** TOTALS **       1,936.00            0.00                        1,936.00

 

01-003534 FUSEBOX MARKETING         NOV. WEB MAINTENANCE                     255.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00         255.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **         255.00            0.00                          255.00

 

01-009315 GALLS INC.                UNIFORM SHIRT KENNEBECK                   63.36            0.00  000000  0/00/00          63.36

01-009315 GALLS INC.                TRAINING SUPPLIES                      1,191.49            0.00  000000  0/00/00       1,191.49

                                                        ** TOTALS **       1,254.85            0.00                        1,254.85

 

01-009500 GEHLING WELDING & REPAIR  #34 REPAIR PARTS                          87.40            0.00  000000  0/00/00          87.40

01-009500 GEHLING WELDING & REPAIR  #28 BATTERY REPAIRS                      117.30            0.00  000000  0/00/00         117.30

                                                        ** TOTALS **         204.70            0.00                          204.70

 

01-009540 GENERAL TRAFFIC CONTROLS  SIGNAL REPAIRS                         1,470.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00       1,470.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **       1,470.00            0.00                        1,470.00

 

01-010040 GOVERNMENT FINANCE        GFOA MEMBERSHIP                          190.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00         190.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **         190.00            0.00                          190.00

 

01-000992 GUTE TREE SERVICE         ASH TREE & STUMP REMOVAL               2,400.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00       2,400.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **       2,400.00            0.00                        2,400.00

 

01-010605 HACH CHEMICAL COMPANY     LAB SUPPLIES                             401.78            0.00  000000  0/00/00         401.78

                                                        ** TOTALS **         401.78            0.00                          401.78

 

01-010615 HALEY IMPLEMENT CO.       #31 REPAIRS PARTS                        319.36            0.00  000000  0/00/00         319.36

                                                        ** TOTALS **         319.36            0.00                          319.36

 

01-005635 HOLIDAY INN AIRPORT       IMFOA HOTEL                              112.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00         112.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **         112.00            0.00                          112.00

 

01-012540 IMWCA                     WORKER COMP #5                        10,421.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00      10,421.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **      10,421.00            0.00                       10,421.00

 

01-012625 IOWA DEPT OF NATURAL RESO 2024 ANNUAL WATER USE FEE                115.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00         115.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **         115.00            0.00                          115.00

 

01-003982 IOWA INFORMATION MEDIA GR LEGAL PUBLICATIONS                       854.80            0.00  000000  0/00/00         854.80

                                                        ** TOTALS **         854.80            0.00                          854.80

 

Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13



11-09-2023 11:04 AM                               A C C O U N T S   P A Y A B L E                                        PAGE:     7

VENDOR SET: 01  City of Carroll                   O P E N   I T E M   R E P O R T                                        BANK: AP

REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL                           S U M M A R Y

                       ======PAYMENT DATES=======     =======ITEM DATES=========     ======POSTING DATES=======

PAID ITEMS DATES     : 10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

UNPAID ITEMS DATES   :                                10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

VENDOR    ---- VENDOR NAME -----    DESCRIPTION                           GROSS AMT        PAYMENTS  CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 

01-012642 IOWA LAW ENFORCE ACADEMY  FIREARMS INSTRUCTOR RECERT.              175.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00         175.00

01-012642 IOWA LAW ENFORCE ACADEMY  FIREARMS INSTRUCTOR RECERT.              175.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00         175.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **         350.00            0.00                          350.00

 

01-012666 IOWA ONE CALL             SEPT. 2023 LOCATES                       139.70            0.00  000000  0/00/00         139.70

                                                        ** TOTALS **         139.70            0.00                          139.70

 

01-012678 IOWA PRISON INDUSTRIES    STREET SIGNS                             359.04            0.00  000000  0/00/00         359.04

                                                        ** TOTALS **         359.04            0.00                          359.04

 

01-012690 IOWA RURAL WATER ASSN.    IRWA MEMBERSHIP 2024                     455.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00         455.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **         455.00            0.00                          455.00

 

01-002994 IOWA STATE POLICE ASSOCIA MEMBERSHIP DUES                          750.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00         750.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **         750.00            0.00                          750.00

 

01-003849 JAMES HELLER              INTERVIEW/INTERROGATION TRNG             326.81          326.81- 128478 10/25/23           0.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **         326.81          326.81-                           0.00

 

01-002453 JASON MATTHEW LAMBERTZ    PRODUCTION COSTS                         960.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00         960.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **         960.00            0.00                          960.00

 

01-003198 JEFF NICHOLS              CSTAG TRAINING                            12.69           12.69- 128474 10/25/23           0.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **          12.69           12.69-                           0.00

 

01-013917 JEO CONSULTING GROUP INC. HSPS PUMP REPLACEMENT                 12,065.20            0.00  000000  0/00/00      12,065.20

01-013917 JEO CONSULTING GROUP INC. 2022 WATERMAIN REPLACEMENT               340.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00         340.00

01-013917 JEO CONSULTING GROUP INC. GC IRRIGATION BOOSTER STATION          1,446.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00       1,446.00

01-013917 JEO CONSULTING GROUP INC. WEST ST./GC PROPERTY                     203.50            0.00  000000  0/00/00         203.50

01-013917 JEO CONSULTING GROUP INC. 2022 STORMWATER IMPROVEMENTS          16,650.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00      16,650.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **      30,704.70            0.00                       30,704.70

 

01-002788 JIMMY JOHNS #2622         EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION                      50.12            0.00  000000  0/00/00          50.12

                                                        ** TOTALS **          50.12            0.00                           50.12

 

01-025020 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL      #32 OIL FILTER                            16.10           16.10- 000000 10/24/23           0.00

01-025020 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL      SUPPLIES                                  39.48           39.48- 000000 10/24/23           0.00

01-025020 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL      EQUIPMENT SUPPLIES                        63.07           63.07- 000000 10/24/23           0.00

01-025020 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL      JD 1575 REPAIRS                        1,180.15        1,180.15- 000000 10/24/23           0.00

01-025020 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL      #31 CUTTING EDGE                         233.85          233.85- 000000 10/24/23           0.00

01-025020 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL      #34 OIL CHANGE                           341.61          341.61- 000000 10/24/23           0.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **       1,874.26        1,874.26-                           0.00

 

01-003892 JOSEPH THIELEN            STEEL TOED BOOTS                         200.00          200.00- 128500 11/01/23           0.00

Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14



11-09-2023 11:04 AM                               A C C O U N T S   P A Y A B L E                                        PAGE:     8

VENDOR SET: 01  City of Carroll                   O P E N   I T E M   R E P O R T                                        BANK: AP

REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL                           S U M M A R Y

                       ======PAYMENT DATES=======     =======ITEM DATES=========     ======POSTING DATES=======

PAID ITEMS DATES     : 10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

UNPAID ITEMS DATES   :                                10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

VENDOR    ---- VENDOR NAME -----    DESCRIPTION                           GROSS AMT        PAYMENTS  CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 

                                                        ** TOTALS **         200.00          200.00-                           0.00

 

01-003965 JW READY MIX & CONSTRUCTI ICE CONTROL SAND                       1,826.44            0.00  000000  0/00/00       1,826.44

01-003965 JW READY MIX & CONSTRUCTI ICE CONTROL SAND                       1,498.71            0.00  000000  0/00/00       1,498.71

                                                        ** TOTALS **       3,325.15            0.00                        3,325.15

 

01-001345 KELTEK INCORPORATED       CAGE LIGHT                               115.64            0.00  000000  0/00/00         115.64

                                                        ** TOTALS **         115.64            0.00                          115.64

 

01-000560 LAURA SCHAEFER            IMFOA FALL CONFERENCE                    135.83          135.83- 128468 10/25/23           0.00

01-000560 LAURA SCHAEFER            WCICA MEETING                             35.37           35.37- 128468 10/25/23           0.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **         171.20          171.20-                           0.00

 

01-002331 MACQUEEN EQUIPMENT LLC    EQUIPMENT PARTS                          851.61            0.00  000000  0/00/00         851.61

01-002331 MACQUEEN EQUIPMENT LLC    #35 REPAIRS                            1,521.46            0.00  000000  0/00/00       1,521.46

                                                        ** TOTALS **       2,373.07            0.00                        2,373.07

 

01-003481 MARCO TECHNOLOGIES LLC    COPIER CONTRACT                          107.94            0.00  000000  0/00/00         107.94

                                                        ** TOTALS **         107.94            0.00                          107.94

 

01-001193 MARKET ON 30              SOCCER CONCESSIONS                        43.69            0.00  000000  0/00/00          43.69

                                                        ** TOTALS **          43.69            0.00                           43.69

 

01-017133 MASTERCARD                ADOBE/MAIL CHIMP/ZOOM                     48.98           48.98- 128482 10/25/23           0.00

01-017133 MASTERCARD                SUPPLIES AND CONFERENCE                1,663.38        1,663.38- 128483 10/25/23           0.00

01-017133 MASTERCARD                ACCESS WASHINGTON                      1,770.64        1,770.64- 128484 10/25/23           0.00

01-017133 MASTERCARD                SUPPLIES AND CONERENCE EXP             2,627.30        2,627.30- 128485 10/25/23           0.00

01-017133 MASTERCARD                MISC SUPPLIES                          1,470.08        1,470.08- 128486 10/25/23           0.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **       7,580.38        7,580.38-                           0.00

 

01-002993 MC CLURE ENGINEERING CO.  ADAM ST. RECONSTRUCTION                2,072.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00       2,072.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **       2,072.00            0.00                        2,072.00

 

01-012680 MID AMERICAN ENERGY       ELECTRIC BILLS                        38,333.00       38,333.00- 128506 11/06/23           0.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **      38,333.00       38,333.00-                           0.00

 

01-001804 MID IOWA SOLID WASTE EQUI FIBERGLASS POLE SETS                     407.50            0.00  000000  0/00/00         407.50

                                                        ** TOTALS **         407.50            0.00                          407.50

 

01-017585 MIDWEST WHOLESALE BLDG PR CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS                    22.80            0.00  000000  0/00/00          22.80

01-017585 MIDWEST WHOLESALE BLDG PR CONCRETE MIXER                            24.99            0.00  000000  0/00/00          24.99

                                                        ** TOTALS **          47.79            0.00                           47.79

 

01-017730 MOORHOUSE READY MIX CO.   CONCRETE REPAIRS                         162.25            0.00  000000  0/00/00         162.25

Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15



11-09-2023 11:04 AM                               A C C O U N T S   P A Y A B L E                                        PAGE:     9

VENDOR SET: 01  City of Carroll                   O P E N   I T E M   R E P O R T                                        BANK: AP

REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL                           S U M M A R Y

                       ======PAYMENT DATES=======     =======ITEM DATES=========     ======POSTING DATES=======

PAID ITEMS DATES     : 10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

UNPAID ITEMS DATES   :                                10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

VENDOR    ---- VENDOR NAME -----    DESCRIPTION                           GROSS AMT        PAYMENTS  CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 

01-017730 MOORHOUSE READY MIX CO.   CONCRETE FOR LIFT                        162.25            0.00  000000  0/00/00         162.25

01-017730 MOORHOUSE READY MIX CO.   ROW 238 HILLCREST DR                   1,135.75            0.00  000000  0/00/00       1,135.75

                                                        ** TOTALS **       1,460.25            0.00                        1,460.25

 

01-003529 MURRAY'S WELDING          MERRY-GO-ROUND REPAIRS                   184.50            0.00  000000  0/00/00         184.50

01-003529 MURRAY'S WELDING          REBUILD PTO SHAFT                        136.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00         136.00

01-003529 MURRAY'S WELDING          REPLACE FLOOR OF TRUCK BOX #26         5,000.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00       5,000.00

01-003529 MURRAY'S WELDING          #26 RUST REPAIR                          420.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00         420.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **       5,740.50            0.00                        5,740.50

 

01-018408 NAPA AUTO PARTS           WIRE - SHOP SUPPLIES                       9.33            0.00  000000  0/00/00           9.33

01-018408 NAPA AUTO PARTS           DUST MASKS                               117.03            0.00  000000  0/00/00         117.03

01-018408 NAPA AUTO PARTS           WIRING FOR TRUCK                          45.69            0.00  000000  0/00/00          45.69

01-018408 NAPA AUTO PARTS           #23 STROBE LIGHTS                        135.76            0.00  000000  0/00/00         135.76

01-018408 NAPA AUTO PARTS           IMPACT WRENCH                            155.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00         155.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **         462.81            0.00                          462.81

 

01-018423 NATIONAL FIRE PROTECTION  MEMBERSHIP                               175.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00         175.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **         175.00            0.00                          175.00

 

01-003263 NETBANX                   OCT. EFT PROCESSING FEES                  10.98           10.98- 000000 11/06/23           0.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **          10.98           10.98-                           0.00

 

01-019123 NORTH CENTRAL CROP INS.   LAB SUPPLIES                             522.09            0.00  000000  0/00/00         522.09

01-019123 NORTH CENTRAL CROP INS.   LAB SUPPLIES                             490.31            0.00  000000  0/00/00         490.31

                                                        ** TOTALS **       1,012.40            0.00                        1,012.40

 

01-020330 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS       HEATER HOSE                                2.30            0.00  000000  0/00/00           2.30

                                                        ** TOTALS **           2.30            0.00                            2.30

 

01-020203 OFFICE STOP               OFFICE SUPPLIES                           38.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00          38.00

01-020203 OFFICE STOP               STAPLES                                    8.48            0.00  000000  0/00/00           8.48

                                                        ** TOTALS **          46.48            0.00                           46.48

 

01-021050 P & H WHOLESALE INC.      FILTERS                                  169.52            0.00  000000  0/00/00         169.52

01-021050 P & H WHOLESALE INC.      SYSTEM CL RESIDUAL CHLORINATOR           134.48          134.48- 128487 10/25/23           0.00

01-021050 P & H WHOLESALE INC.      REPAIR PARTS                               6.80            6.80- 128507 11/06/23           0.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **         310.80          141.28-                         169.52

 

01-001949 PERFORMANCE TIRE & SERVIC #31 TIRE REPAIRS                          42.80            0.00  000000  0/00/00          42.80

01-001949 PERFORMANCE TIRE & SERVIC OIL CHANGE #19                            37.53            0.00  000000  0/00/00          37.53

01-001949 PERFORMANCE TIRE & SERVIC OIL CHANGE #15                            37.53            0.00  000000  0/00/00          37.53

01-001949 PERFORMANCE TIRE & SERVIC #17 OIL CHANGE                            39.33            0.00  000000  0/00/00          39.33

01-001949 PERFORMANCE TIRE & SERVIC #18 TIRES AND OIL CHANGE                 805.15            0.00  000000  0/00/00         805.15

Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16



11-09-2023 11:04 AM                               A C C O U N T S   P A Y A B L E                                        PAGE:    10

VENDOR SET: 01  City of Carroll                   O P E N   I T E M   R E P O R T                                        BANK: AP

REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL                           S U M M A R Y

                       ======PAYMENT DATES=======     =======ITEM DATES=========     ======POSTING DATES=======

PAID ITEMS DATES     : 10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

UNPAID ITEMS DATES   :                                10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

VENDOR    ---- VENDOR NAME -----    DESCRIPTION                           GROSS AMT        PAYMENTS  CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 

01-001949 PERFORMANCE TIRE & SERVIC OIL CHANGE #20                            40.23            0.00  000000  0/00/00          40.23

01-001949 PERFORMANCE TIRE & SERVIC #33 TIRE REPAIRS                         118.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00         118.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **       1,120.57            0.00                        1,120.57

 

01-000169 PERRY JOHNSON             MILEAGE INSPECTIONS                      210.26            0.00  000000  0/00/00         210.26

                                                        ** TOTALS **         210.26            0.00                          210.26

 

01-021440 PIZZA HUT                 SPECIAL EVENT AQUATIC CENTER             200.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00         200.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **         200.00            0.00                          200.00

 

01-021735 POSTMASTER                POSTAGE TO MAIL WATER BILLS            1,825.62        1,825.62- 128488 10/26/23           0.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **       1,825.62        1,825.62-                           0.00

 

01-003769 PRECISION ARC LLC         POOL LANE ROPE ANCHOR                  1,716.92            0.00  000000  0/00/00       1,716.92

                                                        ** TOTALS **       1,716.92            0.00                        1,716.92

 

01-021860 PRESTO-X-COMPANY          PEST CONTROL 627 N ADAMS ST               96.05            0.00  000000  0/00/00          96.05

                                                        ** TOTALS **          96.05            0.00                           96.05

 

01-000625 PRODUCTIVITY PLUS ACCOUNT CREDIT                                     4.86-           4.86  128510 11/08/23           0.00

01-000625 PRODUCTIVITY PLUS ACCOUNT SUPPLIES                                   0.21            0.21- 128510 11/08/23           0.00

01-000625 PRODUCTIVITY PLUS ACCOUNT EQUIPMENT REPAIRS                        132.00          132.00- 000000 10/25/23           0.00

01-000625 PRODUCTIVITY PLUS ACCOUNT TRACTOR REPAIRS                          162.00          162.00- 000000 10/25/23           0.00

01-000625 PRODUCTIVITY PLUS ACCOUNT REPAIR PARTS                             117.29          117.29- 000000 10/25/23           0.00

01-000625 PRODUCTIVITY PLUS ACCOUNT SUPPLIES                                   4.88            4.88- 000000 10/25/23           0.00

01-000625 PRODUCTIVITY PLUS ACCOUNT #33 OIL FILTERS                          179.50          179.50- 128510 11/08/23           0.00

01-000625 PRODUCTIVITY PLUS ACCOUNT #33 OIL CHANGE SUPPLIES                   15.80           15.80- 128510 11/08/23           0.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **         606.82          606.82-                           0.00

 

01-003741 QUADIENT FINANCE USA INC  POSTAGE                                4,000.00        4,000.00- 128477 10/25/23           0.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **       4,000.00        4,000.00-                           0.00

 

01-004030 RASCH CONSTRUCTION INC    ADAMS ST RECONSTRUCTION #5           759,503.14            0.00  000000  0/00/00     759,503.14

                                                        ** TOTALS **     759,503.14            0.00                      759,503.14

 

01-023640 RAY'S REFUSE SERVICE      OCT. TRASH COLLECTIONS                39,595.93       39,595.93- 128508 11/06/23           0.00

01-023640 RAY'S REFUSE SERVICE      OCT. GARBAGE PICKUP                    1,547.81            0.00  000000  0/00/00       1,547.81

                                                        ** TOTALS **      41,143.74       39,595.93-                       1,547.81

 

01-003137 RDG PLANNING & DESIGN     REC CENTER RENOVATION                  2,777.37            0.00  000000  0/00/00       2,777.37

                                                        ** TOTALS **       2,777.37            0.00                        2,777.37

 

01-023815 REGION XII COG            OCT. TAXI PROGRAM DONATIONS            1,050.00        1,050.00- 128509 11/06/23           0.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **       1,050.00        1,050.00-                           0.00

Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17



11-09-2023 11:04 AM                               A C C O U N T S   P A Y A B L E                                        PAGE:    11

VENDOR SET: 01  City of Carroll                   O P E N   I T E M   R E P O R T                                        BANK: AP

REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL                           S U M M A R Y

                       ======PAYMENT DATES=======     =======ITEM DATES=========     ======POSTING DATES=======

PAID ITEMS DATES     : 10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

UNPAID ITEMS DATES   :                                10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

VENDOR    ---- VENDOR NAME -----    DESCRIPTION                           GROSS AMT        PAYMENTS  CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 

 

01-003785 RICK PEUGH                MILEAGE INSPECTIONS                       27.51            0.00  000000  0/00/00          27.51

                                                        ** TOTALS **          27.51            0.00                           27.51

 

01-002987 RIESBERG AUDIO AND DETAIL CAMERA REPAIRS                           112.50            0.00  000000  0/00/00         112.50

                                                        ** TOTALS **         112.50            0.00                          112.50

 

01-003455 ROZANNE SWARTZENDRUBER    SEW PATCHES ON UNIFORMS                   20.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00          20.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **          20.00            0.00                           20.00

 

01-024630 RUTTEN'S VACUUM CENTER    VACUUM                                   569.94            0.00  000000  0/00/00         569.94

                                                        ** TOTALS **         569.94            0.00                          569.94

 

01-003528 SCHAEFFER MANUFACTURING C OIL                                      717.60            0.00  000000  0/00/00         717.60

                                                        ** TOTALS **         717.60            0.00                          717.60

 

01-002778 SEAN KLEESPIES            IRWA CONFERENCE                          614.48          614.48- 128470 10/25/23           0.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **         614.48          614.48-                           0.00

 

01-025250 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO.      PAINT                                    112.96            0.00  000000  0/00/00         112.96

01-025250 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO.      PAINT                                      9.67            0.00  000000  0/00/00           9.67

01-025250 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO.      PAINT                                     64.79            0.00  000000  0/00/00          64.79

01-025250 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO.      PAINT                                     21.05            0.00  000000  0/00/00          21.05

                                                        ** TOTALS **         208.47            0.00                          208.47

 

01-028180 STATE HYGIENIC LABORATORY SAMPLE ANALYSIS                           29.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00          29.00

01-028180 STATE HYGIENIC LABORATORY WATER SAMPLE ANALYSIS                     14.50            0.00  000000  0/00/00          14.50

                                                        ** TOTALS **          43.50            0.00                           43.50

 

01-003435 STEVEN PUDENZ             REPORT WRITING TRAINING                  172.60          172.60- 128475 10/25/23           0.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **         172.60          172.60-                           0.00

 

01-025880 STONE PRINTING CO.        CALENDARS RETURED                         56.43-           0.00  000000  0/00/00          56.43-

01-025880 STONE PRINTING CO.        SUPPLIES AND CHAIRS                      300.28            0.00  000000  0/00/00         300.28

01-025880 STONE PRINTING CO.        DAILY LOG BOOKS & SUPPLIES               298.32            0.00  000000  0/00/00         298.32

01-025880 STONE PRINTING CO.        WALL CALENDARS                            78.39            0.00  000000  0/00/00          78.39

01-025880 STONE PRINTING CO.        REPORT COVERS                            649.50            0.00  000000  0/00/00         649.50

01-025880 STONE PRINTING CO.        OFFICE SUPPLIES                        1,847.55            0.00  000000  0/00/00       1,847.55

01-025880 STONE PRINTING CO.        HANGING FOLDERS                           18.83            0.00  000000  0/00/00          18.83

01-025880 STONE PRINTING CO.        LAMINATING                                11.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00          11.00

01-025880 STONE PRINTING CO.        OFFICE SUPPLIES                            7.49            0.00  000000  0/00/00           7.49

01-025880 STONE PRINTING CO.        OFFICE SUPPLIES                          307.50            0.00  000000  0/00/00         307.50

                                                        ** TOTALS **       3,462.43            0.00                        3,462.43

 

Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18



11-09-2023 11:04 AM                               A C C O U N T S   P A Y A B L E                                        PAGE:    12

VENDOR SET: 01  City of Carroll                   O P E N   I T E M   R E P O R T                                        BANK: AP

REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL                           S U M M A R Y

                       ======PAYMENT DATES=======     =======ITEM DATES=========     ======POSTING DATES=======

PAID ITEMS DATES     : 10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

UNPAID ITEMS DATES   :                                10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

VENDOR    ---- VENDOR NAME -----    DESCRIPTION                           GROSS AMT        PAYMENTS  CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 

01-002682 STOREY KENWORTHY/MATT PAR UTILITY BILLS                            831.01            0.00  000000  0/00/00         831.01

                                                        ** TOTALS **         831.01            0.00                          831.01

 

01-002862 TRAVIS BOELL              IRWA CONFERENCE                          294.59          294.59- 128471 10/25/23           0.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **         294.59          294.59-                           0.00

 

01-027085 TROPHIES PLUS INC.        PLAQUES - EVANS & BEHM                    73.98            0.00  000000  0/00/00          73.98

                                                        ** TOTALS **          73.98            0.00                           73.98

 

01-003220 TURFWERKS                 GSP PLAN                               3,850.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00       3,850.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **       3,850.00            0.00                        3,850.00

 

01-028174 UNITED STATES CELLULAR    CELL PHONES                              179.06          179.06- 128489 10/26/23           0.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **         179.06          179.06-                           0.00

 

01-028290 USA BLUE BOOK             MANHOLE REPAIRS                        1,166.53            0.00  000000  0/00/00       1,166.53

                                                        ** TOTALS **       1,166.53            0.00                        1,166.53

 

01-028435 UTILITY EQUIPMENT COMPANY OPERATING SUPPLIES                     2,543.84            0.00  000000  0/00/00       2,543.84

01-028435 UTILITY EQUIPMENT COMPANY OPERATING SUPPLIES                       147.72            0.00  000000  0/00/00         147.72

01-028435 UTILITY EQUIPMENT COMPANY OPERATING SUPPLIES                     2,590.68            0.00  000000  0/00/00       2,590.68

                                                        ** TOTALS **       5,282.24            0.00                        5,282.24

 

01-028814 VAN METER COMPANY         POOL LIGHTS                            3,706.25            0.00  000000  0/00/00       3,706.25

01-028814 VAN METER COMPANY         FREIGHT POOL LIGHTS                      255.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00         255.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **       3,961.25            0.00                        3,961.25

 

01-029010 VEENSTRA & KIMM INC.      COPPER COMPLIANCE STUDY                1,360.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00       1,360.00

01-029010 VEENSTRA & KIMM INC.      WW DIGESTER PROJECT                      680.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00         680.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **       2,040.00            0.00                        2,040.00

 

01-029009 VESSCO INC.               STARTUP HOURS CREDITED                   100.00-           0.00  000000  0/00/00         100.00-

01-029009 VESSCO INC.               CHLORINATOR STARTUP                      700.00            0.00  000000  0/00/00         700.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **         600.00            0.00                          600.00

 

01-030355 WITTROCK MOTOR CO.        #22 TRUCK BOX RAILS                       67.90            0.00  000000  0/00/00          67.90

                                                        ** TOTALS **          67.90            0.00                           67.90

 

01-003307 WORLDPAY INTEGRATED PAYME SEPT. CC PROCESSING FEES                 122.89          122.89- 000000 10/31/23           0.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **         122.89          122.89-                           0.00

 

01-003970 WORLDWIDE EXPRESS         FREIGHT W/E 10/18/2023                    59.10           59.10- 128479 10/25/23           0.00

01-003970 WORLDWIDE EXPRESS         FREIGHT W/E 10/25/2023                    42.25           42.25- 128501 11/01/23           0.00

01-003970 WORLDWIDE EXPRESS         FREIGHT W/E 11/1/2023                     42.20           42.20- 128505 11/06/23           0.00

Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19



11-09-2023 11:04 AM                               A C C O U N T S   P A Y A B L E                                        PAGE:    13

VENDOR SET: 01  City of Carroll                   O P E N   I T E M   R E P O R T                                        BANK: AP

REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL                           S U M M A R Y

                       ======PAYMENT DATES=======     =======ITEM DATES=========     ======POSTING DATES=======

PAID ITEMS DATES     : 10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

UNPAID ITEMS DATES   :                                10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

VENDOR    ---- VENDOR NAME -----    DESCRIPTION                           GROSS AMT        PAYMENTS  CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 

                                                        ** TOTALS **         143.55          143.55-                           0.00

 

01-003722 iSOLVED BENEFIT SERVICES  OCT. FLEX SPENDING FEE                    90.00           90.00- 000000 11/06/23           0.00

                                                        ** TOTALS **          90.00           90.00-                           0.00

 

          *  Payroll Expense                                             181,279.68

Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20



11-09-2023 11:04 AM                               A C C O U N T S   P A Y A B L E                                        PAGE:    14

VENDOR SET: 01  City of Carroll                   O P E N   I T E M   R E P O R T                                        BANK: AP

REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL                           S U M M A R Y

                       ======PAYMENT DATES=======     =======ITEM DATES=========     ======POSTING DATES=======

PAID ITEMS DATES     : 10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

UNPAID ITEMS DATES   :                                10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

                                                   R E P O R T   T O T A L S

                                                    GROSS          PAYMENTS          BALANCE

                        PAID ITEMS                345,089.86         345,089.86CR           0.00

                        PARTIALLY PAID                  0.00               0.00             0.00

                        UNPAID ITEMS            1,386,357.99               0.00     1,386,357.99

                        VOID ITEMS                      0.00               0.00             0.00

                        ** TOTALS **            1,731,447.85         345,089.86CR   1,386,357.99

                                                     U N P A I D   R E C A P

                                          UNPAID INVOICE TOTALS           1,386,514.42

                                          UNPAID DEBIT MEMO TOTALS                0.00

                                          UNAPPLIED CREDIT MEMO TOTALS          156.43CR

                                          ** UNPAID TOTALS **             1,386,357.99

Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21



11-09-2023 11:04 AM                               A C C O U N T S   P A Y A B L E                                        PAGE:    15

VENDOR SET: 01  City of Carroll                   O P E N   I T E M   R E P O R T                                        BANK: AP

REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL                           S U M M A R Y

                       ======PAYMENT DATES=======     =======ITEM DATES=========     ======POSTING DATES=======

PAID ITEMS DATES     : 10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

UNPAID ITEMS DATES   :                                10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023     10/20/2023 THRU 11/09/2023

                                   FUND TOTALS

 

     001   GENERAL FUND                                            183,697.46

     010   HOTEL/MOTEL TAX                                             272.12

     110   ROAD USE TAX FUND                                        23,609.47

     121   LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX                                      339.87

     125   U.R. DOWNTOWN S.R.                                       11,400.55

     132   WESTFIELD UR SPEC REV                                    28,732.35

     304   C.P. STREETS                                            761,778.64

     311   C.P.-PARKS & RECREATION                                   1,446.00

     313   C.P. - REC CENTER BLDG                                  406,488.66

     314   C.P.-STREETS MAINT BLDG                                  33,695.00

     600   WATER UTILITY FUND                                       21,379.78

     602   WATER UTILITY CAP. IMP.                                  13,139.68

     610   SEWER UTILITY FUND                                       42,811.44

     612   SEWER UTILITY CAP. IMP.                                   2,040.00

     621   STORM WATER CAP. IMP.                                    16,650.00

     850   MEDICAL INSURANCE FUND                                    2,687.15

           *  PAYROLL EXPENSE                                      181,279.68

     GRAND TOTAL                                                 1,731,447.85

Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22



  City of Carroll 
627 N. Adams Street       Carroll, Iowa 51401           (712) 792-1000           FAX: (712) 792-0139 

 MEMO TO: Aaron Kooiker, City Manager 

 FROM: Chad Tiemeyer, Director of Parks and Recreation 

 DATE: October 30, 2023 

 SUBJECT: 2023 Municipal Golf Course Booster Pump Station Project 
• Construction Materials Inspection and Testing Proposal

 
The Golf Course Booster Pump Station Project specifications include construction materials 
testing to be provided by the City of Carroll. Certified Testing Services, Inc (CTS) was retained 
to prepare inspection and testing services. A proposal to provide construction inspections, 
materials testing, and soil testing has been requested and received from CTS.  
 
CTS proposes to perform soil, concrete, steel, and masonry testing throughout the duration of the 
project. CTS fees for the inspections and testing are proposed as hourly plus expenses with an 
estimate of $3,800.00 to $4,500.00. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Mayor and City Council consideration of passage and approval of the 
Resolution approving the proposal from Certified Testing Services, Inc. for Construction 
Materials Inspection and Testing for the 2023 Municipal Golf Course Booster Station Project.  
 
 

Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23



RESOLUTION NO.    
 
 
RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PROPOSAL OF CERTIFIED TESTING SERVICES, 
INC. FOR CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS INSPECTION AND TESTING FOR THE 
2023 MUNICIPAL GOLF COURSE BOOSTER STATION 
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 17 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Carroll, Iowa, 
provides that contracts made by the City be approved by the City Council; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, a Construction Materials Inspection and Testing Proposal for the 2023 
Municipal Golf Couse Booster Station has been prepared with Certified Testing Services, 
Inc.; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the Construction Materials 
Inspection and Testing Proposal is in the best interests of the City and the residents thereof. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Carroll, 
Iowa, that the Construction Materials Inspection and Testing Proposal with Certified 
Testing Services, Inc. for the 2023 Municipal Golf Couse Booster Station is approved and 
the Mayor is authorized to execute the Proposal on behalf of the City. 
 
 Passed and approved by the Carroll City Council this 13th day of November 2023. 
 
       CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
       CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA 
 
 
 
 
       By:        
              Mark E. Beardmore, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
By:        
       Laura A. Schaefer, City Clerk 
 
 
 

Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24



 

 

 

 

 

 

Attn: Mr. Chad Tiemeyer, Director of Parks and Rec.                   September 15, 2023 

City of Carroll Parks and Rec. 

112 E. 5th St. 

Carroll, IA 51401 

 

Re:  Construction Materials Testing 

        2023 Municipal Golf Course Booster Station 

        Carroll, IA 

        

Dear Mr. Tiemeyer, 

 Certified Testing Services, Inc. is pleased to submit the following proposal for 

providing construction materials inspection and testing for the referenced project. We 

propose to provide testing and inspection services, on a part-time basis, as requested by 

your representative and in accordance with our attached Fee Schedule. Invoices will be 

submitted on a monthly basis and will be itemized using our unit fee schedule and attached 

General Conditions. 

 

CTS is the Geotechnical Engineer of record for this project so knows the soils 

issues as well as having several other projects in Carroll and the surrounding area, 

therefore making us a valuable partner towards the successful completion of this 

project. 

 

          After reviewing the plans and specs for this project and after discussions with JEO’s 

Engineers, CTS understands what will be needed.  For soils testing, we anticipate two to 

three visits to the project site for density testing and helical anchor installation for the 

foundation. It may be necessary to perform one to two proctors prior to density testing.  

    

For the concrete portion of the project, we anticipate three to five trips for concrete 

testing. Four cylinders are anticipated and we expect 12 to 20 cylinders will be taken.  Fees 

include trip charges, concrete cylinders and reporting. 

 Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25



2023 Golf Course Booster Station 

Carroll, IA 

September 15, 2023 

2 

 

 

 

Based on the above quantities our fees for this project will be approximately 

$3,800.00 to $4,500.00. This estimate is based on the information provided to CTS at the 

time of the estimate. Any additional services will be charged per the attached Fee Schedule. 

 

            CTS realizes some overtime may be required on our part to facilitate progress of the 

projects.  Our hourly rates and unit fees will not increase for our overtime 

involvement for these projects, and costs for nuclear density testing are also included 

in our hourly rate.  

 

In addition to general liability insurance, Certified Testing Services, Inc. also 

provides professional liability (errors and omissions) insurance for each of its projects.  Our 

laboratory is an Iowa Department of Transportation approved laboratory and also a 

member of the American Council of Independent Laboratories. 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal.  If you have any questions, 

please do not hesitate to contact our firm at (712)213-8378. 

 

Sincerely, 

CERTIFIED TESTING SERVICES, INC. 

 

 

 

Dana R. Siefer Gary R. Jackson, S.E. 

Assistant Division Manager Division Manager 
DRS/grj 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26



2023 Golf Course Booster Station 

Carroll, IA 

September 15, 2023 

3 

 

      

 

 

 

 

 

FEE SCHEDULE FOR 2023 GOLF COURSE BOOSTER PROJECT 

 

Vehicle Fee per trip $ 88.00 

Geotechnical Engineer per hour $ 150.00 

Project Manager                                          per hour $ 130.00 

Concrete/Soils Technician per hour $ 68.00 

Standard Proctor each $ 150.00 

Compressive Strength of Concrete Cylinders each $ 18.00 

Entry and Curing Charge for Spare Cylinders each $ 15.00 

Concrete Test Cylinder Molds each $ 2.50 

Report Preparation per hour $ 36.00   

  

 

 

AGREED TO THIS__________________________DAY OF ____________________ 

 

BY:____________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

TITLE:_________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

FIRM:__________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

          

                

           

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27



2023 Golf Course Booster Station 

Carroll, IA 

September 15, 2023 

4 

 

 

Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28



  City of Carroll 
627 N. Adams Street       Carroll, Iowa 51401           (712) 792-1000           FAX: (712) 792-0139 

 MEMO TO: Aaron Kooiker, City Manager 

 FROM: Chad Tiemeyer, Director of Parks and Recreation 

 DATE: October 30, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Merchants Park Lease- Carroll Merchants Baseball- 2024 
   

• Resolution- Baseball Stadium Lease Agreement 
 
The Carroll Merchants are planning to return to Merchants Park for the 2024 season and will 
continue to participate in the M.I.N.K League. The M.I.N.K. Baseball League is a Summer 
Collegiate Baseball League which operates with nine teams throughout the Midwest. For the 
2024 season, the Carroll Merchants baseball team plans to play 21 home games at Merchants 
Park. Staff does not see any issues pertaining to the Carroll Merchants’ continued use of historic 
Merchants Park.  
 
The attached lease agreement for Merchants Park is very similar to previous agreements. This 
agreement will be in place for the next three seasons. Other than the duration of the lease, 
nothing has changed in their lease agreement.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: Mayor and City Council consideration of passage and approval of the  
Resolution approving the Merchants Park Lease with the Carroll Merchants Baseball Club.  
 
 

Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WITH CARROLL MERCHANTS 
BASEBALL CLUB 

 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 17, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Carroll, Iowa, provides 
that all contracts made by the City be reduced to writing and approved by the City Council by 
resolution; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Merchants Park Lease is attached hereto as Exhibit “A”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is determined that the approval of the attached Agreement is in the best 
interest of the City of Carroll, Iowa; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Merchants Park Lease, attached as 
Exhibit “A”, be authorized, and approved, and that the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to 
execute the contract on behalf of the City of Carroll. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Carroll, Iowa, this 13th day of 
November 2023.  
 
 
 
       CITY COUNCIL OF THE  
       CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA 
 
 

      BY:_____________________________ 
 
       Mark E. Beardmore, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
By:_____________________________ 
 Laura A. Schaefer, City Clerk 
 

Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30



 1 

MERCHANTS PARK LEASE 
 
 

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this ______ day of 
_________________, 2023, by and between the City of Carroll, Iowa (Landlord) and 
Carroll Merchants Baseball Club, an Iowa Corporation (Tenant). 
 

The parties agree as follows: 
 
1 . PREMISES AND TERM. Landlord leases to Tenant, the Merchants Park in 
Carroll, Iowa, together with all improvements thereon, and all rights, easements, and 
appurtenances thereto, upon the condition the Tenant performs as provided in this Lease 
for the 2024 through 2026 baseball seasons (May 1st through August 1st). However, if 
tenant fails to utilize the Stadium and field for a period greater than 30 days during the 
lease term, the lease shall terminate. 
 
After the 2026 baseball season the Tenant shall notify Landlord if it wishes to lease the 
stadium for the following baseball season. If so, the parties may renegotiate a new lease, 
if necessary. However, the lease will automatically renew, with the same terms, unless 
either party notifies the other prior to December 1, whereupon the lease shall terminate 
on that date. 
 

2. RENT. Tenant agrees to pay Landlord as rent: One dollar ($1.00) and other good 
and valuable consideration, payable 30 days in advance of the first day of May 1, of that 
season. 
 

3. POSSESSION. Tenant shall be entitled to possession on May 1, of that season, 
and shall yield possession to Landlord on the last day of this Lease, which is September 1, 
of that season. 
 

4.  USE. Tenant shall use the premises only for the Carroll Merchants baseball team 
games and practices. Associated promotional baseball events must be specifically 
authorized by the Landlord and proof of additional insurance must be provided as required 
by the Landlord. 

 
Priority use of the field shall be as follows: 
 
a) Scheduling of varsity and junior varsity baseball games for both Kuemper 

High School and Carroll High School shall have priority prior to November 1. After 
November 1, Tenant may schedule games for the Carroll Merchants baseball team on any 
available dates with the Carroll Parks and Recreation Director. Once game schedules are 
submitted and approved by the Carroll Parks and Recreation Director for the Carroll 
Merchants baseball team, Kuemper High School and Carroll High School cannot preempt 
the approved scheduled games for the Carroll Merchants baseball team. During the season, 
if a game needs to be rescheduled due to a rainout or other situation, a game may be 
rescheduled on any other available date on a first come first served basis with the Carroll 

Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31



 2 

Parks and Recreation Director. Once a game date for a postponed game has been approved 
by the Carroll Parks and Recreation Director, Kuemper High School and Carroll High 
School cannot preempt that date. 

b) Carroll Merchants, Kuemper High School, and Carroll High School shall 
meet with the Carroll Parks and Recreation Director to develop a practice schedule that is 
mutually acceptable to all parties. If a mutually acceptable practice schedule cannot be 
established, then the Carroll Parks and Recreation Director will establish a practice 
schedule taking into account the desires of each team equally. The practice schedule 
approved by the Carroll Parks and Recreation Director shall be final. Practices can be 
preempted by the need to reschedule a game.  
 

5. CARE AND MAINTENANCE.  
 
a) The Tenant takes the premises as is. 
b) The Landlord shall maintain the premises. 
c)  The Tenant may assist in the maintenance of the premises under the 

direction and supervision of the Landlord. Tenant shall make no structural changes or 
alterations without prior consultation and written consent of Landlord. 
 d) Tenants shall not permit nor allow the premises to be damaged or 
depreciated in value by any act, omission to act or negligence of itself, its agents, or 
employees. 
 

6. UTILITIES. The Landlord shall pay for all utilities which may be used on the 
premises. Landlord shall not be liable for damages for failure to perform as herein 
provided, or for any stoppage for needed repairs or for improvements or arising from causes 
beyond the control of Landlord, provided Landlord uses reasonable diligence to resume 
such services. 
 
The Landlord may contract for all non-alcohol drinks and food concessions during games 
and will retain profits pursuant to its concessions contract with the concession vendor. The 
tenant shall notify the Landlord and receive prior approval of the Landlord, if the tenant 
desires to sell alcohol on the premises. If approval is granted, the tenant shall be responsible 
for all permits, licenses, and insurance requirements. 
 
The Tenant shall provide staff at the entrance for collection of any admission fee and 
Tenant’s staff shall be available throughout the game for assistance to the public in case of 
need or emergency. 
 
The Tenant will attend to the field under the supervision of Landlord during its use, which 
may include dragging, lining, and chalking before the games. After each game, the Tenant 
shall also attend to the stadium, by picking up trash and generally policing the area. 
 
The Tenants will make no unlawful use of the premises and agree to comply with all 
Federal, State, and local laws. 
 

7. SURRENDER. Upon the termination of this lease, Tenant shall surrender the 
Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32



 3 

premises to Landlord in good and clean condition, except for ordinary wear and tear or 
damage without fault or liability of Tenant.  
 

8. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING. No assignment or subletting, shall be 
effective without the prior written consent of Landlord. 
 

9.  INSURANCE. 
 

a) PROPERTY INSURANCE. Landlord and Tenant agree to insure their respective 
real and personal property for the full insurable value. Such insurance shall cover losses 
included in the Insurance Services Office Broad Form Causes of Loss. To the extent 
permitted by their policies the Landlord and Tenants waive all rights of recovery against 
each other. 
 

b) LIABILITY INSURANCE, Tenant shall obtain commercial general liability 
insurance in the amounts of $1,000,000 liability insurance for each occurrence and 
$3,000,000 liability insurance as aggregate. This policy shall be endorsed to include the 
Landlord as an additional insured and proof provided to Landlord 30 days prior to lease 
beginning. 
 

10. LIABILITY FOR DAMAGE. Each party shall be liable to the other for all 
damage to the property of the other negligently, recklessly, or intentionally caused by that 
party (or their agents, employees, or invitees). 
 

11. INDEMNITY. Except for any negligence of Landlord, Tenant will protect, 
defend, and indemnify Landlord from and against any and all loss, costs, damage and 
expenses occasioned by, or arising out of, any accident or other occurrence causing or 
inflicting injury or damage to any person or property, happening or done in, upon or about 
the premises or due directly or indirectly to the tenancy, use or occupancy there, or any 
part thereof by Tenant or any person claiming through or under Tenant. 
 

12. DAMAGES. In the event of damage to the premises, so that Tenant is unable 
to conduct business on the premises, this lease may be terminated at the option of either 
party. Such termination shall be effected by notice of one party to the other within twenty 
days after such notice; and both parties shall thereafter be released from all future 
obligations hereunder. 
 

13. MECHANICS' LIENS. Neither Tenant, nor anyone claiming by, through, or 
under Tenant, shall have the right to file any mechanic's lien against the premises. Tenant 
shall give notice in advance to all contractors and subcontractors who may furnish, or agree 
to furnish, any material, service, or labor for any improvement on the premises. 

 
The tenant shall not incur any expense on behalf of the Landlord nor is the Tenant 

authorized in any fashion to contract with third parties on behalf of the Landlord. Any 
expenditure made by the Tenant on the premises must be approved by the Landlord along 
with proof of ability to pay for the expenditures or improvements.  

Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33



 4 

14. DEFAULT, NOTICE OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES.  
 
EVENTS OF DEFAULT 
 

Each of the following shall constitute an event of default by Tenant; 1) Failure to 
pay rent when due; 2) failure to observe or perform any duties, obligations, agreements, or 
conditions, imposed on Tenant pursuant to the terms of the lease; 3) abandonment of the 
premises. 
 
NOTICE OF DEFAULT 
 

Landlord shall give Tenant a written notice specifying the default and giving the 
Tenants ten (10) days in which to correct the default. If there is a default (other than for 
nonpayment of a monetary obligation of Tenant, including rent) that cannot be remedied 
in ten (10) days by diligent efforts of the Tenant, Tenant may propose an additional period 
of time in which to remedy the default. Consent to additional time must be granted by 
Landlord. 
 
 
REMEDIES 
 

In the event Tenant has not remedied a default in a timely manner following a 
Notice of Default, Landlord may proceed with all available remedies at law or in equity, 
including but not limited to the following: 1) Termination. Landlord may declare this lease 
to be terminated and shall give Tenant a written notice of such termination. In the event of 
termination of this lease, Landlord shall be entitled to prove claim for and obtain judgment 
against Tenant for the balance of the rent agreed to be paid for the term herein provided, 
plus all expenses of Landlord in regaining possession of the premises and the reletting 
thereof, including attorney's fees and court costs, crediting against such claim, however, 
any amount obtained by reason of such reletting; 2) Forfeiture. If a default is not remedied 
in a timely manner, Landlord may then declare this lease to be forfeited and shall give 
Tenant a written notice of such forfeiture, and may, at the time, give Tenant the notice to 
quit provided for in Chapter 648 of the Code of Iowa. 
 
 15.  ADVERTISING.  Temporary advertising, such as signs, banners, tarps, flags, 
front fence signs and covers are allowed for game day activities and shall be removed at 
the conclusion of the contest. Permanent advertising, such as signs, banners, tarps, flags, 
fence coverings or any other display of advertising is prohibited. 
 

16. NOTICES AND DEMANDS. All notices shall be given to the parties hereto 
at the addresses designated unless either party notifies the other, in writing, of a different 
address. Without prejudice to any other method of notifying a party in writing or making a 
demand or other communication, such notice shall be considered given under the terms of 
this lease when it is deposited in the U.S. Mail, registered, or certified, properly addressed, 
return receipt requested and postage prepaid. 
 

Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34



 5 

17. PROVISIONS BINDING. Each and every covenant and agreement herein 
contained shall extend to and be binding upon the respective successors, heirs, 
administrators, executors and assigns of the parties hereto. 
 

18. CERTIFICATION. Tenant certifies that it is not acting, directly or indirectly, 
for or on behalf of any person, group, entity or nation named by any Executive Order or 
the United States Treasury Department as a terrorist, "Specially Designated National and 
Blocked Person" or any other banned or blocked person, entity, nation or transaction 
pursuant to any law, order, rule or regulation that is enforced or administered by the Office 
of Foreign Assets Control; and it is not engaged in this transaction, directly or indirectly 
on behalf of, or instigating or facilitation this transaction, directly or indirectly on behalf 
of, any such person, group, entity or nation. Tenant hereby agrees to defend, indemnify, 
and hold harmless Landlord from and against any and all claims, damages, losses, risks, 
liabilities, and expenses (including attorney's fees and costs) arising from or related to any 
breach of the foregoing certification. 
 
 
 
CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA –  CARROLL MERCHANTS BASEBALL 
LANDLORD  CLUB – TENANT  
 
 
 
 
By:___________________________  By:____________________________ 
 Mark E. Beardmore, Mayor   Chris Whitaker, President  
 627 N Adams St    225 E 7TH Street  
 Carroll, IA  51401    Carroll, IA 51401 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:      
 
 
By:__________________________  
 Laura Schaefer, Clerk   
 
 
 
 

Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35



  City of Carroll 
627 N. Adams Street       Carroll, Iowa 51401           (712) 792-1000           FAX: (712) 792-0139 

 MEMO TO: Aaron Kooiker, City Manager 

 FROM: Chad Tiemeyer, Director of Parks and Recreation 

 DATE: October 24, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Bid Opening Report – Parks Tractor and Bucket
 
On October 24, 2023, bids were collected and opened for a new tractor and loader for the Parks 
Department. Five bids were received from local companies, the low bid that met all bid 
requirements is shown below: 
 
    Price of Tractor  Trade in   Total 
Haley Equipment-Bobcat $45,576.12   $25,000.00      $20,576.12 
  
 
Budgeted amount  $59,000 
 
Staff has made a second request, since changing from a John Deere to a Bobcat, there are a few 
attachments that will no longer work. We did not include this in the overall bid, due to several 
companies would allow us to continue use, a few would not. We are requesting to trade in our 
current pallet forks and 7ft snow bucket, in exchange for a 7ft snow bucket that will work for the 
new Bobcat tractor. We currently have pallet forks for another machine that will work for the 
new Bobcat Tractor. Those numbers are below: 
 
Trade in: 
Pallet Forks    $425 
John Deere Snow Bucket  $425 
     $850 
 
Haley Equipment Price of New Implement  Trade in   Total 
Snow Bucket    $1,850   $850    $1,000  
 
 
Total for Haley Equipment for tractor and snow bucket: $21,576.12 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Mayor and City Council consideration and approval of the bids from 
Haley Equipment for a new tractor and loader in the amount of $20,576.12 and added snow 
bucket, minus trade in, for $1,000.  
 
 
 

Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36



BID OPENING REPORT

For: Parks Tractor and Bucket

Bids were opened on: 24-Oct-2023

Pre-Bid Estimate $59,000.00

Company Name

1. VanWall 49,985.00$         21,000.00$      28,985.00$    
 
2. Haley Equipment- Bobcat 45,576.12$         25,000.00$      20,576.12$    

3. Haley Equipment-New Holland 47,590.73$         25,000.00$      22,590.73$    

4. Rueter's  with Turf Tires 549,000.00$       20,900.00$      34,000.00$    

5. Rueter's standard tires 49,900.00$         20,900.00$      29,000.00$    

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Signed:

Date: 10/24/2023

Total Pricetrade

THE ABOVE BID AMOUNTS HAVE NOT BEEN CHECKED.

THE BID TOTALS ARE SUBJECT TO CORRECTION AFTER

THE BIDS HAVE BEEN COMPLETELY REVIEWED.

CITY OF CARROLL
Department of Parks & Rec

       627 N Adams Street
CARROLL, IOWA  51401

(712) 792-1000

trade

Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37



Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38



 

City of Carroll  

627 N. Adams Street       Carroll, Iowa 51401           (712) 792-1000           FAX: (712) 792-0139  

 

 

 MEMO TO: Aaron Kooiker, City Manager  

 FROM: Laura A. Schaefer, Finance Director/City Clerk 

 DATE: November 7, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Annual Urban Renewal Report for Fiscal Year 2022 - 2023 

 

New urban renewal (UR) area reporting requirements were in effect as of July 1, 2012 with the passage 

of HF 2460 which requires that all cities, counties and rural improvement zones with active urban 

renewal areas provide specified information concerning active UR areas and any associated tax 

increment financing districts. This report must be approved by Council and submitted electronically by 

December 1 each year. 

 

The first page of the report is a summary of the UR areas within the City of Carroll, balance in the TIF 

special revenue accounts as of June 30, 2023 and TIF debt outstanding.  The supporting pages for each 

urban renewal area include a data collection page, listing of the specific projects of the UR area, the debt 

outstanding, a page that links the projects to the debt outstanding and any rebate payments made to a 

developer as a result of a development agreement. The final page(s) for each UR area summarizes the 

TIF district values (both base value and incremental value) and amount of TIF revenue received for FY 

2023. 

 
If you have any questions about this report, please feel free to contact me or stop by City Hall. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council consideration and approval of the attached Annual Urban Renewal 

Report for Fiscal Year 2022 - 2023.  
 

Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39



Levy Authority Summary
Local Government Name:  CARROLL
Local Government Number:  14G116

Active Urban Renewal Areas U.R.
#

# of Tif
Taxing
Districts

CARROLL CITY URBAN RENEWAL 14004 6
CARROL MONTEREY POINT URBAN RENEWAL 14016 1
CARROLL ASHWOOD URBAN RENEWAL 14019 2
CARROLL OAKPARK URBAN RENEWAL 14022 1
CARROLL WESTFIELD URBAN RENEWAL 14023 1
CARROLL ACE BUILDERS URBAN RENEWAL 14024 1

TIF Debt Outstanding:   2,528,343

TIF Sp. Rev. Fund Cash Balance
as of 07012022:   66,634  0 

Amount of 07012022 Cash Balance
Restricted for LMI

TIF Revenue:   1,108,635
TIF Sp. Revenue Fund Interest:   2,621
Property Tax Replacement Claims   0
Asset Sales & Loan Repayments:   0
Total Revenue:   1,111,256

Rebate Expenditures:   18,520
NonRebate Expenditures:   1,046,876
Returned to County Treasurer:   0
Total Expenditures:   1,065,396

TIF Sp. Rev. Fund Cash Balance
as of 06302023:   112,494  0 

Amount of 06302023 Cash Balance
Restricted for LMI

YearEnd Outstanding TIF
Obligations, Net of TIF Special
Revenue Fund Balance:   1,350,453

Annual Urban Renewal Report, Fiscal Year 2022  2023

Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40



Urban Renewal Area Data Collection
Local Government Name:  CARROLL (14G116)
Urban Renewal Area:  CARROLL CITY URBAN RENEWAL
UR Area Number:  14004

UR Area Creation Date:  11/1967

UR Area Purpose:  

To foster economic development in
the area through public
improvements including streetscape
improvements, street intersection
improvements and other utility
improvements

Tax Districts within this Urban Renewal Area Base
No.

Increment
No.

Increment
Value
Used

CARROLL CITY/CARROLL SCH/AMEND AREA CATF2 UR TIF INCREM 140111 140112 19,572,600
CARROLL CITY/CARROLL SCH/CATIF UR TIF INCREM 140119 140120 9,096,046
CARROLL CITY/CARROLL SCH/AMEND AREA CTIF3 UR TIF INCREM 140177 140178 16,912,500
CARROLL CITY/CARROLL SCH/AMEND AREA CTIF4 UR INCREMENT 140203 140204 527,780
CARROLLCITY/CARROLLSCH/AMENDAREACTIF5 140216 140217 1,432,590
CARROLLCITY/CARROLLSCH/AMENDAREACTIF6INCR 140218 140219 82,958

Urban Renewal Area Value by Class  1/1/2021 for FY 2023
Agricultural Residential Commercial Industrial Other Military Total Gas/Electric Utility Total

Assessed 0 4,397,510 86,786,390 367,090 0 5,556 95,118,654 0 95,118,654
Taxable 0 2,380,383 78,107,751 330,381 0 5,556 83,090,889 0 83,090,889
Homestead Credits 14
TIF Sp. Rev. Fund Cash Balance
as of 07012022:   66,634  0 

Amount of 07012022 Cash Balance
Restricted for LMI

TIF Revenue:   1,106,050
TIF Sp. Revenue Fund Interest:   2,601
Property Tax Replacement Claims   0
Asset Sales & Loan Repayments:   0
Total Revenue:   1,108,651

Rebate Expenditures:   18,520
NonRebate Expenditures:   1,044,271
Returned to County Treasurer:   0
Total Expenditures:   1,062,791

TIF Sp. Rev. Fund Cash Balance
as of 06302023:   112,494  0 

Amount of 06302023 Cash Balance
Restricted for LMI

♣ Annual Urban Renewal Report, Fiscal Year 2022  2023

Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41



Projects For CARROLL CITY URBAN RENEWAL

Hwy 30 & Grant Rd Intersection Improvements

Description: Roadway intersection improvements
Classification: Roads, Bridges & Utilities
Physically Complete: Yes
Payments Complete: Yes

Streetscape Phase 9

Description:

Streetscape improvements: Clark St (4th St to 7th St), West
St (5th St to US 30), 4th St (Adams St to Clark St), 5th St
(West St to Alley east and Court St to Clark St)

Classification: Roads, Bridges & Utilities
Physically Complete: Yes
Payments Complete: Yes

Streetscape Phase 10

Description:

Streetscape improvements: 7th St (West St to Carroll St),
Westgate Mall Parking Lot, 4th Street Parking Lot &
Pedestrian Curb Ramps

Classification: Roads, Bridges & Utilities
Physically Complete: Yes
Payments Complete: Yes

Streetscape Phase 11

Description:
Streetscape improvements: US 30 (US 71 to West St) & US
30 (Clark St to Grant Road)

Classification: Roads, Bridges & Utilities
Physically Complete: Yes
Payments Complete: No

Biokinemetrics Building Construction

Description: Construction of building at 211 E 4th St
Classification: CommercialMedical
Physically Complete: Yes
Payments Complete: No

City Hotel Project

Description: Acquisition and demolition costs of 224 N Main Street
Classification: Acquisition of property
Physically Complete: Yes
Payments Complete: Yes

Adams Street Reconstruction  2023

Description: Street reconstruction of Adams Street
Classification: Roads, Bridges & Utilities
Physically Complete: No
Payments Complete: No

♣ Annual Urban Renewal Report, Fiscal Year 2022  2023

Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42



Debts/Obligations For CARROLL CITY URBAN RENEWAL

DMBA Agreement

Debt/Obligation Type: Rebates
Principal: 234,591
Interest: 0
Total: 234,591
Annual Appropriation?: Yes
Date Incurred: 12/27/2016
FY of Last Payment: 2033

Water Fund Loan #12

Debt/Obligation Type: Internal Loans
Principal: 130,000
Interest: 975
Total: 130,975
Annual Appropriation?: No
Date Incurred: 11/25/2019
FY of Last Payment: 2023

Water Fund Load #13

Debt/Obligation Type: Internal Loans
Principal: 50,000
Interest: 63
Total: 50,063
Annual Appropriation?: No
Date Incurred: 11/23/2020
FY of Last Payment: 2023

Sewer Fund Loan #1

Debt/Obligation Type: Internal Loans
Principal: 900,000
Interest: 1,875
Total: 901,875
Annual Appropriation?: No
Date Incurred: 11/08/2021
FY of Last Payment: 2024

Sewer Fund Loan #2

Debt/Obligation Type: Internal Loans
Principal: 1,000,000
Interest: 25,750
Total: 1,025,750
Annual Appropriation?: No
Date Incurred: 11/28/2022
FY of Last Payment: 2025

General Fund Loan #1

Debt/Obligation Type: Internal Loans
Principal: 1,483
Interest: 0

♣ Annual Urban Renewal Report, Fiscal Year 2022  2023

Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43



Total: 1,483
Annual Appropriation?: No
Date Incurred: 11/11/2019
FY of Last Payment: 2023

Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44



Tied To Debt:
Tied To Project:

Tied To Debt:
Tied To Project:

Tied To Debt:
Tied To Project:

Tied To Debt:
Tied To Project:

Tied To Debt:
Tied To Project:

Tied To Debt:
Tied To Project:

Tied To Debt:
Tied To Project:

Tied To Debt:
Tied To Project:

NonRebates For CARROLL CITY URBAN RENEWAL

TIF Expenditure Amount: 2,619
Water Fund Loan #12
Hwy 30 & Grant Rd Intersection
Improvements

TIF Expenditure Amount: 3,536
Water Fund Loan #12
Streetscape Phase 9

TIF Expenditure Amount: 117,616
Water Fund Loan #12
Streetscape Phase 10

TIF Expenditure Amount: 7,204
Water Fund Loan #12
Streetscape Phase 11

TIF Expenditure Amount: 50,063
Water Fund Load #13
Streetscape Phase 10

TIF Expenditure Amount: 801,750
Sewer Fund Loan #1
Streetscape Phase 11

TIF Expenditure Amount: 60,000
Sewer Fund Loan #2
Adams Street Reconstruction 
2023

TIF Expenditure Amount: 1,483
General Fund Loan #1
City Hotel Project

♣ Annual Urban Renewal Report, Fiscal Year 2022  2023

Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45



Rebate Paid To:

Tied To Debt:
Tied To Project:

Projected Final FY of Rebate:

Rebates For CARROLL CITY URBAN RENEWAL

211 E 4th Street

TIF Expenditure Amount: 18,520
DMBA Properties & Consulting,
Inc.
DMBA Agreement
Biokinemetrics Building
Construction
2033

♣ Annual Urban Renewal Report, Fiscal Year 2022  2023

Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46



Jobs For CARROLL CITY URBAN RENEWAL

Project:
Biokinemetrics Building
Construction

Company Name:

Biokinemetrics Holdings, LLC and
DMBA Properties & Consulting,
Inc.

Date Agreement Began: 12/27/2016
Date Agreement Ends: 06/01/2033
Number of Jobs Created or Retained: 10
Total Annual Wages of Required Jobs: 40,000
Total Estimated Private Capital Investment: 1,100,000
Total Estimated Cost of Public Infrastructure: 24,996

♣ Annual Urban Renewal Report, Fiscal Year 2022  2023

Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47



TIF Taxing District Data Collection
Local Government Name:  CARROLL (14G116)
Urban Renewal Area:  CARROLL CITY URBAN RENEWAL (14004)
TIF Taxing District Name:  CARROLL CITY/CARROLL SCH/AMEND AREA CATF2 UR TIF INCREM
TIF Taxing District Inc. Number:  140112
TIF Taxing District Base Year:  1984
FY TIF Revenue First Received:  1986
Subject to a Statutory end date?  No

UR Designation
Slum 01/1985
Blighted 01/1985
Economic Development No

TIF Taxing District Value by Class  1/1/2021 for FY 2023
Agricultural Residential Commercial Industrial Other Military Total Gas/Electric Utility Total

Assessed 0 0 23,344,750 0 0 0 23,344,750 0 23,344,750
Taxable 0 0 21,010,275 0 0 0 21,010,275 0 21,010,275
Homestead Credits 0

Frozen Base Value Max Increment Value Increment Used Increment Not Used Increment Revenue Not Used
Fiscal Year 2023 3,772,150 19,572,600 19,572,600 0 0

FY 2023 TIF Revenue Received:  455,457

♣ Annual Urban Renewal Report, Fiscal Year 2022  2023

TIF Taxing District Data Collection
Local Government Name:  CARROLL (14G116)
Urban Renewal Area:  CARROLL CITY URBAN RENEWAL (14004)
TIF Taxing District Name:  CARROLL CITY/CARROLL SCH/CATIF UR TIF INCREM
TIF Taxing District Inc. Number:  140120
TIF Taxing District Base Year:  1966
FY TIF Revenue First Received:  1986
Subject to a Statutory end date?  No

UR Designation
Slum 07/1967
Blighted 07/1967
Economic Development No

TIF Taxing District Value by Class  1/1/2021 for FY 2023
Agricultural Residential Commercial Industrial Other Military Total Gas/Electric Utility Total

Assessed 0 0 10,065,110 0 0 0 10,123,850 0 10,123,850
Taxable 0 0 9,058,599 0 0 0 9,096,046 0 9,096,046
Homestead Credits 0

Frozen Base Value Max Increment Value Increment Used Increment Not Used Increment Revenue Not Used
Fiscal Year 2023 821,365 9,096,046 9,096,046 0 0

FY 2023 TIF Revenue Received:  211,815

Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48



TIF Taxing District Data Collection
Local Government Name:  CARROLL (14G116)
Urban Renewal Area:  CARROLL CITY URBAN RENEWAL (14004)
TIF Taxing District Name:  CARROLL CITY/CARROLL SCH/AMEND AREA CTIF3 UR TIF INCREM
TIF Taxing District Inc. Number:  140178
TIF Taxing District Base Year:  2007
FY TIF Revenue First Received:  2010
Subject to a Statutory end date?  Yes
Fiscal year this TIF Taxing District
statutorily ends:  2029

UR Designation
Slum No
Blighted No
Economic Development 09/2008

TIF Taxing District Value by Class  1/1/2021 for FY 2023
Agricultural Residential Commercial Industrial Other Military Total Gas/Electric Utility Total

Assessed 0 3,594,550 33,395,980 0 0 5,556 40,015,464 0 40,015,464
Taxable 0 1,945,738 30,056,382 0 0 5,556 33,928,502 0 33,928,502
Homestead Credits 10

Frozen Base Value Max Increment Value Increment Used Increment Not Used Increment Revenue Not Used
Fiscal Year 2023 23,108,520 16,912,500 16,912,500 0 0

FY 2023 TIF Revenue Received:  391,196

♣ Annual Urban Renewal Report, Fiscal Year 2022  2023

TIF Taxing District Data Collection
Local Government Name:  CARROLL (14G116)
Urban Renewal Area:  CARROLL CITY URBAN RENEWAL (14004)
TIF Taxing District Name:  CARROLL CITY/CARROLL SCH/AMEND AREA CTIF4 UR INCREMENT
TIF Taxing District Inc. Number:  140204
TIF Taxing District Base Year:  2013
FY TIF Revenue First Received:  2016
Subject to a Statutory end date?  Yes
Fiscal year this TIF Taxing District
statutorily ends:  2035

UR Designation
Slum No
Blighted No
Economic Development 11/2014

TIF Taxing District Value by Class  1/1/2021 for FY 2023
Agricultural Residential Commercial Industrial Other Military Total Gas/Electric Utility Total

Assessed 0 63,800 16,756,630 367,090 0 0 17,295,180 0 17,295,180
Taxable 0 34,535 15,080,967 330,381 0 0 15,514,517 0 15,514,517
Homestead Credits 0

Frozen Base Value Max Increment Value Increment Used Increment Not Used Increment Revenue Not Used
Fiscal Year 2023 16,767,400 527,780 527,780 0 0

FY 2023 TIF Revenue Received:  12,290

Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49



TIF Taxing District Data Collection
Local Government Name:  CARROLL (14G116)
Urban Renewal Area:  CARROLL CITY URBAN RENEWAL (14004)
TIF Taxing District Name:  CARROLLCITY/CARROLLSCH/AMENDAREACTIF5
TIF Taxing District Inc. Number:  140217
TIF Taxing District Base Year:  2016
FY TIF Revenue First Received:  2019
Subject to a Statutory end date?  Yes
Fiscal year this TIF Taxing District
statutorily ends:  2038

UR Designation
Slum No
Blighted No
Economic Development 01/2017

TIF Taxing District Value by Class  1/1/2021 for FY 2023
Agricultural Residential Commercial Industrial Other Military Total Gas/Electric Utility Total

Assessed 0 0 1,644,990 0 0 0 1,644,990 0 1,644,990
Taxable 0 0 1,480,491 0 0 0 1,480,491 0 1,480,491
Homestead Credits 0

Frozen Base Value Max Increment Value Increment Used Increment Not Used Increment Revenue Not Used
Fiscal Year 2023 212,400 1,432,590 1,432,590 0 0

FY 2023 TIF Revenue Received:  33,360

♣ Annual Urban Renewal Report, Fiscal Year 2022  2023

TIF Taxing District Data Collection
Local Government Name:  CARROLL (14G116)
Urban Renewal Area:  CARROLL CITY URBAN RENEWAL (14004)
TIF Taxing District Name:  CARROLLCITY/CARROLLSCH/AMENDAREACTIF6INCR
TIF Taxing District Inc. Number:  140219
TIF Taxing District Base Year:  2018
FY TIF Revenue First Received:  2021
Subject to a Statutory end date?  Yes
Fiscal year this TIF Taxing District
statutorily ends:  2040

UR Designation
Slum No
Blighted No
Economic Development 09/2019

TIF Taxing District Value by Class  1/1/2021 for FY 2023
Agricultural Residential Commercial Industrial Other Military Total Gas/Electric Utility Total

Assessed 0 739,160 1,578,930 0 0 0 2,694,420 0 2,694,420
Taxable 0 400,110 1,421,037 0 0 0 2,061,058 0 2,061,058
Homestead Credits 4

Frozen Base Value Max Increment Value Increment Used Increment Not Used Increment Revenue Not Used
Fiscal Year 2023 2,611,462 82,958 82,958 0 0

FY 2023 TIF Revenue Received:  1,932

Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50



Urban Renewal Area Data Collection
Local Government Name:  CARROLL (14G116)
Urban Renewal Area:  CARROL MONTEREY POINT URBAN RENEWAL
UR Area Number:  14016

UR Area Creation Date:  11/2002

UR Area Purpose:  

To foster economic development in
the area through rebates for Carroll
IHA Senior Housing Limited
Partnership, by Burns & Burns L.C.
General Partner

Tax Districts within this Urban Renewal Area Base
No.

Increment
No.

Increment
Value
Used

CARROLL CITY/CARROLL SCH/MP CATF3 UR TIF INCREM 140157 140158 0

Urban Renewal Area Value by Class  1/1/2021 for FY 2023
Agricultural Residential Commercial Industrial Other Military Total Gas/Electric Utility Total

Assessed 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Taxable 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Homestead Credits 0
TIF Sp. Rev. Fund Cash Balance
as of 07012022:   0  0 

Amount of 07012022 Cash Balance
Restricted for LMI

TIF Revenue:   0
TIF Sp. Revenue Fund Interest:   0
Property Tax Replacement Claims   0
Asset Sales & Loan Repayments:   0
Total Revenue:   0

Rebate Expenditures:   0
NonRebate Expenditures:   0
Returned to County Treasurer:   0
Total Expenditures:   0

TIF Sp. Rev. Fund Cash Balance
as of 06302023:   0  0 

Amount of 06302023 Cash Balance
Restricted for LMI

♦ Annual Urban Renewal Report, Fiscal Year 2022  2023

Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51



TIF Taxing District Data Collection
Local Government Name:  CARROLL (14G116)
Urban Renewal Area:  CARROL MONTEREY POINT URBAN RENEWAL (14016)
TIF Taxing District Name:  CARROLL CITY/CARROLL SCH/MP CATF3 UR TIF INCREM
TIF Taxing District Inc. Number:  140158
TIF Taxing District Base Year:  2001
FY TIF Revenue First Received:  2004
Subject to a Statutory end date?  Yes
Fiscal year this TIF Taxing District
statutorily ends:  2023

UR Designation
Slum No
Blighted No
Economic Development 11/2002

TIF Taxing District Value by Class  1/1/2021 for FY 2023
Agricultural Residential Commercial Industrial Other Military Total Gas/Electric Utility Total

Assessed 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Taxable 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Homestead Credits 0

Frozen Base Value Max Increment Value Increment Used Increment Not Used Increment Revenue Not Used
Fiscal Year 2023 126,580 0 0 0 0

FY 2023 TIF Revenue Received:  0

♦ Annual Urban Renewal Report, Fiscal Year 2022  2023

Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52



Urban Renewal Area Data Collection
Local Government Name:  CARROLL (14G116)
Urban Renewal Area:  CARROLL ASHWOOD URBAN RENEWAL
UR Area Number:  14019

UR Area Creation Date:  04/2006

UR Area Purpose:  

to foster economic development in
the area through public
improvements including grading,
street paving and constructing
sanitary sewer and storm water
improvements

Tax Districts within this Urban Renewal Area Base
No.

Increment
No.

Increment
Value
Used

CARROLL CITY/CARROLL SCH/ASHWOOD CATF1 UR TIF INCREM 140167 140168 86,842
CARROLL CITY/CARROLL SCH/ASHWOOD AG CAATF UR TIF INCREM 140197 140198 35,548

Urban Renewal Area Value by Class  1/1/2021 for FY 2023
Agricultural Residential Commercial Industrial Other Military Total Gas/Electric Utility Total

Assessed 40,680 0 101,340 0 0 0 142,020 0 142,020
Taxable 36,221 0 91,206 0 0 0 127,427 0 127,427
Homestead Credits 0
TIF Sp. Rev. Fund Cash Balance
as of 07012022:   0  0 

Amount of 07012022 Cash Balance
Restricted for LMI

TIF Revenue:   2,585
TIF Sp. Revenue Fund Interest:   20
Property Tax Replacement Claims   0
Asset Sales & Loan Repayments:   0
Total Revenue:   2,605

Rebate Expenditures:   0
NonRebate Expenditures:   2,605
Returned to County Treasurer:   0
Total Expenditures:   2,605

TIF Sp. Rev. Fund Cash Balance
as of 06302023:   0  0 

Amount of 06302023 Cash Balance
Restricted for LMI

▲ Annual Urban Renewal Report, Fiscal Year 2022  2023

Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53



Projects For CARROLL ASHWOOD URBAN RENEWAL

Ashwood Bus Park Improvements

Description:
grading, street paving, constructing sanitary sewer and
storm water improvements

Classification: Roads, Bridges & Utilities
Physically Complete: Yes
Payments Complete: No

▲ Annual Urban Renewal Report, Fiscal Year 2022  2023

Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54



Debts/Obligations For CARROLL ASHWOOD URBAN RENEWAL

2014 Ashwood Refunding

Debt/Obligation Type: Gen. Obligation Bonds/Notes
Principal: 8,514
Interest: 1,503
Total: 10,017
Annual Appropriation?: No
Date Incurred: 08/12/2014
FY of Last Payment: 2027

▲ Annual Urban Renewal Report, Fiscal Year 2022  2023

Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55



Tied To Debt:
Tied To Project:

NonRebates For CARROLL ASHWOOD URBAN RENEWAL

TIF Expenditure Amount: 2,605
2014 Ashwood Refunding
Ashwood Bus Park Improvements

▲ Annual Urban Renewal Report, Fiscal Year 2022  2023

Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56



TIF Taxing District Data Collection
Local Government Name:  CARROLL (14G116)
Urban Renewal Area:  CARROLL ASHWOOD URBAN RENEWAL (14019)
TIF Taxing District Name:  CARROLL CITY/CARROLL SCH/ASHWOOD CATF1 UR TIF INCREM
TIF Taxing District Inc. Number:  140168
TIF Taxing District Base Year:  2005
FY TIF Revenue First Received:  2008
Subject to a Statutory end date?  Yes
Fiscal year this TIF Taxing District
statutorily ends:  2027

UR Designation
Slum No
Blighted No
Economic Development 04/2006

TIF Taxing District Value by Class  1/1/2021 for FY 2023
Agricultural Residential Commercial Industrial Other Military Total Gas/Electric Utility Total

Assessed 0 0 101,340 0 0 0 101,340 0 101,340
Taxable 0 0 91,206 0 0 0 91,206 0 91,206
Homestead Credits 0

Frozen Base Value Max Increment Value Increment Used Increment Not Used Increment Revenue Not Used
Fiscal Year 2023 14,498 86,842 86,842 0 0

FY 2023 TIF Revenue Received:  2,021

▲ Annual Urban Renewal Report, Fiscal Year 2022  2023

TIF Taxing District Data Collection
Local Government Name:  CARROLL (14G116)
Urban Renewal Area:  CARROLL ASHWOOD URBAN RENEWAL (14019)
TIF Taxing District Name:  CARROLL CITY/CARROLL SCH/ASHWOOD AG CAATF UR TIF INCREM
TIF Taxing District Inc. Number:  140198
TIF Taxing District Base Year:  2005
FY TIF Revenue First Received:  2008
Subject to a Statutory end date?  Yes
Fiscal year this TIF Taxing District
statutorily ends:  2027

UR Designation
Slum No
Blighted No
Economic Development 04/2006

TIF Taxing District Value by Class  1/1/2021 for FY 2023
Agricultural Residential Commercial Industrial Other Military Total Gas/Electric Utility Total

Assessed 40,680 0 0 0 0 0 40,680 0 40,680
Taxable 36,221 0 0 0 0 0 36,221 0 36,221
Homestead Credits 0

Frozen Base Value Max Increment Value Increment Used Increment Not Used Increment Revenue Not Used
Fiscal Year 2023 5,132 35,548 35,548 0 0

FY 2023 TIF Revenue Received:  564

Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57



Urban Renewal Area Data Collection
Local Government Name:  CARROLL (14G116)
Urban Renewal Area:  CARROLL OAKPARK URBAN RENEWAL
UR Area Number:  14022

UR Area Creation Date:  09/2007

UR Area Purpose:  

to foster economic development in
the area through public
improvements including
constructing and installing roadway
and utility improvements including
sanitary sewers, water main
extensions and storm sewers

Tax Districts within this Urban Renewal Area Base
No.

Increment
No.

Increment
Value
Used

CARROLL CITY/CARROLL SCH/OAKPARK OAKTF UR TIF INCREM 140173 140174 0

Urban Renewal Area Value by Class  1/1/2021 for FY 2023
Agricultural Residential Commercial Industrial Other Military Total Gas/Electric Utility Total

Assessed 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Taxable 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Homestead Credits 0
TIF Sp. Rev. Fund Cash Balance
as of 07012022:   0  0 

Amount of 07012022 Cash Balance
Restricted for LMI

TIF Revenue:   0
TIF Sp. Revenue Fund Interest:   0
Property Tax Replacement Claims   0
Asset Sales & Loan Repayments:   0
Total Revenue:   0

Rebate Expenditures:   0
NonRebate Expenditures:   0
Returned to County Treasurer:   0
Total Expenditures:   0

TIF Sp. Rev. Fund Cash Balance
as of 06302023:   0  0 

Amount of 06302023 Cash Balance
Restricted for LMI

♣ Annual Urban Renewal Report, Fiscal Year 2022  2023

Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58



TIF Taxing District Data Collection
Local Government Name:  CARROLL (14G116)
Urban Renewal Area:  CARROLL OAKPARK URBAN RENEWAL (14022)
TIF Taxing District Name:  CARROLL CITY/CARROLL SCH/OAKPARK OAKTF UR TIF INCREM
TIF Taxing District Inc. Number:  140174
TIF Taxing District Base Year:  2007
FY TIF Revenue First Received:  2010
Subject to a Statutory end date?  Yes
Fiscal year this TIF Taxing District
statutorily ends:  2029

UR Designation
Slum No
Blighted No
Economic Development 09/2007

TIF Taxing District Value by Class  1/1/2021 for FY 2023
Agricultural Residential Commercial Industrial Other Military Total Gas/Electric Utility Total

Assessed 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Taxable 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Homestead Credits 0

Frozen Base Value Max Increment Value Increment Used Increment Not Used Increment Revenue Not Used
Fiscal Year 2023 7,400 0 0 0 0

FY 2023 TIF Revenue Received:  0

♣ Annual Urban Renewal Report, Fiscal Year 2022  2023

Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59



Urban Renewal Area Data Collection
Local Government Name:  CARROLL (14G116)
Urban Renewal Area:  CARROLL WESTFIELD URBAN RENEWAL
UR Area Number:  14023

UR Area Creation Date:  05/2007

UR Area Purpose:  

To foster economic development in
the area through public
improvements including sewer,
water and street improvements

Tax Districts within this Urban Renewal Area Base
No.

Increment
No.

Increment
Value
Used

CARROLL CITY/CARROLL SCH/WESTFIELD WESTF UR TIF INCREM 140175 140176 0

Urban Renewal Area Value by Class  1/1/2021 for FY 2023
Agricultural Residential Commercial Industrial Other Military Total Gas/Electric Utility Total

Assessed 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Taxable 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Homestead Credits 0
TIF Sp. Rev. Fund Cash Balance
as of 07012022:   0  0 

Amount of 07012022 Cash Balance
Restricted for LMI

TIF Revenue:   0
TIF Sp. Revenue Fund Interest:   0
Property Tax Replacement Claims   0
Asset Sales & Loan Repayments:   0
Total Revenue:   0

Rebate Expenditures:   0
NonRebate Expenditures:   0
Returned to County Treasurer:   0
Total Expenditures:   0

TIF Sp. Rev. Fund Cash Balance
as of 06302023:   0  0 

Amount of 06302023 Cash Balance
Restricted for LMI

♦ Annual Urban Renewal Report, Fiscal Year 2022  2023

Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60



Projects For CARROLL WESTFIELD URBAN RENEWAL

Administrative expenses

Description: Administrative expenses to amend the Westfield UR Plan
Classification: Administrative expenses
Physically Complete: Yes
Payments Complete: No

New office building for BTC, Inc.

Description: New office building for BTC, Inc. dba WIN
Classification: Commercial  office properties
Physically Complete: Yes
Payments Complete: No

♦ Annual Urban Renewal Report, Fiscal Year 2022  2023

Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61



Debts/Obligations For CARROLL WESTFIELD URBAN RENEWAL

General Fund Loan

Debt/Obligation Type: Internal Loans
Principal: 1,195
Interest: 0
Total: 1,195
Annual Appropriation?: No
Date Incurred: 10/26/2020
FY of Last Payment: 2024

BTC, Inc. TIF Rebate Agreement

Debt/Obligation Type: Rebates
Principal: 172,394
Interest: 0
Total: 172,394
Annual Appropriation?: Yes
Date Incurred: 11/14/2022
FY of Last Payment: 2026

♦ Annual Urban Renewal Report, Fiscal Year 2022  2023

Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62



Tied To Debt:
Tied To Project:

NonRebates For CARROLL WESTFIELD URBAN RENEWAL

TIF Expenditure Amount: 0
General Fund Loan
Administrative expenses

♦ Annual Urban Renewal Report, Fiscal Year 2022  2023

Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63



Rebate Paid To:
Tied To Debt:
Tied To Project:
Projected Final FY of Rebate:

Rebates For CARROLL WESTFIELD URBAN RENEWAL

1780 Kittyhawk Avenue

TIF Expenditure Amount: 0
BTC, Inc. dba WIN
BTC, Inc. TIF Rebate Agreement
New office building for BTC, Inc.
2026

♦ Annual Urban Renewal Report, Fiscal Year 2022  2023

Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64



Jobs For CARROLL WESTFIELD URBAN RENEWAL

Project: New office building for BTC, Inc.

Company Name:
BTC, Inc. dba Western Iowa
Networks

Date Agreement Began: 10/12/2020
Date Agreement Ends: 06/01/2026
Number of Jobs Created or Retained: 23
Total Annual Wages of Required Jobs: 0
Total Estimated Private Capital Investment: 8,200,000
Total Estimated Cost of Public Infrastructure: 200,000

♦ Annual Urban Renewal Report, Fiscal Year 2022  2023

Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65



The development agreement does not require a specific annual wage amount as part of 
the jobs requirement.

256 Characters Left

Sum of Private Investment Made Within This Urban Renewal Area
during FY 2023
0

♦ Annual Urban Renewal Report, Fiscal Year 2022  2023

Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66



TIF Taxing District Data Collection
Local Government Name:  CARROLL (14G116)
Urban Renewal Area:  CARROLL WESTFIELD URBAN RENEWAL (14023)
TIF Taxing District Name:  CARROLL CITY/CARROLL SCH/WESTFIELD WESTF UR TIF INCREM
TIF Taxing District Inc. Number:  140176
TIF Taxing District Base Year:  2007
FY TIF Revenue First Received:  2010
Subject to a Statutory end date?  Yes
Fiscal year this TIF Taxing District
statutorily ends:  2029

UR Designation
Slum No
Blighted No
Economic Development 05/2007

TIF Taxing District Value by Class  1/1/2021 for FY 2023
Agricultural Residential Commercial Industrial Other Military Total Gas/Electric Utility Total

Assessed 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Taxable 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Homestead Credits 0

Frozen Base Value Max Increment Value Increment Used Increment Not Used Increment Revenue Not Used
Fiscal Year 2023 27,770 0 0 0 0

FY 2023 TIF Revenue Received:  0

♦ Annual Urban Renewal Report, Fiscal Year 2022  2023

Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67



Urban Renewal Area Data Collection
Local Government Name:  CARROLL (14G116)
Urban Renewal Area:  CARROLL ACE BUILDERS URBAN RENEWAL
UR Area Number:  14024

UR Area Creation Date:  05/2008

UR Area Purpose:  

to foster economic development
through public improvements
including water main and sanitary
sewer installation

Tax Districts within this Urban Renewal Area Base
No.

Increment
No.

Increment
Value
Used

CARROLL CITY/CARROLL SCH/ACE BUILDERS ACETF UR TIF INCREM 140179 140180 0

Urban Renewal Area Value by Class  1/1/2021 for FY 2023
Agricultural Residential Commercial Industrial Other Military Total Gas/Electric Utility Total

Assessed 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Taxable 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Homestead Credits 0
TIF Sp. Rev. Fund Cash Balance
as of 07012022:   0  0 

Amount of 07012022 Cash Balance
Restricted for LMI

TIF Revenue:   0
TIF Sp. Revenue Fund Interest:   0
Property Tax Replacement Claims   0
Asset Sales & Loan Repayments:   0
Total Revenue:   0

Rebate Expenditures:   0
NonRebate Expenditures:   0
Returned to County Treasurer:   0
Total Expenditures:   0

TIF Sp. Rev. Fund Cash Balance
as of 06302023:   0  0 

Amount of 06302023 Cash Balance
Restricted for LMI

▲ Annual Urban Renewal Report, Fiscal Year 2022  2023

Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68



TIF Taxing District Data Collection
Local Government Name:  CARROLL (14G116)
Urban Renewal Area:  CARROLL ACE BUILDERS URBAN RENEWAL (14024)
TIF Taxing District Name:  CARROLL CITY/CARROLL SCH/ACE BUILDERS ACETF UR TIF INCREM
TIF Taxing District Inc. Number:  140180
TIF Taxing District Base Year:  2007
FY TIF Revenue First Received:  2010
Subject to a Statutory end date?  Yes
Fiscal year this TIF Taxing District
statutorily ends:  2029

UR Designation
Slum No
Blighted No
Economic Development 05/2008

TIF Taxing District Value by Class  1/1/2021 for FY 2023
Agricultural Residential Commercial Industrial Other Military Total Gas/Electric Utility Total

Assessed 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Taxable 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Homestead Credits 0

Frozen Base Value Max Increment Value Increment Used Increment Not Used Increment Revenue Not Used
Fiscal Year 2023 64,635 0 0 0 0

FY 2023 TIF Revenue Received:  0

▲ Annual Urban Renewal Report, Fiscal Year 2022  2023

Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69



 

City of Carroll  

627 N. Adams Street       Carroll, Iowa 51401           (712) 792-1000           FAX: (712) 792-0139  

 

 

 MEMO TO: Aaron Kooiker, City Manager  

 FROM: Laura A. Schaefer, Finance Director/City Clerk 

 DATE: November 7, 2023 

 SUBJECT: State Annual Financial Report for Fiscal Year 2022 - 2023 

 

Attached is a copy of the State Annual Financial Report for Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2023. This 

report is required by Chapter 384.22 of the Code of Iowa and is to be filed with the Office of the 

Auditor of State by December 1, 2023. Also, the first page of the report is required to be published and 

a proof of publication must be submitted with the report.  The report summarizes all the revenues and 

expenses as well as the outstanding debt for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023.   

 

If you have any questions about the report, please stop by City Hall or call me. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   Council acceptance and authorization for publication of the State Annual 

Financial Report for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2023. 

 
 

Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70



STATE OF IOWA
 

2023
 

FINANCIAL REPORT
 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED
 

JUNE 30, 2023
 

CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA
 

DUE: December 1, 2023

16201400300000
CITY OF CARROLL
627 N ADAMS STREET
CARROLL IA 51401
POPULATION: 10321

NOTE - The information supplied in this report will be shared by the Iowa State Auditor's Office, the U.S. Census Bureau, various public interest groups, and State and federal
agencies.

ALL FUNDS
Governmental  (a) Proprietary  (b) Total Actual  (c) Budget  (d)

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Taxes Levied on Property 6,332,819 6,332,819 6,204,789
Less: Uncollected Property Taxes-Levy Year 0 0 0

Net Current Property Taxes 6,332,819 6,332,819 6,204,789
Delinquent Property Taxes 0 0 0
TIF Revenues 1,108,635 1,108,635 1,106,734
Other City Taxes 2,619,395 0 2,619,395 2,440,672
Licenses and Permits 84,712 0 84,712 98,500
Use of Money and Property 373,002 256,504 629,506 177,325
Intergovernmental 2,455,485 0 2,455,485 2,779,729
Charges for Fees and Service 1,858,888 3,894,968 5,753,856 5,705,500
Special Assessments 0 0 0 0
Miscellaneous 324,855 95,812 420,667 295,400
Other Financing Sources 5,796,259 0 5,796,259 9,020,000
Transfers In 4,958,568 2,658,788 7,617,356 7,974,278

Total Revenues and Other Sources 25,912,618 6,906,072 32,818,690 35,802,927
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Public Safety 2,399,330 2,399,330 2,544,125
Public Works 2,339,018 2,339,018 2,716,867
Health and Social Services 69,397 69,397 94,240
Culture and Recreation 3,096,907 3,096,907 4,580,428
Community and Economic Development 381,946 381,946 851,111
General Government 1,227,189 1,227,189 1,350,650
Debt Service 1,776,617 1,776,617 1,789,411
Capital Projects 4,999,881 4,999,881 11,282,894

Total Governmental Activities Expenditures 16,290,285 0 16,290,285 25,209,726
BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES 3,513,235 3,513,235 4,562,938

Total All Expenditures 16,290,285 3,513,235 19,803,520 29,772,664
Other Financing Uses 0 0 0
Transfers Out 4,889,156 2,728,200 7,617,356 7,974,278

Total All Expenditures/and Other Financing Uses 21,179,441 6,241,435 27,420,876 37,746,942
Excess Revenues and Other Sources Over (Under)  Expenditures/and Other Financing Uses 4,733,177 664,637 5,397,814 -1,944,015

Beginning Fund Balance July 1, 2022 15,491,636 10,128,376 25,620,012 25,620,012
Ending Fund Balance June 30, 2023 20,224,813 10,793,013 31,017,826 23,675,997
NOTE - These balances do not include the following, which were not budgeted and are not available for city operations:
Non-budgeted Internal Service Funds
1,029,856 Pension Trust Funds

Private Purpose Trust Funds Agency Funds

Indebtedness at June 30, 2023 Amount Indebtedness at June 30, 2023 Amount
General Obligation Debt 8,915,000 Other Long-Term Debt 0
Revenue Debt 1,420,000 Short-Term Debt 0
TIF Revenue Debt 0

General Obligation Debt Limit 45,470,569
CERTIFICATION

The forgoing report is correct to the best of my knowledge and belief

Signature of Preparer

Publication

Printed name of Preparer
Laura A. Schaefer

Phone Number
712-792-1000

Signature of Mayor or other City official (Name and Title)

Date Signed

PLEASE PUBLISH THIS PAGE ONLY

Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71



REVENUE P2
CITY OF CARROLL
REVENUE AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
NON-GAAP/CASH BASIS

Item Description General 
(a)

Special
Revenue  (b)

TIF Special
Revenue  (c)

Debt
Service  (d)

Capital
Projects  (e)

Permanent 
(f)

Total Governmental  (Sum of
(a) through (f))  (g)

Proprietary 
(h)

Grand Total  (Sum of
(g) and (h))  (i)

Section A - Taxes 1 1
Taxes levied on property 2 4,542,204 983,913 806,702 6,332,819 6,332,819 2

Less: Uncollected Property Taxes - Levy Year 3 0 0 3
Net Current Property Taxes 4 4,542,204 983,913 806,702 0 0 6,332,819 6,332,819 4
Delinquent Property Taxes 5 0 0 5

Total Property Tax 6 4,542,204 983,913 806,702 0 0 6,332,819 6,332,819 6
TIF Revenues 7 1,108,635 1,108,635 1,108,635 7
Other City Taxes

Utility Tax Replacement Excise Taxes 8 0 0 8
Utility Franchise Tax (Chapter 364.2, Code of
Iowa) 9 214,161 214,161 214,161 9

Parimutuel Wager Tax 10 0 0 10
Gaming Wager Tax 11 0 0 11
Mobile Home Tax 12 0 0 12
Hotel / Motel Tax 13 242,608 242,608 242,608 13
Other Local Option Taxes 14 2,162,626 2,162,626 2,162,626 14

Total Other City Taxes 15 456,769 2,162,626 0 0 0 2,619,395 0 2,619,395 15
Section B - Licenses and Permits 16 84,712 84,712 84,712 16
Section C - Use of Money and Property 17 17

Interest 18 151,158 56,991 2,621 110,792 11,650 333,212 194,104 527,316 18
Rents and Royalties 19 39,790 39,790 62,400 102,190 19
Other Miscellaneous Use of Money and Property 20 0 0 20

21 0 0 21
Total Use of Money and Property 22 190,948 56,991 2,621 0 110,792 11,650 373,002 256,504 629,506 22

Section D - Intergovernmental 24 24
Federal Grants and Reimbursements 26 26

Federal Grants 27 412 735,130 735,542 735,542 27
Community Development Block Grants 28 34,137 34,137 34,137 28
Housing and Urban Development 29 0 0 29
Public Assistance Grants 30 0 0 30
Payment in Lieu of Taxes 31 0 0 31

32 0 0 32
Total Federal Grants and Reimbursements 33 412 735,130 0 34,137 0 769,679 0 769,679 33

P
age 72

P
age 72

P
age 72

P
age 72

P
age 72

P
age 72

P
age 72

P
age 72

P
age 72

P
age 72

P
age 72

P
age 72

P
age 72

P
age 72

P
age 72

P
age 72

P
age 72

P
age 72

P
age 72

P
age 72

P
age 72

P
age 72

P
age 72

P
age 72

P
age 72

P
age 72

P
age 72

P
age 72

P
age 72

P
age 72

P
age 72

P
age 72

P
age 72

P
age 72

P
age 72

P
age 72



REVENUE P3
CITY OF CARROLL
REVENUE AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
NON-GAAP/CASH BASIS

Item Description General 
(a)

Special
Revenue  (b)

TIF Special
Revenue  (c)

Debt
Service  (d)

Capital
Projects  (e)

Permanent 
(f)

Total Governmental  (Sum of
(a) through (f))  (g)

Proprietary 
(h)

Grand Total  (Sum of
(g) and (h))  (i)

Section D - Intergovernmental - Continued 41 41
State Shared Revenues 43 43

Road Use Taxes 44 1,420,286 1,420,286 1,420,286 44
Other state grants and reimbursements 48 48

State grants 49 4,683 4,818 9,501 9,501 49
Iowa Department of Transportation 50 0 0 50
Iowa Department of Natural Resources 51 0 0 51
Iowa Economic Development Authority 52 0 0 52
CEBA grants 53 0 0 53
Commercial & Industrial Replacement Claim 54 117,426 25,437 20,886 163,749 163,749 54

REAP Grant 55 12,500 12,500 12,500 55
56 0 0 56
57 0 0 57
58 0 0 58
59 0 0 59

Total State 60 122,109 1,450,541 0 20,886 12,500 0 1,606,036 0 1,606,036 60

Local Grants and Reimbursements
County Contributions 63 44,148 5,000 49,148 49,148 63
Library Service 64 0 0 64
Township Contributions 65 30,622 30,622 30,622 65
Fire/EMT Service 66 0 0 66

67 0 0 67
68 0 0 68
69 0 0 69

Total Local Grants and Reimbursements 70 74,770 0 0 0 5,000 0 79,770 0 79,770 70
Total Intergovernmental (Sum of lines 33, 60, and
70) 71 197,291 2,185,671 0 20,886 51,637 0 2,455,485 0 2,455,485 71

Section E -Charges for Fees and Service 72 72
Water 73 0 1,514,170 1,514,170 73
Sewer 74 0 2,110,831 2,110,831 74
Electric 75 0 0 75
Gas 76 0 0 76
Parking 77 0 0 77
Airport 78 0 0 78
Landfill/garbage 79 599,100 599,100 599,100 79
Hospital 80 0 0 80

P
age 73

P
age 73

P
age 73

P
age 73

P
age 73

P
age 73

P
age 73

P
age 73

P
age 73

P
age 73

P
age 73

P
age 73

P
age 73

P
age 73

P
age 73

P
age 73

P
age 73

P
age 73

P
age 73

P
age 73

P
age 73

P
age 73

P
age 73

P
age 73

P
age 73

P
age 73

P
age 73

P
age 73

P
age 73

P
age 73

P
age 73

P
age 73

P
age 73

P
age 73

P
age 73

P
age 73



REVENUE P4
CITY OF
REVENUE AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,
NON-GAAP/CASH BASIS

Item Description General 
(a)

Special
Revenue  (b)

TIF Special
Revenue  (c)

Debt
Service  (d)

Capital
Projects  (e)

Permanent 
(f)

Total Governmental  (Sum of
(a) through (f))  (g)

Proprietary 
(h)

Grand Total  (Sum of
(g) and (h))  (i)

Section E - Charges for Fees and Service -
Continued 81 81

Transit 82 9,870 9,870 9,870 82
Cable TV 83 0 0 83
Internet 84 0 0 84
Telephone 85 0 0 85
Housing Authority 86 0 0 86
Storm Water 87 0 269,967 269,967 87
Other: 88 88

Nursing Home 89 0 0 89
Police Service Fees 90 5,240 5,240 5,240 90
Prisoner Care 91 0 0 91
Fire Service Charges 92 30 30 30 92
Ambulance Charges 93 0 0 93
Sidewalk Street Repair Charges 94 17,920 17,920 17,920 94
Housing and Urban Renewal Charges 95 0 0 95
River Port and Terminal Fees 96 0 0 96
Public Scales 97 0 0 97
Cemetery Charges 98 39,510 39,510 39,510 98
Library Charges 99 0 0 99
Park, Recreation, and Cultural Charges 100 1,187,218 1,187,218 1,187,218 100
Animal Control Charges 101 0 0 101

102 0 0 102
103 0 0 103

Total Charges for Service 104 1,853,648 5,240 0 0 0 0 1,858,888 3,894,968 5,753,856 104
Section F - Special Assesments 106 0 0 106
Section G - Miscellaneous 107 107

Contributions 108 83,706 20,456 104,162 16,057 120,219 108
Deposits and Sales/Fuel Tax Refunds 109 1,388 1,388 10,125 11,513 109
Sale of Property and Merchandise 110 138,944 20,613 159,557 27,431 186,988 110
Fines 111 59,748 59,748 42,199 101,947 111
Internal Service Charges 112 0 0 112

113 0 0 113
114 0 0 114
115 0 0 115
116 0 0 116
117 0 0 117
118 0 0 118
119 0 0 119

Total Miscellaneous 120 283,786 20,456 0 0 0 20,613 324,855 95,812 420,667 120

P
age 74

P
age 74

P
age 74

P
age 74

P
age 74

P
age 74

P
age 74

P
age 74

P
age 74

P
age 74

P
age 74

P
age 74

P
age 74

P
age 74

P
age 74

P
age 74

P
age 74

P
age 74

P
age 74

P
age 74

P
age 74

P
age 74

P
age 74

P
age 74

P
age 74

P
age 74

P
age 74

P
age 74

P
age 74

P
age 74

P
age 74

P
age 74

P
age 74

P
age 74

P
age 74

P
age 74



REVENUE P5
CITY OF
REVENUE AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,
NON-GAAP/CASH BASIS

Item Description General 
(a)

Special
Revenue  (b)

TIF Special
Revenue  (c)

Debt
Service  (d)

Capital
Projects  (e)

Permanent 
(f)

Total Governmental  (Sum
of (a) through (f))  (g)

Proprietary 
(h)

Grand Total  (Sum
of (g) and (h))  (i)

Total All Revenues (Sum of lines 6, 7, 15,16,22, 71, 104,
106, and 120) 121 7,609,358 5,414,897 1,111,256 827,588 162,429 32,263 15,157,791 4,247,284 19,405,075 121

Section H - Other Financing Sources 123 123
Proceeds of capital asset sales 124 0 0 124
Proceeds of long-term debt (Excluding TIF internal
borrowing) 125 5,446,259 5,446,259 5,446,259 125

Proceeds of anticipatory warrants or other short-term debt 126 350,000 350,000 350,000 126
Regular transfers in and interfund loans 127 972,168 149,382 947,100 1,885,830 3,954,480 1,616,000 5,570,480 127
Internal TIF loans and transfers in 128 1,483 2,605 1,000,000 1,004,088 1,042,788 2,046,876 128

129 0 0 129
130 0 0 130

Total Other Financing Sources 131 973,651 149,382 0 949,705 8,682,089 0 10,754,827 2,658,788 13,413,615 131
Total Revenues Except for Beginning Balances (Sum
of lines 121 and 131) 132 8,583,009 5,564,279 1,111,256 1,777,293 8,844,518 32,263 25,912,618 6,906,072 32,818,690 132

Beginning Fund Balance July 1, 2022 134 5,014,912 4,852,316 66,634 96,960 4,798,726 662,088 15,491,636 10,128,376 25,620,012 134
Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources (Sum of
lines 132 and 134) 136 13,597,921 10,416,595 1,177,890 1,874,253 13,643,244 694,351 41,404,254 17,034,448 58,438,702 136

P
age 75

P
age 75

P
age 75

P
age 75

P
age 75

P
age 75

P
age 75

P
age 75

P
age 75

P
age 75

P
age 75

P
age 75

P
age 75

P
age 75

P
age 75

P
age 75

P
age 75

P
age 75

P
age 75

P
age 75

P
age 75

P
age 75

P
age 75

P
age 75

P
age 75

P
age 75

P
age 75

P
age 75

P
age 75

P
age 75

P
age 75

P
age 75

P
age 75

P
age 75

P
age 75

P
age 75



EXPENDITURES P6
CITY OF CARROLL
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
NON-GAAP/CASH BASIS

Item Description Line General 
(a)

Special
Revenue (b)

TIF Special
Revenue (c)

Debt
Service  (d)

Capital
Projects  (e)

Permanent
(f)

Total  Governmental  (Sum of cols.  (a)
through (f))  (g)

Proprietary
(h)

Grand Total  (Sum of 
col. (g))  (i) Line

Section A - Public Safety 1 1
Police Department/Crime Prevention 2 1,784,310 5,988 1,790,298 1,790,298 2
Jail 3 0 0 3
Emergency Management 4 0 0 4
Flood control 5 0 0 5
Fire Department 6 168,088 168,088 168,088 6
Ambulance 7 0 0 7
Building Inspections 8 218,113 218,113 218,113 8
Miscellaneous Protective Services 9 220,656 220,656 220,656 9
Animal Control 10 0 0 10
Other Public Safety 11 2,175 2,175 2,175 11

12 0 0 12
13 0 0 13

Total Public Safety 14 2,393,342 5,988 0 0 0 2,399,330 2,399,330 14
Section B - Public Works 15 15
Roads, Bridges, Sidewalks 16 23,319 689,283 712,602 712,602 16
Parking Meter and Off-Street 17 0 0 17
Street Lighting 18 176,022 176,022 176,022 18
Traffic Control Safety 19 359 359 359 19
Snow Removal 20 116,224 116,224 116,224 20
Highway Engineering 21 0 0 21
Street Cleaning 22 19,291 19,291 19,291 22
Airport (if not an enterprise) 23 186,015 186,015 186,015 23
Garbage (if not an enterprise) 24 719,549 719,549 719,549 24
Other Public Works 25 235,200 173,756 408,956 408,956 25

26 0 0 26
27 0 0 27

Total Public Works 28 1,340,105 998,913 0 0 0 2,339,018 2,339,018 28
Section C - Health and Social Services 29 29
Welfare Assistance 30 0 0 30
City Hospital 31 0 0 31
Payments to Private Hospitals 32 0 0 32
Health Regulation and Inspections 33 0 0 33
Water, Air, and Mosquito Control 34 0 0 34
Community Mental Health 35 0 0 35
Other Health and Social Services 36 69,397 69,397 69,397 36

37 0 0 37
38 0 0 38

Total Health and Social Services 39 69,397 0 0 0 0 69,397 69,397 39

Section D - Culture and Recreation 40 40
Library Services 41 545,311 4,951 550,262 550,262 41
Museum, Band, Theater 42 11,520 11,520 11,520 42
Parks 43 697,138 9,300 706,438 706,438 43
Recreation 44 1,682,008 1,682,008 1,682,008 44
Cemetery 45 144,454 144,454 144,454 45
Community Center, Zoo, Marina, and Auditorium 46 0 0 46
Other Culture and Recreation 47 2,225 2,225 2,225 47

48 0 0 48
49 0 0 49

Total Culture and Recreation 50 3,082,656 14,251 0 0 0 3,096,907 3,096,907 50

P
age 76

P
age 76

P
age 76

P
age 76

P
age 76

P
age 76

P
age 76

P
age 76

P
age 76

P
age 76

P
age 76

P
age 76

P
age 76

P
age 76

P
age 76

P
age 76

P
age 76

P
age 76

P
age 76

P
age 76

P
age 76

P
age 76

P
age 76

P
age 76

P
age 76

P
age 76

P
age 76

P
age 76

P
age 76

P
age 76

P
age 76

P
age 76

P
age 76

P
age 76

P
age 76

P
age 76



EXPENDITURES P7
CITY OF
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, -- Continued
NON-GAAP/CASH BASIS

Item description Line General 
(a)

Special 
Revenue  (b)

TIF Special 
Revenue  (c)

Debt
Service  (d)

Capital
Projects  (e)

Permanent 
(f)

Total  Governmental  (Sum of
cols.  (a) through (f))  (g)

Proprietary
(h)

Grand Total  (Sum
of  col. (g))  (i) Line

Section E - Community and Economic
Development 51 51

Community beautification 52 0 0 52
Economic development 53 82,400 50,000 132,400 132,400 53
Housing and urban renewal 54 2,147 40,000 42,147 42,147 54
Planning and zoning 55 2,181 2,181 2,181 55
Other community and economic development 56 177,550 9,148 186,698 186,698 56
TIF Rebates 57 18,520 18,520 18,520 57

58 0 0 58
Total Community and Economic
Development 59 264,278 99,148 18,520 0 0 0 381,946 381,946 59

Section F - General Government 60 60
Mayor, Council and City Manager 61 33,400 33,400 33,400 61
Clerk, Treasurer, Financial Administration 62 586,939 586,939 586,939 62
Elections 63 0 0 63
Legal Services and City Attorney 64 44,665 44,665 44,665 64
City Hall and General Buildings 65 104,956 104,956 104,956 65
Tort Liability 66 406,820 406,820 406,820 66
Other General Government 67 50,409 50,409 50,409 67

68 0 0 68
69 0 0 69

Total General Government 70 1,227,189 0 0 0 0 1,227,189 1,227,189 70
Section G - Debt Service 71 0 0 71
GO Debt 72 1,776,617 1,776,617 1,776,617 72

73 0 0 73
Total Debt Service 74 0 0 0 1,776,617 0 0 1,776,617 1,776,617 74

Section H - Regular Capital Projects - Specify 75 75
Airport/Street/Street Maint. Bldg 76 1,592,784 1,592,784 1,592,784 76
Park Projects/Rec Center Bldg/Housing 77 3,392,612 3,392,612 3,392,612 77

Subtotal Regular Capital Projects 78 0 0 0 4,985,396 0 4,985,396 4,985,396 78
TIF Capital Projects - Specify 79 79
Corridor of Commerce Project 80 14,485 14,485 14,485 80

81 0 0 81
Subtotal TIF Capital Projects 82 0 0 0 14,485 0 14,485 14,485 82

Total Capital Projects 83 0 0 0 4,999,881 0 4,999,881 4,999,881 83
 

Total Governmental Activities Expenditures 84 8,376,967 1,118,300 18,520 1,776,617 4,999,881 0 16,290,285 16,290,285 84
(Sum of lines 14, 28, 39, 50, 59, 70, 74, 83) 85 85

TIF Rebates are expended out of the TIF Special Revenue Fund within the Community and Economic Development program's activity "Other"

P
age 77

P
age 77

P
age 77

P
age 77

P
age 77

P
age 77

P
age 77

P
age 77

P
age 77

P
age 77

P
age 77

P
age 77

P
age 77

P
age 77

P
age 77

P
age 77

P
age 77

P
age 77

P
age 77

P
age 77

P
age 77

P
age 77

P
age 77

P
age 77

P
age 77

P
age 77

P
age 77

P
age 77

P
age 77

P
age 77

P
age 77

P
age 77

P
age 77

P
age 77

P
age 77

P
age 77



EXPENDITURES P8
CITY OF
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, -- Continued
NON-GAAP/CASH BASIS

Item description Line General
(a)

Special
Revenue (b)

TIF Special
Revenue (c)

Debt
Service (d)

Capital
Projects (e)

Permanent
(f)

Total Governmental (Sum of
cols. (a) through (f)) (g)

Proprietary
(h)

Grand Total  (Sum
of  col. (g))  (i) Line

Section I - Business Type Activities 87 87
Water - Current Operation 88 1,126,700 1,126,700 88

Capital Outlay 89 50,815 50,815 89
Debt Service 90 0 90

Sewer and Sewage Disposal - Current Operation 91 948,856 948,856 91
Capital Outlay 92 623,851 623,851 92
Debt Service 93 719,960 719,960 93

Electric - Current Operation 94 0 94
Capital Outlay 95 0 95
Debt Service 96 0 96

Gas Utility - Current Operation 97 0 97
Capital Outlay 98 0 98
Debt Service 99 0 99

Parking - Current Operation 100 0 100
Capital Outlay 101 0 101
Debt Service 102 0 102

Airport - Current Operation 103 0 103
Capital Outlay 104 0 104
Debt Service 105 0 105

Landfill/Garbage - Current operation 106 0 106
Capital Outlay 107 0 107
Debt Service 108 0 108

Hospital - Current Operation 109 0 109
Capital Outlay 110 0 110
Debt Service 111 0 111

Transit - Current Operation 112 0 112
Capital Outlay 113 0 113
Debt Service 114 0 114

Cable TV, Telephone, Internet - Current Operation 115 0 115
Capital Outlay 116 0 116

Housing Authority - Current Operation 117 0 117
Capital Outlay 118 0 118
Debt Service 119 0 119

Storm Water - Current Operation 120 6,753 6,753 120
Capital Outlay 121 36,300 36,300 121
Debt Service 122 0 122

Other Business Type - Current Operation 123 0 123
Capital Outlay 124 0 124
Debt Service 125 0 125

Internal Service Funds - Specify 126 126
127 0 127
128 0 128

Total Business Type Activities 129 3,513,235 3,513,235 129

P
age 78

P
age 78

P
age 78

P
age 78

P
age 78

P
age 78

P
age 78

P
age 78

P
age 78

P
age 78

P
age 78

P
age 78

P
age 78

P
age 78

P
age 78

P
age 78

P
age 78

P
age 78

P
age 78

P
age 78

P
age 78

P
age 78

P
age 78

P
age 78

P
age 78

P
age 78

P
age 78

P
age 78

P
age 78

P
age 78

P
age 78

P
age 78

P
age 78

P
age 78

P
age 78

P
age 78



EXPENDITURES P9
CITY OF CARROLL
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 -- Continued
NON-GAAP/CASH BASIS

Item description Line General 
(a)

Special 
Revenue  (b)

TIF Special 
Revenue  (c)

Debt
Service  (d)

Capital
Projects (e)

Permanent 
(f)

Total  Governmental  (Sum
of cols.  (a) through (f))  (g)

Proprietary 
(h)

Grand Total 
(Sum of  col. (g)) 

(i)
Line

Subtotal Expenditures (Sum of lines 84 and 129) 130 8,376,967 1,118,300 18,520 1,776,617 4,999,881 0 16,290,285 3,513,235 19,803,520 130
Section J - Other Financing Uses Including Transfers Out 131 131

Regular transfers out 132 397,750 3,444,530 3,842,280 1,728,200 5,570,480 132
Internal TIF loans/repayments and transfers out 133 1,046,876 1,046,876 1,000,000 2,046,876 133

134 0 0 134
Total Other Financing Uses 135 397,750 3,444,530 1,046,876 0 0 0 4,889,156 2,728,200 7,617,356 135
Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses  (Sum
of lines 130 and 135) 136 8,774,717 4,562,830 1,065,396 1,776,617 4,999,881 0 21,179,441 6,241,435 27,420,876 136

 137 137
Ending fund balance June 30, : 138 138
Governmental: 139 139

Nonspendable 140 694,351 694,351 694,351 140
Restricted 141 508,106 5,699,883 112,494 97,636 6,418,119 6,418,119 141
Committed 142 8,643,363 8,643,363 8,643,363 142
Assigned 143 934,141 153,882 1,088,023 1,088,023 143
Unassigned 144 3,380,957 3,380,957 3,380,957 144

Total Governmental 145 4,823,204 5,853,765 112,494 97,636 8,643,363 694,351 20,224,813 20,224,813 145
Proprietary 146 10,793,013 10,793,013 146

Total Ending Fund Balance June 30, 147 4,823,204 5,853,765 112,494 97,636 8,643,363 694,351 20,224,813 10,793,013 31,017,826 147
Total Requirements (Sum of lines 136 and 147) 148 13,597,921 10,416,595 1,177,890 1,874,253 13,643,244 694,351 41,404,254 17,034,448 58,438,702 148

P
age 79

P
age 79

P
age 79

P
age 79

P
age 79

P
age 79

P
age 79

P
age 79

P
age 79

P
age 79

P
age 79

P
age 79

P
age 79

P
age 79

P
age 79

P
age 79

P
age 79

P
age 79

P
age 79

P
age 79

P
age 79

P
age 79

P
age 79

P
age 79

P
age 79

P
age 79

P
age 79

P
age 79

P
age 79

P
age 79

P
age 79

P
age 79

P
age 79

P
age 79

P
age 79

P
age 79



OTHER P10
Part III  Intergovernmental Expenditures Please report below expenditures made to the State or to other local governments on a reimbursement or cost sharing basis. Include these expenditures in part II. Enter amount.

Purpose Amount paid to other  local governments
Correction
Health
Highways
Transit Subsidies 7,692
Libraries
Police protection
Sewerage
Sanitation 130,455
All other 220,656

Purpose Amount paid to State

Highways
All other

Part IV
Wages & Salaries Report here the total salaries and wages paid to all employees of your government before deductions of social security, retirement, etc. Include also salaries and wages paid to employees of any utility owned and
operated by your government, as well as salaries and wages of municipal employees charged to construction projects.

YOU ARE REQUIRED TO ENTER SALARY DOLLARS IN THE Amount areas FOR SALARIES AND WAGES PAID Amount
Total Salaries and Wages Paid 4,708,341
Part V  Debt Outstanding, Issued, and Retired
Transit subsidies
A. Long-Term Debt

Debt During the Fiscal Year Debt Outstanding JUNE 30, 2023

Purpose Line Debt  Outstanding  JULY 1,  2022 Issued Retired General Obligation TIF Revenue Revenue Other Interest Paid This Year
Water Utility 1.
Sewer Utility 2. 2,098,000 678,000 1,420,000 36,715
Electric Utility 3.
Gas Utility 4.
Transit-Bus 5.
Industrial Revenue 6.
Mortgage Revenue 7.
TIF Revenue 8.
Other Purposes / Miscellaneous 9.
GO 10. 4,705,000 5,750,000 1,540,000 8,915,000 233,917
Parking 11.
Airport 12.
Stormwater 13.
Section 108 14.
Total Long-Term 6,803,000 5,750,000 2,218,000 8,915,000 0 1,420,000 0 270,632
B. Short-Term Debt  Amount
Outstanding as of July 1, 2022
Outstanding as of JUNE 30, 2023

Part VI  
DEBT LIMITATION FOR GENERAL OBLIGATIONS

Actual valuation -- January 1, 2021
Amount

909,411,392 x.0.5 = $ 45,470,569.6

Part VII  CASH AND INVESTMENT ASSETS AS OF JUNE 30, 2023

Type of asset
Cash and investments - Include cash on hand, CD's, time, checking and savings deposits, Federal
securities, Federal agency securities, State and local government securities, and all other
securities. Exclude value of real property.

Amount

Bond and interest funds (a) Bond construction funds (b) Pension/retirement funds (c) All other Funds (d) Total (e)
97,636 2,564,670 29,385,376 32,047,682
If you budget on a NON-GAAP CASH BASIS, the amount in the Total above SHOULD EQUAL the above summed amounts on the

sheet All Funds P1: Ending fund balance, column C PLUS the amounts in the shaded Note area.P
age 80

P
age 80

P
age 80

P
age 80

P
age 80

P
age 80

P
age 80

P
age 80

P
age 80

P
age 80

P
age 80

P
age 80

P
age 80

P
age 80

P
age 80

P
age 80

P
age 80

P
age 80

P
age 80

P
age 80

P
age 80

P
age 80

P
age 80

P
age 80

P
age 80

P
age 80

P
age 80

P
age 80

P
age 80

P
age 80

P
age 80

P
age 80

P
age 80

P
age 80

P
age 80

P
age 80



 

City of Carroll  

627 N. Adams Street       Carroll, Iowa 51401           (712) 792-1000           FAX: (712) 792-0139  

 

 

 MEMO TO: Aaron Kooiker, City Manager  

 FROM: Laura A. Schaefer, Finance Director/City Clerk 

 DATE: November 6, 2023 

 SUBJECT: City Street Finance Report for Fiscal Year 2022 - 2023 

Attached is the Annual City Street Finance Report that is required to be filed by December 1, 2023. 

The report contains information for street related activities that occurred during Fiscal Year 2023.  

 

The report pages are as follows: 

1. Pages 1 & 2 - Expenses by fund and category 

2. Page 3 – Revenues by fund and category 

3. Page 4 – Street related debt 

4. Page 5 – Listing of equipment used on street related activities 

5. Page 6 – Street projects that were completed in FY 2023 

6. Page 7 – Summary of the street related financial information 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Council approval of the City Street Finance Report for Fiscal Year 2022 - 

2023. 

 
 

Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81



Bureau of Local Systems

Ames, IA 50010

Fiscal Year 2023

Carroll

11/6/2023 3:56:17 PM

City Street Finance Report

General
Fund

 Streets
 (001)

Road
Use
(110)

Other
Special

Revenues

Debt
Service
(200)

Capitial
Projects

(300)
Utilities

(600 & U0)
Grand
Total

Salaries - Roads/Streets $11,613 $414,438 $426,051

Benefits - Roads/Streets $1,943 $139,685 $141,628

Operational Equipment
Repair

$39,560 $39,560

Other Utilities $2,632 $2,632

Other Contract Services $19,065 $19,065

Operating Supplies $9,763 $190,670 $200,433

Postage & Safety $530 $530

Replacement Posts &
Signs

$15,722 $15,722

Other Capital Equipment $40,735 $40,735

Buildings $665,227 $665,227

Street - Capacity
Improvement

$97,279 $97,279

Street - Preservation $754,594 $754,594

Principal Payment $642,200 $642,200

Interest Payment $39,126 $39,126

Bond Registration Fees $977 $977

Transfer Out $50,000 $100,000 $1,059,383 $1,000,000 $2,209,383

Street Lighting $176,022 $176,022

Snow Removal $68,110 $68,110

Expenses

Page 1 of 7

Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82



Bureau of Local Systems

Ames, IA 50010

Fiscal Year 2023

Carroll

11/6/2023 3:56:17 PM

City Street Finance Report

General
Fund

 Streets
 (001)

Road
Use
(110)

Other
Special

Revenues

Debt
Service
(200)

Capitial
Projects

(300)
Utilities

(600 & U0)
Grand
Total

Street Cleaning $19,291 $19,291

Snow Removal Salaries $41,197 $41,197

Snow Removal Benefits $6,918 $6,918

Total $249,341 $1,098,553 $1,059,383 $682,303 $1,517,100 $1,000,000 $5,606,680

Page 2 of 7

Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83



Bureau of Local Systems

Ames, IA 50010

Fiscal Year 2023

Carroll

11/6/2023 3:56:17 PM

City Street Finance Report

Revenue
General

Fund
 Streets
 (001)

Road
Use
(110)

Other
Special

Revenues

Debt
Service
(200)

Capitial
Projects

(300)
Utilities

(600 & U0)
Grand
Total

Levied on Property $229,067 $149,383 $466,613 $845,063

Other Taxes (Hotel, LOST) $910,000 $215,690 $1,125,690

Interest $36,379 $36,379

State Revenues - Road
Use Taxes

$1,420,286 $1,420,286

Charges/fees $17,920 $1,000,000 $1,017,920

Contributions $799 $12,649 $13,448

Fuel Tax Refund $1,388 $1,388

Sale of Property &
Merchandise

$167 $167

Proceeds from Debt $350,000 $350,000

Transfer In $149,383 $2,060,000 $2,209,383

Total $249,341 $1,582,318 $1,059,383 $682,303 $2,446,379 $1,000,000 $7,019,724

Page 3 of 7

Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84



Bureau of Local Systems

Ames, IA 50010

Fiscal Year 2023

Carroll

11/6/2023 3:56:17 PM

City Street Finance Report

Bonds/Loans

Bond/Loan
Description

Principal
Balance
As of 7/1

Total
Principal

Paid

Total
Interest

Paid
Principal
Roads

Interest
Roads

Principal
Balance

As of 6/30
Street Rehab 2019
(2020A GO Issuance)

$970,000 $120,000 $46,900 $83,400 $32,595 $850,000

Third Street Storm
Sewer

$585,000 $290,000 $9,070 $208,800 $6,530 $295,000

2022 Streets $350,000 $350,000 $0 $350,000 $0 $0

Total $1,905,000 $760,000 $55,970 $642,200 $39,125 $1,145,000

Page 4 of 7

Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85



Bureau of Local Systems

Ames, IA 50010

Fiscal Year 2023

Carroll

11/6/2023 3:56:17 PM

City Street Finance Report

Equipment

Description Model Year Usage Type Cost Purchased Status
Husqvarna Concrete Saw 2021 Purchased $31,495 No Change

John Deere 330G Skid Steer, Front-Wheel Drive Loader #31 2021 Purchased $57,700 No Change

JD670B Motor Grader #32 1987 Purchased $65,000 No Change

International 4300 Dump Truck #29 2006 Purchased $88,447 No Change

Case 721F Loader, Wheel #33 2015 Purchased $145,000 No Change

Elgin Pelican Street Sweeper #35 2015 Purchased $186,700 No Change

RAM Pickup Truck #22 2014 Purchased $25,723 No Change

John Deere Tractor and snowblower 2019 Purchased $23,060 No Change

Ram 1500 Pickup Truck #20 2018 Purchased $21,799 No Change

International HV507 Dump Truck #24 2019 Purchased $135,941 No Change

Olympian DP100PI Generator #200 1999 Purchased $26,476 No Change

International Med Duty Truck #27 2018 Purchased $149,410 No Change

Essick V30-3EH Roller, Steel Drum 1996 Purchased $8,200 No Change

International 7300 Dump Truck #23 2008 Purchased $95,710 No Change

Sullair - 185DPQCA Air Compressor #205 2000 Purchased $13,500 No Change

Binford - TV1200DPR Roller, Steel Drum 2000 Purchased $22,800 No Change

Ford Truck, Aerial #36 2014 Purchased $117,200 No Change

International 7400 Dump Truck #28 2012 Purchased $119,219 No Change

7400 International Dump Truck #26 2012 Purchased $100,000 No Change

KM8000 Hot Box/Reclaimer 2008 Purchased $25,900 No Change

410J John Deere Tractor Loader-Backhoe #34 2010 Purchased $85,500 No Change

Page 5 of 7

Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86



Bureau of Local Systems

Ames, IA 50010

Fiscal Year 2023

Carroll

11/6/2023 3:56:17 PM

City Street Finance Report

Street Projects
Project Description Contract Price Final Price Contractor Name

Street Restoration - 2022: N Main St:
13th St to W 21st St-Lois Ave; Parkview
Dr: Grant Rd to Forest St; Peeble Lane:
Anthony St to Main St; W Randall Rd:
N West St to W Todd Terrace; Vine St:
11th St to 12th St; W 21st St: N West St
to N Main St

$748,034 $751,684 Ten Point Construction Co, Inc.

Page 6 of 7

Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87



Bureau of Local Systems

Ames, IA 50010

Fiscal Year 2023

Carroll

11/6/2023 3:56:17 PM

City Street Finance Report

Summary

Resolution Number:

Execution Date: Monday, November 13, 2023

Signature: Laura A. Schaefer

General
Fund

 Streets
 (001)

Road
Use
(110)

Other
Special

Revenues

Debt
Service
(200)

Capitial
Projects

(300)
Utilities

(600 & U0)
Grand
Total

Begining Balance $0 $3,176,006 $0 $0 $3,351,540 $0 $6,527,546

SubTotal Expenses (-) $199,341 $998,553 $682,303 $1,517,100 $3,397,297

Transfers Out (-) $50,000 $100,000 $1,059,383 $1,000,000 $2,209,383

Subtotal Revenues (+) $249,341 $1,432,935 $1,059,383 $682,303 $386,379 $1,000,000 $4,810,341

Transfers In (+) $149,383 $2,060,000 $2,209,383

Ending Balance $0 $3,659,771 $0 $0 $4,280,819 $0 $7,940,590

Page 7 of 7

Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88



 

City of Carroll  

627 N. Adams Street       Carroll, Iowa 51401           (712) 792-1000           FAX: (712) 792-0139  

 

 MEMO TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

 FROM: Aaron Kooiker, City Manager  

 DATE: November 7, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Rolling Hills South Condominiums Second Urban Renewal Plan  

 

• Consideration of Ordinance for the division of revenues under Iowa Code 

Section 403.19 for Rolling Hills South Condominiums Second Urban Renewal 

Plan – 2nd Reading 

• Resolution Authorizing or Confirming Advancement of Costs for Urban 

Renewal Projects and Authorizing Certification of Expenses Incurred by the 

City for Payment Under Iowa Code Section 403.19 

 

At the October 23, 2023 Council meeting, Council approved the resolution that established the Rolling Hills 

South Condominiums Second Urban Renewal Area. In order to collect the tax increment finance (TIF) 

revenues in the area, Council needs to adopt an ordinance. The first reading of that ordinance was approved 

at the October 23, 2023 Council meeting. 

 

Attached is the TIF ordinance for Council’s consideration of the second and/or third reading. No comments 

have been received by City staff. 

 

If Council adopts the ordinance, a resolution is also attached that authorizes to certify as TIF debt costs the 

city has paid or will pay in the future relating to planning, engineering fees (for urban renewal plans), attorney 

fees, administrative and other related costs to support urban renewal projects and planning within the Urban 

Renewal Area.  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Council consideration and approval of the following: 

• Second reading and waive the third reading of the Ordinance for the division of revenues under Iowa 

Code Section 403.19 for Rolling Hills South Condominiums Second Urban Renewal Plan. 

• Resolution authorizing or confirming advancement of costs for urban renewal projects and 

authorizing certification of expenses incurred by the City for Payment under Iowa Code Section 

403.19. 

 

Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89



1 

ORDINANCE NO. __________ 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING THAT GENERAL PROPERTY 

TAXES LEVIED AND COLLECTED EACH YEAR ON ALL 

PROPERTY LOCATED WITHIN THE ROLLING HILLS 

SOUTH CONDOMINIUMS SECOND URBAN RENEWAL 

AREA, IN CITY OF CARROLL, COUNTY OF CARROLL 

STATE OF IOWA, BY AND FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE 

STATE OF IOWA, CITY OF CARROLL, COUNTY OF 

CARROLL, CARROLL COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, 

AND OTHER TAXING DISTRICTS, BE PAID TO A SPECIAL 

FUND FOR PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST ON 

LOANS, MONIES ADVANCED TO AND INDEBTEDNESS, 

INCLUDING BONDS ISSUED OR TO BE ISSUED, INCURRED 

BY THE CITY IN CONNECTION WITH THE ROLLING HILLS 

SOUTH CONDOMINIUMS SECOND URBAN RENEWAL 

AREA (THE ROLLING HILLS SOUTH CONDOMINIUMS 

SECOND URBAN RENEWAL PLAN) 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Carroll, State of Iowa, after public notice and 

hearing as prescribed by law and pursuant to Resolution No. 23-90 passed and approved on the 

23rd day of October, 2023, adopted an Urban Renewal Plan (the "Urban Renewal Plan") for an 

urban renewal area known as the Rolling Hills South Condominiums Second Urban Renewal Area 

(the "Urban Renewal Area"), which Urban Renewal Area includes the lots and parcels located 

within the area legally described as follows: 

LOTS 4 THROUGH 8 OF BLOCK 1, LOTS 1 THROUGH 4 OF BLOCK 2, LOTS 

1 & 2 OF BLOCK 3, LOT 2 OF BLOCK 5, AND THE ADJACENT RIGHT OF WAY 

ALL IN ROLLING HILLS SOUTH THIRD ADDITION TO THE CITY OF 

CARROLL, CARROLL COUNTY, IOWA AND A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED 

IN THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF 

SECTION 25, TOWNSHIP 84 NORTH, RANGE 35 WEST OF THE 5TH P.M., 

CARROLL COUNTY, IOWA BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS 

FOLLOWS: 

 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 25, 

THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF 

THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER S89°49'46"E, 1054.85 FEET; THENCE 

N00°08'16"E, 43.00 FEET TO THE NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF 

WEST PLEASANT RIDGE ROAD AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE 

ALONG THE WESTERLY LINE OF ROLLING HILLS SOUTH SECOND 

ADDITION N00°08'16"E, 180.26 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTHERLY 

LINE OF SAID ROLLING HILLS SECOND N89°53'24"W, 44.26 FEET; THENCE 

ALONG THE WESTERLY LINE OF SAID ROLLING HILLS SECOND 

N00°12'59"W, 114.06 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF 

SAID ROLLING HILLS SECOND AND THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF ROLLING 

HILLS SOUTH THIRD ADDITION N89°50'18"W, 881.87 FEET TO THE 
Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90



2 

EASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY OF U.S. HIGHWAY 71; THENCE ALONG SAID 

EASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY S03°18'43"W, 255.62 FEET TO SAID NORTHERLY 

RIGHT OF WAY OF WEST PLEASANT RIDGE ROAD; THENCE ALONG SAID 

RIGHT OF WAY S82°09'51"E, 291.93 FEET; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG 

SAID RIGHT OF WAY S89°49'57"E, 651.69 FEET TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING. DESCRIBED PARCEL CONTAINS 6.07 ACRES AND IS SUBJECT 

TO EASEMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD. 

 

WHEREAS, expenditures and indebtedness are anticipated to be incurred by the City of 

Carroll, State of Iowa, in the future to finance urban renewal project activities carried out in 

furtherance of the objectives of the Urban Renewal Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Carroll, State of Iowa, desires to provide for 

the division of revenue from taxation in the Urban Renewal Area, as above described, in 

accordance with the provisions of Section 403.19, Code of Iowa, as amended. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CARROLL, STATE OF IOWA: 

Section 1. That the taxes levied on the taxable property in the Urban Renewal Area legally 

described in the preamble hereof, by and for the benefit of the State of Iowa, City of Carroll, 

County of Carroll, Carroll Community School District, and all other taxing districts from and after 

the effective date of this Ordinance shall be divided as hereinafter in this Ordinance provided. 

Section 2. That portion of the taxes which would be produced by the rate at which the tax 

is levied each year by or for each of the taxing districts upon the total sum of the assessed value of 

the taxable property in the Urban Renewal Area, as shown on the assessment roll as of January 1 

of the calendar year preceding the first calendar year in which the City of Carroll, State of Iowa, 

certifies to the Auditor of Carroll County, Iowa the amount of loans, advances, indebtedness, or 

bonds payable from the division of property tax revenue described herein, shall be allocated to and 

when collected be paid into the fund for the respective taxing district as taxes by or for the taxing 

district into which all other property taxes are paid. 

Section 3. That portion of the taxes each year in excess of the base period taxes determined 

as provided in Section 2 of this Ordinance shall be allocated to and when collected be paid into a 

special tax increment fund of the City of Carroll, State of Iowa, hereby established, to pay the 

principal of and interest on loans, monies advanced to, indebtedness, whether funded, refunded, 

assumed or otherwise, including bonds or obligations issued under the authority of Section 403.9 

or 403.12, Code of Iowa, as amended, incurred by the City of Carroll, State of Iowa, to finance or 

refinance, in whole or in part, urban renewal projects undertaken within the Urban Renewal Area 

pursuant to the Urban Renewal Plan, except that (i) taxes for the regular and voter-approved 

physical plant and equipment levy of a school district imposed pursuant to Section 298.2, Code of 

Iowa, and taxes for the instructional support program of a school district imposed pursuant to 

Section 257.19, Code of Iowa, (but in each case only to the extent required under Section 

403.19(2), Code of Iowa); (ii) taxes for the payment of bonds and interest of each taxing district; 

(iii) taxes imposed under Section 346.27(22), Code of Iowa, related to joint county-city buildings; 

Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91



3 

and (iv) any other exceptions under Section 403.19, Code of Iowa, shall be collected against all 

taxable property within the Urban Renewal Area without any limitation as hereinabove provided. 

Section 4. Unless or until the total assessed valuation of the taxable property in the Urban 

Renewal Area exceeds the total assessed value of the taxable property in the Urban Renewal Area 

as shown by the assessment roll referred to in Section 2 of this Ordinance, all of the taxes levied 

and collected upon the taxable property in the Urban Renewal Area shall be paid into the funds for 

the respective taxing districts as taxes by or for the taxing districts in the same manner as all other 

property taxes. 

Section 5. At such time as the loans, advances, indebtedness, bonds and interest thereon of 

the City of Carroll, State of Iowa, referred to in Section 3 hereof have been paid, all monies 

thereafter received from taxes upon the taxable property in the Urban Renewal Area shall be paid 

into the funds for the respective taxing districts in the same manner as taxes on all other property. 

Section 6. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

Ordinance are hereby repealed.  The provisions of this Ordinance are intended and shall be 

construed so as to fully implement the provisions of Section 403.19, Code of Iowa, as amended, 

with respect to the division of taxes from property within the Urban Renewal Area as described 

above.  In the event that any provision of this Ordinance shall be determined to be contrary to law, 

it shall not affect other provisions or application of this Ordinance which shall at all times be 

construed to fully invoke the provisions of Section 403.19, Code of Iowa, with reference to the 

Urban Renewal Area and the territory contained therein. 

Section 7. This Ordinance shall be in effect after its final passage, approval and publication 

as provided by law. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 13th day of November, 2023. 

  

 

 

  

Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

  

City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92



4 

Read First Time: October 23, 2023  

 

 

Read Second Time: __________________, 2023  

 

 

Read Third Time: ___________________, 2023  

 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED: ____________________, 2023. 

 

I, ____________________, City Clerk of the City of Carroll, State of Iowa, hereby certify 

that the above and foregoing is a true copy of Ordinance No. __________ passed and approved by 

the City Council of the City at a meeting held ____________________, 2023, signed by the Mayor 

on ____________________, 2023, and published in the Carroll Times Herald on 

____________________, 2023. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(SEAL) 

City Clerk, City of Carroll, State of Iowa 

 
02263806-1\10275-090 

Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93



 
 

 

November 13, 2023 

 

 

 The City Council of the City of Carroll, Iowa, met in regular session, at in the Council 

Chambers, City Hall Carroll, Iowa at 5:15 P.M., on the above date.  There were present Mayor 

_______________ in the chair, and the following named Council Members: 

 

 

______________________________________    

 

          

 

 

Absent:           

 

 

*  *  *  *  *  *  *  

Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94



 
 

Council Member    introduced the following Resolution entitled 

“RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING OR CONFIRMING ADVANCEMENT OF COSTS FOR 

URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS AND AUTHORIZING CERTIFICATION OF EXPENSES 

INCURRED BY THE CITY FOR PAYMENT UNDER IOWA CODE SECTION 403.19" and 

moved its adoption.  Council Member ______________ seconded the motion to adopt.  The roll 

was called and the vote was,  

 

 

AYES:         

 

 

 

 

NAYS:          

 

 

 RESOLUTION NO. _______ 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING OR CONFIRMING ADVANCEMENT OF 

COSTS FOR AN URBAN RENEWAL PROJECT AND AUTHORIZING 

CERTIFICATION OF EXPENSES INCURRED BY THE CITY FOR PAYMENT 

UNDER IOWA CODE SECTION 403.19 

 

WHEREAS, by Resolution adopted October 23, 2023, this Council found and determined 

that certain areas located within the City are eligible and should be designated as an urban renewal 

area under Iowa law, and approved and adopted the Rolling Hills South Condominiums Urban 

Renewal Plan (the "Plan" or "Urban Renewal Plan") for the Rolling Hills South Condominiums 

Second Urban Renewal Area (the "Area" or "Urban Renewal Area") described therein, which Plan 

is on file in the office of the Recorder of Carroll County; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Plan, on page 8, generally described  an urban renewal project to include 

planning, engineering fees (for urban renewal plans), attorney fees, administrative, and other 

related costs to support urban renewal projects and planning within the Urban Renewal Area 

during the duration of this Urban Renewal Plan (the “Project”); and   

 

 WHEREAS, the Project does not exceed the projected cost estimates described in the Plan; 

and, in the judgment of the Council will further one or more of the objectives of the Plan.  

Therefore, the Project constitutes a public use and purpose as provided by Iowa Code Chapters 

15A and 403; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City intends to advance or has advanced costs from the General Fund to 

pay costs associated with the Project and thereafter reimburse said funds with tax increment; and 

 

Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95



 
 

WHEREAS, before approving an urban renewal project for reimbursement with tax 

increment, it is necessary to make certain findings under Chapter 403; and  

 

WHEREAS, it is the intention of the City to certify the amount of funds advanced for 

reimbursement under Iowa Code Section 403.19 before December 1, 2026; and 

 

WHEREAS, the amount of funds advanced or to be advanced for the Project is estimated 

not to exceed $50,000.00. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Carroll, Iowa, 

as follows: 

 

Section 1. Pursuant to Ordinance No. ______, there has been established the Rolling 

Hills South Condominiums Second Urban Renewal Area Tax Increment Revenue Fund (the "Tax 

Increment Fund"), into which all incremental property tax revenues received from the Urban 

Renewal Area are deposited.  The Council finds the Project to be an Urban Renewal Project as 

defined in Iowa Code Chapter 403, and further finds that said Project is included in the Plan, for 

the Urban Renewal Area. 

 

 Section 2. It is hereby directed that the total costs for the Project advanced from time 

to time from the General Fund in order to pay the costs of the Project shall be treated as an advance 

and the General Fund shall be reimbursed the total actual project costs from the Tax Increment 

Fund.  

 

Section 3. All project costs to be incurred for the Project are approved to be advanced 

or as advanced as described in Section 2.  The fees and costs are currently estimated to cost not to 

exceed $50,000.00.  

 

Section 4. Certification for reimbursement under Iowa Code Section 403.19 shall be 

made by the Council on or before December 1, 2026. 

 

ADOPTED AND PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARROLL, 

STATE OF IOWA, this 13th day of November, 2023. 

 

 

 ____________________________ 

        Mayor  

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96



 
 

CERTIFICATE 

 

STATE OF IOWA 

 

COUNTY OF CARROLL 

) 

) SS 

) 

 

 I, the undersigned City Clerk of the City of Carroll, State of Iowa, do hereby certify that 

attached is a true and complete copy of the portion of the corporate records of the City showing 

proceedings of the City Council, and the same is a true and complete copy of the action taken by 

the Council with respect to the matter at the meeting held on the date indicated in the attachment, 

which proceedings remain in full force and effect, and have not been amended or rescinded in any 

way; that meeting and all action thereat was duly and publicly held in accordance with a notice of 

public hearing and tentative agenda, a copy of which was timely served on each member of the 

Council and posted on a bulletin board or other prominent place easily accessible to the public and 

clearly designated for that purpose at the principal office of the Council (a copy of the face sheet 

of the agenda being attached hereto) pursuant to the local rules of the Council and the provisions 

of Chapter 21, Code of Iowa, upon reasonable advance notice to the public and media at least 

twenty-four hours prior to the commencement of the meeting as required by law and with members 

of the public present in attendance; I further certify that the individuals named therein were on the 

date thereof duly and lawfully possessed of their respective City offices as indicated therein, that 

no Council vacancy existed except as may be stated in the proceedings, and that no controversy or 

litigation is pending, prayed or threatened involving the incorporation, organization, existence or 

boundaries of the City or the right of the individuals named therein as officers to their respective 

positions. 

 

 WITNESS my hand and the seal of the Council hereto affixed this 14th day of  November 

2023. 

 

 

 City Clerk, City of Carroll, State of Iowa 

 

 
01782707-1\10275-074 
 

Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97



 

City of Carroll  

627 N. Adams Street       Carroll, Iowa 51401           (712) 792-1000           FAX: (712) 792-0139  

 

 MEMO TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Member of the City Council 

 

         FROM:  Aaron Kooiker, City Manager  

 

          DATE:  November 7, 2023 

 

   SUBJECT:  Region XII COG, Inc. Home Construction & Rehabilitation Agreement  

 

 

Background:   

 

In September the Council directed staff to work with Region XII to make an amendment to the 

agreement to purchase ground and build new homes in the City of Carroll.   At that meeting, it was 

discussed that Region XII be allowed to use the allotted $30,000 per unit for remodel as well as building 

new homes.    

 

After working with Rich Hunsaker, we have come back to Council with an amended agreement.   The 

highlighted portion of the agreement is the only changes to the agreement.   

 

Staff would like the Council approval to support the amended changes to the agreement. Staff feels this 

will allow the City to get affordable housing on the market quicker than if we only allow for new builds.   

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Council consideration and approval of the resolution to approve 

the Home Construction and Rehabilitation Agreement (HF2401) with Region XII COG, Inc. 

 

 

 
 

 

Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A HOME CONSTRUCTION & REHABILITATION 

AGREEMENT (CONTRACT NUMBER: HF2401) BETWEEN REGION XII COG, INC. AND 

THE CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA 

 

WHEREAS, Chapter 17, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Carroll, Iowa, provides 

that all contracts made by the City be approved by the City Council by resolution; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit “A”; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is determined that the approval of the attached agreement is in the best 

interest of the City of Carroll, Iowa; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the agreement attached as Exhibit “A”, be 

authorized and approved, and that the Mayor is authorized to execute the agreement on behalf of the 

City of Carroll. 

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Carroll, Iowa, this 13th day of 

November, 2023.  

 

       CITY COUNCIL OF THE  

       CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA 

 

 

      BY:_______________________________ 

             Mark E. Beardmore, Mayor  

ATTEST: 

 

 

By:_____________________________ 

 Laura A. Schaefer, City Clerk 

 

Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99



RXIICOG-Carroll House Construction & Rehabilitation Contract 1 

Contract Number: HF2401 

REGION XII COG, INC. – CITY OF CARROLL 

HOME CONSTRUCTION & REHABILITATION AGREEMENT 
 

INTRODUCTION 
This contract is between Region XII Council of Governments, Inc. (hereinafter COG) and the City of 
Carroll, Iowa (hereinafter the City). The COG is organized under chapter 28E of the Iowa Code and 
empowered to assist in the development of the region, including in the area of housing. The COG is 
headquartered in Carroll, Iowa. 
 
The City is interested in promoting the construction and rehabilitation of workforce housing within its 
City Limits. The City is specifically interested in the use of in-fill lots available to maximize the use of 
existing infrastructure. The City proposes to provide the COG will a specific amount of funding to 
assist in the construction of new homes in Carroll or in the major rehabilitation of existing units to 
preserve the housing units and promote homeownership (hereinafter the Program). 
 
SECTION 1 TERMS OF CITY ASSISTANCE 
SECTION 1.1: Assistance Amount 
The City agrees to provide $300,000 to the COG to construct or rehabilitate 10 homes within the City 
Limits.  
 
SECTION 1.2: The Program 
For new construction, the COG agrees to acquire lots and begin planning for the construction of new 
homes on said lots. The City will provide property maintenance (e.g. mowing) for each lot the COG 
acquires until construction on the lot commences. The COG will begin to negotiate for lot acquisition 
upon execution of the contract. The COG intends to construct or rehabilitate up to 10 houses, 
utilizing Homes for Iowa houses where possible. Homes are intended to be sold to single family 
homeowners but may be sold to anyone as long as the use of the property conforms to City of Carroll 
zoning. Homes may be single occupancy structures or duplexes. The City places no income limitation 
on purchasers and funding provided by the City has no restrictions on income for use. Assistance 
provided by the City will not require any lien or receding mortgage as a condition of receipt of 
funding. All homes constructed must meet City of Carroll building codes and must receive a 
Certificate of Occupancy. 
 
For rehabilitated units, the COG agrees to pursue acquisition of houses to enroll in the program, 
which may include houses acquired by the City through nuisance actions. The City will provide 
mowing for each house the COG acquires until rehabilitation is complete and a certificate of 
occupancy is issued. The COG intends to rehabilitate or construct up to 10 houses. Homes are 
intended to be sold to single family homeowners but may be sold to anyone as long as the use of the 
property conforms to City of Carroll zoning. The City places no income limitation on purchasers and 
funding provided by the City has no restrictions on income for use. Assistance provided by the City Page 100Page 100Page 100Page 100Page 100Page 100Page 100Page 100Page 100Page 100Page 100Page 100Page 100Page 100Page 100Page 100Page 100Page 100Page 100Page 100Page 100Page 100Page 100Page 100Page 100Page 100Page 100Page 100



RXIICOG-Carroll House Construction & Rehabilitation Contract 2 

will not require any lien or receding mortgage as a condition of receipt of funding. All homes 
constructed must meet City of Carroll building codes and must receive a Certificate of Occupancy. 
 
SECTION 1.3: Contract Period 
The Program will begin operation July 1, 2023 and will operate through December 31, 2025 or until all 
houses are constructed or rehabilitated. 
 
SECTION 2 RESPONSIBILITIES OF PARTIES 
SECTION 2.1: Responsibilities of the COG 
The COG will: 

1. Identify lots and homes available for purchase and appropriate for the program. 
2. Construct homes on acquired lots with a projected appraised value of no less than $150,000. 
3. Rehabilitate homes, ensuring all major infrastructure will be serviceable for at least 10 years 

to include the roof, foundation, siding, windows, HVAC, electrical system, and plumbing. Total 
project investment, excluding residence purchase, will be at least $100,000 per rehabilitated 
unit. 

4. Provide reports of project progress to the City. 
5. Projects will be eligible for Council of Governments local housing trust fund.   

 
SECTION 2.2: Responsibilities of the City 
The City will: 

1. Provide $100,000 per year in FY2024, FY2025, and FY2026 ($300,000 total over three years), 
paid upon billing by the COG. 

2. Provide lot maintenance on lots and homes acquired by the COG. 
3. Waive utility hookup fees on the COG’s newly constructed homes. 
4. If required for the lot, the City will install sidewalks. 
5. Consider lot or house donation to the program should the City come into possession of lots 

or houses suitable for use in the program. 
 
SECTION 3 MISCELLANEOUS  
SECTION 3.1: Indemnification 
The City will defend, indemnify and hold harmless the COG and its officers, commissioners, staff, and 
employees from liability and claims for damages because of bodily injury, death, property damage, 
sickness, disease or loss and expense arising from any actions under this contract. 
 
SECTION 3.2: Amendments, Changes and Modifications 
The COG or the City, may, during the duration of this contract, deem it necessary to make alterations 
to the provisions of this contract. Any changes to the contract which are mutually agreed upon by 
both COGH and the City shall be incorporated through written amendment signed by both parties. 
The provisions of the amendment shall be in effect as of the date of the amendment unless otherwise 
specified within the amendment. 
 
SECTION 3.3: Return of Unused Funds 
The COG will return unused funds to the City at the end of the program. Unused funds will be 
calculated with the following formula: (10 – the number of homes constructed in the program) x 
$30,000. Page 101Page 101Page 101Page 101Page 101Page 101Page 101Page 101Page 101Page 101Page 101Page 101Page 101Page 101Page 101Page 101Page 101Page 101Page 101Page 101Page 101Page 101Page 101Page 101Page 101Page 101Page 101Page 101



RXIICOG-Carroll House Construction & Rehabilitation Contract 3 

 
 
IN WITNESS THEREFORE, the parties hereto have executed this Contract on the day and year 
specified below. 

 
 

CITY OF CARROLL  REGION XII COG, INC. 
 
 
 
    
Mark Beardmore Date Richard T. Hunsaker Date 
Mayor  Executive Director 
 

Page 102Page 102Page 102Page 102Page 102Page 102Page 102Page 102Page 102Page 102Page 102Page 102Page 102Page 102Page 102Page 102Page 102Page 102Page 102Page 102Page 102Page 102Page 102Page 102Page 102Page 102Page 102Page 102



 

City of Carroll  

627 N. Adams Street       Carroll, Iowa 51401           (712) 792-1000           FAX: (712) 792-0139  

 

 

 

 MEMO TO: Aaron Kooiker, City Manager  

 FROM: Laura A. Schaefer, Finance Director/City Clerk 

 DATE: November 7, 2023 

 SUBJECT: FY 2023/2024 Budget Amendment #1 

1. Public Hearing  

2. Resolution Amending the Current Budget for the Fiscal Year Ending 

June 30, 2024 

 

At the October 23 meeting, Council set November 13 for the date of a public hearing on the FY 

2023/2024 Budget Amendment #1. All items were budgeted or re-estimated in FY 2023 but not 

completed as of June 30, 2023 except the transfers of funds from LOST to C.P. Parks for the Golf 

Course Booster Pump Station Project and from C.P.-Corridor of Commerce to C.P.-Streets for the 

Adams Street Reconstruction Project. 

 

As required by the Iowa Code 384.18, the Notice of Public Hearing was published in the Carroll 

Times Herald on Friday, October 27, 2023.  

 

Attached please find a summary of all items to be amended and a resolution approving the amendment. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   After public hearing, Council consideration and approval of 

FY 2023/2024 Budget Amendment #1. 
 

Page 103Page 103Page 103Page 103Page 103Page 103Page 103Page 103Page 103Page 103Page 103Page 103Page 103Page 103Page 103Page 103Page 103Page 103Page 103Page 103Page 103Page 103Page 103Page 103Page 103Page 103Page 103



             

   

RESOLUTION NO. _______ 

 

RESOLUTION AMENDING THE CURRENT BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING 

JUNE 30, 2024 

      WHEREAS, the City Council of Carroll in Carroll County met on November 13, 2023 at 

5:15PM to take up the proposed amendment.  The proposed amendment #1 was considered and 

taxpayers were heard for and against the amendment.    

     WHEREAS, the Council, after hearing all taxpayers wishing to be heard and considering the 

statements made by them, gave final consideration to the proposed amendment #1 to the budget 

and modifications proposed at the hearing, if any.      

      NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Council of the City of Carroll, following 

notice published on October 27, 2023 and the public hearing held on November 13, 2023 the 

current budget is amended as set out in the attached adoption to be certified to the Auditor of 

Carroll County. 

Passed and approved this 13th day of November, 2023. 

Ayes: __________________________________________ 

 

Nays: __________________________________________ 

 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE  

       CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA 

 

 

      BY:_____________________________ 

            Mark E. Beardmore, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By:_____________________________ 

      Laura A. Schaefer, City Clerk 

 
 

Page 104Page 104Page 104Page 104Page 104Page 104Page 104Page 104Page 104Page 104Page 104Page 104Page 104Page 104Page 104Page 104Page 104Page 104Page 104Page 104Page 104Page 104Page 104Page 104Page 104Page 104



GENERAL FUND AMENDMENTS

Patrol Car (48,025)        

Fire Station Flooring (8,300)          

Airport Debris Cleaner (7,100)          

Library Roof Repairs (8,820)          

Emerald Ash Borer Contract (24,654)        

Parks 72" mower (21,400)        

Parks mower (29,500)        

Parks mower with cab & blower (38,200)        

Parks - grapple bucket for skid loader (3,500)          

Golf Course pickup (55,235)        

Golf Course 100" mower (40,000)        

Rec Center copier (15,000)        

Aquatic Center umbrellas (17,400)        

Aquatic Center pool lift (5,000)          

Cemetery mini excavator (70,000)        

Cemetery UTV (27,900)        

Subdivision Ordinance Review (2,000)          

INCODE Upgrade (43,320)        

7/1/2023 General Fund Balance 4,315,098$  

Estimated Revenues 8,014,851    

Estimated Expenses 8,652,665    
6/30/2023 Projected Balance 3,677,284$  

HOTEL/MOTEL TAX FUND

Theater improvements (25,000)        

Bandshell improvements (30,000)        

FEDERAL GRANTS SR FUND

Housing Incentives (10,000)        

ROAD USE TAX FUND

Medium duty truck (182,050)      

LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX FUND

Cemetery wall repair (20,000)        

Rec Center-Activities/Craft Rooms Updates (60,000)        

Transfer to C.P. Parks & Rec (110,000)      

C.P. STREETS

Transfer from C.P. Corridor of Commerce 1,170,726    

Adams Street Reconstruction - 22 (1,700,000)   

C.P. - CORRIDOR OF COMMERCE

Transfer to C.P. Streets (1,170,726)   

C.P. - PARKS & RECREATION

Golf Course Booster Pump Station (170,250)      

Merchants Park Improvements (460,900)      

Transfer from LOST Fund 110,000       

C.P. - REC CENTER BUILDING FUND

GO Bonds 700,000       

Rec Centers Building Improvement Project (2,098,500)   

C.P. - STREET MAINT BLDG

Street Maintenance Bldg (246,500)      

BUDGET AMENDMENT #1 FY 23/24

Note:  The above budget amendment includes expenses for items of projects that 

were budgeted in FY 2023 and have been or are expected to be completed in 

current FY 2024. 

Page 105Page 105Page 105Page 105Page 105Page 105Page 105Page 105Page 105Page 105Page 105Page 105Page 105Page 105Page 105Page 105Page 105Page 105Page 105Page 105Page 105Page 105Page 105Page 105Page 105



 

City of Carroll  

627 N. Adams Street       Carroll, Iowa 51401           (712) 792-1000           FAX: (712) 792-0139  

 MEMO TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

 FROM: Aaron Kooiker, City Manager  

 DATE: November 7, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Ninth Amended and Restated Central Business District Urban Renewal Plan, a 

new Ziegler Urban Renewal Plan and related development agreements 

• Resolution Accepting an Engagement Agreement with Ahlers & Cooney, 

P.C. 

 

With the State changing the abilities to request taxes, it has become clear that we will need to 

utilize our urban renewal areas to accomplish more than in the past.   With this in mind, it is clear 

that more projects will need to be added to the Central (Downtown) Business District Urban 

Renewal Area.   

 

Also, with the news that Ziegler Cat will be coming to Carroll, a new urban renewal area and 

development agreement will need to be put into place.  While details are still being finalized, it is 

necessary to begin work with the City’s legal counsel, Ahlers & Cooney, P.C., to begin amending 

and drafting the urban renewal plans and development agreement. 

 

An engagement agreement for services related to the Ninth Amended and Restated Central 

Business District Urban Renewal Plan, Ziegler Urban Renewal Plan and related development 

agreements has been requested and received from Ahlers & Cooney, P.C.  A copy is attached. The 

agreement provides that Ahlers & Cooney, P.C. will: 

 

1. Prepare the Amendment and Plan in accordance with Iowa Code Chapter 403; 

2. Prepare letters of instructions, notices of meetings and partial agendas for City Council 

proceedings related to the Amendment and Plan; 

3. Prepare proceedings for a resolution setting the dates of a consultation and public hearing 

on the Amendment and Plan,  

4. Prepare proceedings to be used on the date fixed for public hearing and adoption of the 

Amendment and Plan; 

5. Prepare and ordinance(s) for the division of revenues within the Urban Renewal Area 

related to the Amendment and Plan under Iowa Code Section 403.19 (“tax increment 

financing” or “TIF”), and prepare proceedings for adoption (if necessary); 

6. Prepare the development agreements associated with the Plan and Amendment, per the 

terms provided to us by the City; 

7. Prepare proceedings to be used for setting the date of a public hearing on the 

development agreements, and proceedings for the date fixed for the public hearing and 

adoption of that development agreements; 

8. Answer questions and advise City staff and the City Council throughout the adoption 

process for the Amendment, Plan and development agreements; and 

9. Complete a transcript file record related to the adoption of the Amendment, Plan and 

development agreements. 

 

Page 106Page 106Page 106Page 106Page 106Page 106Page 106Page 106Page 106Page 106Page 106Page 106Page 106Page 106Page 106Page 106Page 106Page 106Page 106Page 106Page 106Page 106Page 106Page 106



RECOMMENDATION: Mayor and City Council consideration and approval of the attached 

resolution accepting the engagement agreement with Ahlers & Cooney, P.C. for the Ninth 

Amended and Restated Central Business District Urban Renewal Plan, a new Ziegler Urban 

Renewal Plan, and related development agreements.   
 

Page 107Page 107Page 107Page 107Page 107Page 107Page 107Page 107Page 107Page 107Page 107Page 107Page 107Page 107Page 107Page 107Page 107Page 107Page 107Page 107Page 107Page 107Page 107Page 107



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING AN ENGAGEMENT AGREEMENT WITH AHLERS & 

COONEY, P.C. FOR THE NINTH AMENDED AND RESTATED CENTRAL BUSINESS 

DISTRICT URBAN RENEWAL PLAN, A NEW ZIEGLER URBAN RENEWAL PLAN AND 

RELATED DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS  

 

 WHEREAS, Chapter 17, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Carroll, Iowa, provides 

that all contracts made by the City be reduced to writing and approved by the City Council by 

resolution; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is determined that the approval of the engagement agreement with Ahlers 

& Cooney, P.C. for the Ninth Amended and Restated Central Business District Urban Renewal 

Plan, a new Ziegler Urban Renewal Plan and related development agreements is in the best interest 

of the City of Carroll, Iowa; and 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the engagement agreement with Ahlers & 

Cooney, P.C. for the Ninth Amended and Restated Central Business District Urban Renewal Plan, 

a new Ziegler Urban Renewal Plan and related development agreements is in the best interest of 

the City of Carroll, Iowa. 

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Carroll, Iowa, this 13th 

day of November, 2023.  

 

       CITY COUNCIL OF THE  

       CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA 

 

 

      BY:_____________________________ 

      Mark E. Beardmore, Mayor  

ATTEST: 

 

 

By:_____________________________ 

Laura A. Schaefer, City Clerk 

 

Page 108Page 108Page 108Page 108Page 108Page 108Page 108Page 108Page 108Page 108Page 108Page 108Page 108Page 108Page 108Page 108Page 108Page 108Page 108Page 108Page 108Page 108Page 108



 

 
Ahlers & Cooney, P.C. 
Attorneys at Law 

100 Court Avenue, Suite 600 
Des Moines, Iowa 50309-2231 
Phone:  515-243-7611 
Fax:  515-243-2149 
www.ahlerslaw.com 

Nathan J. Overberg 
515.246.0329 
noverberg@ahlerslaw.com  

 

October 16, 2023 

 

Sent via email: akooiker@cityofcarroll.com 

 

Aaron Kooiker 

City Manager 

City of Carroll 

112 East 5th Street 

Carroll, IA 51401 

 

RE: Engagement Letter – Ninth Amended and Restated Central Business District Urban 

Renewal Plan, a new Ziegler Urban Renewal Plan, and related development 

agreements  

 

Dear Aaron: 

 

The purpose of this Engagement Agreement (“Agreement”) is to disclose and memorialize 

the terms and conditions under which Ahlers & Cooney, P.C. will represent the City of Carroll, 

Iowa (the “City”) in connection with a proposed Ninth Amended and Restated Central Business 

District Urban Renewal Plan (“Amendment”), a new Ziegler Urban Renewal Plan (“Plan”), and 

associated development agreements, in accordance with Iowa Code Chapter 403.  

 

SCOPE OF ENGAGEMENT

 

We agree to perform the following services for the fees we charge under this Agreement: 

 

1. Prepare the Amendment and Plan in accordance with Iowa Code Chapter 403; 

 

2. Prepare letters of instructions, notices of meetings, and partial agendas for City Council 

proceedings related to the Amendment and Plan; 

 

3. Prepare proceedings for a resolution setting the dates of a consultation and public 

hearing on the Amendment and Plan; 

 

4. Prepare proceedings to be used on the date fixed for a public hearing and adoption of 

the Amendment and Plan; 

 

5. Prepare ordinance(s) for the division of revenues within the Urban Renewal Area 

related to the Amendment and Plan under Iowa Code Section 403.19 (“tax increment 

financing” or “TIF”), and prepare proceedings for adoption (if necessary); Page 109Page 109Page 109Page 109Page 109Page 109Page 109Page 109Page 109Page 109Page 109Page 109Page 109Page 109Page 109Page 109Page 109Page 109Page 109Page 109Page 109Page 109

mailto:noverberg@ahlerslaw.com


Page 2 

 

 

 

 

6. Prepare development agreements associated with the Plan and Amendment, per the 

terms provided to us by the City; 

 

7. Prepare proceedings to be used for setting the date of a public hearing on the 

development agreements, and proceedings for the date fixed for the public hearing and 

adoption of the development agreements; 

 

8. Answer questions and advise City staff and the City Council throughout the adoption 

process for the Amendment, Plan and development agreements; and 

 

9. Complete a transcript file record related to the adoption of the Amendment, Plan, and 

development agreements. 

 

Our duties under this Agreement are limited to those expressly set forth above.  Absent a 

separate engagement agreement regarding one or more of the following services, the services 

provided and the fees charged hereunder do not include: 

 

1. Preparing the legal descriptions to be used in the Amendment, Plan or development 

agreements; 

 

2. Defending any legal challenges to or arising out of the Amendment, Plan, any TIF 

ordinance, or any development agreements thereunder; 

 

3. Confirming or calculating any potential tax increment anticipated within an urban 

renewal area, or pursuant to a given project, or otherwise acting in a financial advisory 

role;  

 

4. Administering any urban renewal plan, any urban renewal projects, the collection of 

tax increment, or the development agreements after the adoption of the Amendment, 

Plan, and development agreements (and after completion of the respective transcript 

file on the Amendment, Plan, and development agreement); or 

 

5. Any bond (finance) related services.   

 

It is not anticipated that it will be necessary for us to personally attend City Council 

meetings in order to accomplish our work.  We will be coordinating our services with you and 

other City staff, as directed by the City.  In the event that public hearings or litigation should occur 

in the course of this matter, we would expect the same to be handled by the City Attorney, unless 

special arrangments are made for our participation. 

 

ATTORNEY-CLIENT RELATIONSHIP 

 

As confirmed by the execution of this Agreement, the City will be our client and an 

attorney-client relationship will exist between us for purposes of providing the services listed 

above.  Our services are limited to those contracted for in this letter and the City’s execution of 

this Agreement will constitute an acknowledgement of those limitations. The Firm’s engagement Page 110Page 110Page 110Page 110Page 110Page 110Page 110Page 110Page 110Page 110Page 110Page 110Page 110Page 110Page 110Page 110Page 110Page 110Page 110Page 110Page 110Page 110



Page 3 

 

 

 

under this Agreement will end when the Amendment, Plan, and development agreements are 

adopted/approved by the City Council and our final invoice has been paid. 

 

FEES 

 

The attorneys working in the economic development practice area of the firm, including 

Nathan Overberg and Jenna Sabroske, will be the attorneys chiefly responsible for providing you 

with these legal services.  However, if efficient and appropriate, we may call on other attorneys 

and legal assistants from time to time.  The fees will be based on the hours worked by firm 

personnel at their hourly rates in effect at the time the work is performed. Mr. Overberg’s current 

hourly rate is $330 and Ms. Sabroske’s rate is $250.  Work performed by other attorneys will be 

billed at their current hourly rate (currently ranging from $180-$425 per hour). Work by legal 

assistants is currently billed at $135-$150 per hour. Our rates are generally adjusted on an annual 

basis, as of January 1st of each year. 

 

It is difficult to estimate the total cost for the work, because we charge by the hour and 

there are many variables that impact the number of hours spent on the work.  Expenses will be 

billed at the amount incurred.  Our statement for services and expenses will be due and payable 

upon receipt of the invoice, which in most instances, is monthly.  Should you have any questions 

about a statement or a fee, please do not hesitate to call.  We do reserve the right to withdraw from 

representation for any reason, including failure to pay the monthly statement in accordance with 

this policy.  If, for any reason, the City terminates the engagement governed by this Agreement 

before the completion of the services described herein, we will bill the City for the services 

rendered as of the date of termination based on the hourly rates of those who provided services. 

 

RECORDS 

 

 At the City’s request, any documents furnished by the City will be returned promptly upon 

receipt of payment for outstanding fees and client charges.  Our own files, including lawyer work 

product, pertaining to the above referenced project will be retained by us.  For various reasons, 

including the minimization of unnecessary storage expenses, we reserve the right to dispose of any 

documents or other material retained by us after the termination of this Agreement. 

 

APPROVAL 

 

 Please carefully review the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  If this Agreement 

accurately reflects the terms of this particular engagement, please obtain approval by the 

City Council, and execute, date, and return to me the enclosed copy of this Agreement.  Please 

retain the original for your file.   

 

If you have questions regarding any aspect of the above or our representation, please do 

not hesitate to contact me.  As always, we appreciate the opportunity to represent the City and we 

look forward to working with you on this project. 

 

 

 

 Page 111Page 111Page 111Page 111Page 111Page 111Page 111Page 111Page 111Page 111Page 111Page 111Page 111Page 111Page 111Page 111Page 111Page 111Page 111Page 111Page 111Page 111



Page 4 

 

 

 

Ahlers & Cooney, P.C. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

By: 

  
 

Accepted and approved on behalf of the City Council of the City of Carroll, Iowa* 

 

By: _____________________________ Dated:   _________________________ 

 

Title: _____________________________ 

 

*Authorized by action of the governing body, approved on ____________________, 2023. 

 
02266661-1\10275-092 

Page 112Page 112Page 112Page 112Page 112Page 112Page 112Page 112Page 112Page 112Page 112Page 112Page 112Page 112Page 112Page 112Page 112Page 112Page 112Page 112Page 112Page 112



City of Carroll 
====================================== ♦ ====================================== 

627 N. Adams Street Carroll, Iowa 51401 (712) 792-1000 

MEMO TO: Aaron Kooiker, City Manager t\"~ 
FROM: Randall M. Krauel, Director of Public Works ~1,k' 

DATE: November 8, 2023 

SUBJECT: U.S. 30 W Sanitary Sewer & Watermain Extension - 2024 
Professional Services Agreement 

FAX: (712) 792-0139 

A U.S. 30 W Sanitary Sewer & Watermain Extension project is proposed to provide sanitary sewer 
and watermain service to the Ziegler Carroll LLC property. The proposed project includes extension 
of both sanitary sewer and watermain along Kittyhawk Avenue to U.S. 30 and west along U.S. 30 to 
the Ziegler Carroll LLC property. A location map of the proposed Extension is attached. 

A proposed Professional Services Agreement has been prepared for services necessary to develop the 
project for construction bidding. The Agreement has been prepared with Snyder & Associates, Inc. 
Snyder & Associates is perfonn.ing the site civil work for the Ziegler Carroll LLC property. The Scope 
of Services is detailed in the Agreement and sunrn1.arized, with fees, as follows: 

Design Services 

Project Administration 
Topographic & Site Survey 
Design Services 

Bid Services 

Construction Services 

Construction Adtn.inistration 
Construction Staking 

Total 

$86,000.00 Lump Sum 

$3,500.00 Lump Sum 

$9,850.00 Hourly (Est.) 

$99,350.00 LS & Hr. 

Page 113Page 113Page 113Page 113Page 113Page 113Page 113Page 113Page 113Page 113Page 113Page 113Page 113Page 113Page 113Page 113Page 113Page 113Page 113Page 113Page 113



U.S. 30 W Sanitary Sewer & Watermain Extension - 2024 
Professional Services Agreement 

November 8, 2023 
Page 2 

The Project Schedule is prepared to meet the needs of the Ziegler facility. The Schedule is summarized 
as follows: 

Design Phase 

Preliminary Plans 
Final Plans 

Bid Phase - Letting 

Construction Phase - Completion 

December 11, 2023 
December 31, 2023 

Match 5, 2024 

July - August, 2024 

i§~Q)~,!~~i~~tJJt~I: Mayot and City Council consideration of passage and apptoval of the 
Resolution apptoving the Agteement with Snydet & Associates, Inc. fot Ptofessional Setvices fot the 
U.S. 30 W Sanitaty Sewet & Watermain Extension ptoject. 

RMK:ds 

attachments (3) 

Page 114Page 114Page 114Page 114Page 114Page 114Page 114Page 114Page 114Page 114Page 114Page 114Page 114Page 114Page 114Page 114Page 114Page 114Page 114Page 114Page 114



RESOLUTION NO. __ _ 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE AGREEMENT WITH SNYDER & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR THE U.S. 30 W SANITARY SEWER & WATERMAIN 
EXTENSION PROJECT. 

WHEREAS, Chapter 17 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Canoll, Iowa, provides that 
contracts made by the City be approved by the City Council; and, 

WHEREAS, a Professional Services Agreement for the development of the U.S. 30 W Sanitary 
Sewer & Watermain Extension project has been prepared with Snyder & Associates, Inc.; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the Professional Services Agteement is in the 
best intetests of the City and the residents theteof. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Carroll, Iowa, 
that the Professional Services Agteement with Snydet & Associates, Inc. fot the U.S. 30 W Sanitary 
Sewer & Wate1:1nain Extension project is approved and the Mayot is authotized to execute the 
Agreement on behalf of the City. 

Passed and apptoved by the Catroll City Council this 13th day of Novembet, 2023. 

ATTEST: 

By: ------------
Lama A. Schaefet, City Cletk 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA 

By:-----------
Matk E. Beatdmore, Mayot 

Page 115Page 115Page 115Page 115Page 115Page 115Page 115Page 115Page 115Page 115Page 115Page 115Page 115Page 115Page 115Page 115Page 115Page 115Page 115Page 115



0-001 

Address: US HWY 30 
PIN: 06-22-200-009 
Owner: ZIEGLER CARROLL LLC 
Class: COMMERCIAL 

Page 116Page 116Page 116Page 116Page 116Page 116Page 116Page 116Page 116Page 116Page 116Page 116Page 116Page 116Page 116Page 116Page 116Page 116Page 116



STANDARD PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
(Short Form) 

NOW ON THIS 13th day of November , 2023, Snyder & Associates, Inc., 
1800 West 22nd Street, Suite 200, Atlantic, IA 50022 (hereinafter, Professional), and 
City of Carroll, 627 N. Adams, Carroll, IA 51401 
(hereinafter, Client) do hereby agree as follows: 

1. PROJECT: Professional agrees to provide Professional Services (Services) for Client's project known and 
identified as: US 30 W Sanitary Sewer & Water Main Extension - 2024 - Carroll, IA 

2. SCOPE AND FEES: The Scope of and the fees to be paid for said Services are set forth on Exhibit A attached 
hereto and by this reference made a part of this Agreement. Any Services not shown on Exhibit A shall be 
considered Additional Services. Additional Services may only be added by written change order, amendment 
or supplement to this agreement signed by both parties, 

3. TIMELINESS: Professional will perform its services with reasonable diligence and expediency consistent 
with sound professional practices and within the time period(s), if any, set forth in Exhibit A. 

4. STANDARD OF CARE: In providing Services under this Agreement, the Professional shall perform in a 
manner consistent with that degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same professional 
discipline currently practicing under similar circumstances at the same time and in the same or similar locality. 
Professional makes no warranty, express or implied, as to its professional services rendered under this 
Agreement. Client shall promptly report to Professional any defects or suspected defects in the Professional's 
Services of which Client becomes aware. Withholdings, deductions or offsets shall not be made from the 
Professional's compensation for any reason unless the professional has been found to be legally liable for 
such amounts by a court of competent jurisdiction. 

5. INVOICE, PAYMENT, INTEREST, SUSPENSION: Professional shall prepare invoices in accordance with its 
standard invoicing practices and submit the invoice(s) to Client on a monthly basis. Client agrees to timely 
pay each invoice within 30 days of the invoice date. Payments not paid within said 30 days shall accrue 
interest on unpaid balances at the rate of 1.5% per month (or the maximum rate of interest permitted by law, 
if less) from said 30th day. In addition, Professional may, after giving 7 days written notice to Client, suspend 
services under this Agreement until Professional has been paid in full for Services, interest, expenses and 
other related charges rendered, accrued, advanced and/or incurred by Professional to the date of suspension. 
Client waives any and all claims against Professional arising out of or resulting from said suspension. 
Payments will be credited first to interest, then to expenses, then to principal. 

6. RELIANCE: The Client shall furnish, at its expense, all information, requirements, reports, data, surveys and 
instructions required by this Agreement and Professional may use such furnished information and material in 
performing its services and is entitled to rely upon the accuracy and completeness thereof. The Professional 
shall not be held responsible for any errors or omissions that may arise as a result of erroneous or incomplete 
information provided by the Client and/or the Client's consultants and contractors. 

7. ASSIGNMENT: Client shall not transfer, sublet or assign any rights or duties under or interest in this 
Agreement, without the prior written consent of Professional. 

8. OWNERSHIP OF INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE: All reports, drawings, specifications, electronic and hard 
copy files, field data, notes and other documents and instruments prepared by Professional for the Project are 
acknowledged to be instruments of service and shall remain the property of the Professional. The 
Professional shall retain all common law, statutory and other reserved rights, including, without limitation, the 
copyrights thereto. If Professional agrees to allow transfer of its electronic media file(s), Client understands 
and agrees that as a condition precedent, it will sign the Professional's "Electronic Media Transfer Agreement" 
form prior to the transfer of an electronic media file. 

Rev. 5-10-2013 Page 11 

Page 117Page 117Page 117Page 117Page 117Page 117Page 117Page 117Page 117Page 117Page 117Page 117Page 117Page 117Page 117Page 117Page 117Page 117



ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
9. MUTUAL INDEMNIFICATION: The Professional and the Client mutually agree, to the fullest extent permitted 

by law, to indemnify and hold each other harmless from any and all damages, liabilities or costs, including 
reasonable attorneys' fees and defense costs, arising from their own negligent acts, errors or omissions, or 
willful misconduct in the performance of their services, duties and responsibilities under this Agreement, to 
the extent that each party is responsible for such damages, liabilities and costs on a comparative basis of 
fault. 

10. MUTUAL WAIVERS: Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, and to the fullest extent 
permitted by law, neither the Client nor the Professional, their respective officers, directors, partners, 
employees, contractors or subconsultants shall be liable to the other or shall make any claim for any incidental, 
indirect or consequential damages arising out of or connected in any way to the Project or to this Agreement. 

11. LIMITATION: In allocating the risks of this Project and notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement, the Client agrees to limit, to the maximum extent permitted by law, the Professional's 
liability for the Client's damages to the aggregate sum of the Professional's fee for this Project. This 
limitation shall apply regardless of the cause of action or legal theory pied or asserted. 

12. DISPUTE RESOLUTION: Any disputes that arise during the Project or following the completion of the Project 
will be resolved by representatives from each party who have authority to settle. Those issues not resolved 
shall be submitted to formal nonbinding mediation prior to submission to a court of competent jurisdiction. 
Each party shall endeavor to include a similar dispute resolution in all agreements with other consultants, 
contractors and subcontractors of any tier who are retained for the project so that formal mediation is required 
as the primary form of dispute resolution. 

13. SEVERABILITY: If any term or provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid or unenforceable under any 
applicable statute or rule of law, such holding shall be applied only to the provision so held, and the remainder 
of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

14. SURVIVAL: Notwithstanding completion or termination of this Agreement for any reason, all rights duties and 
obligations of the parties to this Agreement shall survive such completion or termination and remain in full 
force and effect until fulfilled. 

15. GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION: The Client and the Professional agree that this Agreement and 
any legal actions concerning its validity, interpretation and performance shall be governed by the laws of the 
State of Iowa, without regard to any conflict of laws provisions, which may apply the laws of other jurisdictions. 
It is further agreed that any legal action between the Client and the Professional arising out of this Agreement 
or the performance of the services shall be brought in a court of competent jurisdiction in the State of Iowa. 

16. ATTORNEYS FEES, COSTS: In the event legal action is necessary to enforce the payment terms of this 
Agreement, Professional shall be entitled to collect from Client and Client agrees to pay to Professional any 
judgment or settlement sum(s) due, plus reasonable attorneys' fees, court costs and other expenses incurred 
by Professional for such collection action and, in addition, the reasonable value of the Professional's time and 
expenses spent for such collection action, computed according to the Professional's prevailing fee schedule 
and expense policy. 

17. INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE: It is understood and agreed that the provisions of the following 
attached Exhibits are incorporated herein and by this reference made a part of this Agreement: 

Exhibit A Scope, Fees, and Schedule Exhibit B Standard Fee Schedule 

Exhibit C Title VI/Non-Discrimination Exhibit 
Assurances -Appendix A 

=C-'--'IT"""'Y-'O:;..:F'-=C""""A"""'R"""R-=0-=LL=---------(Client) 

By: ____________ _ 
(Authorized agent) 

Mark E. Beardmore, Mayor 
(Printed or typed signature) 

Rev. 5-10-2013 

SNYDER & ASSOCIATES, INC. (Professional) 

zl/ --5::::::,._,..,. \ Digitally signed by David E Sturm, PE & PLS 

B 
. U-, z_~ /'Elate:2023,11.0115:14:57-05'00' 

y. ✓ 

(Authorized agent) 

David E. Sturm, PE, PLS - Regional Manager 
(Printed or typed signature) 

Route executed copy to: 

Page [ 2 

Page 118Page 118Page 118Page 118Page 118Page 118Page 118Page 118Page 118Page 118Page 118Page 118Page 118Page 118Page 118Page 118Page 118Page 118



EXHIBIT A - SCOPE OF SERVICES AND FEES 
#t£.Jl.$k.¢hi[Zl,i!C., ,.ib:d tt#QS!Pihk#Jt.t:SI i.!42.J t .. £. .UJ#U&QIJ.tBU .. ZilMMMUUJUW. U& J HAJMJJJ._C!12ttJ\ Tl .t.,_,i!.1.±WffiW_, __ 4,..14¾4$.MZ-rlJ. @SJQ¥41;@%%_JfP,1$!(JtJt,i.M\ 

US 30 W SANITARY SEWER & WATER MAIN EXTENSION - 2024 
CARROLL,IA 

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 

The project involves the extension of the existing 10" water main and 12" sanitary sewer system 
from the Solid Waste Subdivision of the NEl/4-NEl/4 of Section 22-84-35, westerly to serve a 
commercial development lying west of the Middle Raccoon River. The following services are 
proposed to be performed by Snyder & Associates. 

DESIGN SERVICES 

✓ Project Administration 

Snyder & Associates will provide the following administrative services during the design 
of the project: 

• Progress reports as requested to the City. 
• Project coordination between Ziegler, the City of Carroll and Iowa DNR. 
• Project design review. 

✓ Site Review Survey and Topographic Survey 

Snyder & Associates will perform a topographic survey to be utilized in the preparation of 
the constrnction drawings for the proposed project. The survey will include ground 
elevations, utilities, lot pins (if locatable) and physical features of the site. An Iowa One 
Call locate request and on site review will be made to determine the best fit location of the 
proposed water main and sanitary sewer extensions. 

✓ Design Services 

Snyder & Associates will prepare the final design drawings and specifications and review 
said documents with the City. The Statewide Urban Design and Specifications (SUDAS) 
manual will be utilized as the technical specifications for the project. Snyder & Associates 
will apply for the Iowa DNR water and wastewater constrnction permits as well as the Iowa 
DOT utility accommodation permit required for installation of the improvements. Permit 
fees are the responsibility of the City. An estimate of quantities for constrnction and an 
Engineer's constrnction cost opinion will be provided and reviewed with City staff. Prints 
for submittal to the City, including review sets and 5 official document sets shall be 
provided. A Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) is not anticipated to be 
required for this project. 

Page 119Page 119Page 119Page 119Page 119Page 119Page 119Page 119Page 119Page 119Page 119Page 119Page 119Page 119Page 119Page 119Page 119Page 119



EXHIBIT A - SCOPE OF SERVICES AND FEES 
JM!AJkJ_ii4JtQW_ . ! &4.ttZ _@t~ •. J.J@it $ ti ..• ,#bJJKJ,.@.._ c __ $&.Qt4 442 _,,..JJ.¢ J.J_ ¥-..£41 JWAS.%44.. ZL$!2$4 &.MJZ;t.,,WMM L#%@Wl£(@4 .X#, i#J.MU44JJJ&QJJ_&._, :;u;m; 

BID SERVICES 

✓ Bid Services 

Upon authorization from the owner, Snyder & Associates will supply the documents 
necessary for public bidding to appropriate contractors. Questions from potential 
contractors, subcontractors and suppliers regarding the contract documents will be 
addressed. Snyder & Associates will review and tabulate the bids and make 
recommendations to the owner regarding the award of the constrnction contract. 

CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 

✓ Construction Administration 

The City of Carroll plans to perform the majority of the construction administration with 
inhouse staff. However, Snyder & Associates may perform limited administrative services 
as requested by the City. These services may include conducting a preconstruction 
conference, specifying testing of materials, complete payment requests, review shop 
drawing submittals, complete change orders, respond to contractor questions, determine 
when the project is substantially complete and other tasks as necessary for the 
administration of the project. 

✓ Construction Staking 

Snyder & Associates shall provide construction stakes as required for the construction of 
the project. Services shall be provided in accordance with the Contractor's schedule and 
as required by the Contractor utilizing modem construction methods. 

✓ Additional Services 

The City may request additional services from Snyder & Associates that are not included 
in this Scope of Services as outlined. Additional services may include, but not be limited 
to, expanding the scope of the project and work to be completed; assistance in property 
acquisition or easement procurement; constmction observation/inspection; preparation of 
as-built documents; assistance with environmental or archaeological review of the project 
areas; development of various documents not otherwise described herein; or requesting 
additional work items that increase the engineering services and corresponding costs. 
Additional services shall be performed as requested in writing by the Owner on an hourly 
basis in accordance with the Snyder & Associates, Inc. Standard Fee Schedule in affect at 
the time of actual performance. 

Page 120Page 120Page 120Page 120Page 120Page 120Page 120Page 120Page 120Page 120Page 120Page 120Page 120Page 120Page 120Page 120Page 120Page 120



EXHIBIT A - SCOPE OF SERVICES AND FEES 
#AA.&;_._ i. '· _Ql&J.,£t_,; ,i .J4$ii41.2,~.'-' k!UU$Jl&h,¼ , _µ&&&$)\£ .iPIX.$2,1$.U#i @aj[(J,),1.14, .. s.sz:rn_qpt_m, t& .&l . R$)31M_iil,,- .,,,J!J4& J_.1$2,\ ,14 ! J,J..!t.tbkbtt _ _£J£tk4a; 

SUMMARY OF SERVICES PROVIDED AND FEES 

Work Element 

DESIGN SERVICES 

Project Administration 
Topographic and Site Survey 
Design Services 

Total Lump Sum Design Services Subtotal 

BID SERVICES 

Bid Services (including document reproduction) 

Total Lump Sum Bid Services Subtotal 

CONSTRUCTION SERVICES (Hourly) 

Constmction Administration (limited) 
Constmction Staking 

Estimated Cost 

$86,000.00 

$ 3,500.00 

Total Hourly Plus Expenses Construction Services Subtotal $ 9,850.00 

Project Total $99,350.00 

Page 121Page 121Page 121Page 121Page 121Page 121Page 121Page 121Page 121Page 121Page 121Page 121Page 121Page 121Page 121Page 121Page 121Page 121



PROJECT SCHEDULE 
U.S. 30 W. SANITARY SEWER & WATER MAIN EXTENSION - 2024 

CARROLL, IOWA 
PROJECT NO. PROPOSAL 

NOVEMEBER 13, 2024 

DESIGN PHASE 

► Site Topographic Survey ......................................................... Week of November 13, 2023 
► Complete Preliminary Plans .................................................................. December 11, 2023 
► Complete Final Plans & Specs. (Submit for IDNR Const. Permit) ....... December 31, 2023 

BID PHASE 

► Distribute Notice of Letting to Contractors ............................................... Febmary 2, 2024 
► Publish Notice of Bid Letting (13 to 45 days prior to bid date) ................ Febmary 2, 2024 
► City Publish Notice of Hearing (4 to 20 days prior to hearing date) ......... Febmary 9, 2024 

► Council Meeting (Regular Meeting) ....................................................... February 26, 2024 
o Public Hearing on Plans, Specifications & Form of Contract 
o Resolution Approving Plans, Specifications and Form of Contract 

► Bid Letting ................................................................... Tuesday, March 5, 2024 at 2:00 PM 

► Council Meeting (Regular Meeting) ........................................................... March 11, 2024 
o Review Construction Bids 
o Resolution Making Award of Contract 

► Distribute Contracts ..................................................................................... March 12, 2024 

CONSTRUCTION PHASE 

► Pre-Construction Meeting and Notice to Proceed ....................................... Mid-April 2024 

► Begin Construction ...................................................................................... Late April 2024 

► Substantial Completion of Construction ................................................... July-August 2024 
o Certificate of Substantial Completion 

• The above project schedule will meet the needs of the Ziegler Carroll facility project 
constmction timeline. The project will also be scheduled in parallel with the continuing 
utility extension project across the Ziegler facility. 

• The above project schedule will be contingent on a notice to proceed from the City of 
Carroll and receiving a constmction permit from the Iowa DNR in a timely manner. 

H: \CARROLL\2024 S& W Ext\ProjectSchedule _ Carro/1.docx 

Page 122Page 122Page 122Page 122Page 122Page 122Page 122Page 122Page 122Page 122Page 122Page 122Page 122Page 122Page 122Page 122Page 122Page 122



EXHIBIT B - STANDARD FEE SCHEDULE 

EXHIBITB 

I 

• dentist 

CADD, Survey, Construction Observation 

REIM8URSABLES 

Page 123Page 123Page 123Page 123Page 123Page 123Page 123Page 123Page 123Page 123Page 123Page 123Page 123Page 123Page 123Page 123Page 123Page 123



Page 124Page 124Page 124Page 124Page 124Page 124Page 124Page 124Page 124Page 124Page 124Page 124Page 124Page 124Page 124Page 124Page 124Page 124



Exhibit C 

Title VI/No11-Discritnit1atiot1 Assurances 

APPENDIX A 

During the perfottnance of this contract, the conttactor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest 
(herelnafter referred to as the "contractor") agrees as follows: 

1. Compliance with Regulations: The contractor (hereinafter includes consulta11ts) will comply with the 
Acts and the Regulatio11s relative to Non-discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the U.S. 
Department of Ttansportatio11 Federal Highway Administ1'a1iot1, as they may be amended from time to 
time, which ate herein incorporated by tefetence and made a part of this contract. 

2, Non"discdmination: The contractor, with regard to the wotk performed by it during the contract, will 
not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national otigin in the selection and retention of 
subcontractors, including procurements of materials and leases of equip1nent. The contractor will not 
participate clitectly or indirectly in the discrhnination JJrohibited by the Acts and the Regulations, includh-i.g 
employment practices when the contract covers any activity, ptoject or tJrogram set forth in Appendix B 
of 49 CRF Patt 2'1. 

3. Solicitations for Subcontracts, Includit1g Procurements of Materials and Equipme11t: In all 
solicitations, either by competitive bidding, or negotiation made by the co11tractor for work to be performed 
under a subcontract, including ptocuremeilts of materials, or leases of equipme11t, each potential 
subcontracto:t: or supplier will be notified by the cohtractor of the contractor's obligations under .this 
contract a11d the Acts and the Regulations relative to Non-disctitnination on the grounds of race, color, or 
national origin. 

• 4. Information and Reports: The contractor will JJtovide all infor1ni\tio11 and reports requited by the Acts, 
the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto and will permit access to its books, records, 
accounts, other sources of informiltion, and its facilities as may be deter1nined by the Recipient or the 
Federal High Admb1istratio11 to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Acts, Regulatiot1s, and 
instructions. Where any info:t:mation required of a conb:actor is in the exclusive possession of another who 
fails or refoses to furnish the information, the contractor will so certify to the Recipient or the Federal 
Highway Administration, as apptopciate, and will set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the 
information. • 

5. Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of a conttactot's no11co1npliance with the Non
discritninatio11 provisions of this contract, the Recipient will itnpose such contract sanctions as it or the 
Federal Highway Administration may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to: 

a. withholding payments to the contractor under the contract until the contractor comJJlies; a11d/ or 
b. cancelling, terminating, ot suspending a conttact, in whole or in part. 

6. Incorporation of Provisions: The contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs one through six 
in eveiy subconttact, including procute111ents of materlals and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the 

, Acts, the Regulations and directives lssued l?Utsuant thereto. The contractor will take action with respect 
to any subcontract or ptocurement as the Recipient or the Federal Highway Admi11isttation may direct 
as a means of enforcing such JJrovisions including sanctions fot noncompliance. Provided, tl1at if the 
contractor becomes involved i11, or is threatet1ed with litigi\tion by a subcontractor, or supJJlier because of 
such ditection, the contractor may request the RedJJient to enter into any litigation to protect the interests 
of the Recipient. In addition, the contractor may request the United States to enter into the litigation to 
protect the interests of the United States. 

Page 1 of2 
Page 125Page 125Page 125Page 125Page 125Page 125Page 125Page 125Page 125Page 125Page 125Page 125Page 125Page 125Page 125Page 125Page 125Page 125



Exhibit C 

'Title VI IN 011•Discriini:natio11 AssUi'ances 

APPENDIXE 

Dutlng the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest 
01ereinafter referred to as the "contractor") agrees to comply with the following 11011-discr.hnination statutes 
and authorities; including but not limited to: 

o Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C, § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), (prohibits discdmination 
on the basis of race, color, national origin); and 49 CPR Part 21; 

o The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acc1uisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 U.S.C. § 

460'1), (ptohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been acquired because 
of Federal or Federal-aid programs find projects); 

o Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, (23 U.S.C. § 324 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination on the basis 

of sex); 
o Section 504- of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U,S.C. § 794 et seq.), as amended, (prohibits 

clisc:ti.tninatlon on the basis of ctisability); and 49 CFR Part 27; 
o The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as am.ended (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination 

on the basis of age); 
o Airport and Airway Improve1ne11t Act of 1982, (49 USC § 471, Section 47123), as amended, 

(prohlbits discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex); 
o The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, coverage and 

applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms "programs or 
activities" to ii1dude all of the programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients, sub-recipients and 
contractors, whether such programs or activities are Federally fonded or not); 

o Titles II and HI of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of 
disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of public 
accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131 - - 12189) as hnplemented by 

Departtnent of Transportation regulations at 49 CPR Parts 37 and 38; 
o 'I'he Federal Aviation Adm.hiistration's Non-clisctitnination statute (49 U.S.C. § 47'123) (prohibits 

discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex); 
o Exec11tive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Enviro11mental Justice in M1nority Populations 

and Low-Income Populations, which ensures non-discrimination against minority populatlo11s by 
discouraging progta.111s, policies, and activities with disproportionately high a11d adverse human health 
or environmental effects on minority and low-income populations; 

o Executive Otder 13166, Improving Access to Setvices for Persons ·with Limited English Proficiency, 
and resulting agency guidance, national otigin discriminati.011 i11cludes discrimination because of limited 
English proficiency (LEP). To ensure compliance with Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to 
ensute that LEP persons have meaningful access to your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100); 

o Title IX of the Education Amendments ofl 972, as amended, which prohibits you from d.iscrituinati11g 
because of sex in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 1681 et .seq.). 

Page 2 of 2 

Page 126Page 126Page 126Page 126Page 126Page 126Page 126Page 126Page 126Page 126Page 126Page 126Page 126Page 126Page 126Page 126Page 126Page 126



 

City of Carroll  

627 N. Adams Street       Carroll, Iowa 51401           (712) 792-1000           FAX: (712) 792-0139  

 

 MEMO TO: Aaron Kooiker, City Manager  

 FROM: Laura A. Schaefer, Finance Director/City Clerk 

 DATE: November 7, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Biokinemetrics Holdings LLC and DMBA Properties & Consulting, Inc. 

• Annual Tax Increment Finance Appropriations for FY 2025 

 

On December 27, 2016, the City entered into a development agreement (the “agreement”) with 

Biokinemetrics Holdings LLC and DMBA Properties & Consulting, Inc. (the “Developer”). The 

agreement required the developer to construct a 17,000-square foot building along with create 10 new 

jobs in the building. In exchange, the City will provide a tax increment grant equal to the incremental 

property tax revenues generated and paid by the developer on the new building over 15 years, not to 

exceed a total grant amount of $300,000. 

 

The agreement also provides a provision that each tax increment grant shall be subject to annual 

appropriation by the City Council. Prior to December 1 of each year, during the term of the 

agreement, the City Council shall consider the question of obligating to fund the tax increment grant 

to be collected in the next fiscal year. 

 

Annual appropriations is common language in development agreements of this type in Iowa and 

without this language the City would be required to count the total amount of the grant against the 

City’s debt obligations and constitutional debt limit.  While this language allows the current and future 

City Councils to choose to not appropriate funds for this grant in the future without any recourse from 

the Developer, such an action does carry consequences for the City.  If the Council would choose to 

not appropriate funds, the City’s bond rating would likely change to “junk status”.  In the end, the 

City’s ability to borrow funds could be affected and if the City were able to borrow funds then the 

City would likely be hammered with a higher interest rate that could cost the City more in the end than 

the grant payments themselves.    

 

The developer has completed construction of the building and certified the creation of 10 new jobs, as 

required by the agreement.  

 

On October 11, 2023, City staff met with Josh Jacobs of Biokinemetrics regarding the agreement, 

specifically, the number of jobs/employees working out of the Biokinemetrics Carroll office.  

 

During the discussion, Mr. Jacobs was concerned about giving out information that would hinder their 

business. If Biokinemetrics provided employee names and wages, this could hinder their business in a 

tight labor environment. Mr. Jacobs stated their attorney had suggested a signed and notarized 

affidavit from each employee. Their attorney also stated that they would show this to City Staff but 

did not want to give it to staff because all documents could then become public records.  

 Page 127Page 127Page 127Page 127Page 127Page 127Page 127Page 127Page 127Page 127Page 127Page 127Page 127Page 127Page 127Page 127Page 127



Mr. Jacobs provided a list of fourteen (14) employees, ten (10) that work out of the Carroll office and 

another four (4) that work remotely. They also have a contractor that works out of the Carroll office. 

Mr. Jacobs also provided a list of names, hometowns, and their salaries to review. The requirement, 

per the agreement, is that all the employees have a salary of at least $40,000 per year.  

 

After discussion with City’s attorney Nathan Overburg, Ahlers & Cooney P.C., City staff requested 

from Biokinemetrics their IRS Form W3 (which provides number of W2s), redacted W2s, the IRS 

Form 1096 (which lists the number of 1099s) and redacted 1099s. Those documents were provided to 

the City on October 25, 2023. These documents show that Biokinemetrics has eight (8) W2 

employees and six (6) 1099 employees. They are only claiming two (2) of the 1099 employees as 

some of them do not meet the wage requirement.   

 

The attached resolution appropriates the tax increment finance (TIF) revenue to be collected in FY 

2025 related to this project to be paid to the developer and to account for this in the FY 2025 budget. 

FY 2025 will be the seventh year of annual appropriations. The remaining grant amount available 

after FY 2024 annual appropriations payment is $193,269.01. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council consideration and approval of the resolution obligating funds from 

the Central Business District Urban Renewal Tax Revenue Fund for appropriation of the payment of 

the tax increment grant to Biokinemetrics Holdings, LLC and DMBA Properties & Consulting, Inc. 

for FY 2025. 
 

Page 128Page 128Page 128Page 128Page 128Page 128Page 128Page 128Page 128Page 128Page 128Page 128Page 128Page 128Page 128Page 128Page 128



   

RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

Obligating funds from the Central Business District Urban Renewal Tax 

Revenue Fund for appropriation to the payment of annual appropriation tax 

increment financed obligations which shall come due in the next succeeding 

fiscal year 

WHEREAS, the City of Carroll, Iowa (the “City”), pursuant to and in strict compliance 

with all laws applicable to the City, and in particular the provisions of Chapter 403 of the Code 

of Iowa, has adopted an Eighth Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan for the Amended 

and Restated Central Business District Urban Renewal Area (the “Urban Renewal Area”); and 

WHEREAS, this Council has adopted an ordinance providing for the division of taxes 

levied on taxable property in the Urban Renewal Area pursuant to Section 403.19 of the Code of 

Iowa and establishing the fund referred to in Subsection 2 of Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa 

(the “Urban Renewal Tax Revenue Fund”), which fund and the portion of taxes referred to in 

that subsection may be irrevocably pledged by the City for the payment of the principal and 

interest on indebtedness incurred under the authority of Section 403.9 of the Code of Iowa to 

finance or refinance in whole or in part projects in the Urban Renewal Area; and 

WHEREAS, the City has agreed to make semi-annual payments which shall come due in 

the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2018, under the Development Agreement dated December 27, 

2016, (the “Agreement”) between the City and Biokinemetrics Holdings LLC and DMBA 

Properties & Consulting, Inc., equal in amount to 100% of the Incremental Property Tax 

Revenues (as such term is defined in the Agreement) received by the City during such fiscal year 

in respect of the Project (as such term is defined in the Agreement) (the “Annual Semi-

Payment”), up to the amount of the Maximum Grant Total described in the Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Development Agreement requires the Developer to maintain a minimum 

of 10 full-time permanent jobs. On October 11, 2023, the Developer certified 10 full-time jobs; 

and 

WHEREAS, it is now necessary for the City Council to obligate for appropriation to the 

Annual Payment, funds anticipated to be received in the Urban Renewal Tax Revenue Fund in 

the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024; and  

WHEREAS, the City Clerk is directed to certify the amount obligated for appropriation 

to the Annual Payment, funds anticipated to be received in the Urban Renewal Tax Revenue 

Fund, to the County Auditor by December 1, 2023, of debt payable from the Urban Renewal Tax 

Revenue Fund. 

NOW, THEREFORE, It Is Resolved by the City Council of the City of Carroll, Iowa, as 

follows: 

Section 1. The City Council hereby obligates a portion of the said Incremental 

Property Tax Revenues so received as described in the preambles hereof for appropriation from 

Page 129Page 129Page 129Page 129Page 129Page 129Page 129Page 129Page 129Page 129Page 129Page 129Page 129Page 129Page 129Page 129



  2 

   

the Urban Renewal Tax Revenue Fund to the Semi-Annual Payment in the fiscal year beginning 

July 1, 2024. 

Section 2. The City Clerk is hereby directed to certify the amount obligated for 

appropriation in Section 1 above, on the City’s December 1, 2023 certification of debt payable 

from the Urban Renewal Tax Revenue Fund and to reflect such amount in the City’s budget for 

the next succeeding fiscal year. 

Section 3. All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 13th day of November, 2023. 

 

  

Mark E. Beardmore, Mayor 

Attest: 

      

Laura A. Schaefer, City Clerk 

 
 

Page 130Page 130Page 130Page 130Page 130Page 130Page 130Page 130Page 130Page 130Page 130Page 130Page 130Page 130Page 130Page 130



DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

This Development Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into between the City of Carroll, 
Iowa (the "City") and Biokinemetrics Holdings, LLC, an Iowa limited liability company and 
DMBA Properties & Consulting, Inc., an Iowa sub-S corporation ( collectively the "Developer") 
as of the 27trday of December , 2016 (the "Commencement Date"). 

WHEREAS, the City has established the City of Carroll Central Business District Urban 
Renewal Area (the "Urban Renewal Area"), and has adopted a tax increment ordinance (Ordinance 
No. 1701 (the "Ordinance")) for the Urban Renewal Area, under which incremental tax 
revenues from the Urban Renewal Area are to be deposited into a special tax increment fund of 
the City pursuant to Section 403 .19 of the Code of Iowa; and 

--
WHEREAS, the Developer owns certain real property which is situated in the City and lies 

within the Urban Renewal Area and is described on Exhibit A (the "Property"); and 

WHEREAS, the Developer has proposed to undertake the construction of a 17,000-square 
foot 2 story building on the above Property for the Developer's operation which will create 12 new 
jobs (the "Project"); and 

WHEREAS, the Developer also is considering rehabilitating an existing 7,956 square foot 
building (the "Existing Building") on the above Property (the "Rehabilitation Work"); and 

WHEREAS, the Developer has requested that the City provide financial assistance in the 
form of incremental property tax payments (the "Grants") to be used by the Developer in paying 
the costs of constructing and maintaining the Project and Rehabilitation Work; and 

WHEREAS, Chapter 15A of the Code of Iowa authorizes cities to provide grants, loans, 
guarantees, tax incentives and other financial assistance to or for the benefit of private persons for 
economic development purposes, which is defined as the creation or maintenance of jobs that 
would otherwise be lost; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has found the Project to be consistent with the objectives 
of the Urban Renewal Plan for the Urban Renewal Area and has further found that the use of 
City funds to finance the Grants is in accord with the provisions of the applicable laws under 
which the Project will be tmdertaken, including but not limited to, Iowa Code Chapters 15A and 
403. 

NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

A. Developer's Covenants 

1. Proiect Construction. 

New Construction. The Developer shall construct the Project on the Property and 
agrees to maintain and use the completed Project as part of the Developer's business operations 

1 

Page 131Page 131Page 131Page 131Page 131Page 131Page 131Page 131Page 131Page 131Page 131Page 131Page 131Page 131Page 131



throughout the Term, as hereinafter defined. Furthermore, the Developer agrees to invest not less 
than $1,100,000 into capital improvements for the Project, including construction work and other 
fixtures. The Developer has submitted a detailed building plan (the "plans") for the development 
of the Project as set forth as Exhibit B hereto. The City issued a building permit for construction 
of the Project on October 19, 2016. The Developer agrees to construct the Project in accordance 
with the submitted plans and to substantially complete such construction by no later than January 
1, 2018. 

Existing Building. The Developer may undertake Rehabilitation Work on the 
Existing Building located on the easterly side of the Property. 

2. Property Taxes. The Developer agrees to make timely payment of all property 
taxes as they come due with respect to the Property with the completed Project thereon throughout 
the Term, as hereinafter defined, and to submit to the Chy a receipt or cancelled check in evidence 
of each such payment. 

3. Job Creation Covenant. The Developer agrees to create and maintain a 
minimum of 10 full-time permanent jobs, each paying a minimum salary of at least $40,000 per 
job, located in the Project building constructed on the Property during each year of the Term of 
this agreement, commencing on October 15, 2020. Any jobs located in this building Project shall 
count as part of the total jobs created no matter what legal entity acts as the employer or contracting 
entity for those jobs. The jobs may be for full-time employment or for independent contractors as 
long as they are in a full-time capacity. Any jobs related to businesses that may be located in the 
Existing Building in the future shall not be counted for purposes of this employment covenant. 

4. Developer's Certifications. The Developer agrees to submit documentation to 
the satisfaction of the City by no later than October 15 of each year during the Term, as hereinafter 
defined, commencing October 15, 2020, demonstrating that the completed Project is in 
conformance for the minimum number of jobs created at the Project location. In addition, a duly 
authorized officer of the Developer shall annually certify to the City (a) the average number of 
full-time employees working at the Project as of the certification date, and (b) a certification to the 
effect that such officer has re-examined the terms and provisions of this Agreement and that at the 
date of such certificate, and during the preceding twelve (12) months, the Developer is not, or was 
not, in default in the fulfillment of any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement and that no 
default is occurring or has occurred as of the date of such certificate or during such period, or if 
the signer is aware of any such default, said officer shall disclose in such statement the nature 
thereof, its period of existence and what action, if any, has been taken or is proposed to be taken 
with respect thereto. The allllual certification required under this provision shall be in substantially 
the form set forth on Exhibit C, attached hereto. 

5. Property Tax Exemptions. The Developer agrees that the Project and 
Rehabilitation Work will not be eligible to receive a tax abatement or partial exemption from 
taxation, or Commercial Property Tax Exemption, as defined under the Code of Ordinances for 
the City. 

6. Remedies. If the Developer (i) fails to construct the Project as described in 

2 

Page 132Page 132Page 132Page 132Page 132Page 132Page 132Page 132Page 132Page 132Page 132Page 132Page 132Page 132Page 132



Exhibit B, (ii) fails to observe the job creation covenant by more than 50% for two (2) consecutive 
years, (iii) fails to substantially observe or perform any condition, obligation, agreement, or other 
non-job creation covenants on its part to be observed or performed under this Agreement, (iv) files 
any petition in bankruptcy, makes an assignment for the benefit of its creditors or admits in writing 
its inability to pay its debts generally as they become due, or (v) if any representation or warranty 
made by the Developer in this Agreement, or made by the Developer in any written statement or 
certificate furnished by them pursuant to this Agreement, shall prove to have been falsified, or 
purposely misleading in any material respect on or as of the date of the issuance or making thereof, 
and fails to cure said breach within thirty (30) days after written notice ( except in the case of a 
default arising under clause (iv) or (v) in which case no notice or opportunity to cure shall be 
given), the City may (x) suspend its performance under this Agreement until it receives assurances 
from the Developer, deemed adequate by the City, that the Developer will cure its default and 
continue its performance under this Agreement, (y) tenninate this Agreement, or (z) take any 
action, including legal, equitable or administrative action, which may appear necessary or desirable 
to enforce performance and observance of any obligation, agreement or covenant of the Developer. 

B. City's Obligations 

1. Relocation of Power Poles. The City will reimburse the Developer $24,996.47 
for the relocation of power poles on 4th Street and 5th Street as part of the Project. This 
reimbursement shall be made within 30 days after the final approval of this development 
agreement by all parties. 

2. Payments related to new construction. In recognition of the Developer's 
obligations set out above, and only with respect to the Project, the City agrees to make thirty (30) 
semiannual economic development tax increment grant payments (the "Grants") to the Developer 
during the Term, as hereinafter defined, pursuant to Chapters 15A and 403 of the Code of Iowa; 
provided, however, that the aggregate, total amount of the Grants related to the new construction 
shall not exceed $300,000 (the "Maximum Grant Total"), and all Grants under this Agreement 
shall be subject to annual appropriation by the City Council, as provided hereunder. 

The Developer is required to maintain a minimum of 10 full-time permanent jobs with a 
minimum wage of at least $40,000 per year per job in the Project by October 15, 2020. If the 
certification of the Developer required under Section A reflects that there has been a failure to 
maintain the minimum number of jobs, then the City may reduce the Grant due during the 
following fiscal year by the percentage of the 10 jobs the Developer was obligated to create (by 
way of example, if the Developer certifies only 5 full-time employees, they would be entitled to 
50% of the Grant payable in that year). Any reductions made in this section shall be permanent 
for the year the minimum number of jobs was not in the new building. 

The Grants shall not constitute general obligations of the City,- but shall be made solely 
and only from Incremental Property Tax Revenues received by the City from the Carroll County 
Treasurer that are attributable to the taxable valuation of the Project, and each Grant shall be equal 
to 100% of the Incremental Property Tax Revenues so received. For this purpose, the parties agree 
that the "Incremental Property Tax Revenues" shall mean only the tax increment revenues received 
by the City under Iowa Code Section 403.19 and the Ordinance in respect of the Project. 

3 

Page 133Page 133Page 133Page 133Page 133Page 133Page 133Page 133Page 133Page 133Page 133Page 133Page 133Page 133Page 133



It is assumed that the new valuation from the Project will go on the property tax rolls as of 
January 1, 2018. Accordingly, assuming the City's initial certification to the County Auditor in 
respect of this Agreement is made on or before December 1, 2017, the Grants will be made on the 
first check run in December and June of each fiscal year, beginning in December 2018 and 
continuing to, and including, June 2033, or until such earlier date upon which total Grants equal 
to the Maximum Grant Total have been made. Payments shall be based on the Incremental 
Property Tax Revenues generated only on the Project construction. 

The City makes no guarantee as to the actual amount of the Grants which the Developer 
shall receive. The Grants are wholly contingent upon the Developer being and remaining in 
compliance with the obligations, responsibilities, and covenants of this Agreement. Under no 
circumstances will the Developer be entitled to, or have a claim of interest in, any past Grant 
payments that may be reduced in amount as outlined in this Agreement. 

If the City breaches its agreement to provide the Grant payments as set forth in this 
Agreement and fails to cure said breach within sixty ( 60) days after written notice to the City 
Clerk, the Developer shall have the right to take any legal or equitable action deemed appropriate 
to enforce the City's performance obligations under this Agreement. 

3. Payments related to improvements to the existing building. The Developer is 
under no obligation to complete any Rehabilitation Work to the Existing Building on this site. 
However, if improvements to the Existing Building on this site are completed during the Term and 
the improvements directly result in the assessable building value increasing by more than 30% as 
determined by the Carroll County Assessor, in recognition of these improvement the City agrees 
to make semiannual economic development tax increment grant payments (the "Rehab Grant 
Payments") to the Developer during the Term, as hereinafter defined, pursuant to Chapters 15A 
and 403 of the Code of Iowa; provided, however, that the aggregate, total amount of the Rehab 
Grant Payments shall not exceed 25% of the- total cost of the Rehabilitation Work completed by 
the Developer or such lower amount that can be paid as described herein during the remaining 
Term of this Agreement (the "Maximum Rehab Grant Payment Total"), and all Rehab Grant 
Payments under this Agreement shall be subject to annual appropriation by the City Council, as 
provided hereunder. The Developer shall certify the total cost paid by the Developer to complete 
the Rehabilitation Work and provide the City with copies of all paid invoices and all cancelled 
checks. The Developer shall be allowed to use another legal third party entity established in the 
state of Iowa (such as an LLC) on behalf of the Developer as an affiliated entity of the Developer 
to direct and pay for the Rehabilitation Work with such checks and invoices counting towards the 
total costs of Rehabilitation Work. All such invoices and checks must be submitted to the City. 

The Rehab Grant Payments shall not constitute general obligations of the City, but shall be 
made solely and only from Incremental Property Tax Revenues (i.e., the tax increment revenues 
received by the City under Iowa Code Section 403.19 and the Ordinance) received by the City 
from the Carroll County Treasurer that are attributable to the taxable valuation of the Existing 
Building on the Property. For this purpose, the Rehab Grant Payments shall be based on the 
Incremental Property Tax Revenues generated from renovations of the Existing Building using the 
post-renovation assessed value on January 1 of each year minus the pre-renovation assessed value 
as of the January 1 of the year the renovations to the Existing Building are started. 

4 

Page 134Page 134Page 134Page 134Page 134Page 134Page 134Page 134Page 134Page 134Page 134Page 134Page 134Page 134Page 134



The Developer shall provide written notice to the City when any such renovations 
commence and again when the Rehabilitation Work has been completed. Following notice that 
the Rehabilitation Work has been completed, the City shall calculate the expected Maximum 
Rehab Grant Payment Amount and, if all requirements of this Agreement have been met, shall 
certify the same to the County Auditor on or before the next December 1. 

The Rehab Grant Payments thereafter will be made on the first check run in 
December and June of each fiscal year, beginning in December the next year and continuing to, 
and including, June 2033 or until the Maximum Rehab Grant Payment Amount has been paid, 
whichever occurs first. 

The City makes no guarantee as to the actual amount of the Rehab Grant 
. Payments which the Developer shall receive. The Rehab Grant Payments are wholly contingent 
upon the Developer being and remaining in compliance with the obligations, responsibilities, and 
covenants of this Agreement. Under no circumstances will the Developer be entitled to, or have 
a claim of interest in, any remaining amount that may still be payable as a Rehab Grant Payment 
when the Term of this Agreement ends. 

If the City breaches its agreement to provide the Rehab Grant Payments as set forth in 
this Agreement and fails to cure said breach within sixty (60) days after written notice to the City 
Clerk, the Developer shall have the right to take any legal or equitable action deemed appropriate 
to enforce the City's performance obligations under this Agreement. The Maximum Rehab 
Grant Payment Total is separate from the Maximum Grant Total. 

4. Annual Appropriation. Each Grant and Rehab Grant Payment shall be subject 
to annual appropriation by the City Council. Prior to December 1 of each year during the Term of 
this Agreement, the City Council of the City shall consider the question of obligating for 
appropriation to the funding of the Grants and Rehab Grant Payments due in the following fiscal 
year, an amount (the "Appropriated Amount") of Incremental Property Tax Revenues to be 
collected in the following fiscal year. In any given fiscal year, if the City Council determines to 
not obligate the then-considered Appropriated Amount, then the City will be under no obligation 
to fund the Grants and/or Rehab Grant Payments scheduled to become due in the following fiscal 
year, and the Developer will have no rights whatsoever to compel the City to make such Grants 
and/or Rehab Grant Payments or to seek damages relative thereto or to compel the funding of such 
Grants and/or Rehab Grant Payments in future fiscal years. In the event the City Council elects to 
not appropriate sufficient funds in the budget for any future fiscal year for the payment in full of 
the Grants and/or Rehab Grant Payments due and payable in that fiscal year, then: (i) no event of 
default under this Agreement shall be deemed to have occurred; (ii) the City shall have no further 
obligation to the Developer for the payment any future Grants and/or Rehab Grant Payments 
commencing with the Grants and/or Rehab Grant Payments due in the next fiscal year which 
cannot be paid with the funds then appropriated for that purpose; and (iii) Developer shall be 
released from all further obligations under this Agreement, commencing upon the date that any 
Grant and/or Rehab Grant Payment is not paid in full due to the City's exercise of its right ofnon-
appropriation under this section. • 

5. Payment Amounts. Each Grant and/or Rehab Grant Payment shall be in an 
amount equal to the corresponding Appropriated Amount; provided, however, that each Grant 

5 

Page 135Page 135Page 135Page 135Page 135Page 135Page 135Page 135Page 135Page 135Page 135Page 135Page 135Page 135Page 135



and/or Rehab Grant Payment shall not exceed the amount oflncremental Property Tax Revenues 
received by the City from the Carroll County Treasurer attributable to the taxable valuation of the 
Project or the Existing Building, as applicable. 

6. Certification of Payment Obligation. In any given· fiscal year, if the City 
Council determines to obligate the then-considered Appropriated Amount, as set forth above, then 
the City Clerk will certify by December 1 of each such year to the Carroll County Auditor an 
amount equal to the most recently obligated Appropriated Amount. 

C. Administrative Provisions 
' , .. ... 

1. Amendment and Assignment. This Agreement shall not be amended or 
assigned without written agreement by all parties hereto; and, if an assignment is requested, then 
such assignment shall not be unreasonably withheld by either party. However, the City hereby 
gives its permission that the Developer's rights to receive the Grants and/or Rehab Grant Payments 
hereunder may be assigned by the Developer to a private lender, as security on a credit facility 
taken with respect to the Project, without further action on the part of the City, but no such lender 
shall be considered a third party beneficiary to the Grants and/or Rehab Grant Payments 
contemplated under this Agreement and the parties do not intend that any rights in connection with 
the Grants and/or Rehab Grant Payments be conferred upon any third party as a result of this 
Agreement. 

2. Successors. This Agreement shall be binding on the successors and assigns of 
the Developer. 

3. Term. The term (the "Term") of this Agreement shall commence on the 
Commencement Date and end on June 30, 2033 or on such earlier date upon which the aggregate 
sum of the Grants and any Rehab Grant Payments made to the Developer equals the Maximum 
Grant Payment Total and Maximum Rehab Grant Payment Total, respectively. 

4. Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be deemed to be a contract made under 
the laws of the State of Iowa and for all purposes shall be governed by and construed in accordance 
with laws of the State of Iowa. 

5. Notices and Demands. A notice, demand or other communication under this 
Agreement by any party to the other shall be sufficiently given or delivered if it is dispatched by 
registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or delivered personally, and 

(a) In the case of the City, is addressed to or delivered personally to: 

City of Carroll, Iowa 
Attn: City Manager 
112 E 5th St 
Carroll, IA 51401 

6 

Page 136Page 136Page 136Page 136Page 136Page 136Page 136Page 136Page 136Page 136Page 136Page 136Page 136Page 136Page 136



(b) In the case of the Developer, is addressed to or delivered personally to: 

Biokinemetrics Holdings, LLC and/or DMBA Properties & Consulting, Inc. 
Attn: President 
211 E 4th St 
PO Box 276 
Carroll, IA 51401 

or to such other designated individual or to such other address as any party shall have 
furnished to the other in writing in accordance herewith. 

7 

Page 137Page 137Page 137Page 137Page 137Page 137Page 137Page 137Page 137Page 137Page 137Page 137Page 137Page 137Page 137



The City and Developer have caused this Agreement to be signed, in their names and on 
their behalf by their duly authorized officers, all as of the day and date written above. 

(SEAL) 

Attest: 

, 

I --+"-"-'-"'-"""--=.-....,-----"'---'-c--'""'-c---"="____,__,_,=a , J, ·' aura . crneer, 1y ev 

STATE OF IOWA 

COUNTY OF CARROLL 

) 
) ss 
) 

On this J.' 71../'L day of ,ALu. r!. n1...,(!,.(..1t_,, , 2016, before me a Notary Public 
in and for said State, personally appeared Eric P. Jensen and Laura A. Schaefer, to me personally 
known, who being duly sworn, did say that they are the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of 
the City of Cairn 11, Iowa, a Municipality created and existing under the laws of the State of 
Iowa, and that the seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is the seal of said Municipality, and 
that said instrument was signed and sealed on behalf of said Municipality by authority and 
resolution of its City Council, and said Mayor and City Clerk acknowledged said instrument to 
be the free act and deed of said Municipality by it voluntarily executed. 

;(LJ<~,t., ;<_ 1);,~T J 
Notary Public in and for t 7; S~ of Io 

8 

Page 138Page 138Page 138Page 138Page 138Page 138Page 138Page 138Page 138Page 138Page 138Page 138Page 138Page 138Page 138



STATE OF IOWA 

COUNTY OF CARROLL 

) 
) ss 
) 

Developer 

Biokinemetrics Holdings, LLC, an 
Iowa limited liability company 

On this }i!J.,A1f!._ day of mf..L/}1,u;lil'u , 2016, before me the undersigned, a Notary Public 
in and for said State, personally appeared Steven Kraus, to me personally !mown, who, being by 
me duly sworn, did say that they are the Manager and Authorized Signor of Biokinemetrics 
Holdings, LLC, an Iowa limited liability company, and that said instrument was signed on behalf 
of said Company; and that the said Steven Kraus as such officer, acknowledged the execution of 
said instrument to be the voluntary act and deed of said Company, by them voluntarily executed. 

STATE OF row A 

COUNTY OF CARROLL 

) 
) ss 
) 

Notary Public in and for the State oflowa 

DMBA Prope1iies & Consulting, Inc. , 
an Iowa sub-S corporation 

On this j.'J,M.!1!_ day of /J..J,(,t11-Jif,J1v , 2016, before me the undersigned, a Notary Public 
in and for said State, personally appeared Steven Kraus, to me personally !mown, who, being by 
me duly sworn, did say that they are the President and Owner ofDMBA Properties & 
Consulting, Inc. , an Iowa sub-S corporation, and that said instrument was signed on behalf of 
said Corporation; and that the said Steven Kraus as such officer, aclmowledged the execution of 
said instrument to be the voluntary act and deed of said Corporation, by them voluntarily 
executed. 

Notary Public in and for the St7ofow 

9 
Page 139Page 139Page 139Page 139Page 139Page 139Page 139Page 139Page 139Page 139Page 139Page 139Page 139Page 139Page 139



Exhibit A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY 

Certain real property situated in the City of Carroll, County of Carroll, and State of Iowa 
legally described as follows: 

Lots 1, 2, 3, and 4; and the alley between said Lots, 1, 2, and 3, extending from the North 
Line of Fourth Street to the South line of Fifth Street; all in Block 25, Carroll, Carroll 
County, Iowa. 

A-1 

Page 140Page 140Page 140Page 140Page 140Page 140Page 140Page 140Page 140Page 140Page 140Page 140Page 140Page 140Page 140



b:j 
I ...... 

Tll!!IM.....,blhe'l~n 
IN,l,.~. c:i!/,Of'ltr'e 
><elrr.:"t,rr.it-~-~~ 
dr~;.J~Nl'I 
~tlW.-.i::ebJt'lf 
ewg,.- IAft!1%:1.:,: 11 
1111:!'~bl!.M'Oll'!o:".~ 
en , .• r,1ftr'Od.d3i, ~ I:' 
~cl~ 
~ l,l'<fd "-'#!l..-:-O,.~t,io
.rt:t"C~d~ ~:tne!dO 
oc,~ (Cl~~ 
:-:n,-,~&.lw.itinn 
M:NtQ.llC 

BIOKINEMETRICS 

Carroll, Iowa 
10/18/201 6 

NORTH 

~ n 'x1rst1ett 

JOB NO;16085 

simonson 
slmonsan R nssoclotes orchllerts LLC 
1717 in11tnol1 avtnt111 1u lr11 117 dH mcinu I• sn,no 
~nn s1, ,UO 1616 •ww,1i m o n 1onn1oc .com 

to 

Page 141Page 141Page 141Page 141Page 141Page 141Page 141Page 141Page 141Page 141Page 141Page 141Page 141Page 141Page 141



_z,,.,.-. __ . .., ... ..,, .• ,~· :,.::1· .,,,L.,.-• ..,_,,_,.__,___,,._.,._,.__.,.,_ 

~----~ ..... , .•• ~---· 1',;>t,··,·,,,,.,,.,.. J ._,_ ............ -~.......... .... ... ..,,..~.......,._.,.:,, ______ ,,.,..,.. . .,,.,..,..,,,. 

; __ __, 
-..... ~._..,.,. 
,.-: .. ,..~~ 

-~ ..... •---=•,_, _._., ..... ..,,. ... ,.. . .,._, ...... ..,.,_._ 

·~--.. -.. ..,., 
•-·-,~~.,, X 

=<>, .... :oa--.,. 

=·~ ..,.,._., .. , • .,,_,,,._ • ..,..,_.-;....,.. • .,-.z.,1:-1--, 

,- ·•· '-'-".Ck. >••~~•,_ ,,_._,, ,- : • •• ,;,.• 
•• -~---4...........;.;._. t:,:;::,. ._--~:•."'-•=,.·so-: .. 

...... , .. .., ..... -............ , .. • 
-~·=-··- ----» .... ·--· ,., ••• , ••• 

..,.,, ..... .._ .. -·r::t::cr" r····•· ••.• , .;,.,...,.,_ .,e...,~• 

,_.,._._.,.._..__ ...... ,...,..~ ........... ...., ..... ..:... .. ....,._ 
:··~~,,..,, . .,.. • ..,.,c'""'"'"""'· 

"',e.aa.;;==== ·---------· .,~.,,___,___,..........,....,_:,,~~·""'"" ..... ., 
... --~ .~ 

~~~~l••:t•~/~~::~t~~--=::::~~1•~::..~ 

Pli:ms For 

·e10KINEMETRICS 

~-..+±-s: ;----:::.---=~~ ;~,~ 
:,,,~,:,-,-,,,--... - ......... ..,.. •: ~;1: 

-•'-"-•"'-•••:e••---' --.-, •• , •• -•~ ....... ,T'< 

.......... _,.,.,......,._..,.__..,,...,..._~-.....-.••-< 

.,.,..,_.,.,..., .. ,;1,:,.,.,-·y •~< .. :o-....,..,:"'~•"'""""'-•.,. 
,--· ........ ~__,.,..,.. ~•s ••. ~, . ..,.,,,,,.-s,._,_.._.,... ___ .,..l<. 

-···-•-·-·--•··· .• , •. ,.,:, .r.t> .., .._..,~- _..,_......,_.._ ... ___ ,_,.' -,. ~- m,.,.,...,.,..,,.,,...,_,_,,,,...,.,.,.,,._ ... __, .. 
::..-c=~ .. ~•,,.,,=,,,.,._~:..:,-,u""""-=.: 
,._..,,...,L".-,...,,-•-•-l"-•• 

.... ~,,;-~q;:.....J ..... ; ,. ,.i;~t: , .... --;i:<.· 

u..u;;,.,t~~,~ .0 ••Y<.L : 
,~,.,_.. .. ~ ...... -.-.:;,~- """•' T '1-(•l -<:Cl•·• 

~~ ... .,,..~,,.,_._-4 •• :.::;c--tt. ,-✓_.J""'"': -.1.•-,-,>; ,_,.,..., .............. -..-. __ .... -.. ..,_ 
,·,,,,,.1•c;~, . 
... ,. • .,,-;, 7 ~ ..... ,., :;;:..__ 
..,..,_._~ ...... =--. ...... ~.,....;. , . .,._.,,., ' 
;............i:~~~ ... c.-:::·· ' 

-=-=-==~~;.:Lt. - ~=~oc.•=--•--. 
·---··,.,..,. ..... •>•'-"-""(' .,.,...,.,:.,, __ ,.,.._._.,,, •• ,.,.. 
~--, ,,~~., .......... 11-.,,_ ,..,.,.,._,,_,..., .,. ~ ·v • 

- ~- '✓---~ ................. .-. 
..._ ",., . ., .... ,,.~:,; 

~-:;~~~-:~~~::~~ 

211 East 4th St. 
C.arroll, Iowa 

~•:" 1<,,•;J 

,-.:, -- ~-•; 
-·~ ... ~, ........ 

_.,.,..._.,~_,_....,..,..,,r ,.,,...,..., .... -.-::.-,·• 

,~,--....f .. ~·-·--·""" ~ ........... , ..... 

,:.,.-::,--..• 

~~~:: .. ~-

~~~=:...;...,,.,, 
5TIWCTUIUL ENGJJIRR ~,,,._,-____ ..,_,; 

:::. ::-4,o:-- ,_ 

.,,,._._ • ....,._,...,.,.,... ... .,...,. .... ----··-- ~-•,:r ,.._.,......_. ... - ________ ,,,. .... ___ ,~~ 
~----=--..,----"'- ~ 
s-,,y-·••......,C. ... ,.._b,/'ll.l,,Mh.....,,,"="'"""""'"..,..,_...,-_,,., ... h..,_, 

............. T"•"'""~"'·""----··--·.,.-;;::;::;--- .......... 

...... _ • .,,,__,_,..,.._,,._...,._.,.,.. ... ,-.r--...-.... .-... .,.,.. ~--·,,,_.;:_.,,a..,..,._,...,,.. . ...,.,,.,,..,,...,.~,,.._,.>._,..,,. .. _...,..._ .... __________ .._ _____ ... ___ ..,.,_,,... . ____ ,_. .. 

...,,....,.,.,.,., ,.,,. ... ..,,...,,.,_.,.,...,..~ ........ c~""' 

T"">,~••--=><>' •. ...,.._.. • .,.,,......,.,._,,...,.,,, ...• --.w.-.v.......-. ~-.-~..,~• ~,,. ... _,_ ~ ...,.,..,........ ... _....,..,,....., __ _ 
.............. ,..,,,, ........... , .......... ,9- ........ ~ 

:=-:.;=:_;;:••Iv_,.......-""::::.:::::. f'" ...... ..._7..;: -~---. 
;;,;,;._::;...-:~--,,.,~..-. ~,.,,.,......,.._,,.,....,.,i,.1¥~r1><r""'"'' 

·-~-•·----~----·~..,_,_ .............. ~ . ___ ., >g_ ................. _..,...._, ........... -. • .,,...,.... __ ..,,......., 

'}""~---... v._,,..,._,,__..,_~.-.,.. ... o,, __ .,~_ .. 

.,.__..-.,.......---- ... -~-~· ........ ,.., <A.~--
-~ .. ~ ....... ...,=, ... ~ • ....,o,-.:-_=·="'.,,.._-,,............._,... .. ------- ........... -. ... ,.,.._.,. __ .,.... .......... ,..,..~ ... ,,., 
--- """"-'•-«-•<'<--.... -~,,...""""'"•''-="'"""'-•""'--. 
•• ►.-- ... _ ,,. .. ,,.,...,_..., _________ .... _ -~-•---· 
., ..................... .,...,. • .,.,., ....... .,, .... .,.,.....,,...,,..,,~ ----#a 

------~,~~.,,., .... ~-..,.,._._ 

,.,;,,.", ..... ,-..rr-...... ..,,._.,,_.., .. _..,.._....,,...,~~- ... '""~----= 
__ ......., .. .,"'? ............ ,...,.,... 

r..,-.~...,._,,., 
,,-:-:,,-01. .... 1 
""•••~Or.\JI"'";;--~ 

•='"\'<::<~• ...... 
!!:.-,=::.-..-::r,;o.:; 
......... ~.-,;,:-; 
.;:c.r-..-..;~,..,,~=
,,..,,. ...... -... ~-...:o~.r: 

:m\1,fqf,>.A.N, 

•-'M"'-"'-"•f.-•f<.;T,-C:. 
-.;,,.,.r.._-;._-,.,r,...• 

·-~-------·-« _, .... ,_.,. .... ~ .... ---
~ .. ~"1 ... ...-..... .,.,.z.:«•""7~,,..,,,,....,-~ ... .,.... l" 
--------~--~(>"J_,, __ ,,...-.,.-,: .. ,7..,,......_.,....,....,. ____ , 
.... • .... ..., ... ,..... ·--~_....,...,_,_.....,..._,...., ________ .,. ___ ,,_4_..~.-,.. .. _,.,_ • 
......................................... ,_;>.'-< ..... ,., ...... _, 

=..,. ... """"'"'-·--

,_..,., ,~ ,,._~ ... -~•-"« _,. __ ,.,._,.,,..,.......,,.._.,.._, 
e:CP&lnC6&tO .... Mil6THi£Ifl'S5 

-~"~C::--J'- • ..,,..,..~ ... ,...,=---.. _ ... ____ . 
...... 

C 
C 
VI 
C 
C 
E 
VI 

cs 

Page 142Page 142Page 142Page 142Page 142Page 142Page 142Page 142Page 142Page 142Page 142Page 142Page 142Page 142Page 142



;.;~;e-i':!.~Ji~i~~;~;i:';'°;'!,!-:,~~ ... 'JO. Cll<'U._. 

I ., ,,..-., ..,o / <("IJ•U 4'all ! Q-!1,T-•b<':•• tH •ft~" 
•• :;.•~t11 • -.11 I.C"_...:-... ,~.,. •; •••~:u,:;,.,., na:.._..,_._,':,; 
c,_.. • .,u,,·:i co"r.t ""!.., ••.rt• ••,a.,, w:-.co , , ,,.:-:, r:., 
i!"::.".;!.::;:,;;.",!mu.L,c.-c.,.,rr, m . ;«:1,0A:01:JC.11 : • c;11c 

~~~~i~~~~E· 
• ,.;--.,,,t ~._....,..,,.,.., ,0,-,...,n~: · ,......_, 
••:-.. , :,.,i1'V-l)-=o ;:,t,'°,o ,.ws:,:..,.....,,.,cc~•1111..........._,.,,u 

~?ifJ2~t~1?S~l?t~~!i.::1 .. ~:ii.."' 

< C"' " •• ! ~>:. I Cr><.,.o, , r-;.,;,,, ~,:.,,,re;arOl, 
"'' '-""-"'IU:t. • Ql'"".( .. 'f"_.CU-..l~l 

'""17,"l'l. t~•U..1 11"'-L- l '" i:!0•1'_.,.,l!Uh'::l ~ •l!-f t•IC' 
• I UJcl """"~ "•"'=~~._..:, ... :,n::-r•':.-1•1- ..:,cn.• t 

~~1~~!i~?:Y!~~~·.~~~~;~i2f'Zi,~ 
• ••l.'Ylll' 1.;r-: ,u.1" 1-t..,.•::.i:~m~, ...:t ·1,, ; r•w••• "'l'II 
.,,, i;,.,_....,,._.,, _,:ior.,.._11:, ,.; ...:m ni:,n=o.:1c,1c,. 
''""111.~a 
9 ,,r.., .. 1 ... .H. .. 11• ...,, 1 ~= .... 1~ !1/!ll'~i 'ltl 1;011,Uflil) 1(1. 
~ .l..WO;M:.T-¾o:l•'t•ITUt U., , n.:. 

.WALLnre.NOTl!S .. 

• ~ •t&T (>a"t 1 ,:,0i"1. ~ ~•l ~ M :l 'fW"l"lhl~ (.lo,; o U"°l• 
l'IOC:UIIU':t-?T•U : ,:c.1ou,1:U1Wurm:. 

1 .o.i:<.~u..:.,110~ .. •u.n~u :,..,;;::i L-.r.-< ~•"r.r .. ,u 

:i2~--;1r~ .... tl~.~;'~~'7~~~T.!:i .. ~~!:r· 
1 , .::,.,0, , ... ,,.,,.. ~.-...::-:,,,u, u•u, c,:,,, .-:.-,, r:u•1u..-ror.i 

.. ~ t .. f ooc,,:,wo ,....,;.oou,~?!c•\:,;;>tton'lllrir.:t~:.ti i 
~'t"~~~~ ... 1 : r ... ;:.o• ~ - ,r.a:oi. • -...:1.:Li:ru ....... ll 

• ""c,,c.f ""'Cl>•lfV.O:~t>. 'Jl:• n ~•.:.. u 1, ,.i:.,. , 1,t~\f~ 
c ., • • .,.u,. •a...,uo,:, , • ...,,.~ .... ~ """c<.::,i:,o•u. (1r-:,,,,,; ,.,.,_ •• ;.. 

"-~ ~ .....n•• t1m""t"- .,..,,..,~ ,1u 1 11i:. 

JU U1t,n,~u ~ o .1~.,... 
:tvr11.:.rr~,..,. 

.,, :,.,;:r,o..,. c11: •~ 
... ~ ... Un .,.,.,l'll"' 
---•,:.,, ... ,.,, 

:,, :-11:.::iwo.:..-,.,J1-:-r '°!'t":.,..,n 
ac;o1><1•1••1n,•Jnr.,,:,,lu.,1 1,:~,.,~ ,;r,,,r~1. •,,:,vt:f • i:Ar; iL 
.,,.,. , .. ~-: •.u,~ c ,.,,..:,.,.n 
10<.Afl:,,~ , r .. li"(~llJ..._,. ~I~ 
"'-' IW (IJ• l l.,_~. 

' - .. ,- .-
::.ur, :,:c,.-:i~ 'NltO:-'"'-''""'" 
v.>....:r r • t• flWI_. ,,:.,_,.,,_.,~ ..,,,~ ~T 
c ,o w r.i r• su1.,-,-:.~·o• ..-....,_n,11 .,~ ,.,,. , ,c._1-., ..... , 
l=t:o"'"'U'"'""' ' "n:oo.:wL .... UI 
n;JU,.;\;llfl.JIW.il. 

, .... t i . 

.., 
Ill'" 
:5 ~ 
"'.2 _...,. ,,,_ 
"'0 w I: -.. -t.i 
N 

11UI nul 
:;,,..;1~; --

fLDOal'UNI 

A1 .1 

Page 143Page 143Page 143Page 143Page 143Page 143Page 143Page 143Page 143Page 143Page 143Page 143Page 143Page 143Page 143



• ' 

r . , 

~ 
~ 
I 
il 

ii 1 

WI 
- ·=• ··) I .-... ! 

le==~--'-c£o
1 I 

~~;;;~::. ~--"';·~--·~-···~-,;'~;: . .Jl,_._·n,!. 
. ,t'J.;,,. 

~·llaJ'L.ECnYECEWNG.MOT!l 

::::·:T~J;;:·.-~~:: _: ::~ ·.;0 

0,:.-•·.-;:1?·:..:---:.::-'=--:""~~,,.=4 

:r~~~-~;;~~.;..,;n,=,.,.!~....:...._,;,,,r.:; ... ,fi••••~l'll.lO.., 

_CliJLINr..L£c.8iD 

.... ,..,,_, __ _ 
•1-?'.,.t• 

• 

HO«TH 

!":'·~ "" unat.LD'EL~ .u .. ,.,,. .. ,~- ~PLAN, 

C: 
0 

"' ·c:. 
0 

rn 
E 

.vi .. 

ti) 
u 
ii: ~ 
I- ·wco 
w -5~ 
:e ... 2 

-== w ,., 0 

z w::: 

i: -"' _u 
0 

N 

m 

A.1.2 

"tj-
I 

~ 

Page 144Page 144Page 144Page 144Page 144Page 144Page 144Page 144Page 144Page 144Page 144Page 144Page 144Page 144Page 144



~ 
w 

~I 
,. ,. 
'~ 

"i 

II 

1 

1p :i, 
Wj,: 
ti: 
H, 
r-fi I,, 
"I 

t l q 

~· 

1l I lf ~(:;::'::,·.:":::=::~-- .. ./;;;;U .. 

J a,1 
< 

Q ... ,,~ • 

t·;,•;· 

~;.::••:·.;\ 
y "i 

,, .r, 

I! ... 
Ii 

i1 

l~!!ij!!! 

n 
'~i 
; 

'':) 
" 

-
,I ~Iii 

BIOKINEMETRICS 
211 Ea~t 4th St. 

Carroll, low.a • 

B-5 

.., 
!· > 
" 

.... ---~,'.!!-'. 

'-t' 

! 
' 

.. :c, 

simonson 
! lll'!lll~lff~ Jl 11unnbrn ~llhltUII ltt 
'. .. ,, ....... :,.,.,,.,, ,.,,,,.,,,.,, .. ,., .. 
''"' 1, .... ,,,,t .,,,,.,.,-,,,,;,:,,• 

Page 145Page 145Page 145Page 145Page 145Page 145Page 145Page 145Page 145Page 145Page 145Page 145Page 145Page 145Page 145



• rMIU"CTHT 
'I !l(Jq 

EllTR1PARAl'1;T 

•"" nrr 1,1 

t,, P~ UT . ""' 

U)WW"ll tl'Vfl 
• r 1.O011PU1N . ~ 

• 10\'I PMAP!i ltfT 
• ll'-G" 

BIOIJl~Ell."1ETRlGS 
" - • - ··-·-····· . •. ···- ·-···- ·-··-····•- ··- - --- - ··---- -·-· ·-·····-····- ····-··-

I I 

-----------·-··- - --

~UT, nr:V~JMl,IJ!INO " ·-··-----

• •ui..-.,o..:.i:, rzy..14..-r-r:"•c•r~ ,.,,.11..,.,0-, ,.,,_ 
"'••• , o:ir.1.M11<•~ - ............. ~ . ...... ,,.,.._,,, 

1 .. , ....... ,..,,,1 .. ·-·~---•~1~00•·• ~ 11 • 
•• .., ...... 1:_,.,, ,,.>or,,u,,,r_,_..,..,""° 
-:,....a.- -l'•••l."'OL-Utt..__,.,a i.,:tuu', 
"-U'L:..'11•...:..-
, .... .., ...... ,:;G,\ .. "'°f.';C ... . .:o.:;-..;•-·• l- • tf 
$1.,.,.,..,..,_ ,_,.., _,f;l'?gllOIA<:(lfff,l;l'..:<,l;,o;:;ll'JI 
.. 1..,•-:-:.0,_ 

' ''"'"'"'"'._.., ......................... _., ...... ,, 
~ :. ~,c, -.• -i.~c,:,o- ... ~-.,,;,oo: 
, , .... .._ ... ",, , ... --. .. - 0 .., •• , ..... -o:1 
Jlll-"1• ... -•al'3 .. U..:C11M);(llo;.u,o,.1.-::, ..... ....,._, , _ _,._ ,,_,,-c•
-•cv-,,r_ 
l~•• "'-"..., ,-.,-....,,.i~r..._1.,..u 
L!IL- ,_IL-.:0 

=.~=~~:.-.•:;.::-1:-~~!.'f" 
T ... o-u1:,,,,uac,-~,=.,.,,, .. r..c. c~--
• ..,,.,.,,,..,._..,,..,.., ., , ... -e • ..... ......, .. -.,. 
.;,:,,. ...... :---•-,t;...,.,_.u i:11:'11::r.t. 

, • • ,.,v.....i.:.tO"i-=. .. ~ ul.-C:t'l'tlltl•CO\ 
;:'c',;';";".:.,.~:,.j~;z;z~~u .. _ 

_a lll\l&illUfflUG 
.. ;:,.,-

UT&aiCNI MATIUUA.L r...u.utO 

MATCIUA.L DIKAll'TIOll 
MATca.&&.Ll•,OllMATION 

C: 
0 
VI 
c:: 
0 
E 
'i:ii 

i,...,,-

UTUIO,I 

wm""" 

A2.1 

"° I 

co 

Page 146Page 146Page 146Page 146Page 146Page 146Page 146Page 146Page 146Page 146Page 146Page 146Page 146Page 146Page 146



twr .,., ~ -l .. -•; 
, .......... ,,~, 1...c,, 
"'='~ ... ,.:, ' 
'l"O,. ..... , , .. ~· · ... 
~ •LCU,,,~--, 

: ir.-.. u':".,.U 

..... , .,,,.1,, 
"''"U""• 

, ,.:-i... ,iu,,.,.. ____ ......_ __ ___ _ 

-- w- ~,.r •nr_a.,.~;.o.• r,~t,,u, ... ,,0.0,, l• •u . 
""'"' l f> IP_,..::,o•o•'l •~--:c.=,n.1 ~•-.c1, 

w.: .. .,....., , ,,,:,"'• .. ,. 
u,:-.i.u •a -,...,...sc. 
..,..,nU:C#• n 
..-..nc,,, --·-----·-

i ..- .:.-Kune-.,~~
" ~:.o•••nw.:i :i1t• • .i. 
o,,i,,n,n, _,o rio::11 
l• l:'..!Ut!(fa;oi-.1; 

;TIU.KMl llllS1 ... ;Y; ------

I NQTI!., 

lfci,,;;:~~~!~.';'~i!~~~i'M~:~~~;~ 
! W'IJtr,m;:-.,~:,:~n &Nr«,ier,ou,..;i ,.-:TC:-'1tQIIU, 

fl> 
(.) 

~ 
1-w 
== w 
z 

- ~ 

iii 

.., 
IJl .. 
:5 3: ... .s 
-..: 
:'JO 
wt: 
:: ~ 
"' 

·····-·····-··-·-·-······.~-~--,· ,. A3.1 

i:---
1 

p::i 

Page 147Page 147Page 147Page 147Page 147Page 147Page 147Page 147Page 147Page 147Page 147Page 147Page 147Page 147Page 147



,.,.,.,>'la· .... -~ ....... .,,, 
·' .,•.--........ ...,~,. .. . 

x.~ ........ - .. ✓• .• ,, .. ~ ••. 

••. .,,._.~tmr,,r••=;~.., 
~-:-:,f,~..,.~ :·.-~1,;,.;,, 
-''-~----~·- .~. 

•ee,,-:m,~ ... ,·:1;· ., •• ~ 
, ...... :,d;-~-,. •• -..-., 
~--~<;;u,,-,,,;,· ... ,..:,,:,,· 
-.f.1 .. 1,· .:r·• 
f..1L--,.;-,,t 1/ .• ~ .. 
,,. • .,,,.~,,..,. . .,..,,,r•w,,r 

?:--S:""'C•~;;.-v,-.,·,,:,;~ 

:~ -?:· J ·-~~ ..... .:.;:,, 

:-.~•r~~::.1 . .-...:.-ri::~f., 
..,_••l•.H • 

~-- ..... -v .. , ... -d½ ... r. 

.{.,,O,f ir,,~ .. ...,...~, .... . 
''!.ll,,., .... ~=..,,::,.;•,. .... _ 

~ 

= ~r-~•••a·a:v•• 
,.,-~ •• <e•~-;; ·: 

•••t.,:,,u,.. , ,.:,. .. ~.=~~...,_ , ......... , .... ,,., .. ,,,.., 

• ..... -.,~ .~ .... ~ .• ., ..... u 
~."'" -.,,_,.,to:,,.~._.,_ .. , l. , .• ,. 
.~t·· ·,~. • .......... ·•n~c., ._,,.,............. . 

p 

·,W.U.UCTION 
~~·.,.• ._,. 

..,.,~ - .,.,-. • •. y .. • 

.,,,.,..~..-.<,:.··."•..-,,•l.-'" 
•- .• -.. .. ~ ••. ,. .. , - -.~'!

"''" ·'""'"'"> r,r,,:, .. ,_ ... ,..;, ................ , ..... .... 
:.~••~,: ........ , ' ~ ... 
,,,.1,,._~~""7n,-:, 
,.,_ .. ;-.,:~•.;:.•:..-u,t•.~ 
:-v••n .. ce•tJO'---~; 

~·;:'."<\-~•;~~->- -.. -:-. 

.... ,,..,.. ,,,.,.,,. . .,,.~ .... ~ ................................ 
,.:,.,-,v,i;,:r.:i,~·,h 

•:.:::.£.":~~> >A; 

; ·.·, .. ~~.::-.t• 
.... -.~-:... •<; 
....... ,., ... ;,...-; 
.. =~"-"' 

••:-;n.-,.,,,..,·.tc--,;~ 
............. , .... , ... , .. ,< 
"''-•"'·,,;or·•·~'"·•~• -.., • .v, .... ,.,.... .. ,..,... 
'""'t• ,,,, ... ~ ... _,_,,-·t• 
,· •. -~r,, • .:.::,~.~-,,~, ... 
• .,..,r,.;,,•••1,,. 

"f'~:>'/.t<l.O:-»-:; 

-:c•,;.,;t~•· .. •><L 
. ~ .. ,:,.,;-r.;r..-r-;r11,· 

::-::_::-: ____ ;---:::;:."=.'.iJ 
'~ ............. ,......,... 

'Jmi''lt>O:•(;)::i: 

.. ..7..:...'.L...r.::.. 

'"'""l"{l•·.c 

F•;•<1<:W.l••JtY1,,>fs. . .-•~1,<.·v 
~,:-,.• "'":.;'"-'""'" l,-,,,.,,.,,,_..,_._,..,_-.,~,;,l.4l. ~-.. ·• . 
.......::r•,.;,;:t7'1:r • ..-. 

••'>!l<I•~, ..... :.,. ,....,_ .... .,>,1.,., 
"'· ·•. ~., .... ,u..... ••t..~ 
a•~.:w,,-. ... ::;•c<.a•c.L'~"-' 
'"··=••C""""··•<1h""'•• 

~~~~:~~~:~~~.: .. :~ 

,/'._->•("-{'Wf>,~•1 -------

0 

... ~::,"""'<C'~ .. 
•t,;.,.-..;-.,;-,n,..,,.,.,._v* ~·-..,,,,,,._., ..•. ,., ... , .. ~,,.;· .,: .... :,• .. .,,. 
•"·''"·":!"·/~ 
. ,., .. ,,·•lit;: -:, ... ,r,.,, ........ •~.,.,_.,;-
t•...,,.,., • .,, ~,• . ..,!, 

=;;:::=;:::::;;:;::::;=:'!:cl 

~•••r > f',·,,lll:l.• 
,. ..... ,,~u•nv-..,~ 
-r,,, .. ,,,,.i,,,•,,-,,:. 
~;~,., 1,i.,~!~~•>H 

.• 

-. 

t..,,.,~l1:~"l:'. 

.?1:1~;..'!c;•c.''---'~---1-~. 

!.'f"•,-,....,..'!1.•C,;,-C ... ,, ..... ,, .. _ .. ,,,., 

-'" 

ii' i; 

' : ' 

' 
. 

;z,....,.r:.irx;::,-::.. - • 

.............................. ,.,.,.,.,._ . .,, 

. ~-.. .... ,. .. , x . 

,,;v,:o~.••.•~L•"'...;:>' 
,,:..;r:, .. ::. 

9u:• 
·ii 

~ 

0 

.:,~:t:CTION 
:~.:a.1·..;. 

;. .... ~ •.• ,. .... .,...;..,.,.~~--..,~ ... ':--v:-
-.-,:,. .• ,.,;,·,~;,._••.l , .. _ .. ~~,_. •• ••.•.,; 
I "\.-.,.~,..,,,.:,__.-....,., ... ~,.....;.. ..... •re>·,. 

.•. .... , •. ,., • *'-.. ,- :«., .. ..,;,,: 
•Jt,~[_.,.._:c,.,1..,,._~.,~~._1,,,..-!_»><•>l<.1.L ', .......... .,...~,..rn,...., ,.._.,~.,,.,,_. .. G.t 
1-:-~~v; ••er:-....-..:;~~~;.,_.,.;"-",-:..-...... 
-»··,., .. ,~.~" .. ,t ...... 

.,_._.,..,<,...,...,- .•. Yr;..< 
,_,_. •• .,. :-.,~ .... ,,.r.~t· ·. ·~~,_.. ... _,,,_,_,.,r~, ..... ,. 

1,-.: ...... ,.,_._.,.ia,..·:,-.· 
-- ,p,, .... ,,;,, .. « 
.,,••"~••H• •~·"""~~••'.; 
-~r•f'''-'~" ,, ;.-.,•.! "·"-"' 
• . ..-v...-,·.,,.. "'' .: 
., .. ,, ... ~,,.,..M,,.::,,;,, 
I.,,-..-~ .. ~"'•• ... 

.1.; .. o .. :•..:n-" ·-~~-·,· ...... ~.,-•-,, .... 
"""'-?.;...;C ,.,:H;( 
ni-::,,.,·,.-:i.-::-w<:>. 
•• ~-,,,,,~;,..-ic:~ ~= 

... ,.(~-..-.._,_,.,;-.::r. .. ._:.._ .......... :,:,...7-.,,~,~,;--.,, ........ 
,.,. ... , ... ,. ••... ,. w . .,..,.,;.,.-,...,. 
•C'.;>H•·.~ .. .,..,q;,;•a,,~~O'>;:t..,..;;."'( ..;,..;..~,:.;,:~ 

-,~,.. ........ ,· > 

w.w.ucno.s 

A3.2 

00 
I 

o::l 

Page 148Page 148Page 148Page 148Page 148Page 148Page 148Page 148Page 148Page 148Page 148Page 148Page 148Page 148Page 148



...... -~-s 
"1:-:,•tJ' 

-'~"':..;,. ... ~ .... 
~:j:~u,;:;.,-n<.-i:..• 

.Jr-.I.;·----~--,~_. _ _._ _ _._-1~F=-,.,,;.-.. -"---'~-----!~~:;~~ 

........ ..,. . ...,. .. .,.,,._,,._,._ . ........ ~_ ... ..-,:,~ 

F 

,;~•:-ff"-""""'~ .. -,,,,, 

• ;"':'✓..-f~,...:-·:.-:;·.:~-:~.,. •. ··:c--::~ u.~ 

~~=~t!~i~o:Z-)-:~ 

' 
:,.P.-["'!!,_':l'-"-,:.1--~,-.:, II. 

J.ftAU.Sl!i:;_nDII 
~ .. ~~-~ 

... ~,,,,--,,, .. 0,,, ........ 

,,i::-'~---·''i1~·'"" 
:..;:~l~--~ ... _:: • .. . 
'Q',,,._,-n, .... . 

~ -..~,-.... ·,.•,... . ·,u,.:-_,. .•. -, •. ~-,, 

" :~~'.1~:::•~.~>,~::;.:~M"'' 
: iii~:£~:.:2:~~:::~:;: 

= ;~~:-~_,;j.~«.! ~•'1~-~~ 

,.,,.,.~ •. l~•- .... 
.JO.-,:~·•;,., ;-; •. ltl; 

"<>•<.<•;.~-rt •.::.«,·,.,.,_~- :r, 

.• '>,c~,,..;.s,fl. ';"."}' 

{~..,.__;._,1•:;..;J·r··· 

.. ,., 
;;:1<1:-(::~•!•"t;_~~,..,,,-- ":' . .i~:-=:•-~--.,z,~-~ 
:.,...><!.'<C(V!.'.1.••-~ 

..,.,~,.->. "'.._:.r., -
,.:-:,,,._.e:...•.• .. , ..... 

A3.3 

0\ 
I 

i:o 

Page 149Page 149Page 149Page 149Page 149Page 149Page 149Page 149Page 149Page 149Page 149Page 149Page 149Page 149Page 149



.. . -r. : I'.' . • 
;.-. , . ... • f .. ; ; 

j · !:1 ' 

1;;7: zl [:'5?~ ,J 
..,, ,.,~.,,01!. •<> u,._.,,.,r., .. ,,.., ., ,,,,. .. ,1..,.,,.,, , , ,. r,,., ,o 
1, w,,.:r.= .,-:-- ....,N1rn:: .. 1; ..::r..., t ::1.~ .... -, 
..ru,h ~ .....,,e ..-r • '-'•l 1.....,.1~•1ca.,,o , r-,u , 

' '. ' 
t- ---j I 

,:;~, 
•l •~ .'~;.~~.C~.C~ f' D~_IU 

, •Jt. , 

.. 
hJU •• • • u,,· .. , .. 

............. .. "'. 

~ ;•:~. "· ~ 
~-'-''i':,; 

,, • JLI] 
(c) 

~/1,°.rr:::ro.• .&Ulllli'.ACMING -~------

< 

(a) 

,, ' 
),"' I Mi•-,• 
1- ,;....1 .~ J 

t ~'= "=;= ===!= 

MC11J • ••""""'"'' " 
~ V~•,.o;;q., , 
u ;~.,..,~~..:,:,.11 

=-.rOl' ••:·11 -:-1":JII .. :,.,,, ; 
~ ... , .... ~,..i, ~u,,u~, ... ~ 

.,,~r><1.1,1:c~t ~ •4'1M l 

" C.'1 • • ~ W:,1.U_ lf ••"1L • • Df 
~ r..ot ..,.;c,c..r.t 

::::-:,:gg:~:::;...•w• 
-=--:1.1.1:;.£!.!1~~-.••:-.or ·· 

- ~ "''1-''""•·a 
0.:.,,,- fuL'IS 

' :'_ -e~~ ~.TY~'!Q.trM;s: ___ ~-· 

j~J~~ 
,2£."!1- , 

,.., ot, 11 1,,_, .. _:,., 111'a. ,. ,:11ur,V • 
1;:,,;u, u ....,u,""'• l<>'I T....:i ... u u:,,o;o! 

A., ~i'~.~'!.: Cll..U •rrrtta 

.. ; .. .- ... .... :~ 
' 

QUIUIAl.flUlllOOMNOJU ... _ ____ _ 

1.:~1~~~•l~c::i~~;uo,..o,u:o:p,,uf7-'lu_..,11:,1~ 

~:~~t4~•~~~.r,-~~;;:1~~,';~~.r:~i;:;;0 
> ., , H l -11<:'Wl ~ ..... , ~ 1.;:,: ,i ,._ .. , n ... ,, , u:,: ..... -.o,,<l,, -
>•"'-"""'1.•~•11r •1,.,_..,t1r. • 1; ,.,.,,.,,..,r.:.u,o,~...,~•-1.:. ~· 
, ,-7--.,;u••1t..1XMo(j 1,:9..,_1~::i-•~ur11"lll~~111•r 

~ Ml~T;,l'l l'e'hA~~:U Uil'.J ,;,.-,~.,~ W.TIJI MIU;:·; I <l,l l c.«fJTI.Q.: 

:.r-, ,-, ocn,:.;i,,u -.•:, ... , 
,-~-- :, □ - .. 

»._, .. . . ,. 
l • • .,! I l i,. 

' I 
• ~-q- ~ 

~;:~,~i\-hr-:. : 
~ 

Cl) 
0 
iii: .., 

en "' I- £i it w 
== 

.... .Q 
-...: 

w 
.., _ 

z ~g 
i2 :: ~ 
0 

N 

iii 

... 
- ·~TKA0011 

PLAKl&&nA 
CLE.UANCEJ 

A4.1 

0 ...... 
I co 

Page 150Page 150Page 150Page 150Page 150Page 150Page 150Page 150Page 150Page 150Page 150Page 150Page 150Page 150Page 150



., s.....,r,ouA 
~ t.;.•' ,.,:-

.... •---•~---·· 

. Zl....tr-1F 
• - ,q·=-~·-c. ·- $lclRl..,•l·F1 

:~ :-::-, 1 G'" 

..... ,.., .. ,c 
,.,-~---:·;_t-

DOOll& FRAIIESCMEJUU. 

~DOOIU.J"KAIIENOTD 

% , • • • .... •:•,.-• ..,,•·. • ,· ''°"""''••·"'• -~•·<-' •·""'-"'••'-•"'-... n..:.,1 :,,<,~:.<IT'.> 
...-.:.u.•-:-,. ,,.z•'-><H~G.._•'""1n•.:...,.,,, ....... 

-~; :::.. ·r.! <:-.,·-;.';:.:::.-~<. ~+ 7.:.:. .. 7••:>"J-•:J.U<:-.'<"J 

:.:~:;;;~::r::,;:,~=;,7;~~;~~~::~~~:~~ .~~•~t•7~~~.li•ID. 

,.""';,;,.,.•c h-;-.,tAt,.-. •. ,:. -......,_; ;~ .• •.L!o~ , .• l ·t•., ... -.:,~o;:.-._~~ . .~ 

•. H, ..... ~.:;.·l-tl.-."X . .! .. ~<::OUll .• .:,,t(.'"•'•'l/1(•'>,.•:i;;,~.~--" 

o ,i.:,-,;o_,., 1/ '' • Cj ;,,,.,_ .. ,r.~,,••~--•,--r,., 
·"'•• ~L ~I,,' :,,., .. ~,. 1W !,•.,,<•l.l,"'b,.c .~W!<t:" ';.l c,_-..,., >'""'!. ~...-;<•.•.··.;r. J.,,_,..,,, ....... u ... u,.,, ~<:A·~,.,:,.,..,---...,..· 4-7".,·•-,,,n,,.,,:· 1·••• 

.,~,•,1.• ,:r-,·,1•~ ~,._, :l t~t"'.0'S:~4t,<;.<..--:., ?1..IT;,,.,: ... ·;:~r."'I ..._-.,..;:..:.:,,:,;.~ 
•· ,v,, .... ,,.r,1. ,•,t~,_,.,,,. • .,.,~ 

'.,,.,.~ ••• ..,_,,, •• J<O ..... _,.,.._. .. ,,.., ... ,..,. _ ...... ,-,><(~o--._.,:..r~•--~ 
-:>"•"-'IJ:r.;: .. ..,..~~-c.,.__..,_ ..... ,. 
• ~;.~::,_,.:,.,.;.,. :,•a.;.;,•;,.!.Ojj-,.._:_.._,.....,..,_--.-; •. ><'T X-'<!-~""••·~:,.,.._,::,,;; 

;.i::;:=;-;,:-:i;.:-;-~;· -:~-,;,>;;~n.~.,~~ -~·--•-~. '"-'•~• ....... 
~ n,,.-,1,<1••---· _,_,,,w .-·v--:,_.,,...._.,,.,~,.,•.,..t ,:f<f1._.,.._,~~• 
:-,f ~·~~•r,,,..:<<;,s~P:';;.~~-.... 1.<a,>~·.1.>t;i,.J,rC ...S:-.:..u1.:.,. 

~ ...... ..-.~ ,_.,.,,~.,;, ..,,_,_ • ..,,t:;,.,.<.<....,_.,,.,c;;. =~-,.,,...,~£"'"'.-c,e~ 
...... ,;,,. .. <-,•,•,;· 

er, 
u 
ii: ui ~ t-, 

.£:;;:: w -o 
.:: 

,.._ _ __,. 

w 
.,_ 
"'0 z wl: 

Si: -"' -u. 
0 "' m 

..... no, 

~DOOJl,l.f00$H 

~= 
A6.1 

...... ...... 
I 

i:q 

Page 151Page 151Page 151Page 151Page 151Page 151Page 151Page 151Page 151Page 151Page 151Page 151Page 151Page 151Page 151



EXHIBIT C 

FORM OF ANNUAL CERTIFICATION 
(DUE ON OR BEFORE OCTOBER 15 EACH YEAR) 

WHEREAS, the City of Carroll, Iowa (the "City") and Biokinemetrics Holdings, LLC, an 
Iowa Limited Liability Company DMBA Properties & Consulting, Inc., an Iowa Sub-S 
Corporation (collectively the "Developer") did on or about the_ day o_f ______ _ 
2_917, make, execute and deliver, each to the other, a Development Agreement (the 
"Agreement"); and 

WHEREAS, the Agreement obligated the Developer to undertake the Project (as defined 
therein), and incorporated and contained certain covenants with respect to the operation and 
employment thereof, and as such the Developer hereby certifies the following: 

NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to the Agreement, this is to certify the following: 

(A) As of the date hereof, there are __ full-time employees working at the Project located 
on the Property. 

(B) The undersigned has reviewed the Agreement and with the exception of those items 
attached hereto, certifies all warranties, covenants and provisions of the Agreement have been 
and continue to be complied with, and that no events of default have occurred which could cause 
the Agreement to be terminated. • 

[If an event of default has occurred or is occurring, attach hereto a description of the action 
Developer has taken to remedy such event of default.] 

Signed this ____ day of _________ , 20_ 

BIOKJJ,rnivIBTRICS HOLDI.l'JGS, LLC 

By:---------

Title: ----------

DMBA PROPERTIES & CONSULTING, INC. 

By: _______ _ 

Title: _________ _ 

C-1 

Page 152Page 152Page 152Page 152Page 152Page 152Page 152Page 152Page 152Page 152Page 152Page 152Page 152Page 152Page 152



 

City of Carroll  

627 N. Adams Street       Carroll, Iowa 51401           (712) 792-1000           FAX: (712) 792-0139 

 

 

  

 MEMO TO: Aaron Kooiker, City Manager  

 FROM: Laura A. Schaefer, Finance Director/City Clerk 

 DATE: November 7, 2023 

 SUBJECT: BTC, Inc. (Western Iowa Networks) 

• Annual Tax Increment Finance Appropriations Resolution for FY 2025 

 

On October 12, 2020, the City entered into a development agreement (the “agreement”) with BTC, 

Inc. (dba Wester Iowa Networks) (the “Developer”). The agreement required the developer to 

construct a 37,427 square foot building, construct and install underground storm water improvements 

along Market Drive and employ a monthly average of at least 23 full-time equivalent employees. In 

exchange, the City will provide a tax increment grant equal to the incremental property tax revenues 

generated and paid by the developer in an amount certified by the Developer equal to the cost to 

construct the storm water improvements of $172,394.12. The agreement details the grant to be paid as 

six (6) consecutive semi-annual payments ($28,732.36) beginning December 1, 2023. 

 

The agreement also provides a provision that each tax increment grant shall be subject to annual 

appropriation by the City Council. Prior to December 1 of each year, during the term of the 

agreement, the City Council shall consider the question of obligating to fund the tax increment grant 

to be collected in the next fiscal year. 

 

“Annual appropriations” is common language in development agreements of this type in Iowa and 

without this language the City would be required to count the total amount of the grant against the 

City’s debt obligations and constitutional debt limit.  While this language allows the current and future 

City Councils to choose to not appropriate funds for this grant in the future without any recourse from 

the Developer, such an action does carry consequences for the City.  If the Council would choose to 

not appropriate funds, the City’s bond rating would likely change to “junk status.”  In the end, the 

City’s ability to borrow funds could be affected, and if the City were able to borrow funds, then the 

City would likely be hammered with a higher interest rate that could cost the City more in the end than 

the grant payments themselves.    

 

The developer has certified completion of the construction of the building, construction and 

installation of the underground storm water improvements and a monthly average employment of at 

least 23 full-time equivalent employees, as required by the agreement.  

 

On October 13, City staff requested from the developer additional information to confirm the jobs 

created. On October 16, Kevin Skinner, BTC, Inc. CFO, provided a payroll report which shows the 

employees with hours worked during the pay dates 11/14/2022 to 10/16/2023. 

 

The attached resolution appropriates the tax increment finance (TIF) revenue to be collected in FY 

2025 related to this project to be paid to the developer and to account for this in the FY 2025 budget. 

FY 2025 is the second year of annual appropriations. 
Page 153Page 153Page 153Page 153Page 153Page 153Page 153Page 153Page 153Page 153Page 153Page 153Page 153Page 153



 

RECOMMENDATION: Council consideration and approval of the resolution obligating funds from 

the Westfield Urban Renewal Tax Revenue Fund for appropriation of the payment of the tax 

increment grant to BTC, Inc. for FY 2025. 

Page 154Page 154Page 154Page 154Page 154Page 154Page 154Page 154Page 154Page 154Page 154Page 154Page 154Page 154



RESOLUTION NO. _____________ 

Obligating funds from the Westfield Urban Renewal Tax Revenue Fund for 

appropriation to the payment of annual appropriation tax increment 

financed obligations which shall come due in the next succeeding fiscal year 

WHEREAS, the City of Carroll, Iowa (the “City”), pursuant to and in strict compliance 

with all laws applicable to the City, and in particular the provisions of Chapter 403 of the Code 

of Iowa, has adopted a Westfield Urban Renewal Area (the “Urban Renewal Area”); and 

WHEREAS, this Council has adopted an ordinance providing for the division of taxes 

levied on taxable property in the Urban Renewal Area pursuant to Section 403.19 of the Code of 

Iowa and establishing the fund referred to in Subsection 2 of Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa 

(the “Urban Renewal Tax Increment Revenue Fund”), which fund and the portion of taxes 

referred to in that subsection may be irrevocably pledged by the City for the payment of the 

principal and interest on indebtedness incurred under the authority of Section 403.9 of the Code 

of Iowa to finance or refinance in whole or in part projects in the Urban Renewal Area; and 

WHEREAS, the City has agreed to make semi-annual payments which shall come due in 

the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023, under the Development Agreement dated October 12, 

2020 (the “Agreement”) between the City and BTC, Inc., equal in amount to 1/6 of the public 

improvement costs ($172,394.12) of the Incremental Property Tax Revenues (as such term is 

defined in the Agreement) received by the City during such fiscal year in respect of the Project 

(as such term is defined in the Agreement) (the “Annual Semi-Payment”), up to the amount of 

the Maximum Grant Total described in the Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Development Agreement requires the Developer to retain a monthly 

average of at least 23 full-time equivalent employees. On October 16, 2023, the Developer 

certified a monthly average of at least 23 full-time equivalent employees (see attached Exhibit 

E); and 

WHEREAS, it is now necessary for the City Council to obligate for appropriation to the 

Annual Payment, funds anticipated to be received in the Urban Renewal Tax Increment Revenue 

Fund in the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024; and  

WHEREAS, the City Clerk is directed to certify the amount obligated for appropriation 

to the Annual Payment, funds anticipated to be received in the Urban Renewal Tax Revenue 

Fund, to the County Auditor by December 1, 2023, of debt payable from the Urban Renewal Tax 

Increment Revenue Fund in the amount of $57,464.71. 

NOW, THEREFORE, It Is Resolved by the City Council of the City of Carroll, Iowa, as 

follows: 

Section 1. The City Council hereby obligates a portion of the said Incremental 

Property Tax Revenues so received as described in the preambles hereof for appropriation from 

the Urban Renewal Tax Revenue Fund to the Semi-Annual Payment in the fiscal year beginning 

July 1, 2024. 

Page 155Page 155Page 155Page 155Page 155Page 155Page 155Page 155Page 155Page 155Page 155Page 155Page 155



Section 2. The City Clerk is hereby directed to certify the amount obligated for 

appropriation in Section 1 above, on the City’s December 1, 2023 certification of debt payable 

from the Urban Renewal Tax Increment Revenue Fund and to reflect such amount in the City’s 

budget for the next succeeding fiscal year. 

Section 3. All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 13th day of November, 2023. 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE  

CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA 

Mark E. Beardmore, Mayor 

Attest: 

Laura A. Schaefer, City Clerk 

Page 156Page 156Page 156Page 156Page 156Page 156Page 156Page 156Page 156Page 156Page 156Page 156Page 156



Execution Version E-1 

EXHIBIT E 

DEVELOPER ANNUAL CERTIFICATION 

(due by October 15th, or in the case of the first Annual Certification, by the 15th day of the 15th month 

following a certificate of occupancy, as required under terms of Development Agreement) 

BTC, Inc. (the “Developer”) certifies the following: 

During the time period covered by this Developer Annual Certification, Developer is and was in compliance 

with Section 5.6 of the Agreement as follows: 

(i) All ad valorem taxes on the Development Property in the Westfield Urban Renewal Area have been 

paid for the prior fiscal year (and for the current year, if due) and attached to this Developer Annual 

Certification are proof of payment of said taxes; 

(ii) The Minimum Improvements were first fully assessed on January 1, 2023, at a full assessment 

value of $5,361,360, and are currently assessed at $5,361,360; 

(iii) The number of Full-Time Equivalent Employment Units employed at the Minimum Improvements 

as of October 1, 2023 and as of the first day of each of the preceding eleven (11) months were as 

follows: 

October 1, 2023 30 April 1, 2023 30 

September 1, 2023 30 March 1, 2023 31 

August 1, 2023 31 February 1, 2023 32 

July 1, 2023 29 January 1, 2023 32 

June 1, 2023 29 December 1, 2022 31 

May 1, 2023 28 November 1, 2022 31 

 

(iv) the undersigned officer of Developer have re-examined the terms and provisions of this Agreement 

and that at the date of such certification, and during the preceding twelve (12) months, certify that 

Developer is not, or was not, in default in the fulfillment of any of the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement and that no Event of Default (or event which, with the lapse of time or the giving of 

notice, or both, would become and Event of Default) is occurring or has occurred as of the date of 

such certification, or if the signers are aware of any such Event of Default, said officers have 

disclosed the nature thereof, its period of existence and what action, if any, has been taken or is 

proposed to be taken with respect thereto. 

I certify under penalty of perjury and pursuant to the laws of the State of Iowa that the preceding is true and 

correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. 

Signed this 16th day of October, 2023. 

BTC, INC. 

By:  

Print Name: Jeff Roiland   

Its: CEO     

Page 157Page 157Page 157Page 157Page 157Page 157Page 157Page 157Page 157Page 157Page 157Page 157Page 157



Execution Version 

AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT 

By and between 

CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA 

AND 

BTC, INC. 

October 12 , 2020 

Page 158Page 158Page 158Page 158Page 158Page 158Page 158Page 158Page 158Page 158Page 158Page 158



AGREEMENT 
FOR 

PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT 

Tt2IS AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT ("Agreement"), is made on or as 
of the __ day of October 2020, by and between the CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA, a 
municipality (the "City"), established pursuant to the Code of Iowa and acting under the 
authorization of Chapters 15A and 403 of the Code of Iowa, 2019, as amended ("Urban Renewal 
Act"), and BTC, INC., an Iowa for profit company having offices for the transaction of business 
at 112 East Main Street, Breda, IA 51436 ("Developer"). The City and Developer are Parties to 
this Agreement. 

WITNESS ETH: 

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the objectives of the Urban Renewal Act, the City has 
undertaken a program for the development of an economic development area in the City and, in 
this connection, is engaged in carrying out urban renewal project activities in an area known as the 
Westfield Urban Renewal Area (the "Urban Renewal Area"), which is described in the Urban 
Renewal Plan approved for such area and adopted in 2007, and subsequently amended by 
Amendment No. 1 in 2020; and 

WHEREAS, a copy of the foregoing Urban Renewal Plan has been recorded among the 
land records in the office of the Recorder of Carroll County, Iowa; and 

WHEREAS, Developer owns or will own certain real property located in the foregoing 
Urban Renewal Area as more particularly described in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part 
hereof ("Development Property"); and 

WHEREAS, Developer shall build Minimum Improvements on the Development Property; 
and 

WHEREAS, Developer shall build certain Public Improvements which benefit, among 
other things, the Development Property; and which, upon acceptance by the City, shall be 
dedicated to the City; and 

WHEREAS, Developer shall operate the Minimum Improvements as set forth herein; and 

WHEREAS, the City believes that the development of the Development Property pursuant 
to this Agreement and the fulfillment of this Agreement are in the vital and best interests of the 
City and in accord with the public purposes and provisions of the applicable State and local laws 
and requirements under which the foregoing project has been undertaken and is being assisted. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and the mutual obligations of the 
parties hereto, each of them does hereby covenant and agree with the other as follows: 

Execution Version 1 
Page 159Page 159Page 159Page 159Page 159Page 159Page 159Page 159Page 159Page 159Page 159Page 159



ARTICLE I. DEFINITIONS 

Section 1.1. Definitions. In addition to other definitions set forth in this Agreement, all 
capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein shall have the following meanings unless 
a different meaning clearly appears from the context: 

Agreement means this Agreement and all exhibits and appendices hereto, as the same may 
be from time to time modified, amended or supplemented. 

Certificate of Completion means a certification in the form of the certificate attached hereto 
as Exhibits C-1 or C-2 and hereby made a part of this Agreement. 

City means the City of Carroll, Iowa, or any successor to its functions. 

Code means the Code of Iowa, 2019, as amended. 

Commencement Date means the date of this Agreement. 

Construction Plans means the plans, specifications, drawings, and related documents 
reflecting the construction work to be performed by the Developer on the Development Property; 
the Construction Plans shall be as detailed as the plans, specifications, drawings, and related 
documents which are submitted to the building inspector of the City as required by applicable City 
codes. 

Developer means BTC, Inc., an Iowa for profit company, and its permitted successors and 
assigns. 

Development Property means that portion of the Westfield Urban Renewal Area described 
in Exhibit A. 

Economic Development Grants means the payments to be made by the City to Developer 
under Article VII of this Agreement. 

Event of Default means any of the events described in Section 10.1 of this Agreement that 
have continued beyond applicable notice and cure periods. 

Full-Time Equivalent Employment Unit means the employment of one natural person for 
2,000 hours per year, assuming eight hours per day for a five-day, forty-hour work week for fifty 
weeks per year, including paid holidays, vacations, and other paid leave. 

Indemnified Parties means the City and the governing body members, officers, agents, 
servants and employees thereof. 

Minimum Improvements means the construction of improvements more particularly 
described in Exhibits B-1 and B-2 attached to this Agreement. 

Execution Version 2 
Page 160Page 160Page 160Page 160Page 160Page 160Page 160Page 160Page 160Page 160Page 160Page 160



Mortgage means any mortgage or security agreement in which Developer has granted a 
mortgage or other security interest in the Development Property, or any portion or parcel thereof, 
or any improvements constructed thereon. 

Ordinance means an Ordinance of the City, under which the taxes levied on taxable 
property in Urban Renewal Area shall be divided and a portion paid into the Westfield Urban 
Renewal Tax Increment Revenue Fund under the provisions of Iowa Code section 403.19. 

Project means the construction of the Minimum Improvements and the Public 
Improvements on the Development Property as described in this Agreement. 

Public Improvement Costs means the costs and expenses related to the design and 
construction of the Public Improvements, and landscaping, grading, drainage, engineering, plans, 
and specifications related to those improvements, as more particularly described herein. 

Public Improvements means the construction of improvements to be completed by the 
Developer and dedicated to the City, as more particularly described in Exhibits B-1 and B-2 
attached to this Agreement. 

Tax Increments means the property tax revenues divided and made available to the City 
for deposit in the Westfield Urban Renewal Tax Increment Revenue Fund under the provisions of 
Section 403.19 of the Code, as amended, and the Ordinance. 

Termination Date means the date of termination of this Agreement, as established in 
Section 11. 8 of this Agreement. 

Unavoidable Delays means delays resulting from acts or occurrences outside the 
reasonable control of the party claiming the delay including but not limited to storms, floods, fires, 
explosions, or other casualty losses, unusual weather conditions, strikes, boycotts, lockouts, or 
other labor disputes, delays in transportation or delivery of material or equipment, litigation 
commenced by third parties, pandemics, or the acts of any federal, State, or local governmental 
unit ( other than the City, with respect to a City-claimed delay). 

Urban Renewal Area means the area known as the Westfield Urban Renewal Area. 

Urban Renewal Plan means the Urban Renewal Plan, as amended, approved with respect 
to the Westfield Urban Renewal Area, described in the preambles hereof. 

Westfield Urban Renewal Tax Increment Revenue Fund means the special fund of the City 
created under the authority of Section 403 .19(2) of the Code and the Ordinance, which fund will 
be created in order to pay the principal of and interest on loans, monies advanced to or 
indebtedness, whether funded, refunded, assumed or otherwise, including bonds or other 
obligations issued under the authority of Chapters 15A, 403, or 384 of the Code, incurred by the 
City to finance or refinance in whole or in part projects undertaken pursuant to the Urban Renewal 
Plan for the Urban Renewal Area. 

Execution Version 3 
Page 161Page 161Page 161Page 161Page 161Page 161Page 161Page 161Page 161Page 161Page 161Page 161



ARTICLE IL REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

Section 2.1. Representations and Warranties of the City. The City makes the following 
representations and warranties: 

a. The City is a municipal corporation and municipality organized under the 
provisions of the Constitution and the laws of the State and has the power to enter into this 
Agreement and carry out its obligations hereunder. 

b. The execution and delivery of this Agreement, the consummation of the 
transactions contemplated hereby, and the fulfillment of or compliance with the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement are not prevented by, limited by, in conflict with, or result in a breach 
of, the terms, conditions or provisions of any contractual restriction, evidence of indebtedness, 
agreement, or instrument of whatever nature to which the City is now a party or by which it is 
bound, nor do they constitute a default under any of the foregoing. 

c. All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements, and obligations of the City 
contained herein shall be deemed to be the covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements, and 
obligations of the City, and not of any governing body member, officer, agent, servant, or 
employee of the City in the individual capacity thereof. 

Section 2.2. Representations and Warranties of Developer. Developer makes the 
following representations and warranties: 

a. The Developer is an Iowa for profit company, duly organized and validly existing 
under the laws of the State of Iowa and it has all requisite power and authority to own and operate 
its properties, to carry on its business as now conducted and as presently proposed to be conducted, 
and to enter into and perform its obligations under the Agreement. 

b. This Agreement has been duly and validly authorized, executed, and delivered by 
Developer and, assuming due authorization, execution, and delivery by the City, is in full force 
and effect and is a valid and legally binding instrument of Developer enforceable in accordance 
with its terms, except as the same may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, or 
other laws relating to or affecting creditors' rights generally. 

c. The execution and delivery of this Agreement, the consummation of the 
transactions contemplated hereby, and the fulfillment of or compliance with the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement are not prevented by, limited by, in conflict with, or result in a 
violation or breach of, the terms, conditions, or provisions of the governing documents of 
Developer or of any contractual restriction, evidence of indebtedness, agreement, or instrument of 
whatever nature to which Developer is now a party or by which it or its property is bound, nor do 
they constitute a default under any of the foregoing. 

d. There are no actions, suits, or proceedings pending or threatened against or 
affecting Developer in any court or before any arbitrator or before or by any governmental body 
in which there is a reasonable possibility of an adverse decision which could materially adversely 

Execution Version 4 
Page 162Page 162Page 162Page 162Page 162Page 162Page 162Page 162Page 162Page 162Page 162Page 162



affect the business (present or prospective), financial position, or results of operations of Developer 
or which in any manner raises any questions affecting the validity of the Agreement or Developer's 
ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement. 

e. Developer has not received any notice from any local, State, or federal official that 
the activities of Developer with respect to the Development Property may or will be in violation 
of any environmental law or regulation (other than those notices, if any, of which the City has 
previously been notified in writing). Developer is not currently aware of any State or federal claim 
filed or planned to be filed by any party relating to any violation of any local, State, or federal 
environmental law, regulation, or review procedure applicable to the Development Property, and 
Developer is not currently aware of any violation of any local, State, or federal environmental law, 
regulation, or review procedure which would give any person a valid claim under any State or 
federal environmental statute with respect thereto. 

f. Developer shall cooperate with the City in resolution of any traffic, parking, trash 
removal, or public safety problems which may arise in connection with operation of the Minimum 
Improvements. 

g. Developer shall cause the Minimum Improvements and Public Improvements to be 
constructed in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, the Urban Renewal Plan, and all local, 
State, and federal laws and regulations. 

h. Developer shall dedicate the Public Improvements in the Development Property to 
the City upon acceptance by the City, at no cost to the City. 

i. Developer shall obtain or cause to be obtained, in a timely manner, all required 
permits, licenses, and approvals, and shall meet, in a timely manner, all requirements of all 
applicable local, State, and federal laws and regulations which must be obtained or met before the 
Minimum Improvements or Public Improvements, as applicable, may be lawfully constructed. 

j. The construction of the Minimum Improvements will require a total investment of 
not less than $8,200,000. 

k. Developer expects that, barring Unavoidable Delays, the Minimum Improvements 
will be completed by May 1, 2021. 

I. The construction of the Public Improvements will require a total investment of 
approximately $200,000. 

m. Developer expects that, barring Unavoidable Delays, the Public Improvements will 
be completed by May 1, 2021. 

n. Developer has firm commitments for construction or acquisition and permanent 
financing for the Project in an amount sufficient, together with equity commitments, to 
successfully complete the Minimum Improvements and Public Improvements in accordance with 
the Construction Plans contemplated in this Agreement. 

Execution Version 5 
Page 163Page 163Page 163Page 163Page 163Page 163Page 163Page 163Page 163Page 163Page 163Page 163



o. Developer would not undertake its obligations under this Agreement without the 
payment of the Economic Development Grants being made to Developer by the City pursuant to 
this Agreement. 

ARTICLE III. CONSTRUCTION OF MINIMUM IMPROVEMENTS 
AND PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 

Section 3.1. Construction of Minimum Improvements and Public Improvements. 
Developer agrees that it will cause the Minimum Improvements and the Public Improvements to 
be constructed on the Development Property in conformance with the Construction Plans 
submitted to the City in accordance with Section 3.2 below. Developer agrees that the scope and 
scale of the Minimum Improvements and the Public Improvements to be constructed shall not be 
significantly less than the scope and scale as detailed and outlined in the Construction Plans, the 
construction of which is anticipated to require a total investment of not less than $8,200,000 for 
Minimum Improvements and approximately $200,000 for Public Improvements. 

Section 3 .2. Construction Plans. Developer shall cause Construction Plans to be developed 
for the Minimum Improvements and the Public Improvements, which shall be subject to approval 
by the City as provided in this Section 3 .2, and which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, 
conditioned, or delayed. The Construction Plans shall be in conformity with the Urban Renewal 
Plan, this Agreement, and all applicable federal, State, and local laws and regulations. The City 
shall approve the Construction Plans in writing if: (i) the Construction Plans conform to the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement; (ii) the Construction Plans conform to the terms and conditions 
of the Urban Renewal Plan; (iii) the Construction Plans conform to all applicable federal, State, 
and local laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations, and City permit requirements; (iv) the 
Construction Plans are adequate for purposes of this Agreement to provide for the construction of 
the Minimum Improvements and the Public Improvements; and (v) no Event of Default under the 
terms of this Agreement has occurred and is continuing beyond applicable notice and cure periods; 
provided, however, that any such approval of the Construction Plans pursuant to this Section 3.2 
shall constitute approval for the purposes of this Agreement only and shall not be deemed to 
constitute approval or waiver by the City with respect to any building, fire, zoning, or other 
ordinances or regulations of the City, and shall not be deemed to be sufficient plans to serve as the 
basis for the issuance of a building permit if the Construction Plans are not as detailed or complete 
as the plans otherwise required for the issuance of a building permit. The site plans submitted to 
the building official of the City for the Development Property and the surrounding areas where the 
Minimum Improvements are to be constructed shall be adequate to serve as the Construction Plans 
for the Minimum Improvements, if such site plans are approved by the building official. 

Approval of the Construction Plans by the City shall not relieve any obligation to comply 
with the terms and provisions of this Agreement, or the provision of applicable federal, State, and 
local laws, ordinances and regulations. 

Approval of Construction Plans hereunder is solely for purposes of this Agreement, and 
shall not constitute approval for any other City purpose nor subject the City to any liability for the 
Minimum Improvements or Public Improvements as constructed. 

Execution Version 6 
Page 164Page 164Page 164Page 164Page 164Page 164Page 164Page 164Page 164Page 164Page 164Page 164



Section 3.3. Commencement and Completion of Construction. Subject to Unavoidable 
Delays, Developer shall cause construction of the Minimum Improvements and the Public 
Improvements to be undertaken and completed: (i) by no later than May 1, 2021; or (ii) by such 
other date as the parties shall mutually agree upon in writing. Time lost as a result of Unavoidable 
Delays shall be added to extend this date by a number of days equal to the number of days lost as 
a result of Unavoidable Delays. All work with respect to the Minimum Improvements and Public 
Improvements shall be in conformity with the Construction Plans approved by the building official 
or any amendments thereto as may be approved by the building official. 

Developer agrees that they shall permit designated representatives of the City, upon 
reasonable notice (which does not have to be written), to enter upon the Development Property 
during the construction of the Minimum Improvements and the Public Improvements to inspect 
such construction and the progress thereof, subject to Developer's rules and regulations for the 
construction site. 

Section 3 .4. Certificates of Completion. 

a. Within fifteen (15) business days after written request by Developer and after 
issuance of an occupancy permit for the Minimum Improvements, the City shall furnish Developer 
with a Certificate of Completion for the Minimum Improvements in recordable form, in 
substantially the form set forth in Exhibit C-1 attached hereto. Such Certificate of Completion 
shall be a conclusive determination of satisfactory termination of the covenants and conditions of 
this Agreement with respect to the obligations of Developer to cause construction of the Minimum 
Improvements. 

b. Within fifteen (15) business days after written request by Developer, the City shall 
furnish Developer with a Certificate of Completion for the Public Improvements in recordable 
form, in substantially the form set forth in Exhibit C-2 attached hereto. Such Certificate of 
Completion shall be a conclusive determination of satisfactory termination of the covenants and 
conditions of this Agreement with respect to the obligations of Developer to cause construction of 
the Public Improvements. 

c. If the City shall refuse or fail to provide a Certificate of Completion in accordance 
with the provisions of this Section 3.4, the City shall, within such fifteen (15) business day period, 
instead provide a written statement indicating in what respects Developer has failed to complete 
the Minimum Improvements or Public Improvements, as applicable, in accordance with the 
provisions of this Agreement, or is otherwise in default under the terms of this Agreement, and 
what measures or acts it will be necessary, in the opinion of the City, for Developer to take or 
perform in order to obtain such Certificate of Completion. 

d. The Certificates of Completion may be recorded in the Carroll County Recorder's 
Office at Developer's sole expense. 

Section 3.5. Dedication of Public Improvements. Upon notice of completion of the 
Public Improvements, the City shall inspect the Public Improvements and determine whether they 

Execution Version 7 
Page 165Page 165Page 165Page 165Page 165Page 165Page 165Page 165Page 165Page 165Page 165Page 165



have been completed in accordance with this Agreement. If the City finds that the Public 
Improvements have been duly completed in compliance with this Agreement and all City 
ordinances, policies, and procedures, the bonds required by Section 3.7 have been provided, and 
the City approves the Public Improvements, the Developer shall dedicate the Public Improvements 
to the City and the City shall accept said dedication, at no cost to the City. If the City determines 
that the Public Improvements are not acceptable, it shall notify the Developer in the same manner 
as refusal to provide a Certificate of Completion as described in Section 3.4(c). 

Section 3.6. No Special Legal Entitlements to Public Improvements. 

a. Developer recognizes and agrees that upon dedication to the City the Public 
Improvements shall be owned and maintained by the City and that nothing in this Agreement 
grants Developer any special legal entitlements or other rights not held by members of the general 
public with respect to ownership, maintenance, or use of the Public Improvements. 

b. The Parties agree that the City and other Indemnified Parties are not responsible for 
and will have no liability to Developer associated with the specifications, design, plans, quality of 
construction, or sufficiency of the Public Improvements for any particular purpose. 

Section 3. 7. Bonding Requirements. Developer shall obtain, or require each of its general 
contractors to obtain, one or more bonds that guarantee the faithful performance of this Agreement 
for, in the aggregate, the anticipated full value of the completed Public Improvements and that 
further guarantee the prompt payment of all materials and labor. The performance bond(s) for a 
given Project of the Public Improvements shall remain in effect until construction of such Public 
Improvements is completed, at which time a four-year maintenance bond shall be substituted for 
each performance bond. The bonds shall clearly specify the Developer and City as joint obligees. 

Section 3.8. Real Property Taxes. Developer or its successors, shall pay or cause to be 
paid, when due, all real property taxes and assessments payable with respect to all and any parts 
of the Development Property acquired and owned or leased by them. Until Developer's obligations 
have been assumed by any other person or legal title to the property is vested in another person, 
all pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement, Developer shall be responsible for all assessments 
and taxes. 

Developer and its successors, agree that prior to the Termination Date: 

a. They will not seek administrative review or judicial review of the applicability or 
constitutionality of any tax statute relating to the taxation of real property contained on the 
Development Property determined by any tax official to be applicable to the Development Property 
or Minimum Improvements, or raise the inapplicability or constitutionality of any such tax statute 
as a defense in any proceedings, including delinquent tax proceedings. 

b. They will not seek any tax exemption, rebate, deferral, other abatement or any kind 
of incentive either presently or prospectively authorized under any State, federal or local law with 
respect to taxation of real property contained on the Development Property between the date of 
execution of this Agreement and the Termination Date. 

Execution Version 8 
Page 166Page 166Page 166Page 166Page 166Page 166Page 166Page 166Page 166Page 166Page 166Page 166



ARTICLE IV. INSURANCE 

Section 4.1. Insurance Requirements. 

a. Developer will provide and maintain or cause to be maintained at all times during 
the process of constructing the Minimum Improvements and Public Improvements ( and, from time 
to time at the request of the City, furnish the City with proof of coverage or payment of premiums 
on): 

i. Builder's risk insurance, written on the so-called "Builder's Risk-
Completed Value Basis,'' in an amount equal to the full replacement cost of the Minimum 
Improvements, and with coverage available in non-reporting form on the so-called "all risk" form 
of policy. 

ii. Comprehensive general liability insurance (including operations, 
contingent liability, operations of subcontractors, completed operations, and contractual liability 
insurance) with limits against bodily injury and property damage of at least $1,000,000 for each 
occurrence. The City shall be named as an additional insured for the City's liability or loss arising 
out of or in any way associated with the project and arising out of any act, error, or omission of 
Developer, or either entity's directors, officers, shareholders, contractors, and subcontractors or 
anyone else for whose acts the City may be held responsible (with coverage to the City at least as 
broad as that which is provided to Developer and not lessened or avoided by endorsement). The 
policy shall contain a "severability of interests" clause and provide primary insurance over any 
other insurance maintained by the City. 

iii. Workers' compensation insurance with at least statutory coverage. 

b. Upon completion of construction of the Minimum Improvements and at all times 
prior to the Termination Date, Developer shall maintain or cause to be maintained, at its cost and 
expense (and from time to time at the request of the City shall furnish proof of coverage or the 
payment of premiums on), insurance as follows: 

i. Insurance against loss and/or damage to the Minimum Improvements under 
a policy or policies covering such risks as are ordinarily insured against by similar businesses, 
including (without limitation the generality of the foregoing) fire, extended coverage, vandalism 
and malicious mischief, explosion, water damage, demolition cost, debris removal, and collapse 
in an amount not less than the full insurable replacement value of the Minimum Improvements, 
but any such policy may have a deductible amount of not more than $50,000. No policy of 
insurance shall be so written that the proceeds thereof will produce less than the minimum 
coverage required by the preceding sentence, by reason of co-insurance provisions or otherwise, 
without the prior consent thereto in writing by the City. The term "full insurable replacement 
value" shall mean the actual replacement cost of the Minimum Improvements ( excluding 
foundation and excavation costs and costs of underground flues, pipes, drains, and other 
uninsurable items) and equipment, and shall be determined from time to time at the request of the 
City, but not more frequently than once every three years, by an insurance consultant or insurer 
selected and paid for by Developer and approved by the City. 

Execution Version 9 
Page 167Page 167Page 167Page 167Page 167Page 167Page 167Page 167Page 167Page 167Page 167Page 167



ii. Comprehensive general public liability insurance, including personal injury 
liability for injuries to persons and/or property, including any injuries resulting from the operation 
of automobiles or other motorized vehicles on or about the Development Property, in the minimum 
amount for each occurrence and for each year of $1,000,000. 

iii. Such other insurance, including workers' compensation insurance 
respecting all employees of Developer, in such amount as is customarily carried by like 
organizations engaged in like activities of comparable size and liability exposure; provided that 
Developer may be self~insured with respect to all or any part of its liability for workers' 
compensation. 

c. All insurance required by this Article IV to be provided prior to the Termination 
Date shall be taken out and maintained in responsible insurance companies selected by Developer, 
which are authorized under the laws of the State to assume the risks covered thereby. Developer 
will deposit annually with the City copies of policies evidencing all such insurance, or a certificate 
or certificates or binders of the respective insurers stating that such insurance is in force and effect. 
Unless otherwise provided in this Article IV, each policy shall contain a provision that the insurer 
shall not cancel it without giving written notice to Developer and the City at least thirty (30) days 
(ten (10) days in the case of non~payment of premium) before the cancellation becomes effective. 
Within ten (10) days of being notified of any modification to the policy by the insurer that would 
cause a party's coverage to be less than the minimum requirements as set forth in this Agreement, 
the Developer will provide written notice to the City of the modification. Within fifteen (15) days 
after the expiration of any policy, Developer shall furnish the City evidence satisfactory to the City 
that the policy has been renewed or replaced by another policy conforming to the provisions of 
this Article IV, or that there is no necessity therefor under the terms hereof. In lieu of separate 
policies, Developer may maintain a single policy, or blanket or umbrella policies, or a combination 
thereof, which provide the total coverage required herein, in which event Developer shall deposit 
with the City a certificate or certificates of the respective insurers as to the amount of coverage in 
force upon the Minimum Improvements. 

d. Developer agrees to notify the City immediately in the case of damage exceeding 
$25,000 in amount to, or destruction of, the Minimum Improvements or any portion thereof 
resulting from fire or other casualty. Net Proceeds of any such insurance shall be paid directly to 
Developer, and Developer will forthwith repair, reconstruct, and restore the Minimum 
Improvements to substantially the same or an improved condition or value as they existed prior to 
the event causing such damage and, to the extent necessary to accomplish such repair, 
reconstruction and restoration, Developer will apply the Net Proceeds of any insurance relating to 
such damage received to the payment or reimbursement of the costs thereof. 

e. Developer shall complete the repair, reconstruction, and restoration of the 
Minimum Improvements, whether or not the Net Proceeds of insurance received by Developer for 
such purposes are sufficient. 

ARTICLE V. FURTHER COVENANTS OF DEVELOPER 

Execution Version 10 
Page 168Page 168Page 168Page 168Page 168Page 168Page 168Page 168Page 168Page 168Page 168Page 168



Section 5 .1. Maintenance of Development Property. Developer will maintain, preserve, 
and keep the Development Property, including but not limited to the Minimum Improvements, in 
good repair and working order, ordinary wear and tear excepted, and from time to time will make 
all necessary repairs, replacements, renewals, and additions. 

Section 5.2. Maintenance of Records. Developer will keep at all times proper books of 
record and account in which full, true, and correct entries will be made of all dealings and 
transactions of or in relation to their business and affairs relating to this Project, and will provide 
reasonable protection against loss or damage to such books of record and account. 

Section 5.3. Compliance with Laws/Non-Discrimination. Developer will comply with 
all State, federal, and local laws, rules, and regulations relating to the Minimum Improvements, 
Public Improvements, and Development Property. In the construction and operation of the 
Minimum Improvements, Developer shall not discriminate against any applicant, employee or 
tenant because of age, color, creed, national origin, race, religion, marital status, sex, physical 
disability, or familial status. Developer shall ensure that applicants, employees, and tenants are 
considered and are treated without regard to their age, color, creed, national origin, race, religion, 
marital status, sex, physical disability, or familial status. 

Section 5 .4. Available Information. Upon request, Developer shall promptly provide the 
City with copies of information reasonably requested by City that are related to this Agreement so 
that City can determine compliance with the Agreement. 

Section 5.5. Employment. No later than 90 days from issuance of a certificate of 
occupancy for the Minimum Improvements, Developer shall employ at least 20 Full-Time 
Equivalent Employment Units at the Development Property, which number shall increase to 23 
Full-Time Equivalent Employment Units at the Development Property as of July 1, 2022, and 
thereafter Developer shall retain a Monthly Average of at least 23 Full-Time Equivalent 
Employment Units until the Termination Date of this Agreement. Developer's Annual 
Certification, due by no later than the 15th day of after issuance of a certificate of occupancy for 
the Minimum Improvements, shall show that a Monthly Average of at least the number of Full
Time Equivalent Employment Units set forth above has been maintained over the preceding twelve 
(12) month period. 

"Monthly Average" means the average number of Full-Time Equivalent Employment 
Units employed as of October 1 of each year and as of the first day of each of the preceding eleven 
(11) months (prorated for the first certification), as shown in Developer's Annual Certification in 
Section 5.6. Developer shall not receive any Economic Development Grants if the Monthly 
Average of Full-Time Equivalent Employment Units employed by Developer does not meet the 
requirements of this Section 5.5. Developer shall provide information as requested by the City to 
determine compliance with the foregoing employment obligations. 

Section 5 .6. Annual Certification. To assist the City in monitoring this Agreement and 
the performance of Developer hereunder, a duly authorized officer of Developer shall annually 
provide to the City: (i) proof that all ad valorem taxes on the Development Property and Minimum 
Improvements have been paid for the prior fiscal year and any taxes due and payable for the current 

Execution Version 11 
Page 169Page 169Page 169Page 169Page 169Page 169Page 169Page 169Page 169Page 169Page 169Page 169



fiscal year as of the date of certification; (ii) the date of the first full assessment of the Minimum 
Improvements; (iii) certification of the number of Full-Time Equivalent Employment Units 
employed at the Development Property as of October 1 and as of the first day of each of the 
preceding eleven ( 11) months (prorated for the first certification); and (iv) certification that such 
officer has re-examined the terms and provisions of this Agreement and that at the date of such 
certificate, and during the preceding twelve (12) months, Developer is not, or was not, in default 
in the fulfillment of any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement and that no Event of Default 
( or event which, with the lapse of time or the giving of notice, or both, would become an Event of 
Default) is occurring or has occurred as of the date of such certificate or during such period, or if 
the signer is aware of any such default, event or Event of Default, said officer shall disclose in 
such statement the nature thereof, its period of existence and what action, if any, has been taken or 
is proposed to be taken with respect thereto. Such statement, proof and certificate shall be provided 
not later than the 15th day of the 15th full month after issuance of a certificate of occupancy for the 
Minimum Improvements, and each October 15th thereafter until October 15, 2025. Developer shall 
provide supporting information for the Annual Certifications upon request of the City. See Exhibit 
E for form required for Developer's Annual Certification. 

If Developer has failed to provide an annual certification by the 15th day of the 15th month 
after issuance of a certificate of occupancy for the Minimum Improvements, or by October 15 in 
a particular year, the same shall be considered an Event of Default, for which the City will send 
written notice to Developer for cure. 

Section 5.7. Term of Operation. Developer shall maintain its operations on the 
Development Property, including the employment of employees as described in Section 5.5, until 
the Termination Date of this Agreement. 

Section 5.8. Developer's Certification of Public Improvement Costs. Developer shall 
certify to the City (the "Developer Certification") the amount of all Public Improvement Costs 
submitted for reimbursement as Economic Development Grants to be paid to the Developer and 
shall certify that such amounts are true and correct. See Exhibit F for the form of Developer 
Certification. Such Developer Certification shall be provided not later than October 15 of each 
year in which Developer incurs Public Improvement Costs as provided in Section 7.l(a)(iv) of this 
Agreement. Along with its Developer Certification, Developer shall attach documentation 
showing substantiation of Public Improvement Costs as provided in Section 7.l(a)(iv) of this 
Agreement. Developer shall provide additional supporting information for its Developer 
Certification upon request of the City. 

Section 5.9. Developer Completion Guarantee. By signing this Agreement, Developer 
hereby guarantees to the City performance by Developer of all the terms and provisions of this 
Agreement pertaining to Developer's obligations with respect to the construction of the Minimum 
Improvements and Public Improvements. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, 
Developer guarantees that: (a) construction of the Minimum Improvements and Public 
Improvements shall be completed generally within the time limits set forth herein; (b) the 
Minimum Improvements and Public Improvements shall be constructed and completed in 
substantial accordance with the Construction Plans; ( c) the Minimum Improvements and Public 
Improvements shall be constructed and completed free and clear of any mechanic's liens, 

Execution Version 12 
Page 170Page 170Page 170Page 170Page 170Page 170Page 170Page 170Page 170Page 170Page 170Page 170



materialman's liens and equitable liens; and (d) all costs of constructing the Minimum 
Improvements and Public Improvements shall be paid when due. 

ARTICLE VI. PROHIBITION AGAINST ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFER 

Section 6.1. Status of Developer: Transfer of Substantially All Assets: Assignment. As 
security for the obligations of Developer under this Agreement represents and agrees that, prior to 
the Termination Date, Developer will maintain its existence and will not wind up or otherwise 
dispose of all or substantially all of its assets or transfer, convey, or assign their interest in the this 
Agreement to any other party unless: (i) the transferee partnership, corporation, limited liability 
company, or individual assumes in writing all of the then"outstanding obligations of Developer 
under this Agreement; and (ii) the City consents thereto in writing in advance thereof. 

Section 6.2. Prohibition Against Use as Non" Taxable or Centrally Assessed Property. 
During the term of this Agreement, Developer or its successors or assigns, agree that (except with 
respect to the dedication of any right of way to the City) the Minimum Improvements and 
Development Property cannot be transferred or sold to a non"profit entity or used for a purpose 
that would exempt the Development Property or Minimum Improvements from property tax 
liability. Nor can the Development Property or Minimum Improvements be used as centrally 
assessed property (including but not limited to, Iowa Code § 428.24 to 428.29 (Public Utility Plants 
and Related Personal Property); Chapter 433 (Telegraph and Telephone Company Property); 
Chapter 434 (Railway Property); Chapter 437 (Electric Transmission Lines); Chapter 437A 
(Property Used in the Production, Generation, Transmission or Delivery of Electricity or Natural 
Gas); and Chapter 438 (Pipeline Property)). 

ARTICLE VII. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANTS 

Section 7 .1. Economic Development Grants. 

a. Payment of Economic Development Grants. For and in consideration of the 
obligations being assumed by Developer hereunder, and in furtherance of the goals and objectives 
of the Urban Renewal Plan for the Urban Renewal Area and the Urban Renewal Act, the City 
agrees, subject to the Developer being and remaining in compliance with this Agreement at the 
time of each payment, to make up to six ( 6) consecutive semi"annual payments of Economic 
Development Grants to the Developer under the following terms and conditions. 

i. Schedule of Grants. Assuming completion of the Minimum Improvements 
by May 1, 2021, full assessment of the Minimum Improvements on January 1, 2022, timely 
certification of the Public Improvement costs by Developer, and debt certification to the Carroll 
County Auditor by the City prior to December 1, 2022, the Economic Development Grants shall 
commence on December 1, 2023, and end on June 1, 2026, under the following schedule: 

December 1, 2023 
June 1, 2024 
December I, 2024 
June 1, 2025 

Execution Version 

1/6 of the Public Improvement Costs (not to exceed $33,333) 
1/6 of the Public Improvement Costs (not to exceed $33,333) 
1/6 of the Public Improvement Costs (not to exceed $33,333) 
1/6 of the Public Improvement Costs (not to exceed $33,333) 

13 
Page 171Page 171Page 171Page 171Page 171Page 171Page 171Page 171Page 171Page 171Page 171Page 171



December 1, 2025 
June 1, 2026 

1/6 of the Public Improvement Costs (not to exceed $33,333) 
1/6 of the Public Improvement Costs (not to exceed $33,333) 

ii. Maximum Amount of Grants. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event 
shall the aggregate amount of the Economic Development Grants exceed the lesser of: (a) 
$200,000, or (b) the aggregate amount of the Public Improvement Costs submitted to and approved 
by the City as a part of Developer's completion of the Public Improvements. 

m. Limitations. Developer acknowledges that payment shall come solely and 
only from incremental taxes received by the City under Iowa Code Section 403.19 from levies 
upon the taxable property described in the Ordinance. The City makes no assurance that the 
Developer will receive Economic Development Grants which equal the Maximum stated in 
Section 7.l(a)(ii). 

iv. Certification of Public Improvement Costs. The obligation of the City to 
make any Economic Development Grants to the Developer shall be subject to and conditioned 
upon, among other things, the timely filing by the Developer of the Developer Certification 
required under Section 5.8 hereof and the City's approval thereof. Developer must submit accurate 
and sufficient documentation of the Public Improvement Costs to the City as part of its Developer 
Certification. 

Section 7.2. Conditions Precedent. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 7 .1 above, 
the obligation of the City to make an Economic Development Grant in any year shall be subject to 
and conditioned upon the following: 

(a) compliance with the terms of this Agreement by Developer at the time of 
payment; and 

(b) Developer's construction of the Minimum Improvements and Public 
Improvements consistent with this Agreement; and 

(c) Developer's timely filing of the certifications set forth in Section 5.6, including 
the Developer Annual Certification; and 

(d) Developer's timely filing of the Developer Certification as set forth in Sections 
5.8 and 7.l(a)(iv). 

Under no circumstances shall the failure by Developer to qualify for an Economic 
Development Grant in any year serve to extend the term of this Agreement beyond the Termination 
Date or the years during which Economic Development Grants may be awarded to Developer or 
the total amount thereof, it being the intent of parties hereto to provide Developer with an 
opportunity to receive Economic Development Grants only if Developer fully complies with the 
provisions hereof and the Developer becomes entitled thereto, up to the maximum aggregate 
amounts set forth in Section 7.l(a)(ii). 

Execution Version 14 
Page 172Page 172Page 172Page 172Page 172Page 172Page 172Page 172Page 172Page 172Page 172Page 172



After the Minimum Improvements are first fully assessed and if in compliance with this 
Agreement, if the Developer's Annual Certification is timely filed under Section 5.6 and the 
Developer Certification is timely filed under Section 5.8, the City shall certify to Carroll County, 
Iowa (the "County") prior to December 1 of that year its request for Tax Increments to be collected 
by the County and paid to the City as taxes are paid during the following fiscal year and to 
thereafter be disbursed to Developer as set forth in this Agreement. (Example: assuming 
completion by May 1, 2021, and first full assessment on January 1, 2022, if Developer timely 
certifies the costs of the Public Improvements and timely submits the first Annual Certification, 
and the City certifies to the County by December 1, 2022, the first Economic Development Grant 
would be paid to Developer on December 1, 2023). Compliance with the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement is a condition precedent to receiving any Economic Development Grant. 

Section 7.3. Source of Grant Funds Limited. 

a. The Economic Development Grants shall be payable from and secured solely and 
only by amounts of incremental property tax revenues that are received by the City from Carroll 
County that are deposited and held in the Westfield Urban Renewal Tax Increment Revenue Fund 
of the City. The City hereby covenants and agrees to maintain the Ordinance in force during the 
term hereof and to use Tax Increments collected and allocated to the Westfield Urban Renewal 
Tax Increment Revenue Fund of the City to pay the Economic Development Grants, as and to the 
extent set forth in this Article. The Economic Development Grants shall not be payable in any 
manner by other tax increment revenues or by general taxation or from any other City funds. Any 
commercial and industrial property tax replacement monies that may be received under Chapter 
441.21 A of the Code shall not be included in the calculation to determine the amount of Economic 
Development Grants for which Developer is eligible, and any monies received back under Chapter 
426C of the Code relating to the Business Property Tax Credit shall not be included in the 
calculation to determine the amount of Economic Development Grants for which Developer is 
eligible. 

b. Each Economic Development Grant is subject to annual appropriation by the City 
Council of the City (the "City Council"). The right of non-appropriation reserved to the City in 
this Section is intended by the parties, and shall be construed at all times, so as to ensure that the 
City's obligation to make future Economic Development Grants shall not constitute a legal 
indebtedness of the City within the meaning of any applicable constitutional or statutory debt 
limitation prior to the adoption of a budget which appropriates funds for the payment of that 
installment or amount. In the event that any of the provisions of this Agreement are determined 
by a court of competent jurisdiction to create, or result in the creation of, such a legal indebtedness 
of the City, the enforcement of the said provision shall be suspended, and the Agreement shall at 
all times be construed and applied in such a manner as will preserve the foregoing intent of the 
parties, and no Event of Default by the City shall be deemed to have occurred as a result thereof. 
If any provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to any circumstance is so suspended, 
the suspension shall not affect other provisions of this Agreement which can be given effect 
without the suspended provision. To this end the provisions of this Agreement are severable. 

c. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 7.1 hereof, the City shall have no 
obligation to make an Economic Development Grant to Developer if at any time during the term 

Execution Version 15 
Page 173Page 173Page 173Page 173Page 173Page 173Page 173Page 173Page 173Page 173Page 173Page 173



hereof the City fails to appropriate funds for payment, or receives an opinion from its legal counsel 
to the effect that the use of Tax Increments resulting from the Minimum Improvements to fund an 
Economic Development Grant to Developer, as contemplated under said Section 7.1, is not 
authorized or is not an otherwise appropriate urban renewal activity permitted to be undertaken by 
the City under the Urban Renewal Act or other applicable provisions of the Code, as then 
constituted or under controlling decision of any Iowa court having jurisdiction over the subject 
matter hereof. Upon receipt of any such legal opinion or non-appropriation, the City shall 
promptly forward notice of the same to Developer. If the non-appropriation or circumstances or 
legal constraints giving rise to the decision continue for a period during which two (2) semi-annual 
Economic Development Grants would otherwise have been paid to Developer under the terms of 
Section 7 .1, the City may terminate this Agreement, without penalty or other liability to the City, 
by written notice to Developer. 

Section 7.4. Use of Other Tax Increments. The City shall be free to use any and all Tax 
Increments above and beyond the percentages to be given to Developer under this Agreement, or 
any available Tax Increments resulting from the suspension or termination of the Economic 
Development Grants, for any purpose for which the Tax Increments may lawfully be used pursuant 
to the provisions of the Urban Renewal Act (including an allocation of all or any portion thereof 
to the reduction of any eligible City costs), and the City shall have no obligations to Developer 
with respect to the use thereof. 

ARTICLE VIII. RESERVED 

ARTICLE IX. INDEMNIFICATION 

Section 9 .1. Release and Indemnification Covenants. 

a. Developer releases the City and the Indemnified Parties from, covenant and agree 
that the Indemnified Parties shall not be liable for, and agree to indemnify, defend, and hold 
harmless the Indemnified Parties against, any loss or damage to property or any injury to or death 
of any person occurring at or about or resulting from any defect in the Minimum Improvements, 
Public Improvements (until such time as they are conveyed to the City), or Development Property. 

b. Except to the extent arising from any willful misrepresentation, gross negligence, 
or any willful or wanton misconduct or any unlawful act of the Indemnified Parties, Developer 
agrees to protect and defend the Indemnified Parties, now or forever, and further agree to hold the 
Indemnified Parties harmless, from any claim, demand, suit, action, or other proceedings 
whatsoever by any person or entity whatsoever arising or purportedly arising from: (i) any 
violation of any agreement or condition of this Agreement ( except with respect to any suit, action, 
demand, or other proceeding brought by Developer against the City to enforce its rights under this 
Agreement); (ii) the acquisition and condition of the Development Property and the construction, 
installation, ownership, and operation of the Minimum Improvements and, until accepted by the 
City, the Public Improvements; or (iii) any hazardous substance or environmental contamination 
located in or on the Development Property. 

Execution Version 16 
Page 174Page 174Page 174Page 174Page 174Page 174Page 174Page 174Page 174Page 174Page 174Page 174



c. The Indemnified Parties shall not be liable for any damage or injury to the persons 
or property of Developer, or its officers, agents, servants, or employees or any other person who 
may be about the Public Improvements, Minimum Improvements, or Development Property due 
to any act of negligence of any person, other than any act of negligence on the part of any such 
indemnified party or its officers, agents, servants or employees. 

d. The provisions of this Article IX shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE X. REMEDIES 

Section 10.1. Events of Default Defined. The following shall be "Events of Default" under 
this Agreement and the term "Event of Default" shall mean, whenever it is used in this Agreement, 
any one or more of the following events during the Term of this Agreement: 

a. Failure by Developer to cause the construction of the Minimum Improvements and 
Public Improvements to be completed pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement; 

b. Failure by Developer to substantially observe or perform any covenant, condition, 
obligation, or agreement on its part to be observed or performed under this Agreement; 

c. Transfer of Developer's interest in the Development Property, Minimum 
Improvements, or this Agreement in violation of the provisions of this Agreement; 

d. Failure by Developer to pay ad valorem taxes on the Development Property or 
Minimum Improvements; 

e. Failure by Developer to employ employees on the Development Property as 
required herein; 

f. The holder of any Mortgage on the Development Property, or any improvements 
thereon, or any portion thereof, commences foreclosure proceedings as a result of any default under 
the applicable Mortgage documents; 

g. Developer shall: 

i. file any petition in bankruptcy or for any reorganization, arrangement, 
composition, readjustment, liquidation, dissolution, or similar relief under the United States 
Bankruptcy Act of 1978, as amended, or under any similar federal or state law; or 

ii. make an assignment for the benefit of its creditors; or 

iii. admit in writing its inability to pay its debts generally as they become due; 
or 

iv. be adjudicated as bankrupt or insolvent; or if a petition or answer proposing 
the adjudication of Developer as bankrupt or either entity's reorganization under any present or 

Execution Version 17 
Page 175Page 175Page 175Page 175Page 175Page 175Page 175Page 175Page 175Page 175Page 175Page 175



future federal bankruptcy act or any similar federal or state law shall be filed in any court and such 
petition or answer shall not be discharged or denied within ninety (90) days after the filing thereof; 
or a receiver, trustee or liquidator of Developer or the Minimum Improvements, or part thereof, 
shall be appointed in any proceedings brought against Developer, and shall not be discharged 
within ninety (90) days after such appointment, or if Developer shall consent to or acquiesce in 
such appointment; 

h. Any representation or warranty made by Developer in this Agreement or in any 
written statement or certificate furnished by Developer pursuant to this Agreement, shall prove to 
have been incorrect, incomplete, or misleading in any material respect on or as of the date of the 
issuance or making thereof; or 

Section 10.2. Remedies on Default. Whenever any Event of Default referred to in Section 
10.l of this Agreement occurs and is continuing, the City, as specified below, may take any one 
or more of the following actions after the giving of thirty (30) days' written notice by the City to 
Developer and the holder of any Mortgage (but only to the extent the City has been informed in 
writing of the existence of a Mortgage and been provided with the address of the holder thereof) 
of the Event of Default, but only if the Event of Default has not been cured within said thirty (30) 
days, or if the Event of Default cannot reasonably be cured within thirty (30) days and Developer 
does not provide assurances reasonably satisfactory to the City that the Event of Default will be 
cured as soon as reasonably possible: 

a. The City may suspend its performance under this Agreement until it receives 
assurances from Developer, deemed adequate by the City, that Developer will cure the default and 
continue its performance under this Agreement; 

b. The City may terminate this Agreement; 

c. The City may withhold the Certificates of Completion; 

d. The City may take any action, including legal, equitable, or administrative action, 
which may appear necessary or desirable to enforce performance and observance of any obligation, 
agreement, or covenant of Developer under this Agreement; or 

e. The City will have no obligation to make payment of Economic Development 
Grants to Developer subsequent to the Event of Default and shall be entitled to recover from 
Developer, and Developer shall repay to the City, an amount equal to the full amount of the 
Economic Development Grants previously made to Developer under Article VII hereof, with 
interest thereon at the highest rate permitted by State law. The City may take any action, including 
any legal action it deems necessary, to recover such amounts from Developer. 

Section 10.3. No Remedy Exclusive. No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to the 
City is intended to be exclusive of any other available remedy or remedies, but each and every 
remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given under this 
Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute. No delay or omission to 
exercise any right or power accruing upon any default shall impair any such right or power or shall 

Execution Version 18 
Page 176Page 176Page 176Page 176Page 176Page 176Page 176Page 176Page 176Page 176Page 176Page 176



be construed to be a waiver thereof, but any such right and power may be exercised from time to 
time and as often as may be deemed expedient. 

Section 10.4. No Implied Waiver. In the event any agreement contained in this Agreement 
should be breached by any party and thereafter waived by any other party, such waiver shall be 
limited to the particular breach so waived and shall not be deemed to waive any other concurrent, 
previous or subsequent breach hereunder. 

Section 10.5. Agreement to Pay Attorneys' Fees and Expenses. Whenever any Event of 
Default occurs and the City shall employ attorneys or incur other expenses for the collection of 
payments due or to become due or for the enforcement or performance or observance of any 
obligation or agreement on the part of Developer herein contained, and the City prevails in an 
action to enforce this Agreement, Developer agrees that it shall, upon demand therefor, pay to the 
City the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such other expenses as may be reasonably and 
appropriately incurred by the City in connection therewith. 

ARTICLE XI. MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 11.1. Conflict of Interest. Developer warrants that, to its best knowledge and 
belief after due inquiry, no officer or employee of the City, or its designees or agents, nor any 
consultant or member of the governing body of the City, and no other public official of the City 
who exercises or has exercised any functions or responsibilities with respect to the Project during 
his or her tenure, or who is in a position to participate in a decision-making process or gain insider 
information with regard to the Project, has had or shall have any interest, direct or indirect, in any 
contract or subcontract, or the proceeds thereof, for work or services to be performed in connection 
with the Project, or in any activity, or benefit therefrom, which is part of the Project at any time 
during or after such person's tenure. 

Section 11.2. Notices and Demands. A notice, demand or other communication under this 
Agreement by any party to the other shall be sufficiently given or delivered if it is dispatched by 
registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or delivered personally, and 

a. In the case of Developer, is addressed or delivered personally to BTC, Inc., 112 
East Main Street, Breda, Iowa 51436, Attn: JeffRoiland, CEO; 

b. In the case of the City, is addressed to or delivered personally to the City at 627 
North Adams Street, Carroll, Iowa 51401, Attn: Laura Schaefer, City Clerk; 

or to such other designated individual or officer or to such other address as any party shall have 
furnished to the other in writing in accordance herewith. 

Section 11.3. Titles of Articles and Sections. Any titles of the several parts, Articles, and 
Sections of this Agreement are inserted for convenience of reference only and shall be disregarded 
in construing or interpreting any of its provisions. 

Section 11.4. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, each of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

Execution Version 19 
Page 177Page 177Page 177Page 177Page 177Page 177Page 177Page 177Page 177Page 177Page 177Page 177



Section 11.5. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Iowa. 

Section 11.6. Entire Agreement. This Agreement and the exhibits hereto reflect the entire 
agreement among the parties regarding the subject matter hereof, and supersedes and replaces all 
prior agreements, negotiations or discussions, whether oral or written. This Agreement may not 
be amended except by a subsequent writing signed by all parties hereto. 

Section 11. 7. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement is intended to and shall inure to 
the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective permitted successors and 
assigns. 

Section 11.8. Termination Date. This Agreement shall terminate and be of no further force 
or effect on and after December 31, 2026, unless terminated earlier under the provisions of this 
Agreement. 

Section 11.9. Memorandum of Agreement. The Parties agree to execute and record a 
Memorandum of Agreement for Private Development, in substantially the form attached as Exhibit 
D, to serve as notice to the public of the existence and provisions of this Agreement, and the rights 
and interests held by the City by virtue hereof. The City shall pay for all costs of recording. 

Section 11.10. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. No rights or privileges of either party hereto 
shall inure to the benefit of any landowner, contractor, subcontractor, material supplier, or any 
other person or entity, and no such contractor, landowner, subcontractor, material supplier, or any 
other person or entity shall be deemed to be a third-party beneficiary of any of the provisions 
contained in this Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Agreement to be duly executed in its 
name and behalf by its Mayor and its seal to be hereunto duly affixed and attested by its City Clerk, 
and Developer has caused this Agreement to be duly executed in their names and behalf by its 
authorized representative, all on or as of the day first above written. 

[Signatures start on the next page} 

Execution Version 20 
Page 178Page 178Page 178Page 178Page 178Page 178Page 178Page 178Page 178Page 178Page 178Page 178



(SEAL) CITY OF CARROLL, lOW A 

ATTEST: 

By: -+-,l'+--""S<:..=::...C::c....>e>4,--->==-- ---"'--":::....:...._______,ff,='--= 

Laura Schaefer, City Clerk 

STATE OF IOWA ) 
) ss 

COUNTY OF CARROLL ) 

On this /?-I-Iv day of (Y~ , 2020, before me a Notary Public 
in and for said State, personally appeared Eric Jensen and Laura Schaefer, to me personally known, 
who being duly sworn, did say that they are the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of the City of 
Carroll, Iowa, a Municipality created and existing under the laws of the State oflowa, and that the 
seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is the seal of said Municipality, and that said instrument 
was signed and sealed on behalf of said Municipality by authority and resolution of its City 
Council, and said Mayor and City Clerk acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed 
of said Municipality by it voluntarily executed. 

a~ ~-~ 
Notary Public in and fmtheSte-OJowa 

Execution Version 21 
Page 179Page 179Page 179Page 179Page 179Page 179Page 179Page 179Page 179Page 179Page 179Page 179



ST A TE OF µ w o-.__ 

COUNTY OF (~ II 

) 
) ss 
) 

BTC, INC., 

On this Z...y-~ day of 5 ::-r--,_..,..._ !,,,._,__ , 2020, before me the undersigned, a Notary 
Public in and for said State, personally appeared Jeff Roi land, to me personally known, who, being 
by me duly sworn, did say that he is the CEO of BTC, Inc. and that said instrument was signed on 
behalf of said company; and that the said CEO as such officer, acknowledged the execution of said 
instrument to be the voluntary act and deed of said company, by him voluntarily executed. 

Notary Public in and for the State oflowa 

"i: KEVIN SKINNER f . . f Commission _Number 801799 
My Commission Expires 

'Ow ► February 15, 2023 

Execution Version 22 
Page 180Page 180Page 180Page 180Page 180Page 180Page 180Page 180Page 180Page 180Page 180Page 180



EXHIBIT A 

DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY 

The Development Property is described as follows: 

Lot 2, Block 1, Westfield Second Addition, Carroll, Iowa 

Parcel No. 06-14-376-003 

Execution Version A-1 

Page 181Page 181Page 181Page 181Page 181Page 181Page 181Page 181Page 181Page 181Page 181Page 181



EXHIBITB-1 

MINIMUM IMPROVEMENTS AND PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 

Minimum Improvements shall mean the construction of a 37,427 square foot building to 
be used for retail and technical support office, and a garage for vehicle and equipment storage, 
together with all related site improvements. 

The construction of the Minimum Improvements is expected to be completed by May 1, 
2021. Construction costs for the Minimum Improvements are anticipated to be no less than 
approximately $8,200,000. 

Public Improvements shall mean the construction and installation by Developer of 
underground storm water improvements along Market Drive. The construction of the storm water 
improvements will be completed by May 1, 2021, which improvements shall be dedicated to the 
City upon completion. 

Construction costs for the Public Improvements are anticipated to be approximately 
$200,000. 

See Exhibit B-2 for a depiction of the anticipated improvements to the Development 
Property. 

Execution Version B-1 
Page 182Page 182Page 182Page 182Page 182Page 182Page 182Page 182Page 182Page 182Page 182Page 182



9 I •- u:•- • BREDA TELEPHOtlE CORPORATIOII 

'I NEW FAC ILITY FOR WESTER N 
I: IOWA NETWORKS 
I ,1eo Klt'NHA'w\'I( AVEUUE 

CARROLL.IA 5\~ 1 

Execution Version 

EXHIBITB-2 
(7 pages) 

I f J• •" •••I f _ t j l • - 111 1 1'111111111 I •- •11 1 H f 1 Jl! l lfl, ! 

BUI LDI IIG COOE Pl.A ll 

FEH DESIGN 
11,0,,1,t•-v~ i.t.ioo,,u,.. Wll.0Jl:i!. a;c,o:....:;wQ;w 
lff,llUl•• flll 1llll:«c !l1::t1U1 4'1'1 ,z:,i..;,:• 

B-2 
Page 183Page 183Page 183Page 183Page 183Page 183Page 183Page 183Page 183Page 183Page 183Page 183



~ ! 9 f ,,.,.,.,.,., OREDA TELEPMONE CO!lPORATIOfi 

)> ~ ! 'i NEW FAC ILITY FOR WESTERN 
:--" ~ i I: IOWA NETWORKS 
...J. i3 I 1i90Klm ►lo\WKAVEtlUE 

CARROLL. IA. 51"'01 

Execution Version 

EXHIBIT B-2 (cont.) 

01/Efl:Al.lFLOOR PLAH 

8-2 

'-" ,~ 
!! ++-~~~ 

~ 

I 
w 
t 
~ 

FEH DES IGN 
$0.At:,.,, • =t• u:>ra "' an1.rAJ1. ,,, a: 01o.r:Y10: w 
n,;m1; 11• ,s <1- ,a♦ :f111 ,,.i,•11- r_. i,,-11:11 

Page 184Page 184Page 184Page 184Page 184Page 184Page 184Page 184Page 184Page 184Page 184Page 184



EXHIBIT B-2 (cont.) 

,i _m.,., SREOATELEPHOHECOOPOOATrOtl 

'! NEW FAC ILITY FOR WESTER N 

'i ~~~~~~;v~~.~:s 
CAR ~OLL, IA 5140 1 

EXTERIOR ELEVATOl"5 
[ ~~]:'.';".:" 
:c':~.,.,..._._ , ... . ., •• .!!!2e.!il 
..... _,_ .. 

W!I..OJII. "' a:o,:,,,:ma:w 
,1m1••◄ct .:a.i- z• 

Execution Version 8-2 
Page 185Page 185Page 185Page 185Page 185Page 185Page 185Page 185Page 185Page 185Page 185Page 185



EXHIBIT B-2 (cont.) 

! ! 5 i ...,"' ' ""-' SRl:OA TELEPHOtlE COOPOOATIO>I 

1? • ~, '! NEW FAC ILITY FOR WESTERN 
.,.. ~ I' JOWA NETWORKS 
~ s ; 1780 KITTYH4.\o','KAVEl'IUE 

EX'TE RIOR ELEVATKHIS 

FEH DESIGN 
CARROLL IA 51401 S0.,111("-r •A OUU:Uh"" Wll.r.lJl.-, a:01:.::M<a: \Oil 

{>7mll •- IHllll~:11·~ 11111,11,.- ~'· x,i. 

Execution Version B-2 
Page 186Page 186Page 186Page 186Page 186Page 186Page 186Page 186Page 186Page 186Page 186Page 186



EXHIBIT B-2 (cont.) 

'---~ ++-+-- --tr----<.') 

;3 -~ .. =~'TELEF'iiOtE-COn.i"ORl\il~ 

'! NEW FACILITY FOR WESTERN 
ii IOWA NETWORKS 
I 17.SOKrTTY'i-t'll.\'KAl/EM.E 

CAiiROt.!L.,IA SJ:0 1 

Execution Version 

EXTERIOR ELEVA TI~ 

8-2 

' ,, 
' 

--- --------- -~ 

•-X,...,. 

sf.;_ ♦t FEH DES IGN ===-~ • 
.....,,.__ --..err,111 CQMMf.11"- ~~ ~~YW 

f"JJ::""..r- ~:.-~ m:.i- !!Cl--

Page 187Page 187Page 187Page 187Page 187Page 187Page 187Page 187Page 187Page 187Page 187Page 187



cm i 
&"' ' ' t ~ ~ 
~· t" 
~ ~ -i f ;~ ,. 
! 
l 
~ 

. ' ;J Ji~!~ "' if 
~ 1

1
°n:iil 

f I I ' ai 

i 
11 l ! i! 

iii i ij l 
!l ,h1 i ~ 

11~ I• -! 
l I~ 1 

1, l - " ' :!RE!lA TB.EPHOS.: COt.t?,\,'IY 

! i NEW F/\CILITY FOR WESTERN 
II IOWA NETWORKS 

CJ\HHCLL.ft, , :,1•0 1 

Execution Version 

EXHIBIT B-2 (cont.) 

• i .,.., ~ ., 

1 ii 1 !1~ r1· I ~i ;I: I'm' 1fljji~1 
lijt''i'. 
Ii Ji" i. MI l•!i' -.; !Ii 3l . 

i I ~ • 11

11 9 i ·H f' 1l1 i ~~ . I: ·· ~,I ~ I Ii l 
a a U j!; 1 ~i fl,. 11~ ~!~! e ' • ' . ~ 

1
1;; , ••• ',1 ~ ! ~ . ! . . !1 y i 

51Te LAVOIJT FlA, 

FEH DESIGN 
!.;.t..C ti. .. u,.u.1 1, ,x..,., ,_-,,..._ 
1,1s.~>:~ ,MMI. JJ- 11:• ,IIC:;IV.,,.,.i)u 

8-2 
Page 188Page 188Page 188Page 188Page 188Page 188Page 188Page 188Page 188Page 188Page 188Page 188



Execution Version 

EXHIBIT B-2 (cont.) 

> 
- 1-- - -,,,,:.'---- -R / W 

B-2 

R/W 

,-r: 

Page 189Page 189Page 189Page 189Page 189Page 189Page 189Page 189Page 189Page 189Page 189Page 189



EXHIBITC-1 
CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION 

MINIMUM IMPROVEMENTS 

WHEREAS, the City of Carroll, Iowa (the "City") and BTC, Inc. (the "Developer") did on 
or about the __ day of ________ ________, 2020, make, execute, and deliver, each to the 
other, an Agreement for Private Development (the "Agreement"), wherein and whereby the 
Developer agreed, in accordance with the terms of the Agreement, to develop and operate certain 
real property located within the City and as more particularly described as follows: 

Lot 2, Block 1, Westfield Second Addition, Carroll, Iowa 

Parcel No. 06-14-376-003 

(the "Development Property"); and 

WHEREAS, the Agreement incorporated and contained certain covenants and restrictions 
with respect to the development of the Development Property, and obligated the Developer to 
construct certain Minimum Improvements (as defined therein) in accordance with the Agreement; 
and 

WHEREAS, Developer has to the present date performed said covenants and conditions 
insofar as they relate to the construction of said Minimum Improvements in a manner deemed by 
the City to be in conformance with the Agreement to permit the execution and recording of this 
certification. 

NOW, THEREFORE, this is to certify that all covenants and conditions of the Agreement 
with respect to the obligations of Developer and its successors and assigns, to construct the 
Minimum Improvements on the Development Property have been completed and performed by 
Developer and are hereby released absolutely and forever terminated insofar as they apply to the 
land described herein. The County Recorder of Carroll County is hereby authorized to accept for 
recording and to record the filing of this instrument, to be a conclusive determination of the 
satisfactory termination of the covenants and conditions of said Agreement with respect to the 
construction of the Minimum Improvements on the Development Property. 

All other provisions of the Agreement shall otherwise remain in full force and effect until 
termination as provided therein. 

[Signatures Start on Next Page] 

C-1 
Execution Version 

Page 190Page 190Page 190Page 190Page 190Page 190Page 190Page 190Page 190Page 190Page 190Page 190



(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

By: ___________ _ 
Laura Schaefer, City Clerk 

STATE OF IOWA ) 
) ss 

COUNTY OF CARROLL ) 

CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA 

By: ________ _ 
Eric Jensen, Mayor 

On this ____ day of __________ , 20_, before me a Notary Public 
in and for said State, personally appeared Eric Jensen and Laura Schaefer, to me personally known, 
who being duly sworn, did say that they are the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of the City of 
Carroll, Iowa, a Municipality created and existing under the laws of the State of Iowa, and that the 
seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is the seal of said Municipality, and that said instrument 
was signed and sealed on behalf of said Municipality by authority and resolution of its City 
Council, and said Mayor and City Clerk acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed 
of said Municipality by it voluntarily executed. 

Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

[Signature page to Certificate of Completion for Minimum Improvements} 

C-2 
Execution Version 

Page 191Page 191Page 191Page 191Page 191Page 191Page 191Page 191Page 191Page 191Page 191Page 191



EXHIBITC-2 
CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION 

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 

WHEREAS, the City of Carroll, Iowa (the "City") and BTC, Inc. (the "Developer") did on 
or about the __ day of _________ , 2020, make, execute, and deliver, each to the 
other, an Agreement for Private Development (the "Agreement"), wherein and whereby the 
Developer agreed, in accordance with the terms of the Agreement, to develop certain real property 
located within the City and as more particularly described as follows: 

Lot 2, Block l, Westfield Second Addition, Carroll, Iowa 

Parcel No. 06-14-376-003 

(the "Development Property"); and 

WHEREAS, the Agreement incorporated and contained certain covenants and restrictions 
with respect to the development of the Development Property, and obligated the Developer to 
construct certain Public Improvements (as defined therein) in accordance with the Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, Developer has to the present date performed said covenants and conditions 
insofar as they relate to the construction of said Public Improvements in a manner deemed by the 
City to be in conformance with the Agreement to permit the execution and recording of this 
certification. 

NOW, THEREFORE, this is to certify that all covenants and conditions of the Agreement 
with respect to the obligations of Developer and its successors and assigns, to construct the Public 
Improvements on the Development Property have been completed and performed by Developer 
and are hereby released absolutely and forever Carroll County is hereby authorized to accept for 
recording and to record the filing of this instrument, to be a conclusive determination of the 
satisfactory termination of the covenants and conditions of said Agreement with respect to the 
construction of the Public Improvements set forth in the Agreement. 

All other provisions of the Agreement shall otherwise remain in full force and effect until 
termination as provided therein. 

[Signatures Start on Next Page] 

C-3 
Execution Version 

Page 192Page 192Page 192Page 192Page 192Page 192Page 192Page 192Page 192Page 192Page 192Page 192



(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

By: ___________ _ 
Laura Schaefer, City Clerk 

STATE OF IOWA ) 
) ss 

COUNTY OF CARROLL ) 

CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA 

By: _________ _ 
Eric Jensen, Mayor 

On this ____ day of __________ , 20_, before me a Notary Public 
in and for said State, personally appeared Eric Jensen and Laura Schaefer, to me personally known, 
who being duly sworn, did say that they are the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of the City of 
Carroll, Iowa, a Municipality created and existing under the laws of the State oflowa, and that the 
seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is the seal of said Municipality, and that said instrument 
was signed and sealed on behalf of said Municipality by authority and resolution of its City 
Council, and said Mayor and City Clerk acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed 
of said Municipality by it voluntarily executed. 

Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

[Signature page to Certificate of Completion for Public Improvements] 

C-4 
Execution Version 

Page 193Page 193Page 193Page 193Page 193Page 193Page 193Page 193Page 193Page 193Page 193Page 193



Ins'lrumenl 1:1: 2020-3414 
10/14/2020 10:08:30 AM Total Pages: 3 
MIS MISCELLANEOUS 
Recording Fee: $ 17.00 
Ashten Wittrock, Recorder, Carroll County Iowa 

1111 Wii'- ~~~,~ 1,'l~1rtr~M~~M\\ 11111 

· Prepared by: Nathan J. Overberg, Ahlers & Cooney, 100 Court Ave. #600, Des Moines, IA 50309, 515-243-7611 
Return to: City Clerk, City of Carroll, 627 North Adams Street, Carroll, IA 51401 

EXHIBITD 
MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT 

WHEREAS, the City of Carroll, Iowa (the "City") and BTC, Inc. (the "Developer") did on or 
about the _1_2_ day of October , 2020, make, execute and deliver, each to the other, an 
Agreement for Private Development (the "Agreement"), wherein and whereby Developer agreed, in 
accordance with the terms of the Agreement and the Westfield Urban Renewal Plan (the "Plan"), to 
develop and operate certain real property located within the City and within the Westfield Urban Renewal 
Area, more particularly described as follows: 

Lot 2, Block 1, Westfield Second Addition, Carroll, Iowa 

Parcel No. 06-14-376-003 

(the "Development Property"); and 

WHEREAS, the term of the Agreement commenced on the~ day of October , 2020 
and terminates on December 31, 2026, unless otherwise terminated as set forth in the Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the City, and Developer desire to record a Memorandum of the Agreement referring 
to the Development Property and their respective interests therein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the recording of this Memorandum of Agreement for Private Development shall serve 
as notice to the public that the Agreement contains provisions restricting development and use of the 
Development Property and the improvements located and operated on such Development Property. 

2. That all of the provisions of the Agreement and any subsequent amendments thereto, if 
any, even though not set forth herein, are by the filing of this Memorandum of Agreement for Private 

D-1 
Execution Version 

Page 194Page 194Page 194Page 194Page 194Page 194Page 194Page 194Page 194Page 194Page 194Page 194



Development made a part hereof by reference, and that anyone making any claim against any of said 
Development Property in any manner whatsoever shall be fully advised as to all of the terms and 
conditions of the Agreement, and any amendments thereto, as if the same were fully set forth herein. 

3. That a copy of the Agreement and any subsequent amendments thereto, if any, shall be 
maintained on file for public inspection during ordinary business hours in the office of the City Clerk, 
Carroll, Iowa. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and Developer have executed this Memorandum of 
Agreement for Private Development on the '12 day of October , 2020. 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

STATE OF IOWA 

COUNTY OF CARROLL 

) 
) ss 
) 

CITY OF CARROLL, row A 

By: p f)/ 
__,~ ... E~ 1'c--F-Je-"'n'-s-en-,-M-a_y_or ______ _ 

On this /)f.lL. day of () ~0 , 2020, before me a Notary Public in and 
for said State, personally appeared Eric Jensen and Laura Schaefer, to me personally known, who being 
duly sworn, did say that they are the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of the City of Carroll, Iowa, a 
Municipality created and existing under the laws of the State of Iowa, and that the seal affixed to the 
foregoing instrument is the seal of said Municipality, and that said instrument was signed and sealed on 
behalf of said Municipality by authority and resolution of its City Council, and said Mayor and City Clerk 
acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said Municipality by it voluntarily executed. 

~ X. ~ 
Notary Public in and fo~ 

[Signature page to Memorandum of Agreement for City of Carroll] 

D-2 
Execution Version 

Page 195Page 195Page 195Page 195Page 195Page 195Page 195Page 195Page 195Page 195Page 195Page 195



STATE OF f0vvo-..., 

COUNTY OF G.....,..__ U 

) 
) ss 
) 

BTC,INC. , 

On this 2-?~ day of 5'<-t:+-,..,..., k...,-, , 2020, before me the undersigned, a Notary Public in 
and for said State, personally appeared Jeff Roiland, to me personally known, who, being by me duly 
sworn, did say that he is the CEO of BTC, Inc. and that said instrument was signed on behalf of said 
company; and that the said CEO as such officer, acknowledged the execution of said instrument to be the 
voluntary act and deed of said company, by him voluntarily executed. 

Execution Version 

Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

[Signature page to Memorandum of Agreement for Developer] 

D-3 

.... 9-\Al .r.,- KEVIN SKINNER 
{'Ji,,,._"f'r- Commission Number 801799 
• jlL.· My Commission Expires 

10w► February 15, 2023 

Page 196Page 196Page 196Page 196Page 196Page 196Page 196Page 196Page 196Page 196Page 196Page 196



EXHIBITE 
DEVELOPER ANNUAL CERTIFICATION 

(due by October 15th, or in the case of the first Annual Certification, by the 15th day of the 15th month 
following a certificate of occupancy, as required under terms of Development Agreement) 

BTC, Inc. (the "Developer") certifies the following: 

During the time period covered by this Developer Annual Certification, Developer is and was in 
compliance with Section 5.6 of the Agreement as follows: 

(i) all ad valorem taxes on the Development Property in the Westfield Urban Renewal Area 
have been paid for the prior fiscal year (and for the current year, if due) and attached to this Developer 
Annual Certification are proof of payment of said taxes; 

(ii) the Minimum Improvements were first fully assessed on January 1, 20_, at a full 
assessment value of$ ______ ., and are currently assessed at$ _______ _ 

(iii) the number of Full-Time Equivalent Employment Units employed at the Minimum 
Improvements as of October 1, 20_ and as of the first day of each of the preceding eleven (11) months 
were are follows: 

October 1, 20_: __ _ April 1, 20_: ___ _ 
September 1, 20_: ___ _ March 1, 20_: ___ _ 
August 1, 20_: ___ _ February 1, 20_: ___ _ 
July 1, 20_: ___ _ January 1, 20_: __ _ 
June 1, 20_: ___ _ December 1, 20_: __ _ 
May 1, 20_: ___ _ November 1, 20_: __ _ 

(iv) the undersigned officer of Developer have re-examined the terms and provisions of this 
Agreement and that at the date of such certification, and during the preceding twelve (12) months, certify 
that Developer is not, or was not, in default in the fulfillment of any of the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement and that no Event of Default (or event which, with the lapse of time or the giving of notice, or 
both, would become an Event of Default) is occurring or has occurred as of the date of such certification, 
or if the signers are aware of any such Event of Default, said officers have disclosed the nature thereof, its 
period of existence and what action, if any, has been taken or is proposed to be taken with respect thereto. 

I certify under penalty of perjury and pursuant to the laws of the State of Iowa that the preceding 
is true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. 

Signed this ____ day of ________ ., 20_ 

BTC,INC. 

By: 

Print Name: ------------

Its: -------------

Execution Version E-1 
Page 197Page 197Page 197Page 197Page 197Page 197Page 197Page 197Page 197Page 197Page 197Page 197



EXHIBIT F 
DEVELOPER CERTIFICATION OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT COSTS 

BTC, Inc. (the "Developer") certifies that the expenses shown on the table below were/are the actual 
expenses incurred by the Developer for the Public Improvements that are the subject of an Agreement for 
Private Development entered into the __ day of _____ , 2020 between the City of Carroll , Iowa 
and the Developer (the "Agreement"). 

Certified Costs of Public lmorovements 
Project Engineering, Construction Legal Drainage, 
Cost Plans, Costs Costs Landscaping, 
Category Specifications Grading 

Invoice 
description 

' and cost ' 

Invoice I 

-
description . ~.,_• .. . 
and cost -

•' ' . 
Invoice '. 1' . 
description - ' 
and cost 
Invoice ' 

description 
and cost 

.. .. .,, 

Invoice T rn,, f, .. 
T 

description -
J 

' ' 
and cost ·, .... ' 

K 

Invoice 
description 
and cost ' 1 . 

lnvoice . . 
description . . . , 
and cost .. 
Invoice 
description 
and cost 
Total 
Cost per 
catee:orv 

If you need additional space please attach another table . 
Attach actual receipts and invoices 

. 

' ' 
I 

Cost for Interest 
acquisition during 
of land construction 
within the and for not 
ROW more than six 

months 
thereafter 

·' ' I ' 

- ' 

' 
. . . . 

I 

-
•I . . 

' 

[Remainder of this page intentionally left blank. Signature page to follow.] 

Execution Version F-1 

Miscellaneous 

' 

' 

Page 198Page 198Page 198Page 198Page 198Page 198Page 198Page 198Page 198Page 198Page 198Page 198



I certify under penalty of perjury and pursuant to the laws of the State of Iowa that the preceding is true 
and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. 

STATE OF 

COUNTY OF __ _ 

) 
) ss 
) 

BTC,INC., 
an Iowa for profit company 

By: ------------
JeffRoiland, CEO 

On this ___ day of _______ , 2020, before me the undersigned, a Notary Public in 
and for said State, personally appeared Jeff Roiland, to me personally known, who, being by me duly 
sworn, did say that he is the CEO of BTC, Inc. and that said instrument was signed on behalf of said 
company; and that the said CEO as such officer, acknowledged the execution of said instrument to be the 
voluntary act and deed of said company, by him voluntarily executed. 

Notary Public in and for the State oflowa 

[Signature page to Developer Certification of Costs] 

0174 7960-1 \10275-075 

Execution Version F-2 
Page 199Page 199Page 199Page 199Page 199Page 199Page 199Page 199Page 199Page 199Page 199Page 199



 

City of Carroll  

627 N. Adams Street       Carroll, Iowa 51401           (712) 792-1000           FAX: (712) 792-0139  

 

   MEMO TO:  Aaron Kooiker, City Manager  

 FROM: Laura A. Schaefer, Finance Director/City Clerk 

 DATE: November 6, 2023  

 SUBJECT: Seatbelt Policy 

 

On August 29, 2023, Bill Dickey, Safety and Risk Improvement Adviser with the City’s worker 

compensation insurance carrier Iowa Municipal Workers’ Compensation Association (IMWCA), 

conducted a site visit with City staff members. There were a few recommendations offered for the 

City to review for implementation. All the recommendations, except one, can be handled by current 

staff members. One recommendation that requires Council approval is the implementation of a 

Seatbelt Policy.  

 

IMWCA recently has taken a stronger stance on having all their members implement a seatbelt policy. 

Current Safety Policy No. 0901 has one sentence stating, “The use of seat belts shall be mandatory by 

all employees operating vehicles which are equipped with seat belts.” 

 

The attached recommended new policy is from IMWCA and a little more comprehensive than what 

the City currently has in place. Upon Council approval, all staff will be given a copy of the new 

policy. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:     Council consideration and approval of a resolution approving new 

Policy No 0903, Seatbelt Policy. 

 

Page 200Page 200Page 200Page 200Page 200Page 200Page 200Page 200Page 200Page 200Page 200



 
RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING POLICY NO. 0903 – SEATBELT POLICY 

 

 WHEREAS, the Iowa Municipalities Workers’ Compensation Association has 

recommended the City of Carroll to implement and enforce a seatbelt policy and; 

 

 WHEREAS, it is determined that the approval of the attached Policy No. 0903 – Seatbelt 

Policy is in the best interest of the City of Carroll, Iowa; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Carroll, 

Iowa, that the attached new Policy No. 0903 – Seatbelt Policy is approved. 

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 13th day of November, 2023. 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE  

       CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA 

 

 

 

       ____________________________ 

       Mark E. Beardmore, Mayor 

Attest: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Laura A. Schaefer, City Clerk 

 

Page 201Page 201Page 201Page 201Page 201Page 201Page 201Page 201Page 201Page 201



 

 

CITY OF CARROLL _____________________________ 
      

       POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL  

      

Subject     Policy No. 

Seatbelt Policy 0903 

 

Responsible Division(s), Office(s) Related Policies & Procedures 

All   

   

Effective/Revision Date Approval(s)   

      

November 13, 2023  Aaron Kooiker  

     

 
This policy was created to protect the safety of our employees while operating official vehicles, 

equipment, personal and rental cars on official business. 

 

Copies of this policy and procedures will be accessible to employees at City Hall.  

 

Department Heads will be responsible for enforcing and annually evaluating the seatbelt/restraint policy 

of their department. 

 

Employees are accountable for following the policy and ensuring that other occupants of the vehicles or 

equipment they operate abide by the policy. 

 

Policy 

 

It is the policy of the City of Carroll that all employees operating official vehicles, equipment, personal 

and rental cars on official business and other occupants use seatbelts and shoulder restraints. 

 

Employees operating on and off-road equipment with a Rollover Protective Structure (ROPS) shall use 

seatbelts when operating the equipment. 

 

Employees are also prohibited from riding in or on parts of a vehicle not designed for human occupancy. 

This includes but is not limited to pick-up and truck boxes, fenders, steps and bumpers. This also applies 

to trailers, ATV/UTV dump boxes and lift buckets. 

 

Failure to comply with these rules is a violation of the City of Carroll safety policies, which is cause for 

disciplinary action. 

 

Employees should refer questions or comments about this policy to their direct supervisor. 

Employee Information and Training 

All employees will be trained on the policy. Training will be documented and the records stored at City 

Hall. 

 

 
Page 202Page 202Page 202Page 202Page 202Page 202Page 202Page 202Page 202



City of Carroll 
================================= ♦ ================================== 

627 N. Adams Street Carroll, Iowa 51401 (712) 792-1000 

MEMO TO: Aaron Kooiker, City Manager ~ h 
FROM: Randall M. Krauel, Director of Public Works j?/1;(;' 

DATE: November 8, 2023 

SUBJECT: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Digester Evaluation 

FAX: (712) 792-0139 

Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. has completed the Wastewater Treatment Plant Digester Evaluation. A copy 
of the Report is attached. 

The Evaluation was initiated to include the following: 

1. Review the condition and performance of the existing anaerobic digesters including the digester 
covers, boiler, gas equipment, gas flare, and associated items. 

2. Identify recommended improvements to the anaerobic diges ters. 

3. Evaluate the alternative of converting from anaerobic sludge digestion to aerobic sludge digestion. 

The Evaluation is detailed in the Report. A summary of the estimated 20-year present worth analysis 
of the Treatment Alternatives is as follows : 

Treatment Construction Annual Total 
Alternative Cost 0 & M Cost Present Worth 

Anaerobic $5,043,000 $29,821 $5,538,923 
Aerobic $3,410,000 $ 9,169 $3,507,136 

The Aerobic Treatment Alternative is the recomm.ended alternative. 

RECOMMENDATION: Mayor and City Council consideration of acceptance of the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant Digester Evaluation Report. 

If accepted, design and construction document preparation will be initiated for the conversion from 
anaerobic to aerobic sludge diges tion. 

RMK:ds 

attaclunent 
Page 203Page 203Page 203Page 203Page 203Page 203Page 203Page 203



 

 

 
REPORT 
 
ON 
 

FACILITY PLAN 
 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 
ANAEROBIC DIGESTER EVALUATION 
 
CARROLL, IOWA  
 
October 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 204Page 204Page 204Page 204Page 204Page 204Page 204



Prepared by 
VEENSTRA & KIMM, INC. 

West Des Moines,  
Iowa 

FACILITY PLAN 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 

ANAEROBIC DIGESTER EVALUATION 
CARROLL, IOWA 

I hereby certify that this engineering document was prepared by 
me or under my direct personal supervision and that I am a duly 
licensed Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Iowa. 

Signed: Date: 

Todd W. Penisten, P.E. 
Iowa License No. 16918 
My license renewal date is December 31, 2023 

Detailed parts covered by this seal: 

  All 

October 26, 2023

Page 205Page 205Page 205Page 205Page 205Page 205Page 205



C-1

239168 

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT ANAEROBIC DIGESTER EVALUATION 
CARROLL, IOWA 

CONTENTS 
PAGE 

INTRODUCTION ...................................................................................................................... 1-1 
SCOPE .................................................................................................................................... 1-1 
DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE AREA ............................................................................................ 1-1 
PRESENT LAND USE ................................................................................................................ 1-1 
PLANNING PERIOD ................................................................................................................. 1-1 
TOPOGRAPHY AND DRAINAGE .............................................................................................. 1-1 
SOILS .................................................................................................................................... 1-2 
COST ESTIMATES AND PRESENT WORTH ANALYSIS .............................................................. 1-2 
INDUSTRIES ............................................................................................................................ 2-1 
WASTEWATER FLOWS ........................................................................................................... 2-2 

AVERAGE DRY WEATHER (ADW) FLOW ........................................................................... 2-2 
AVERAGE WET WEATHER FLOW (AWW 30) .................................................................... 2-2 
MAXIMUM WET WEATHER (MWW) FLOW ..................................................................... 2-2 
PEAK HOURLY WET WEATHER (PHWW) FLOW ............................................................... 2-2 

EXISTING WASTEWATER HYDRAULIC AND ORGANIC LOADING  ........................................... 2-2 
WATER QUALITY STANDARDS ................................................................................................ 3-1 

CLASS A1 – PRIMARY CONTACT RECREATION USE .......................................................... 3-2 
CLASS A2 – SECONDARY CONTACT RECREATIONAL USE ................................................. 3-2 
CLASS A3 – CHILDREN’S RECREATIONAL USE .................................................................. 3-2 
CLASS B(WW-1) WARM WATER – TYPE 1 ........................................................................ 3-2 
CLASS B(WW-2) WARM WATER – TYPE 2 ........................................................................ 3-2 

RECEIVING STREAMS.............................................................................................................. 3-4 
EFFLUENT LIMITATIONS ......................................................................................................... 3-4 
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS .............................................................................................. 3-4 
PROPOSED NUTRIENT LIMITS ...............................................................................................  3-6 
DIGESTER 1 (SOUTH DIGESTER) ............................................................................................. 4-1 
DIGESTER 2 (NORTH DIGESTER) ............................................................................................. 4-1 
DIGESTER BOILER ................................................................................................................... 4-2 
DRAFT TUBE MIXING EQUIPMENT ......................................................................................... 4-2 
PRIMARY SLUDGE AND SLUDGE TRANSFER PUMPS .............................................................. 4-2 
INSIDE PROCESS PIPING, VALVES, FLOW METERS AND APPURTENANCES ........................... 4-2 
MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT AND LIGHTING ....................................................... 4-2 
GAS HANDLING AND GAS FLARE EQUIPMENT ...................................................................... 4-3 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT IMPROVEMENTS TREATMENT ALTERNATIVE NO. 1 ..... 5-1 

ANAEROBIC DIGESTER PROCESS ...................................................................................... 5-1 
DIGESTER COVERS ............................................................................................................ 5-1 
BOILER .............................................................................................................................. 5-1 

Page 206Page 206Page 206Page 206Page 206Page 206Page 206



C-2

239168 

DRAFT TUBE MIXING AND HEAT EXCHANGER EQUIPMENT ............................................ 5-2 
GAS HANDLING AND GAS SAFETY EQUIPMENT ............................................................... 5-2 
INSIDE PROCESS PIPING, VALVES AND FLOW METERS .................................................... 5-2 
HVAC EQUIPMENT ........................................................................................................... 5-2 
INTERIOR AND EXTERIOR LIGHTING ................................................................................ 5-3 
MEMBRANE ROOFING ..................................................................................................... 5-3 
ALTERNATIVE NO. 1 ANAEROBIC DIGESTER PROCESS ESTIMATED PROJECT COST ........ 5-3 

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT IMPROVEMENTS TREATMENT ALTERNATIVE NO. 2 ..... 5-4 
BLOWERS AND AIR DIFFUSERS ........................................................................................ 5-4 
ALUMINUM GEODESIC DOMES ....................................................................................... 5-4 
INSIDE PROCESS PIPING, VALVES AND FLOW METERS .................................................... 5-4 
HVAC EQUIPMENT ........................................................................................................... 5-5 
INTERIOR AND EXTERIOR LIGHTING  ............................................................................... 5-5 
MEMBRANE ROOFING ..................................................................................................... 5-5 
ALTERNATIVE NO. 2 AEROBIC DIGESTER PROCESS ESTIMATED PROJECT COST ............. 5-5 

PRESENT WORTH ANALYSIS ................................................................................................... 6-1 
RECOMMENDED ALTERNATIVES ........................................................................................... 6-1 
NATURAL ENVIRONMENT ...................................................................................................... 7-1 

WATER QUALITY............................................................................................................... 7-1 
AIR QUALITY ..................................................................................................................... 7-1 
NOISE ............................................................................................................................... 7-2 
ENERGY ............................................................................................................................ 7-2 

SOCIO-ECONOMICAL FACTORS .............................................................................................. 7-2 
POPULATION .................................................................................................................... 7-2 
ECONOMY ........................................................................................................................ 7-2 
LAND USE ......................................................................................................................... 7-2 

SENSITIVE AREAS .................................................................................................................... 7-3 
WILDLIFE HABITATS ......................................................................................................... 7-3 
RARE AND ENDANGERED SPECIES ................................................................................... 7-3 
CULTURAL RESOURCES .................................................................................................... 7-4 
RECREATIONAL AND OPEN SPACE ................................................................................... 7-4 

IRRETRIEVABLE AND IRREVERSIBLE COMMITMENT OF RESOURCES .................................... 7-4 
METHODS OF FINANCING ...................................................................................................... 8-1 

REVENUE BONDS ............................................................................................................. 8-1 
STATE REVOLVING FUND (SRF) ........................................................................................ 8-1 

TABLES 

TABLE 2-1 POPULATION ..................................................................................................... 2-1 
TABLE 2-2 EXISTING PERMITTED DESIGN CAPACITY .......................................................... 2-2 
TABLE 6-1 PRESENT WORTH ANALYSIS .............................................................................. 6-1 
TABLE 6-2    ALT. NO. 1 ANAEROBIC DIGESTER PROCESS ESTIMATED PROJECT COST ......... 6-2 

Page 207Page 207Page 207Page 207Page 207Page 207Page 207



 

 C-3 
 

239168 

FIGURES 
                                                                                                   
FIGURE 5-1  AEROBIC SLUDGE DIGESTER BLOWER LAYOUT ............................. after Chapter 5 

 
APPENDICES 

 
APPENDIX A – DIGESTER COVER PROPOSAL 
APPENDIX B – DRAFT TUBE MIXER PROPOSAL 
APPENDIX C – GAS HANDLING & GAS SAFETY EQUIPMENT 
APPENDIX D – AEROBIC DIGESTER EQUIPMENT PROPOSAL 
APPENDIX E – WWTP ALUMINUM DOMES PROPOSAL 
APPENDIX F – ANAEROBIC DIGESTER NATURAL GAS CONSUMPTION 
APPENDIX G – AEROBIC DIGESTER POWER CONSUMPTION 
 
 

Page 208Page 208Page 208Page 208Page 208Page 208Page 208



1-1

CHAPTER 1 - GENERAL 

INTRODUCTION 

This report presents the results of the Facility Plan completed for the City of Carroll.  The 
wastewater treatment plant sludge digestion Facility Plan was undertaken to address the removal 
and replacement of existing anaerobic sludge digestion equipment that is nearing the end of the 
anticipated design life. 

SCOPE 

This report presents the results of the engineering studies and analysis of the wastewater 
treatment facility for the City of Carroll, Iowa.  The studies include the following: 

1. Identification of alternatives for upgrading or replacing the existing wastewater
treatment facility to meet current and future needs for sludge digestion.

2. Preliminary design considerations, estimated cost and methods of financing the
recommended improvements.

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE AREA 

The service area includes the incorporated limits of the City of Carroll.  The City of Carroll is 
located in West Central Iowa approximately 90 miles northwest of Des Moines.     

PRESENT LAND USE 

The community consists of residential development with some commercial and industrial 
development.  

PLANNING PERIOD 

The Iowa Department of Natural Resources requires the planning period for proposed 
improvements extend at least 20 years beyond the date when the improvements are scheduled 
to begin operation.  For the purposes of this report, the planning period will be 20 years and 
extend to the year 2043. 

TOPOGRAPHY AND DRAINAGE 

The general ground surface topography consists of nearly level to strongly sloping terrain.  The 
drainage in the study area flows into an Unnamed Creek to the Middle Raccoon River. 

Page 209Page 209Page 209Page 209Page 209Page 209Page 209



 
1-2 

SOILS 
 
Generally, the soil types in the study area can be characterized as well-drained and poorly 
drained loamy or silty materials. 
 
COST ESTIMATES AND PRESENT WORTH ANALYSES 
 
All costs included herein represent present day costs.  No provisions have been made for 
inflation or deflation.   
 

Page 210Page 210Page 210Page 210Page 210Page 210Page 210



2-1

CHAPTER 2 – POPULATION, FLOWS AND LOADINGS 

The population projections of the City of Carroll are based on the Carroll 2013 Comprehensive 
Plan report prepared by the Region VII Council of Governments.  That study utilized the 
forecasts made by Woods & Pooole Economics Incorporated, a national economics research 
firm, for each county in the United States.  The population projections of the City of Carroll 
were interpolated from the Carroll County projections made by Woods & Pool Economics 
Incorporated.  

The population projections of the City of Carroll are summarized below in Table 2-1 

TABLE 2-1 
Population 

 Year Population 
1910 3,546 
1920 4,254 
1930 4,691 
1940 5,389 
1950 6,231 
1960 7,682 
1970 8,716 
1980 9,705 
1990 9,579 
2000 
2010 
2020 
2030 

10,106 
10,103 
10,321 
10,473 

2043   10,705* 
*Estimate

INDUSTRIES 

The City of Carroll is home to two Significant Industrial User (SIU), Smithfield Farmland Corp. 
and Carroll County Solid Waste Management Commission. The City has a Pretreatment 
Agreement with both Smithfield Farmland Corp. and Carroll County Solid Waste Management 
Commission included in their NPDES permit.  Effluent flow from both Smithfield Farmland Corp. 
and Carroll County Solid Waste Management Commission are reported in the City’s monthly 
operating reports to IDNR. 

Page 211Page 211Page 211Page 211Page 211Page 211Page 211



 
2-2 

WASTEWATER FLOWS 
 
The Iowa Department of Natural Resources requires wastewater flows during specific 
conditions be determined to establish the design parameters for improvements to wastewater 
treatment facilities. These conditions include the following: 
 

Average Dry Weather (ADW) Flow – The daily average flow when the groundwater is at 
or near normal and runoff is not occurring. 
 
Average Wet Weather Flow (AWW 30) – The daily average flow for the wettest 30 
consecutive days.  
 
Maximum Wet Weather (MWW) Flow – The total maximum flow received during any 
24-hour period when the groundwater is high and runoff is occurring.  
 
Peak Hourly Wet Weather (PHWW) Flow – The total maximum flow received during 
one hour when the groundwater is high, runoff is occurring, and the domestic, 
commercial and industrial flows are at their peak. 

 
EXISTING WASTEWATER HYDRAULIC AND ORGANIC LOADINGS  
 
The existing wastewater hydraulic and organic loadings for the wastewater treatment facility will 
remain unchanged under this facility plan.  If future upgrades to the existing wastewater treatment 
facility become necessary the design flows and loadings will be modified accordingly.   
    

TABLE 2-2  
EXISTING PERMITTED DESIGN CAPACITY  

CARROLL, IOWA Flow/Loading  
Flow, mgd  

Existing Permitted  
Design Capacity  

ADW  1.600  
AWW  4.200  
MWW  6.300  

PHWW (Plant Capacity) 
PHWW (Plant Capacity plus 

Equalization Basin  

6.300 
15.00 

Organic Loadings, lbs./day  
BOD  
TKN  

4,735  
1,021 

 
 
 

 

Page 212Page 212Page 212Page 212Page 212Page 212Page 212



3 - 1 
 

 CHAPTER 3 - EFFLUENT LIMITATIONS 
 

GENERAL 
 
This chapter discusses the water quality standards and effluent limitations which impact the 
proposed improvements to the Carroll, Iowa Wastewater Treatment Plant.  Point discharges of 
pollution in Iowa are normally regulated by permits issued by IDNR.  Because the permits limit 
the quantity of certain parameters and pollutants in the effluent from point sources, the 
limitations which apply to a given effluent are essential for proper planning and design of 
wastewater treatment facilities.  These effluent limitations are also, in turn, directly related to 
the water quality standards which apply to the river or stream receiving the discharge and must 
be appropriately modified to suit local conditions. 
 
WATER QUALITY STANDARDS 
 
Water quality standards for the State of Iowa are regulated by IDNR and presented in Section 
567 - Environmental Protection Commission of the Iowa Administrative Code under Chapter 61 
- Water Quality Standards.  IDNR has developed a classification system for all surface waters in 
the State of Iowa to define water quality according to use and for the protection of beneficial 
uses.  This classification system establishes general use and designated use river and stream 
segments.  
 
General use segments are watercourses with intermittent flow or typically flow only for short 
periods of time following precipitation or as a result of discharges from wastewater treatment 
facilities.  These waters do not support a viable aquatic community of significance during low 
flow, and do not maintain pooled conditions during periods of no flow. However, during 
elevated flow periods when sufficient flow exists in the intermittent watercourses to support 
various uses, the general use segments are to be protected in accordance with the “General 
Water Quality Criteria” which are discussed later in this chapter.  Also, aquatic life existing 
within these watercourses during elevated flows are to be protected from acutely toxic 
conditions. 
 
Designated use segments are bodies of water which maintain flow throughout the year, or 
contain sufficient pooled areas during intermittent flow periods to maintain a viable aquatic 
community of significance.  Designated use waters are to be protected for all uses of general 
use segments in addition to the specific uses assigned.   
 
 

Page 213Page 213Page 213Page 213Page 213Page 213Page 213



3 - 2 
 

Designated use segments include: 
 

Class A1 - Primary Contact Recreation Use:  Waters in which recreational or other uses 
may result in prolonged and direct contact with the water, involving considerable risk of 
ingesting water in quantities sufficient to pose a health hazard. Such activities would 
include, but not be limited to, swimming, diving, water skiing, and water contact 
recreational canoeing. 

 
Class A2 - Secondary Contact Recreational Use:  Waters in which recreational or other 
uses may result in contact with the water that is either incidental or accidental. During 
the recreational use, the probability of ingesting appreciable quantities of water is 
minimal. Class A2 uses include fishing, commercial and recreational boating, any limited 
contact incidental to shoreline activities and activities in which users do not swim or 
float in the water body while on a boating activity. 

 
Class A3 - Children’s Recreational Use:   Waters in which recreational uses by children 
are common. Class A3 waters are water bodies having definite banks and bed with 
visible evidence of the flow or occurrence of water. This type of use would primarily 
occur in urban or residential areas. 

 
Class B(WW-1) Warm Water - Type 1:  Waters in which temperature, flow and other 
habitat characteristics are suitable to maintain warm water game fish populations along 
with a resident aquatic community that includes a variety of native nongame fish and 
invertebrate species. These waters generally include border rivers, large interior rivers, 
and the lower segments of medium-size tributary streams. 

 
Class B(WW-2) Warm Water - Type 2:  Waters in which flow or other physical 
characteristics are capable of supporting a resident aquatic community that includes a 
variety of native nongame fish and invertebrate species. The flow and other physical 
characteristics limit the maintenance of warm water game fish populations. These 
waters generally consist of small perennially flowing streams. 

 
 

Page 214Page 214Page 214Page 214Page 214Page 214Page 214



3 - 3 
 

IDNR has also established “General Water Quality Criteria” which are applicable to all surface 
waters including those which are designated use segments.  As stated in Chapter 61, the 
“General Water Quality Criteria” are applicable at all places and at all times to protect livestock 
and wildlife watering, aquatic life, non-contact recreation, crop irrigation, and industrial, 
domestic, agricultural and other incidental water withdrawal uses not protected by specific 
numerical criteria.  The “General Water Quality Criteria” are as follows: 
 

1. Such waters shall be free from substances attributable to point source waste discharges 
that will settle to form sludge deposits. 

 
2. Such waters shall be free from floating debris, oil, grease, scum, and other floating 

materials attributable to wastewater discharges or agricultural practices in amounts 
sufficient to create a nuisance.  

 
3. Such waters shall be free from materials attributable to wastewater discharges or 

agricultural practices producing objectionable color, odor, or other aesthetically 
objectionable conditions.   
 

4. Such waters shall be free from substances attributable to wastewater discharges or 
agricultural practices in concentrations or combinations which or toxic to human, 
animal, or plant life. 
 

5. Such waters shall be free from substances attributable to wastewater discharges or 
agricultural practices, in quantities which would produce undesirable or nuisance 
aquatic life.   
 

6. The turbidity of the receiving water shall not be increased by more than 25 
Nephelometric turbidity units by any point source discharge. 
 

7. Cations and anions guideline values to protect livestock watering may be found in the 
“Supporting Document for Iowa Water Quality Management Plans,” Chapter IV, July 
1976, as revised on November 11, 2009. 

 
8. The Escherichia coli (E. coli) content of water which enters a sinkhole or losing stream 

segment, regardless of the water body’s designated use, shall not exceed a Geometric 
Mean value of 126 organisms/100 ml or a sample maximum value of 235 organisms/100 
ml. No new wastewater discharges will be allowed on watercourses which directly or 
indirectly enter sinkholes or losing stream segments. 

 
  

Page 215Page 215Page 215Page 215Page 215Page 215Page 215



3 - 4 

RECEIVING STREAMS 

The City of Carroll currently discharges its treated wastewater into an Unnamed Creek which 
discharges to Middle Raccoon River.  This Unnamed Creek is classified as secondary contact 
recreational use (Class A2) and a warm water fisheries.  

EFFLUENT LIMITATIONS 

The Federal Wastewater Treatment Act Amendment of 1972 (PL92-500) increased the role each 
state plays in control of the discharge of pollutants into its waterways.  Under this amendment, 
the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit program was established 
which is administered by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).  Monitoring and 
surveillance of water quality is conducted by IDNR through its operation permit program.  IDNR 
has assumed the responsibility of the NPDES program for the State and the program is now 
operated through the state operating permit system.  The NPDES permit establishes effluent 
limitations for all wastewater treatment systems discharging or planning to discharge effluent 
to rivers and streams within the State of Iowa. 

REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 

The City of Carroll’s Wastewater Treatment Plant operates under Iowa NPDES Permit 
No. 1415001 issued by the IDNR.  The current permit was issued on September 1, 2023 and 
expires on August 31, 2027. A copy of this permit is included in Appendix A. A summary of the 
major effluent parameters of the operating permit are: 

Parameter  Permit Limit 
Average 30 Day CBOD5, mg/l       25 
Average 30 Day CBOD5, ppd 876 
Maximum 7 Day Average CBOD5, mg/l 40 
Maximum 7 Day Average CBOD5, ppd 1,401 

Average 30 Day TSS, mg/l 30 
Average 30 Day TSS, ppd 1,051 
Maximum 7 Day Average TSS, mg/l 45 
Maximum 7 Day Average TSS, ppd 1,576 

Average 30 Day TKN, ppd 1,940 
Daily Maximum, ppd 3,175 

D.O. Yearly Minimum, mg/l 5.0 

Minimum pH 6.5 

Daily Maximum pH 9.0 

Page 216Page 216Page 216Page 216Page 216Page 216Page 216



3 - 5 
 

   Acute Toxicity, Ceriodaphnia  Effective Dates 09/01/2022 to 08/31/2027 
   Yearly, Daily Maximum    1 No Toxicity 
 
   Acute Toxicity  Effective Dates 09/01/2022 to 08/31/2027 
   Yearly, Daily Maximum    1 No Toxicity   
    
   Copper, Total (as CU)  Effective Dates 10/01/2023 to 08/31/2027 

Average 30 Day CU, mg/l  0.001687 
Average 30 Day CU, ppd  0.5908 
Daily Maximum CU, mg/l  0.02690 
Daily Maximum CU, ppd  0.9422 
 
Chloride, Total (as CL) Effective Dates 08/01/2027 to 08/31/2027 
Average 30 Day CU, mg/l  389 
Average 30 Day CU, ppd  13,614 
Daily Maximum CU, mg/l  629 
Daily Maximum CU, ppd  22,027 
 
Selenium, Total (as SE)  Effective Dates 08/01/2027 to 08/31/2027 
Average 30 Day SE, mg/l  0.00500 
Average 30 Day SE, ppd  0.1751 
Daily Maximum SE, mg/l  0.01930 
Daily Maximum SE, ppd  0.6760 
 
Thallium, Total (as TL)  Effective Dates 08/01/2027 to 08/31/2027 
Average 30 Day TL, mg/l  0.001133 
Average 30 Day TL, ppd  0.02531 
Daily Maximum TL, mg/l  0.5980 
Daily Maximum TL, ppd  0.20.95 
 
Ammonia Nitrogen 
   30-Day Average (mg/L)                             Maximum Day (mg/l) 

 
 January   3.5     15.2   
 February   4.1     14.2 
 March    3.5     14.7 
 April    1.6     15.7 
 May    1.8     12.1 
 June    1.4     7.3 
 July    1.0     5.0 
 August    1.0     5.6 
 September   1.1     6.6 
 October   1.6     12.3 
 November   2.4     14.7 
 December   2.6     16.0 

Page 217Page 217Page 217Page 217Page 217Page 217Page 217



3 - 6 
 

 
    
 E. Coli (March to November), Geometric Mean   126#/100 ml 
 
The disinfection requirements are such that the geometric mean is less than 126 colonies of E. 
coli per 100 ml.  The E. coli effluent limitations are only required to be met from March 15 
through November 15 of each year. 
 
Proposed Nutrient Limits 
 
The current permit, page 26, includes a requirement to prepare and submit a report that 
evaluates the feasibility and reasonableness of reducing the amounts of nitrogen and 
phosphorous discharged into surface water.  
 
The Final Effluent goal to achieve is on an annual average mass limits based upon AWW design 
flow as follows: 
 
             Concentration  % Removal 
   Total Nitrogen   10.0 mg/l  66% 
   Total Phosphorous   1.0 mg/l  75% 
 
 

Page 218Page 218Page 218Page 218Page 218Page 218Page 218



 
4-1 

CHAPTER 4 – EXISTING ANAEROBIC DIGESTION 
 
GENERAL 
 
This chapter of the report focuses on the existing wastewater treatment plant, specifically the 
existing anaerobic digestion process.  A review of the plan drawings and a physical inspection 
was performed for Digester 1 (south digester), Digester 2 (north digester), digester boiler, draft 
tube mixing equipment, inside process piping, mechanical and electrical equipment, gas 
handling and gas flare equipment. 
 
Digester 1 (south digester) 
 
Digester 1 includes a 35-foot diameter anaerobic digestion tank, fixed digester cover, and one 
7.5 horsepower draft tube mixer with a rated capacity of 9,000 gallons per minute.  The fixed 
cover appears to be in fair condition.  The condition of the concrete tank appears to be good 
condition. 
 
Digester 2 (north digester) 
 
Digester 2 includes a 40-foot diameter anaerobic digestion tank, floating gasholder digester 
cover with 10,000 cubic feet of usable digester gas storage, and one 10 horsepower draft tube 
mixer with rated capacity of 10,200 gallons per minute.  The floating cover appears to be fair to 
poor condition.  The exposed area of the digester cover includes some moderate rust in spot 
locations.  The condition of the concrete tank appears to be good condition. 
 
A breakdown of the digesters is shown below. 
 
Anaerobic  Digesters 
 
 Number                                 2 
 Classification        Complete Mix 
 Digester 1         
  Diameter, ft.                            35 
  Sidewater Depth, ft.                           25 
  Volume, Cubic Feet (CF)                               24,000 
  Cover                                     Fixed 
 Digester 2 
  Diameter                                         40 
  Sidewater Depth, ft.                                        25 
  Volume, CF                                 31,400 
  Cover          Floating, Gas Holder 
 Organic Loading, lbs. VSS/1,000 CF/Day                                      80 
 Detention Time, Days                                         41 
 Operation, Temperature. oF                                        95 

Page 219Page 219Page 219Page 219Page 219Page 219Page 219



 
4-2 

Digester Boiler 
 
The digester boiler is approaching the end of the anticipated design life.  The boiler currently 
functions as desired. 
 
Draft Tube Mixing Equipment 
 
The mixing equipment on each digester includes an externally mounted, mechanical sludge 
mixer including a draft tube, propeller with a shaft, drive assembly and housing, and heat 
exchanger.  The draft tub mixing is approaching the end of the anticipated design life.  The 
equipment currently functions as desired. 
 
Primary Sludge and Sludge Transfer Pumps 
 
The sludge pumping equipment located in the lower level of the digester building currently 
functions as desired.  The existing sludge pumps have been periodically rebuilt and are 
currently operation as desired. 
 
Inside Process Piping, Valves, Flow Meters and Appurtenances 
 
The inside process piping of the existing digesters is primarily 6-inch and 4-inch ductile iron 
pipe.  6-inch ductile iron pipe, 6-inch plug valves and 6-inch check valves are utilized for the 
digester sludge piping.  4-inch ductile iron pipe and 4-inch plug valves are utilized for digester 
gas piping.  There are flow meters on the primary sludge piping, sludge transfer piping, piping 
to the sludge lagoon, and supernatant return piping.  A majority of the plug and check valves 
are anticipated to be approaching the end of the design life.  Several of the flow meters are also 
experiencing issues. 
 
The exterior of the existing piping appears to be in good condition.  The of the interior of the 
piping is an unknown.  It is anticipated that a majority of the interior of the digester piping is in 
good condition and should be able to continue to remain in service.   
 
The digester piping that extends into each of the digester tanks would likely need to be 
replaced with new ductile iron piping.  Both the interior and exterior of this piping is 
continuously exposed to both raw and digested sludge.  Therefore, we anticipate that the 
condition of this piping is such that it would need to be replaced with new ductile iron piping. 
 
There are known issues with several of the plug valves, check valves, and flow meters on the 
inside process piping.  Therefore, we would anticipated that all existing valves and flow meters 
would need to be replaced.  
 
Mechanical, Electrical Equipment and Lighting 
 
The existing heating and ventilation equipment including multiple unit heaters in the upper and 

Page 220Page 220Page 220Page 220Page 220Page 220Page 220



 
4-3 

lower levels of the digester building are in need of replacement. The roof top make-up air unit 
and condensing unit are approaching the end of the anticipated design life and will need to be 
replaced.  This includes the make-up air units for the digester building and the preliminary 
treatment building.  The preliminary treatment building is located east of the digesters. 
 
The interior and exterior lighting of the digester building is original to the 2004-2005 
wastewater treatment plant improvements project.  Overall, the interior and exterior lighting 
continue to function as desired. 
 
Gas Handling and Gas Flare Equipment 
 
The existing gas handling and glass flare equipment includes the following items: 

1. Waste gas burner 
2. Ignition system 
3. Pressure relief valve breaker valve 
4. Pressure (Explosion) Relief Valve 
5. Gas monitoring equipment 
6. Flame trap assembly 
7. Sediment trap 
8. Flame check 
9. Manometers 
10. Drip trap 
11. Manometer 
12. Waste gas meter 
13. Boiler gas meter 
14. Gas bonnet(s) 
15. Vacuum breaker valve  
16. Flame arrester 

 
These items are approaching the end of the anticipated design life and will need to be replaced. 
 

Page 221Page 221Page 221Page 221Page 221Page 221Page 221



 
5-1 

CHAPTER 5 – DIGESTER IMPROVEMENT ALTERNATIVES 
 
GENERAL 
 
This chapter identifies improvement alternatives at the wastewater treatment plant for the 
existing anaerobic digesters.  The improvement alternatives are to address the issues currently 
being experienced with Digester 1, Digester 2 and the various components that comprise the 
anaerobic digester process. 
 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT IMPROVEMENTS 
 
TREATMENT ALTERNATIVE NO. 1 
ANAEROBIC DIGESTER PROCESS 
 
This report evaluated two alternatives for sludge digestion.  The first alternative would be to 
rehabilitate the existing anaerobic digester process equipment.  This would include removing 
and replacing the following items: 
 

1. Digester covers 
2. Boiler 
3. Draft tube mixing and heat exchanger equipment 
4. Gas handling and gas safety equipment 
5. Inside process piping, valves, and flow meters 
6. HVAC equipment 
7. Interior and exterior lighting 
8. Membrane roof 

 
Digester Covers 
 
The existing fixed 35-foot diameter digester cover on Digester 1 will be removed and replaced 
with a new fixed 35-foot diameter cover.   
 
The existing floating 40-foot diameter digester cover and gas holder on Digester 2 will be 
removed and replaced with a new floating 40-foot diameter cover and gas holder. 
 
See Appendix A – Digester Cover Proposal for additional information on the proposed digester 
covers. 
 
Boiler 
 
The existing Burnham fire tube boiler and burner located in the Boiler Room will be replaced 
with a new boiler including a forced draft burner, controls, fuel train and accessory 
components.  New circulation pumps, control valves, piping insulation and piping accessories 
will also be provided.  Lastly, the boiler breeching stack extending through the roof of the 

Page 222Page 222Page 222Page 222Page 222Page 222Page 222



 
5-2 

Digester Building will also be replaced. 
 
Draft Tube Mixing and Heat Exchanger Equipment 
 
The existing draft tube mixers and heat exchangers on Digester 1 and Digester 2 will be 
replaced with new draft tube mixers and heat exchangers. 
 
See Appendix B – Draft Tube Mixer Proposal for additional information on the draft tube mixing 
and heat exchanger equipment. 
 
Gas Handling and Gas Safety Equipment 
 
The existing gas handling and gas safety equipment will be replaced with all new equipment.  
This would include the following items: 
 

1. Waste gas burner and ignition system 
2. Sediment trap 
3. Sight glass 
4. Flame trap assembly 
5. Pressure relief assembly 
6. Drip trap 
7. Relief valve and flame arrestor 
8. Insulating jackets for relief valves and flame arrestor assembly 

 
See Appendix C – Gas Handling and Gas Safety Equipment proposal for additional information 
on the proposal equipment. 
 
Inside Process Piping, Valves and Flow Meters 
 
To the extent possible the inside process piping will be reused as part of this project.  It is 
anticipated that the digester piping that extends into each digester tank will need to be 
replaced.  This is due to the constant submergence of the interior and exterior of the piping in 
both raw and digested sludge.  The piping inside the digester building is assumed to be in good 
condition as only the interior of the piping is exposed to raw and digested sludge.  The existing 
plug valves, check valves and flow meters will all be replaced as part of this project. 
 
HVAC Equipment 
 
The existing mechanical equipment in the Digester Building will be replaced.  This includes the 
make-up air unit, ductwork and HVAC controls.  Testing and balancing of the equipment will 
also be performed. 
 
 
 

Page 223Page 223Page 223Page 223Page 223Page 223Page 223



 
5-3 

Interior and Exterior Lighting 
 
Both the interior and exterior lighting will be replaced as part this project.  The new lighting will 
consist of modern LED light fixtures and bulbs.  This upgrade will significantly improve the 
working conditions inside the Digester Building. 
 
Membrane Roofing 
 
The existing ballasted membrane roof will be replaced with either an adhered membrane roof 
or a ballasted membrane roof.  
 

TREATMENT ALTERNATIVE NO. 1 – ANAEROBIC DIGESTER PROCESS 
Estimated Project Cost 

 
Description Estimated Cost 
Mobilization $180,000   
Demolition $100,000 
Digester Covers $950,000 
Boiler 
Draft Tube Mixing & Heat Exchanger 

$410,000 
$900,000 

Gas Handling and Gas Safety Equipment $350,000 
Inside Process Piping, Valves and Flow Meters $250,000 
HVAC Equipment $355,000 
Interior and Exterior Lighting                    $170,000 
Electrical & SCADA $200,000 
Membrane Roofing $45,000 
Painting $75,000 
                                              Construction Subtotal $3,985,000 
                                              Contingencies @ 10% $400,000 
                                                     Construction Cost $4,385,000 

Engineering, Legal & Administration @ 15% $658,000 
Estimated Project Cost $5,043,000 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 224Page 224Page 224Page 224Page 224Page 224Page 224



 
5-4 

TREATMENT ALTERNATIVE NO. 2 
AEROBIC DIGESTER PROCESS 
 
The second alternative would include converting the existing anaerobic digester process to an 
aerobic digester process.  A fine bubble aeration system would be installed inside each digester 
tank.  This alternative would include removing the existing anaerobic digester components and 
installing the following items: 
 

1. Blowers and air diffusers 
2. Air piping and valves 
3. Aluminum geodesic domes  
4. Inside process piping, valves, and flow meters 
5. HVAC equipment 
6. Lighting 
7. Membrane roof 

 
Blowers and Air Diffusers 
 
Three blowers would be installed inside of the Digester Building. See Figure 5-1, following this 
page, for the proposed location of the blowers.  Two of the blowers would operate as duty 
blowers with the third blower being a standby blower.  The PLC for the blowers would alternate 
the operation of the blowers such that the standby blower would periodically operate as a duty 
blower.   
 
The air diffusers for the aerobic digester process will include the installation of fine bubble type 
diffusers in each digester tank.   
 
See Appendix D – Aerobic Digester Equipment Proposal for additional information on the 
aerobic digester equipment including two preliminary fine bubble diffuser layouts for the 
digester tanks. 
 
Aluminum Geodesic Domes 
 
An aluminum geodesic self-supporting dome will be installed over the top of each digester tank. 
See Appendix E – WWTP Aluminum Domes Proposal. 
 
Inside Process Piping, Valves and Flow Meters 
 
To the extent possible the inside process piping will be reused as part of this project.  It is 
anticipated that the digester piping that extends into each digester tank will need to be 
replaced.  This is due to the constant submergence of the interior and exterior of the piping in 
both raw and digested sludge.  The piping inside the digester building is assumed to be in good 
condition as only the interior of the piping is exposed to raw and digested sludge.  The existing 
plug valves, check valves and flow meters will all be replaced as part of this project. 

Page 225Page 225Page 225Page 225Page 225Page 225Page 225



 
5-5 

 
 
HVAC Equipment 
 
The existing mechanical equipment in the Digester Building will be replaced.  This includes the 
make-up air unit, ductwork and HVAC controls.  Testing and balancing of the equipment will 
also be performed. 
 
Interior and Exterior Lighting 
 
Both the interior and exterior lighting will be replaced as part this project.  The new lighting will 
consist of modern LED light fixtures and bulbs.  This upgrade will significantly improve the 
working conditions inside the Digester Building. 
 
Membrane Roofing 
 
The existing ballasted membrane roof will be replaced with either an adhered membrane roof 
or a ballasted membrane roof.  
 

TREATMENT ALTERNATIVE NO. 2 – AEROBIC DIGESTER PROCESS 
Estimated Project Cost 

 
Description Estimated Cost 
Mobilization $160,000   
Demolition $100,000 
Blowers & Air Diffusers $800,000 
Aluminum Geodesic Domes $550,000 
Inside Process Piping, Valves and Flow Meters $250,000 
HVAC Equipment $445,000 
Interior and Exterior Lighting                    $170,000 
Electrical $150,000 
Membrane Roofing $45,000 
Painting $25,000 
                                              Construction Subtotal                 $2,695,000 
                                              Contingencies @ 10% $270,000 
                                                     Construction Cost $2,965,000 
       Engineering, Legal & Administration @ 15% $445,000 
                                            Estimated Project Cost $3,410,000 

  
  
  

 

Page 226Page 226Page 226Page 226Page 226Page 226Page 226



3000 Westown Parkway    ●    West Des Moines, Iowa 50266-1320
515-225-8000    ●    515-255-7848(FAX)    ●    800-241-8000(WATS)

P
ag

e 
22

7
P

ag
e 

22
7

P
ag

e 
22

7
P

ag
e 

22
7

P
ag

e 
22

7
P

ag
e 

22
7

P
ag

e 
22

7

AutoCAD SHX Text
101

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROCESS ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOILER ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIGESTER 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIGESTER 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLOTTED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE PATH:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISSUED FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG. NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA

AutoCAD SHX Text
27361

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS NOTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
JPB

AutoCAD SHX Text
JPB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TWP

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
10/18/23

AutoCAD SHX Text
C:\DWG\27361\PRODUCTION DWG'S\50-P

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wednesday, October 18, 2023 6:57:36 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
45°

AutoCAD SHX Text
45°

AutoCAD SHX Text
AEROBIC SLUDGE DIGESTER BLOWER LAYOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0" 



6-1 
 

CHAPTER 6 – ANALYSIS OF ALTERNATIVES 
 

GENERAL 
 
As of part of this Facility Plan, two alternatives were evaluated for improvements to the existing 
anaerobic digesters located at the City of Carroll wastewater treatment plant.  The two 
treatment alternatives are as follows: 
 
 Treatment Alternative No. 1 – Anaerobic Digester Process 
 Treatment Alternative No. 2 – Aerobic Digester Process 
 
PRESENT WORTH ANALYSIS 
 
The present worth analysis for both alternatives is presented in Table 6-1 Present Worth 
Analysis.  See Appendices F and G for the operation and maintenance costs for both the 
anaerobic and aerobic treatment processes. 
 

Table 6-1 - Present Worth Analysis 
Wastewater Water Treatment Plant Improvement Alternatives 

Treatment Alternative 
Treatment Alternative 
Cost 

Annual O&M 
Cost 

Present 
Worth of 
O&M Cost* 

Total Present 
Worth** 

Treatment Alt. No. 1 – Anaerobic  $5,043,000 $29,821 $315,923 $5,538,923 
Treatment Alt. No. 2 – Aerobic $3,410,000 $9,169 $97,136 $3,507,136 
* Present Worth of OM * 7%, 20 years = Annual O&M Cost x 10.594 (to determine Present Worth of Annual Amount) 
** Total Present Worth = Total Project Cost + Present Worth of O&M Cost     

 
 
RECOMMENDED ALTERNATIVES 
 
Treatment Alternative No. 1 – Anaerobic Digester Process is the less viable option due to not 
only the estimated construction cost and life cycle cost, but also due to safety and 
environmental impacts.  The operation of anaerobic digesters includes the safety risk of 
potential explosion due to the high output of methane (CH4) gas.  The methane gas can also 
cause nuisance odors and result in complaints from nearby residents and businesses.   
 
Treatment Alternative No. 2 – Aerobic Digester Process is the recommended alternative for this 
project due to the lower construction, maintenance, and operation costs, and that aerobic 
digesters are also safer to operate.  The estimated project cost for this alternative is shown in 
Table 6-2, Treatment Alternative No. 2 – Aerobic Digester Process Estimated Project Cost 
below. 

Page 228Page 228Page 228Page 228Page 228Page 228Page 228



6-2 
 

TABLE 6-2 
TREATMENT ALTERNATIVE NO. 2 – AEROBIC DIGESTER PROCESS 

Estimated Project Cost 
 

Description Estimated Cost 
Mobilization $160,000   
Demolition $100,000 
Blowers & Air Diffusers $800,000 
Aluminum Geodesic Domes $550,000 
Inside Process Piping, Valves and Flow Meters $250,000 
HVAC Equipment $445,000 
Interior and Exterior Lighting                    $170,000 
Electrical $150,000 
Membrane Roofing $45,000 
Painting $25,000 
                                              Construction Subtotal                    $2,695,000 
                                              Contingencies @ 10% $270,000 
                                                     Construction Cost $2,965,000 
       Engineering, Legal & Administration @ 15% $445,000 
                                            Estimated Project Cost $3,410,000 

 
 

Page 229Page 229Page 229Page 229Page 229Page 229Page 229



 
7-1 

CHAPTER 7 - ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
 

 
GENERAL 
 
This chapter will describe more specific impacts, both positive and negative, which will result 
from the implementation of the wastewater treatment facilities improvements.  It is divided 
into four parts: Natural Environment, Socio-Economic Factors, Sensitive Areas, and Irretrievable 
and Irreversible Commitment of Resources. 
 
NATURAL ENVIRONMENT 
 
Water Quality 
 
The primary goal of the recommended wastewater treatment facilities improvements is to 
improve the water quality in the area streams.  The improvements to the existing treatment 
facilities will provide the necessary treatment facilities to handle the community's wastewater 
treatment needs and to comply with state and federal water quality standards.  
 
Construction of the recommended wastewater treatment facilities improvements may impact 
the area's surface water supplies temporarily.  Excavated materials may be introduced into 
streams during periods of heavy rains or winds or during construction of the wastewater 
treatment facilities improvements.  Measures to prevent construction runoff include excavating 
the smallest areas of land for the shortest amount of time or applying mulch to exposed areas.  
Also, the existing wastewater treatment facilities will be in operation at all times during 
construction of the recommended improvements to protect the water quality of the receiving 
stream. 
 
Air Quality 
 
Air quality in Carroll will be temporarily impacted by fugitive dust produced during construction 
depending on weather or soil conditions.  Some precautions will be necessary to avoid serious 
impact on air quality.  Spraying earth mounds with water or other dust retardants and 
excavating the minimum amounts of land are two solutions. 
 
Population growth and development will impact air quality through increased sources of 
pollution.  Automobile ownership and use will increase, thus increasing emissions.  Continued 
advancements by the auto industry to reduce emissions and continued regulation of emissions 
by EPA will also promote air quality goals.  Industrial development may create additional point 
sources of pollution; however, those emissions will be regulated by the Iowa Department of 
Natural Resources to help achieve and ultimately maintain ambient air quality in Carroll. 
 
 

Page 230Page 230Page 230Page 230Page 230Page 230Page 230



 
7-2 

Noise 
 
Noise impacts will be short term and associated with construction.  Depending on when 
construction occurs, residences and businesses near the existing treatment facilities may be 
affected by heavy equipment noise.  No long term impacts are anticipated, however, since 
noise producing equipment or facilities will be located away from residential development or 
contained within structures. 
 
Energy 
 
An increase in energy consumption is anticipated as a result of the implementation of the 
recommended improvements.  The operation of the upgraded treatment facilities will increase 
the demand for electricity. 
 
Future development will also place increased demands on energy.  Measures to reduce energy 
consumption include building more energy efficient homes and landscaping.  Advanced 
developments in alternative forms of energy, such as wind or solar, may make those sources 
more economically feasible in the future. 
 
SOCIO-ECONOMICAL FACTORS 
 
Population 
 
Implementation of the recommended improvements will indirectly affect population growth.  
The additional capacity in the treatment facilities may promote new residential, commercial 
and industrial growth.  The creation of new jobs or housing opportunities will help attract 
people to the community.   
 
Economy 
 
The recommended improvements will result in a positive impact on the community's economy.  
Carroll will be able to market itself as having complied with water quality management 
objectives in order to seek new investment in the area.  New firms attracted to the area will 
create new jobs as well as increase the tax base.  The community will also benefit from 
employment opportunities directly associated with construction of the treatment facilities. 
 
Negative impacts associated with the recommended improvements will be the costs to the 
users for construction, and operation and maintenance of the expanded facilities.  Sewer fees 
per household will increase; however, by maximizing the use of the existing treatment facilities, 
the costs will be reduced. 

Page 231Page 231Page 231Page 231Page 231Page 231Page 231



 
7-3 

Land Use 
 
The recommended improvements will result in both short term and long term impacts on land 
use.  The improvements will temporarily affect land adjacent to the treatment facility and along 
the sewer routes.  
 
Long term impacts on land use will result from future growth in the community.  Development 
will expand into agricultural areas and the productivity of the land will be lost.  The conversion 
of farmland, however, will not significantly impact the amount of land available in the area for 
agricultural purposes. 
 
SENSITIVE AREAS 
 
Wildlife Habitats 
 
A direct benefit of the recommended improvements will be an improved environment for 
aquatic and terrestrial wildlife due to the improved water quality.  Construction of the facilities 
may temporarily affect wildlife habitats, but long term impacts should be minor. 
 
Any future development anticipated in the community may have a greater impact on wildlife.  
Future development may encroach on wildlife habitats existing in undeveloped areas.  Buildings 
and paved surfaces may adversely affect stream habitats by removing bank cover, resulting in 
increased runoff, siltation, or bank erosion.  Some species may become more vulnerable to 
predators by removing burrowing or nesting areas.  New roads may present barriers to 
seasonal movements of some species or separate them from food sources.  Urbanization can 
also impact common "urban" wildlife where more intensive human activity on the ground may 
affect nesting areas. 
 
Means of minimizing impacts to wildlife habitats include cutting the minimum swath of 
vegetation for trenching and pipe placement; aligning piping which minimize the taking of 
young and mature trees; filling and regrading backfill material as soon as possible after 
trenching; using cover material that is equal in quality to the topsoil removed during 
excavation; replanting excavated areas with materials native to the disturbed areas or 
otherwise well suited to it; and inspecting replanting’s and erosion control measures to ensure 
successful regeneration to plant materials. 
 
Rare and Endangered Species 
 
Little impact is foreseen on rare or endangered species due to the implementation of the 
recommended improvements.  Since construction of the treatment facilities improvements will 
occur in developed or cultivated areas, no impact is anticipated on endangered species. 

Page 232Page 232Page 232Page 232Page 232Page 232Page 232



 
7-4 

Cultural Resources 
 
No archaeological sites in or around the Carroll Wastewater Treatment Plant are expected.  A 
copy of this report will be submitted to the State Historical Preservation Office for approval 
prior to the construction of any facilities. 
 
Recreational and Open Space 
 
No impact on recreation areas are anticipated from construction of the proposed 
improvements. 
 
IRRETRIEVABLE AND IRREVERSIBLE COMMITMENT OF RESOURCES 
 
Land, energy and materials are the greatest areas of resource commitment.  The Carroll 
Wastewater Treatment Facility improvements will not require the purchase of additional land. 
 
Energy in various forms will be utilized during construction, operation and maintenance of the 
facilities.  The commitment of resources must be weighed in light of the anticipated water 
quality and socio-economic benefits resulting from the upgrading and expansion of the existing 
wastewater collection and treatment facilities. 
 

Page 233Page 233Page 233Page 233Page 233Page 233Page 233



 
 8-1 

 CHAPTER 8 - FINANCING 
 
 
GENERAL 
 
This section of the report develops a financing plan for the proposed improvements that has 
been recommended in this facility plan report.  The intention of this financing plan is to be only 
a rough guide and not to take place of the detailed program which will be developed by the 
City's bonding attorney and financial counsel. 
 
The financing plan is necessary so that the wastewater utility can carry out its primary 
responsibility which is to produce a high-quality effluent to meet its NPDES permit 
requirements.  The wastewater utility must also function as a business in that revenues 
generated from water sales and other miscellaneous items must cover all operating and 
maintenance costs, equipment replacement, capital improvement projects, all outstanding 
debt, and maintain a reasonable surplus in case of emergencies.  In the following paragraphs 
we will review methods of financing, past utility transactions, projected capital improvement 
projects, the costs of the proposed improvement program and the impact on existing 
wastewater rates. 
 
METHODS OF FINANCING 
 
In general, most wastewater improvement projects are financed through one of the following 
methods or a combination of the following methods: revenue bonds and State Revolving Fund 
(SRF). 
 
Revenue Bonds are paid through surpluses in the particular utility fund and are usually funded 
through increases in rates.  These bonds are not supported by general taxation and, therefore, 
are viewed as more risky in the financial market.  This increased riskiness causes these bonds to 
typically sell for ½% above similar GO issues.   In addition, reserve funds of approximately 25% 
of the annual principal and interest are required in order to provide the bond buyers an 
additional level of protection.  Also, other reserve funds for equipment replacement and capital 
improvements are typically required.  Revenue bonds do create a force savings plan in that 
additional reserve accounts do contain monies which can be used once the revenue issue is 
paid off.  However, revenue bonds, because of the additional required reserve, do demand 
higher wastewater rates than a comparable GO issue.  Finally, unlike general obligation bonds, 
no election is required for revenue bonds. 

Page 234Page 234Page 234Page 234Page 234Page 234Page 234



 
 8-2 

General Obligation Bonds 
 
Cities in the State of Iowa can issue general obligation bonds in an amount not to exceed 5% of 
the full assessed value and credit of the city.  General obligation bonds are a pledge of the full 
faith and credit of the City.  Cities in Iowa can issue general obligation bonds for improvements 
to the sanitary sewerage system as essential corporate purpose bonds. 
 
General obligation bonds can be issued for a period of up to 20 years.  The interest rate paid for 
general obligation bonds will be lower than the interest rate for other bonds which can be sold 
by the City. 
 
For sanitary sewerage system improvements, the City has the option to retire the debt service 
from the debt service tax levy or to transfer revenue form the sewer enterprise fund and abate 
the tax levy.  General obligation bonds retired from sewer enterprise fund revenue result in a 
lower total annual cost than sewer revenue bonds. 
 
State Revolving Fund (SRF). This fund is operated by the Iowa Department of Natural Resources 
and the Iowa Finance Authority and provides low interest loans for financing improvements to 
wastewater treatment facilities. The loan takes the form of a revenue bond, or a general 
obligation bond issued by the City and purchased by the Iowa Finance Authority.    The interest 
rate is dependent upon the rate which the State can sell bonds.  The annual rate has been 
running at 2% to 3% depending upon the term of the loan.  For a sewer revenue issue, the 
coverage requirement is 10%.  This means that the net revenues of the system cannot be less 
than 110% of the operating, maintenance, and debt service expenses of the system.  This 
compares to a typical coverage of 25% for a conventional sewer revenue bond issue.  There is a 
1% loan initiation fee and a 0.25% annual loan servicing fee.  In addition, the City must have an 
approved user charge system to ensure "fairness" and to ensure that adequate revenues are 
generated.  There are also some additional requirements with respect to the construction 
contract documents. 
 
 
 

Page 235Page 235Page 235Page 235Page 235Page 235Page 235



 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX A 
 

Digester Cover Proposal 

Page 236Page 236Page 236Page 236Page 236Page 236Page 236



BUDGETARY PROPOSAL 
MAY 23, 2022 

 
 

     

CARROLL WWTF 
CARROLL, IA 
 
 

Ovivo® Steel Covers 
 

Veenstra & Kimm Inc. 
Todd Penisten  
tpenisten@v-k.net  

 

PREPARED FOR 
 

Engineered Equipment Solutions (EES) 
Matt Streeter  
mstreeter@e-equipmentsolutions.com  

 

AREA REPRESENTATIVE 

PREPARED BY 
 Ovivo USA, LLC 

4246 Riverboat Road – Suite 300 
Salt Lake City, Utah 84123-2583 
http://www.ovivowater.com/SteelCover 

Nimesh Patel  
c/o Bryen Woo  
Phone: (801) 931-3000 
Bryen.Woo@ovivowater.com 
 Page 237Page 237Page 237Page 237Page 237Page 237Page 237

mailto:tpenisten@v-k.net
mailto:mstreeter@e-equipmentsolutions.com
http://www.ovivowater.com/product/municipal/municipal-wastewater/sludge-treatment-anaerobic-digestion/digester-steel-covers/ovivo-steel-digester-cover/
http://www.ovivowater.com


 
   

 
 
 

 

© Copyright 2022 OVIVO. All rights reserved. 
This document is confidential and shall remain the sole property of Ovivo. This document may not be reproduced or distributed without prior written approval of Ovivo. The data 

and information provided is furnished on a restricted basis and is not to be used in any way detrimental to the interests of Ovivo 
THIS BUDGETARY PROPOSAL CONSTITUTES A NON-BINDING ESTIMATE OF PRICE(S) FOR CERTAIN GOODS AND/OR SERVICES THAT MAY BE PROVIDED BY OVIVO USA LLC FROM TIME TO TIME, BUT SHALL 
NOT BE CONSTRUED AS A CONTRACTUAL OFFER FOR OVIVO USA LLC TO PROVIDE SUCH GOODS AND/OR SERVICES.  ANY CONTRACTUAL OFFER FOR THE SUPPLY OF GOODS AND/OR SERVICES BY OVIVO 
USA LLC SHALL BE CONVEYED TO CUSTOMER IN THE FORM OF OVIVO USA LLC’S. STANDARD PROPOSAL DOCUMENT, WHICH INCLUDES, BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO, ITS STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

OF SALE.  SUCH PROPOSAL FORM MAY BE PROVIDED TO CUSTOMER UPON REQUEST. 

BUDGET LETTER | MAY 23, 2022 
 

 

Figure 1: Ovivo® G1V Gasholder Steel Cover 

 

DESIGN PARAMETERS 
 

Number of Digester One (1)  One (1) 

Tank Diameter  35 ft 40 ft 

Top of Tank Elevation 1254.39 ft 1254.39 ft 

Maximum Liquid Level Elevation 1251.39 ft 1253.39 ft 

Minimum Liquid Level Elevation 1248.89 ft 1247.50 ft 

Corbel Elevation N/A 1247.50 ft 

Bottom of Wall Elevation 1228.89 ft 1228.89 ft 

Tank Height 25.50 ft 25.50 ft 

Design Pressure 18 in w.c 20 in w.c 

Operating Pressure 12 in w.c  12 in w.c 

Live Load 20 psf 20 psf 

Wind Load 30 psf 30 psf 

Snow Load 20 psf 20 psf 

 

PRODUCT HIGHLIGHTS 
 

OVIVO® GASHOLDER STEEL COVER 
 
Ovivo provides a variety of digester steel 
covers.  Each digester cover is 
constructed as a dome-shaped segment 
of a sphere, offering maximum strength 
and structural integrity.  The digester 
steel covers are radial beam designed to 
be erected quickly and efficiently, this is 
a simple, rigged structural design.  The 
thrust ring is installed at the periphery of each cover to absorb all design loads without transmitting 
excessive forces to the concrete digester wall.  During erection, the cover is supported by radial 
beams attached to a center ring and the thrust ring which add strength to the complete unit.  
 
Ovivo’s radial beam design uses an added side sheet and ballast for digester gas storage.  Submerged 
ballast blocks are used to maximize cover stability and maintain adequate gas pressure. The vertical 
guides are attached to the tank wall.  Guide devices, spanning from the top to the bottom of the 
cover side-sheet, are engaged to stabilize the cover and protect the cover from substantial wind 
loads.   
 

 
Page 238Page 238Page 238Page 238Page 238Page 238Page 238



 
   

 
 
 

 

© Copyright 2022 OVIVO. All rights reserved. 
This document is confidential and shall remain the sole property of Ovivo. This document may not be reproduced or distributed without prior written approval of Ovivo. The data 

and information provided is furnished on a restricted basis and is not to be used in any way detrimental to the interests of Ovivo 
THIS BUDGETARY PROPOSAL CONSTITUTES A NON-BINDING ESTIMATE OF PRICE(S) FOR CERTAIN GOODS AND/OR SERVICES THAT MAY BE PROVIDED BY OVIVO USA LLC FROM TIME TO TIME, BUT SHALL 
NOT BE CONSTRUED AS A CONTRACTUAL OFFER FOR OVIVO USA LLC TO PROVIDE SUCH GOODS AND/OR SERVICES.  ANY CONTRACTUAL OFFER FOR THE SUPPLY OF GOODS AND/OR SERVICES BY OVIVO 
USA LLC SHALL BE CONVEYED TO CUSTOMER IN THE FORM OF OVIVO USA LLC’S. STANDARD PROPOSAL DOCUMENT, WHICH INCLUDES, BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO, ITS STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

OF SALE.  SUCH PROPOSAL FORM MAY BE PROVIDED TO CUSTOMER UPON REQUEST. 

BUDGET LETTER | MAY 23, 2022 
 

 

Figure 2: Ovivo® Fixed Steel Cover 

OVIVO® FIXED STEEL COVER 
 
Ovivo provides a variety of digester 
steel covers. Each digester cover is 
constructed as a dome-shaped segment 
of a sphere, offering maximum strength 
and structural integrity.   
 
The digester steel covers are radial beam designed to be erected quickly and efficiently, this is a 
simple, rigged structural design.  The thrust ring is installed at the periphery of each cover to absorb 
all design loads without transmitting excessive forces to the concrete digester wall.  During erection, 
the cover is supported by radial beams attached to a center ring and the thrust ring which add 
strength to the complete unit.  
 
For the Fixed steel cover design, the side sheet should be extended 1 ft below the minimum liquid 
level (at least).  Otherwise, two options are recommended: 1) the supplier of the filler material should 
confirm that it can withstand the design pressure 2) an independent clean liquid launder should be 
provided (pricing not included) that allows for a pressure seal at any given sludge level (Contact Ovivo 
for additional details should you like to pursue this option). 
 

TECHNICAL DATA & BUDGET INFORMATION 
 
For this application and based on the design parameters, Ovivo recommends following options:  

➢ One (1) Ovivo® 35 F1 Fixed Cover to be installed on 35 ft digester.   
➢ One (1) Ovivo® 40 G1V Gasholder Steel Cover to be installed on 40 ft digester.   

 

Model  35 F1  40 G1V 

Type Ovivo® Fixed  
Steel Cover 

Ovivo® Gasholder 
Steel Cover 

Size 35’Ø 40’Ø 

Max Side Sheet Length 60 in 138 in 

Gas Storage1 N/A 10,778 ft3 

Total Weight 2  23,000 lbs 42,300 lbs 

Estimated Field Welding2 900 ln ft 1,200 ln ft 

Estimated Field Painting (Inside and Outside)2 3,000 sq ft 4,700 sq ft 

Quantity One (1) One (1) 

Total Price3 $212,000 $358,000  
1 The gas storage capacity is based on the operating pressure and the side sheet length. Any modification to the skirt 
length will change the estimate cost and gas capacity.  
2 Estimated per unit. The values are estimates only and will be updated with the final values after approved submittals 
3 All prices in US Dollars. 

 

 

Figure X: Ovivo® Fixed Steel Cover 

 

Page 239Page 239Page 239Page 239Page 239Page 239Page 239



 
   

 
 
 

 

© Copyright 2022 OVIVO. All rights reserved. 
This document is confidential and shall remain the sole property of Ovivo. This document may not be reproduced or distributed without prior written approval of Ovivo. The data 

and information provided is furnished on a restricted basis and is not to be used in any way detrimental to the interests of Ovivo 
THIS BUDGETARY PROPOSAL CONSTITUTES A NON-BINDING ESTIMATE OF PRICE(S) FOR CERTAIN GOODS AND/OR SERVICES THAT MAY BE PROVIDED BY OVIVO USA LLC FROM TIME TO TIME, BUT SHALL 
NOT BE CONSTRUED AS A CONTRACTUAL OFFER FOR OVIVO USA LLC TO PROVIDE SUCH GOODS AND/OR SERVICES.  ANY CONTRACTUAL OFFER FOR THE SUPPLY OF GOODS AND/OR SERVICES BY OVIVO 
USA LLC SHALL BE CONVEYED TO CUSTOMER IN THE FORM OF OVIVO USA LLC’S. STANDARD PROPOSAL DOCUMENT, WHICH INCLUDES, BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO, ITS STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

OF SALE.  SUCH PROPOSAL FORM MAY BE PROVIDED TO CUSTOMER UPON REQUEST. 

BUDGET LETTER | MAY 23, 2022 
 

 

Figure 3: Typical Weld Detail for Radial Beam Connections 

 
Ovivo’s scope of supply does not include 
installation. The weight, welding and painting 
requirements are estimates only, the final 
values will be provided after approved 
submittals. The above field welding estimate is 
based on a single pass welding and the overall 
requirements on Figure 3.  

  

SCOPE OF SUPPLY – 35 F1 FIXED STEEL COVER  
 

Items Included 

One (1) 37"Ø center ring with cover plate, flange bolts, nuts and gasket 

One (1) 36"Ø manhole(s) with bolts, gaskets and cover flange. Covers provided by others 

One (1) 20"Ø Gas bonnet. 

One (1) 8"Ø sample tubes. Covers provided by others 

One (1) 4"Ø flanged open nozzles for PRVB assembly. Valves provided by others 

Necessary Steel Cover Components such as: 
- Erection Beams 
- Cover Plates 
- Epoxy anchoring assemblies 
- Side Skirt Sections 

Anchoring assemblies including necessary anchor bolts 

Mild Steel construction except as noted 

EZ Rect™ System 

Operation and Maintenance manuals 

Service as noted in the "Field Service" segment of this proposal section 

FCA Factory, Freight allowed to the jobsite 

Items Not Included (But Not Limited To The Following) 

Gas handling equipment, unless included above 

Valves, unless included above 

Sample tube covers 

Cover position indicators 

Sight glasses 

Walkways, stairs, steps, ladders, unless included above 

Handrails grates, platforms, grating, unless included above 

Piping, fittings, tubing and pipe supports 

Coating, prime paint, field touch up or finishing painting 

Flange bolts, nuts and gaskets 

Grout 

Insulation or Roofing 

Page 240Page 240Page 240Page 240Page 240Page 240Page 240



 
   

 
 
 

 

© Copyright 2022 OVIVO. All rights reserved. 
This document is confidential and shall remain the sole property of Ovivo. This document may not be reproduced or distributed without prior written approval of Ovivo. The data 

and information provided is furnished on a restricted basis and is not to be used in any way detrimental to the interests of Ovivo 
THIS BUDGETARY PROPOSAL CONSTITUTES A NON-BINDING ESTIMATE OF PRICE(S) FOR CERTAIN GOODS AND/OR SERVICES THAT MAY BE PROVIDED BY OVIVO USA LLC FROM TIME TO TIME, BUT SHALL 
NOT BE CONSTRUED AS A CONTRACTUAL OFFER FOR OVIVO USA LLC TO PROVIDE SUCH GOODS AND/OR SERVICES.  ANY CONTRACTUAL OFFER FOR THE SUPPLY OF GOODS AND/OR SERVICES BY OVIVO 
USA LLC SHALL BE CONVEYED TO CUSTOMER IN THE FORM OF OVIVO USA LLC’S. STANDARD PROPOSAL DOCUMENT, WHICH INCLUDES, BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO, ITS STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

OF SALE.  SUCH PROPOSAL FORM MAY BE PROVIDED TO CUSTOMER UPON REQUEST. 

BUDGET LETTER | MAY 23, 2022 
 

 Cover sealant, filling material, caulking, oakum or asphalt 

Modifications digester tank or other equipment 

Installation  

Testing, testing materials and / or testing equipment 

Conduit, wiring, or any other control or electrical items 

Any items not specifically listed in the “Items Included” table 

 
SCOPE OF SUPPLY – 40 G1V GASHOLER STEEL COVER 
 

Items Included 

One (1) 37"Ø center ring with cover plate, flange bolts, nuts and gasket 

One (1) 36"Ø manhole(s) with bolts, gaskets and cover flange. Covers provided by others  

One (1) 20"Ø Gas bonnet. 

One (1) 8"Ø sample tubes. Covers provided by others 

One (1) 4"Ø flanged open nozzle for PRVB assembly. Valves provided by others 

Necessary Steel Cover Components such as: 
- Erection Beams 
- Cover Plates 
- Epoxy anchoring assemblies 
- Side Skirt Sections including ballast support brackets 

Four (4) Slide Guides, with chemical type anchors, as follows: 
- Slide guides mounted to the concrete tank, HDG 
- Slide guides mounted to the cover, 304 Stainless Steel  
- UHMW wear strips on three sides 

Side skirts sections with 11.5 ft long side sheet plates 

Mild Steel construction except as noted 

EZ Rect™ System 

Operation and Maintenance manuals 

Service as noted in the "Field Service" segment of this proposal section 

FCA Factory, Freight allowed to the jobsite 

Items Not Included (But Not Limited To The Following) 

Ballast blocks 

Gas handling equipment, unless included above 

Valves, unless included above 

Sample tube covers 

Cover position indicators 

Sight glasses 

Walkways, stairs, steps, ladders, unless included above 

Handrails grates, platforms, grating, unless included above 

Piping, fittings, tubing and pipe supports 

Page 241Page 241Page 241Page 241Page 241Page 241Page 241



 
   

 
 
 

 

© Copyright 2022 OVIVO. All rights reserved. 
This document is confidential and shall remain the sole property of Ovivo. This document may not be reproduced or distributed without prior written approval of Ovivo. The data 

and information provided is furnished on a restricted basis and is not to be used in any way detrimental to the interests of Ovivo 
THIS BUDGETARY PROPOSAL CONSTITUTES A NON-BINDING ESTIMATE OF PRICE(S) FOR CERTAIN GOODS AND/OR SERVICES THAT MAY BE PROVIDED BY OVIVO USA LLC FROM TIME TO TIME, BUT SHALL 
NOT BE CONSTRUED AS A CONTRACTUAL OFFER FOR OVIVO USA LLC TO PROVIDE SUCH GOODS AND/OR SERVICES.  ANY CONTRACTUAL OFFER FOR THE SUPPLY OF GOODS AND/OR SERVICES BY OVIVO 
USA LLC SHALL BE CONVEYED TO CUSTOMER IN THE FORM OF OVIVO USA LLC’S. STANDARD PROPOSAL DOCUMENT, WHICH INCLUDES, BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO, ITS STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

OF SALE.  SUCH PROPOSAL FORM MAY BE PROVIDED TO CUSTOMER UPON REQUEST. 

BUDGET LETTER | MAY 23, 2022 
 

 Coating, prime paint, field touch up or finishing painting 

Flange bolts, nuts and gaskets 

Grout 

Insulation or Roofing 

Cover sealant, filling material, caulking, oakum or asphalt 

Modifications on digester tank or other equipment 

Installation  

Testing, testing materials and / or testing equipment 

Conduit, wiring, or any other control or electrical items 

Any items not specifically listed in the “Items Included” table 

 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 
FIELD SERVICE  
 
Ovivo’s scope includes the service of a qualified service engineer for the following:  
 
One (1) trip of two (2) days total of service, per digester at the site for the supervision of equipment 
start-up, testing supervision, and instructing the operators.   
Additional service days can be purchased at the current rate.   
 

ESTIMATED LEAD TIMES 
 
Submittals: Eight (8) weeks after Purchaser’s receipt of Ovivo’s written acknowledgement of an 
approved purchase order.   
Shipping: Twenty-four (24) weeks after receipt of approved drawings from Purchaser.   

 

EZ-RECT™ SYSTEM   
 
The EZ-Rect™ cover erection system is a feature with the digester cover. Ovivo will provide the 
digester cover with cover plate/radial beam sections pre-assembled and finish welded in the shop to 
facilitate the erection of the cover.  Each assembly will consist of two (2) beams and one (1) cover 
plate. 
 
Ovivo offers this option to reduce the amount of field welding required to erect a cover of this 
diameter.  This will reduce the total amount of field welding for the digester steel cover.  
Furthermore, this will reduce the number of pieces to be handled during erection.  
 
Ovivo suggests a careful consideration of the various offerings in regards to the amount of field 
welding disclosed by the cover manufacturers. The variance in the various estimates should be within 

Page 242Page 242Page 242Page 242Page 242Page 242Page 242



 
   

 
 
 

 

© Copyright 2022 OVIVO. All rights reserved. 
This document is confidential and shall remain the sole property of Ovivo. This document may not be reproduced or distributed without prior written approval of Ovivo. The data 

and information provided is furnished on a restricted basis and is not to be used in any way detrimental to the interests of Ovivo 
THIS BUDGETARY PROPOSAL CONSTITUTES A NON-BINDING ESTIMATE OF PRICE(S) FOR CERTAIN GOODS AND/OR SERVICES THAT MAY BE PROVIDED BY OVIVO USA LLC FROM TIME TO TIME, BUT SHALL 
NOT BE CONSTRUED AS A CONTRACTUAL OFFER FOR OVIVO USA LLC TO PROVIDE SUCH GOODS AND/OR SERVICES.  ANY CONTRACTUAL OFFER FOR THE SUPPLY OF GOODS AND/OR SERVICES BY OVIVO 
USA LLC SHALL BE CONVEYED TO CUSTOMER IN THE FORM OF OVIVO USA LLC’S. STANDARD PROPOSAL DOCUMENT, WHICH INCLUDES, BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO, ITS STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

OF SALE.  SUCH PROPOSAL FORM MAY BE PROVIDED TO CUSTOMER UPON REQUEST. 

BUDGET LETTER | MAY 23, 2022 
 

 a reasonable amount of the quantity expressed in this proposal.  Ultimately, the Contractor is 
required to make their own estimate of welding requirements. 
 
Painting: The cover side sheets are shipped unpainted, so all necessary cleaning, sandblasting and 
painting must be done progressively as the assembly proceeds. Be aware that the side sheets will be 
difficult to paint if they are installed inside the tank. Do not paint within 3 inches of all areas to be 
welded. It is also imperative that all welds are per the erection drawings and gas tight.  Therefore, the 
erector must be able to certify that no leaks exist prior to painting. 
 
Cover erection is completed in five steps: 

1. Side Sheet Assembly 
2. Center Ring and Erection Beam Installation 
3. EZ-Rect Cover Plate Assembly Installation 
4. Remaining Cover Plate Installation 
5. Manholes, Spools, Tubes, Etc., Installation 

 
TESTING 
 
After field erection is complete, the Contractor shall test the covers for gas tight construction by 
filling the tank with water and trapping air under the cover plates.  All welded seams and 
appurtenances shall be checked for leaks by means of a soap suds solution.   
 
The air pressure underneath the dome during the test shall be not less than 14" W.C. 
 

FINISHES 
 
Steel plates, structural shapes and fabricated assemblies shall be shipped unpainted, for field painting 
by others.  After erection, welding, testing and final inspection of erection by manufacturer's 
representative, the covers shall be painted (not by Ovivo). 
 

GENERAL 
 
The design of the digester steel cover does not fall under any specific code or standard for the design 
analysis. The current codes and standards are be used as guide lines for the design and analysis of the 
equipment. The analysis will result with a conservative approach that meets the intent of the present 
codes and standards.

Page 243Page 243Page 243Page 243Page 243Page 243Page 243



 
     

 

 

© Copyright 2022 OVIVO. All rights reserved. 
This document is confidential and shall remain the sole property of Ovivo. This document may not be reproduced or distributed without prior written approval of Ovivo. The data 

and information provided is furnished on a restricted basis and is not to be used in any way detrimental to the interests of Ovivo 
THIS BUDGETARY PROPOSAL CONSTITUTES A NON-BINDING ESTIMATE OF PRICE(S) FOR CERTAIN GOODS AND/OR SERVICES THAT MAY BE PROVIDED BY OVIVO USA LLC FROM TIME TO TIME, BUT SHALL 
NOT BE CONSTRUED AS A CONTRACTUAL OFFER FOR OVIVO USA LLC TO PROVIDE SUCH GOODS AND/OR SERVICES.  ANY CONTRACTUAL OFFER FOR THE SUPPLY OF GOODS AND/OR SERVICES BY OVIVO 
USA LLC SHALL BE CONVEYED TO CUSTOMER IN THE FORM OF OVIVO USA LLC’S. STANDARD PROPOSAL DOCUMENT, WHICH INCLUDES, BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO, ITS STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

OF SALE.  SUCH PROPOSAL FORM MAY BE PROVIDED TO CUSTOMER UPON REQUEST. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EQUIPMENT LAYOUT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 244Page 244Page 244Page 244Page 244Page 244Page 244



DESCRIPTIONITEM
DIGESTER TANK WALL1
OUTER ERECTION BEAM2
INNER ERRECTION BEAM (OPTIONAL)3
INTERMEDIATE THRUST RING (OPTIONAL)4
GAS TAKE-OFF PIPE (TOP-SIDE DESIGN)5.1
GAS TAKE-OFF PIPE (UNDER-SIDE DESIGN)5.2
COVER SUPPORT6
BEARING PLATE7
THRUST RING8
CENTER COMPRESSION RING9
OUTER COVER PLATE10
INNER COVER PLATE11
SIDE SKIRT12
NAME PLATE13
GAS BONNET14
SAMPLE TUBE15
PRESSURE RELIEF - VACUUM BREAKER16
MANHOLE17
MIXER PORT18

REV

©COPYRIGHT 2010 GLV
ALL RIGHTS RESERVED - REV E

WORKMANSHIP STANDARD ES0001 APPLIES

EMH

JLQ ORIGINAL S.O.

DO NOT SCALE PRINTS

SHEET
1   OF  1 

D

A

THIRD ANGLE PROJECTION

INITIAL RELEASE A
REVISION DESCRIPTION EN/ECO BY CHECK'D DATE REV

17

14

1

2

3

4

5.1

6

7

8

9
10

12

13

15
16

11

5.2
18

P
age 245

P
age 245

P
age 245

P
age 245

P
age 245

P
age 245

P
age 245



DESCRIPTIONITEM
DIGESTER TANK WALL1
OUTER ERRECTION BEAM2
INNER ERRECTION BEAM3
INTERMEDIATE THRUST RING4
GAS TAKE‐OFF PIPE5
COVER SUPPORT6
COVER SLIDE7
THRUST RING8
CENTER COMPRESSION RING9
OUTER COVER PLATE10
INNER COVER PLATE11
SIDE SKIRT12
NAME PLATE13
GAS BONNET14
SAMPLE TUBE15
PRESSURE RELIEF ‐ VACUUM BREAKER16
MANHOLE17
MIXER PORT18
COVER GUIDE19
BALAST BLOCK20
CORRBEL21

REV

©COPYRIGHT 2010 GLV
ALL RIGHTS RESERVED - REV E

WORKMANSHIP STANDARD ES0001 APPLIES

EMH

JLQ ORIGINAL S.O.

DO NOT SCALE PRINTS

SHEET
1   OF  1 

D

 

THIRD ANGLE PROJECTION

INITIAL RELEASE A
REVISION DESCRIPTION EN/ECO BY CHECK'D DATE REV

1

20

21

8

42 10

5
3 11 9

18

13

16

15

14
1719

7

6

12

P
age 246

P
age 246

P
age 246

P
age 246

P
age 246

P
age 246

P
age 246



 
     

 

 

© Copyright 2022 OVIVO. All rights reserved. 
This document is confidential and shall remain the sole property of Ovivo. This document may not be reproduced or distributed without prior written approval of Ovivo. The data 

and information provided is furnished on a restricted basis and is not to be used in any way detrimental to the interests of Ovivo 
THIS BUDGETARY PROPOSAL CONSTITUTES A NON-BINDING ESTIMATE OF PRICE(S) FOR CERTAIN GOODS AND/OR SERVICES THAT MAY BE PROVIDED BY OVIVO USA LLC FROM TIME TO TIME, BUT SHALL 
NOT BE CONSTRUED AS A CONTRACTUAL OFFER FOR OVIVO USA LLC TO PROVIDE SUCH GOODS AND/OR SERVICES.  ANY CONTRACTUAL OFFER FOR THE SUPPLY OF GOODS AND/OR SERVICES BY OVIVO 
USA LLC SHALL BE CONVEYED TO CUSTOMER IN THE FORM OF OVIVO USA LLC’S. STANDARD PROPOSAL DOCUMENT, WHICH INCLUDES, BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO, ITS STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

OF SALE.  SUCH PROPOSAL FORM MAY BE PROVIDED TO CUSTOMER UPON REQUEST. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OVIVO® STEEL COVER  
BROCHURE 

 

Page 247Page 247Page 247Page 247Page 247Page 247Page 247



www.ovivowater.com 1.855.GO.OVIVO

Simple installation operation & maintenance

Flexible design to suit many applications

Variable sludge storage capabilities

No moving parts for simplified maintenance

30+ year life span

COST 
EFFECTIVE  
SLUDGE 
STABILIZATION

OVIVO® ANAEROBIC 
DIGESTER STEEL COVERS

MUNICIPAL WATEWATER
ANAEROBIC DIGESTION

Easy to insulate 
using commonly 
available roofing 

materials. Call us at 
1.855.GO.OVIVO  

to learn more!

Page 248Page 248Page 248Page 248Page 248Page 248Page 248



Ovivo provides a variety of steel digest-
er covers. Each cover is constructed as 
a dome-shaped segment of a sphere, 
offering maximum strength and structural 
integrity.  The steel digester covers are 
radial beam designed to be erected quickly 
and efficiently. A thrust ring is installed at 
the periphery of each cover to absorb all 
design loads without transmitting excessive 
forces to the digester wall. During erection, 
the cover is supported by radial beams 
attached to a center ring and the thrust ring 
which add strength to the complete unit.

Our radial beam design includes the 
following configurations: Fixed, Gasholder, 
HydroSeal® type and Buoyant steel cover. 
Ovivo will provide the best option for each 
application based on the customer needs. 

• The use of radial beams allows the  
cover to be erected quickly and 
efficiently.

• Ovivo’s cover design is compatible with  
all our available mixing systems to ensure 
adequate anaerobic digestion process.

• The covers are designed based on 
the requirements specified for each 
application, using the latest structural 
standards.

• A variety of accessories are available with 
our covers to effectively interface with the 
consulting engineer’s design and comply 
with the customer requirements.

A VARIETY OF STEEL 
DIGESTER COVERS

A NUMBER OF  
BENEFITS

OVIVO® ANAEROBIC DIGESTER STEEL COVERS

Spanish Fork STP, 
UT (50’ F1) :

Fixed Steel  
Cover Installation

Salt Lake City 
WRF, UT   
(90’ G2VL) : 

Gasholder Steel 
Cover Installation

Honouliuli 
WWTP, HI  
(90’ G2VL): 

Gasholder Steel 
Cover

DC WASA, DC 
(98.5’ F2) : 

Fixed Steel 
Cover  

Page 249Page 249Page 249Page 249Page 249Page 249Page 249



The Type F cover is the most economical steel cover. The main 
application is on digesters with constant water level (primary or 
first stage digesters). The Fixed covers can be sealed against the 
tank to combat odors.  For this design, the side sheet should be 
extended below the minimum liquid level.  Otherwise, two options 
are recommended: 1) the supplier of the filler material should con-
firm that it can withstand the operating pressure 2) an independent 
clean liquid launder should be provided that allows for a pressure 
seal at any given sludge level (Contact Ovivo for additional details 
for this option).

The separate launder and liquid seal between the digester tank 
and the cover eliminates gas and VOC emissions, improves service 
access and improves the maintenance access. 

This design allows variable sludge storage capabilities since the 
side sheet operates independent of sludge storage in clean area. 
No components come in contact with the sludge.

The Type GV uses the radial beam design structure with added 
side sheet and ballast for digester gas storage. Submerged ballast 
blocks are used to maximize cover stability and maintain adequate 
gas pressure. The design includes a vertical guide arrangement 
with guides attached to the tank wall. Guide devices, spanning 
from the top to the bottom of the cover side sheet, are engaged 
to stabilize the cover.

The Type B uses the radial beam design structure including a pe-
ripheral buoyant chamber. The cover floats directly on the digester 
contents. Precast concrete ballast blocks are placed to maintain 
a specified gas pressure. A major portion of the buoyant volume 
which keeps the cover afloat is located at the cover periphery; this 
feature provides an excellent resistance to tipping. The slide guide 
system will provide vertical movement without rotation or binding.

FIXED STEEL COVER  
(TYPE F)

GASHOLDER STEEL COVER 
(TYPE GV)

HYDROSEAL® STEEL COVER 
(TYPE GVL)

BUOYANT STEEL COVER  
(TYPE B)

MUNICIPAL WASTEWATER | ANAEROBIC DIGESTION

Page 250Page 250Page 250Page 250Page 250Page 250Page 250



LEARN MORE!
Scan to view online.

1.855.GO.OVIVO

info@ovivowater.com
ovivowater.com

2015 © Ovivo Inc. All rights reserved

Ovivo® ConnectSM portal is an innovative and intuitive application that allows our 
customers to use ‘SmartTags’ installed on our equipment (or a web URL) to access 
a personalized customer zone. Access your equipment documentation, find 
contract references, track service logs, manage spare parts, and plan your next 
maintenance to get the most out of your equipment.

NEED ACCESS TO YOUR O&M MANUAL? 
NEED SPARE PARTS? 
WANT THE LATEST TIPS AND NEWS ON YOUR ASSET?

GET CONNECTED!
ovivo.co

OVIVO® ANAEROBIC DIGESTER STEEL COVERS

The EZ-RECT™ cover erection system is a feature with the digester cover. 
Ovivo offers this option to reduce the amount of field welding.

Ovivo will provide the digester cover with cover plate/radial beam sections 
pre-assembled and finish welding in the shop to facilitate the erection of the 
cover. Each assembly will consist of two (2) beams and one (1) cover plate.

COVER ERECTION IS COMPLETED IN FIVE STEPS:
1. Side Sheet Assembly

2. Center Ring and Erection Beam Installation

3. EZ-Rect Cover Plate Assembly Installation

4. Remaining Cover Plate Installation

5. Manholes, Spools, Tubes, Etc., Installation

ANCILLARY EQUIPMENT
Ovivo can supply all plant required equipment for a complete Sludge Treatment / 
Anaerobic Digestion plant, including but not limited to:

•   Ultrastore™ Membrane Gasholder  •   LM™ Mixer

•   Eimix® Mechanical Sludge Mixer  •   Sonolyzer™ Ultrasound Sludge Disintegrator

EZ-RECT™ SYSTEM

Page 251Page 251Page 251Page 251Page 251Page 251Page 251



 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX B 
 

Draft Tube Mixer Proposal 

Page 252Page 252Page 252Page 252Page 252Page 252Page 252



Carroll WWTP 
Iowa 

Engineer 

Veenstra & Kimm 

Representative 

Cory Sonner 
Vessco, Inc 
Ames, Iowa 
(515) 233-8599
csonner@vessco.com

Contact 

Tom Dumbaugh 
tdumbaugh@westech-inc.com 

Dylan Ellis 
dellis@westech-inc.com 

Proposal Number: 1960798 
Friday, August 04, 2023 

Page 253Page 253Page 253Page 253Page 253Page 253Page 253



Proposal: 1960798_Rev4 2 

Table of Contents 
Technical Proposal 

Item A – One (1) 24 in. External ExtremeDuty™ Mixer and 27 in. Draft Tube, Model SME11H 
Item B – One (1) 24 in. External ExtremeDuty™ Mixer and 27 in. Draft Tube, Model SME11H 

Clarifications and Exceptions 

Commercial Proposal 
Bidder’s Contact Information 
Pricing 
Payment Terms 
Schedule 
Freight 

Warranty 

Terms & Conditions 

Page 254Page 254Page 254Page 254Page 254Page 254Page 254



Proposal: 1960798_Rev4 3 

Technical Proposal 
Item A – One (1) 24 in. External ExtremeDuty™ Mixer and 27 in. Draft 

Tube, Model SME11H 

Design Criteria 
Description Unit Dimension/Description 
Tank Inside Diameter ft 35 
Cover Type - Fixed 
High Liquid Level** ft 22.5 
Low Liquid Level** ft 21.08 
Volume per Tank gallons 169,000 
Mixers per Tank Each 1 External 
Flow Rate per Mixer* gpm 9,000 
Turnover Time minutes 19 
Drive Type - Belt Drive 
Heat Exchanger Cap./Mixer BTU/hr 567,000 
Inlet Sludge Temperature F 95 
Hot Water Inlet Temperature F 180 
Hot Water Flow rate/Mixer gpm 80 

*Minimum flow rate in upward or downward direction

**Assumed values 

WesTech ExtremeDuty™ Sludge Mixers provide vigorous mixing of digester contents to prevent 
stratification and improve the anaerobic process. They reliably speed gas production while reducing 
foaming and scum accumulation. This rugged design was originally developed to reduce the high service 
costs of digester mixers. It has proven to be so reliable that the ExtremeDuty™ Sludge Mixer is now used 
for maximum efficiency and durability in all WesTech digester mixing applications. 

WesTech ExtremeDuty™ Sludge Mixers’ robust bearing system and ragless impeller design results in the best 
reliability in the market 

Page 255Page 255Page 255Page 255Page 255Page 255Page 255



Proposal: 1960798_Rev4 4 

Detailed Scope of Supply 
Item Unit Dimension Thickness Material 
Impeller in 24 - Cast Iron
Mixer Shaft - - - Solid CRS
Rigid Mixer Housing - - - Carbon Steel 
Flow Deflector in 24 - Carbon Steel
Mixer Mounting Flange in - 0.75 Carbon Steel
Motor Mount - - - Carbon Steel
Belt Guard - - - 304L Stainless Steel 
Wall Tube in 27 0.25 Carbon Steel 
Draft Tube in 27 0.25 Carbon Steel 
Draft Tube Supports - - - Carbon Steel 
Manual Greasing System per mixer 1 - Manufacturer’s Standard
Draft Tube Portion of Jacket in - 0.1875 304L Stainless Steel
Jacket Material in - 0.25 304L Stainless Steel
Inlet/Outlet Piping in 3 40 304L Stainless Steel
Bolts & Fasteners - - 304 Stainless Steel 

Motor Information 
Description Unit Dimension/Description 
Mixer Motor 

Motor Size hP 10 
Motor Speed RPM 1750 
Shaft Speed RPM 318 
Motor Rotation Direction - Forward and Reverse 
Motor Safety Classification - Class 1 Division 1 Group D 
Motor Voltage V 230/460 
Motor Frequency Hz 60 
Motor Phase -- 3 

Page 256Page 256Page 256Page 256Page 256Page 256Page 256



Proposal: 1960798_Rev4 5 

Mixer Housing 

The ExtremeDuty™ Mixer is supported by a large diameter, tubular mixer housing.  This ensures 
substantially more rigidity than earlier designs using large, triangular gussets and eliminates the need of 
a stabilizer or “centering” device. This also allows our mixers to have a longer shaft. 

Impeller Shaft 

WesTech designs the impeller shaft for minimal deflection at the impeller. The mixers are designed to 
avoid natural frequencies. This design keeps vibrations of the mixer to a minimum. Precise machine 
tolerances assure that the mixer runs quietly and smoothly. 

Page 257Page 257Page 257Page 257Page 257Page 257Page 257



Proposal: 1960798_Rev4 6 

Wall Tube 

The wall tube will have an upper and lower tee section for attachment of inlet and discharge pipes. They 
will penetrate the tank wall along a tank radial line and incorporate water stops for embedment in the 
concrete wall. The inside end of the pipes will terminate in 45-degree elbows which will be oriented to 
provide maximum mixing and scum breaking capability. The draft tube will be designed to permit 
removal of mixer without loss of digester gas through mixer port. 

Spent Grease Return 

The unique grease return provides you with up-to-date information on the condition of the bearings and 
seals in the mixer.  

Heat Exchanger Jacket 

The heat exchanger jacket will heat the digested sludge as it’s re-circulated through the enclosed draft 
tube. Inlet/outlet piping will be provided which terminates at the mixer mounting port. 

Ragless Impeller 

WesTech’s dynamically balanced 3-blade cast iron impeller is designed with a ragless, reversible design. 
By simply changing the mixer rotation regularly, the ExtremeDuty™ sludge mixer self-cleans to prevent 
rag buildup and stringy mass accumulation. In addition, the 3-blade design allows for efficient mixing.  

Reversible Pumping 

Unlike pump mix, gas mix, and mixers without a draft tube, the ExtremeDuty™ Sludge Mixers provide 
the flexibility of flow reversal. Downward pumping reduces foam and scum buildup that upsets the 
digestion process. Changing flow directions eliminates dead zones and stratification in your tank to 
optimize digester performance.  

Bearings 

A double-thrust bearing and a spherical roller bearing keep the shaft in place and prevent wear from 
uneven loads. Bearings are sealed with mechanical and double-lip seals to ensure complete protection. 

All Grease Lubrication 

WesTech provides lubrication equipment and an initial supply of the proper grease with each shipment 
of mixers to ensure that good lubrication starts from the very beginning. The grease lubrication system 
employs a spent grease return line that allows monitoring of the lower bearing condition. This 
inspection helps prevent downtime and keeps your operations running smoothly. Advantages include:  

• Simple and robust lubrication design

• Lowest volume of grease usage (less than 20 L per year)

• Low-pressure grease delivery system prevents excessive pressurization of seals.

• Upper and lower bearings use low-viscosity “triple-aught” (000) grease that is not proprietary
and can be purchased direct from many different suppliers.

Mechanical Seal 

Tough abrasion resistance combined with excellent heat resistance makes our heavy-duty bellows type 
mechanical seal durable in extreme applications.  

Page 258Page 258Page 258Page 258Page 258Page 258Page 258



Proposal: 1960798_Rev4 7 

Controls & Instrumentation 

Controls & Instrumentation 
Description Type Output Signal Notes 
Control Panel Type NEMA 4 Alarm Painted Steel 
Control Panel Qty Each - 1 per tank 
Local Push Button NEMA 7 - Explosion proof 
Local Push Button Qty Each - 1 per mixer 

Control Panel 

Remote control panel with the following components: 

• Motor Starters

• H-O-A selector switch

• Auto time delay to ensure that mixer comes to a complete stop when switching from forward to
reverse in auto mode.

• Programmable Relays

Local Push Button 

Local forward-stop-reverse push button to be mounted near the mixer. 

Additional Information 

Paint 
Coating 
Area 

Sandblast 
SSPC 

Paint 
Type 

Brand Product # Total DFT Coats 

Mixer 
Submerged 

SSPC-SP-
10 

Prime Tneme-
Liner 

TNEMEC Series 61 10-12 mils 1 

Intermediate None None None None None 
Final Tneme-

Liner 
TNEMEC Series 61 10-12 mils 1 

Mixer Non-
Submerged 

SSPC-SP-
10 

Prime Tneme-
Liner 

TNEMEC Series 61 4-6 mils 1 

Intermediate None None None None None 
Final Endura-

Shield 
TNEMEC 73-B5712 3-5 mils 1 

Wall Tube SSPC-SP-
10 

Prime Pota-
Pox Plus 

TNEMEC N140 4-6 mils 1 

Draft Tube SSPC-SP-
10 

Prime Pota-
Pox Plus 

TNEMEC Pota-Pox Plus 4-6 mils 1 

Shipping Weights 
Item Unit Weight 
Mixer lb 4,000  
Wall Tube lb 1,350  
Draft Tube lb 2,750  

Page 259Page 259Page 259Page 259Page 259Page 259Page 259



Proposal: 1960798_Rev4 8 

On-Site Services 

WesTech Trips to Site 
Description Units Value 
Number of Trips - 1 
Total Time on Site Days 2 

Field Service 

Included field service is for installation inspection, startup, and operator training. Any additional trips 
that the customer may request can be purchased at the standard WesTech daily rates plus travel and 
living expenses. 

Page 260Page 260Page 260Page 260Page 260Page 260Page 260



Proposal: 1960798_Rev4 9 

Item B – One (1) 24 in. External ExtremeDuty™ Mixer and 27 in. Draft 
Tube, Model SME11H 

Design Criteria 
Description Unit Dimension/Description 
Tank Inside Diameter ft 40 
Cover Type - Gasholding 
High Liquid Level** ft 24.5 
Low Liquid Level** ft 19.61 
Volume per Tank gallons 240,800 
Mixers per Tank Each 1 External 
Flow Rate per Mixer* gpm 10,200 
Turnover Time minutes 24 
Drive Type - Belt Drive 
Heat Exchanger Cap./Mixer BTU/hr 567,000 
Inlet Sludge Temperature F 95 
Hot Water Inlet Temperature F 180 
Hot Water Flow rate/Mixer gpm 80 

*Minimum flow rate in upward or downward direction

**Assumed values 

WesTech ExtremeDuty™ Sludge Mixers provide vigorous mixing of digester contents to prevent 
stratification and improve the anaerobic process. They reliably speed gas production while reducing 
foaming and scum accumulation. This rugged design was originally developed to reduce the high service 
costs of digester mixers. It has proven to be so reliable that the ExtremeDuty™ Sludge Mixer is now used 
for maximum efficiency and durability in all WesTech digester mixing applications. 

WesTech ExtremeDuty™ Sludge Mixers’ robust bearing system and ragless impeller design results in the best 
reliability in the market 

Page 261Page 261Page 261Page 261Page 261Page 261Page 261



 

 
 

Proposal: 1960798_Rev4 10 

Detailed Scope of Supply 
Item Unit Dimension Thickness Material 
Impeller in 24 - Cast Iron 
Mixer Shaft - - - Solid CRS 
Rigid Mixer Housing - - - Carbon Steel 
Flow Deflector in 24 - Carbon Steel 
Mixer Mounting Flange in - 0.75 Carbon Steel 
Motor Mount - - - Carbon Steel 
Belt Guard - - - 304L Stainless Steel 
Wall Tube in 27 0.25 Carbon Steel 
Draft Tube in 27 0.25 Carbon Steel 
Draft Tube Supports - - - Carbon Steel 
Manual Greasing System per mixer 1  - Manufacturer’s Standard 
Draft Tube Portion of Jacket in - 0.1875 304L Stainless Steel 
Jacket Material in - 0.25 304L Stainless Steel 
Inlet/Outlet Piping in 3 40 304L Stainless Steel 
Bolts & Fasteners - -  304 Stainless Steel 

 

Motor Information 
Description Unit Dimension/Description 
Mixer Motor 

Motor Size hP 15 
Motor Speed RPM 1750 
Shaft Speed RPM 318 
Motor Rotation Direction - Forward and Reverse 
Motor Safety Classification - Class 1 Division 1 Group D 
Motor Voltage V 230/460 
Motor Frequency Hz 60 
Motor Phase -- 3 

Page 262Page 262Page 262Page 262Page 262Page 262Page 262



 

 
 

Proposal: 1960798_Rev4 11 

 

Mixer Housing 

The ExtremeDuty™ Mixer is supported by a large diameter, tubular mixer housing.  This ensures 
substantially more rigidity than earlier designs using large, triangular gussets and eliminates the need of 
a stabilizer or “centering” device. This also allows our mixers to have a longer shaft. 

Impeller Shaft 

WesTech designs the impeller shaft for minimal deflection at the impeller. The mixers are designed to 
avoid natural frequencies. This design keeps vibrations of the mixer to a minimum. Precise machine 
tolerances assure that the mixer runs quietly and smoothly. 

Page 263Page 263Page 263Page 263Page 263Page 263Page 263



 

 
 

Proposal: 1960798_Rev4 12 

Wall Tube  

The wall tube will have an upper and lower tee section for attachment of inlet and discharge pipes. They 
will penetrate the tank wall along a tank radial line and incorporate water stops for embedment in the 
concrete wall. The inside end of the pipes will terminate in 45-degree elbows which will be oriented to 
provide maximum mixing and scum breaking capability. The draft tube will be designed to permit 
removal of mixer without loss of digester gas through mixer port. 

Spent Grease Return  

The unique grease return provides you with up-to-date information on the condition of the bearings and 
seals in the mixer.  

Heat Exchanger Jacket 

The heat exchanger jacket will heat the digested sludge as it’s re-circulated through the enclosed draft 
tube. Inlet/outlet piping will be provided which terminates at the mixer mounting port. 

Ragless Impeller 

WesTech’s dynamically balanced 3-blade cast iron impeller is designed with a ragless, reversible design. 
By simply changing the mixer rotation regularly, the ExtremeDuty™ sludge mixer self-cleans to prevent 
rag buildup and stringy mass accumulation. In addition, the 3-blade design allows for efficient mixing.  

Reversible Pumping 

Unlike pump mix, gas mix, and mixers without a draft tube, the ExtremeDuty™ Sludge Mixers provide 
the flexibility of flow reversal. Downward pumping reduces foam and scum buildup that upsets the 
digestion process. Changing flow directions eliminates dead zones and stratification in your tank to 
optimize digester performance.  

Bearings 

A double-thrust bearing and a spherical roller bearing keep the shaft in place and prevent wear from 
uneven loads. Bearings are sealed with mechanical and double-lip seals to ensure complete protection.  

All Grease Lubrication 

WesTech provides lubrication equipment and an initial supply of the proper grease with each shipment 
of mixers to ensure that good lubrication starts from the very beginning. The grease lubrication system 
employs a spent grease return line that allows monitoring of the lower bearing condition. This 
inspection helps prevent downtime and keeps your operations running smoothly. Advantages include:  

• Simple and robust lubrication design 

• Lowest volume of grease usage (less than 20 L per year) 

• Low-pressure grease delivery system prevents excessive pressurization of seals. 

• Upper and lower bearings use low-viscosity “triple-aught” (000) grease that is not proprietary 
and can be purchased direct from many different suppliers. 

Mechanical Seal 

Tough abrasion resistance combined with excellent heat resistance makes our heavy-duty bellows type 
mechanical seal durable in extreme applications.  

Page 264Page 264Page 264Page 264Page 264Page 264Page 264



 

 
 

Proposal: 1960798_Rev4 13 

Controls & Instrumentation 

Controls & Instrumentation 
Description Type Output Signal Notes 
Control Panel Type NEMA 4 Alarm Painted Steel 
Control Panel Qty Each - 1 per tank 
Local Push Button NEMA 7 - Explosion proof 
Local Push Button Qty Each - 1 per mixer 

Control Panel 

Remote control panel with the following components: 

• Motor Starters 

• H-O-A selector switch 

• Auto time delay to ensure that mixer comes to a complete stop when switching from forward to 
reverse in auto mode. 

• Programmable Relays 

Local Push Button 

Local forward-stop-reverse push button to be mounted near the mixer.  

Additional Information 

Paint 
Coating 
Area 

Sandblast 
SSPC 

 Paint 
Type 

Brand Product # Total DFT Coats 

Mixer 
Submerged 

SSPC-SP-
10 

Prime Tneme-
Liner 

TNEMEC Series 61 10-12 mils 1 

Intermediate None None None None None 
Final Tneme-

Liner 
TNEMEC Series 61 10-12 mils 1 

Mixer Non-
Submerged 

SSPC-SP-
10 

Prime Tneme-
Liner 

TNEMEC Series 61 4-6 mils 1 

Intermediate None None None None None 
Final Endura-

Shield 
TNEMEC 73-B5712 3-5 mils 1 

Wall Tube SSPC-SP-
10 

Prime Pota-
Pox Plus 

TNEMEC N140 4-6 mils 1 

Draft Tube SSPC-SP-
10 

Prime Pota-
Pox Plus 

TNEMEC Pota-Pox Plus 4-6 mils 1 

 

Shipping Weights 
Item  Unit Weight 
Mixer   lb 4,000    
Wall Tube   lb 1,350   
Draft Tube   lb 2,750   

Page 265Page 265Page 265Page 265Page 265Page 265Page 265



Proposal: 1960798_Rev4 14 

On-Site Services 

WesTech Trips to Site 
Description Units Value 
Number of Trips - 1 
Total Time on Site Days 2 

Field Service 

Included field service is for installation inspection, startup, and operator training. Any additional trips 
that the customer may request can be purchased at the standard WesTech daily rates plus travel and 
living expenses. 

Page 266Page 266Page 266Page 266Page 266Page 266Page 266



 

 
 

Proposal: 1960798_Rev4 15 

Clarifications and Exceptions 
General Clarifications  

Terms & Conditions: This proposal, including all terms and conditions contained herein, shall become 
part of any resulting contract or purchase order. Changes to any terms and conditions, including but not 
limited to submittal and shipment days, payment terms, and escalation clause shall be negotiated at 
order placement, otherwise the proposal terms and conditions contained herein shall apply. 

Paint:  If your equipment has paint included in the price, please take note to the following. Primer paints 
are designed to provide only a minimal protection from the time of application (usually for a period not 
to exceed 30 days). Therefore, it is imperative that the finish coat be applied within 30 days of shipment 
on all shop primed surfaces. Without the protection of the final coatings, primer degradation may occur 
after this period, which in turn may require renewed surface preparation and coating. If it is impractical 
or impossible to coat primed surfaces within the suggested time frame, WesTech strongly recommends 
the supply of bare metal, with surface preparation and coating performed in the field. All field surface 
preparation, field paint, touch-up, and repair to shop painted surfaces are not by WesTech. 

Escalation: If between the proposal date and actual procurement and through no fault of the Seller, the 
relevant cost of labor, material, freight, tariffs, and other Seller costs combined relating to the contract, 
increase by greater than 2.5% of the overall contract price, then the contract price shall be subject to 
escalation and increased.  Such increase shall be verified by documentation and the amount of contract 
price escalation shall be calculated as either the actual increased cost to the Seller or, if agreed by the 
Parties, the equivalent increase of a relevant industry recognized third-party index, and in both cases 
without any additional profit or margin being added.   

USA Tariffs and Current Trade Laws: All prices are based on current USA and North America tariffs and 
trade laws/agreements at time of bid. Any changes in costs due to USA Tariffs and trade laws/ 
agreements will be passed through to the purchaser at cost. 

The Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act of 2021 (IIJA) includes potentially significant changes to 
historical “Buy American” or “American Iron and Steel” (AIS) requirements for federally funded projects, 
including water-related infrastructure projects as administered by the Environmental Protection Agency 
(EPA).  The IIJA was signed into law on Nov 15, 2021.  However the EPA has yet to issue additional 
information and guidance clarifying the application and interpretation of these changes.  Although 
WesTech makes every effort to source the steel for our equipment and products domestically, not 
everything is reasonably or commercially available to meet all project specific 
constraints.  Consequently, any proposal or offer for sale by WesTech, including any resulting equipment 
order, does not guarantee compliance with the Buy American provisions of the Infrastructure 
Investment and Jobs Act of 2021 at this time.   

Clarifications and Comments 

• Platform, grating and handrail for maintenance platform are not by WesTech.    

• WesTech is not responsible for concrete design for new or existing concrete, nor for determining 
the suitability of the concrete to withstand any design loads. 

Page 267Page 267Page 267Page 267Page 267Page 267Page 267



Proposal: 1960798_Rev4 16 

• WesTech has assumed the tank top of wall, high and low liquid elevations and tank bottom of
wall elevation for this budget. If these differ from what is onsite WesTech will provide a new
budget.

• 1.02.C.f WesTech has included a standard control panel and pushbutton station for this budget.

Items Not by WesTech 

Electrical wiring, conduit or electrical equipment, any piping and supports, valves, fittings, shimming 
material, digester tankage, lubricating oil or grease, shop or field painting, field welding, erection, detail 
shop fabrication drawings, performance testing, unloading, storage, concrete work, field service, (except 
as specifically noted). 

Exceptions 

Item A Exceptions 

1.04.A.1 WesTech has proposed a 10 hp mixer in lieu of a 7.5 hp mixer. Based on calculations taking into 
account the headless through the draft tube and wall tubes WesTech believes a 10 hp mixer is required. 

1.02.C.2 WesTech has not included the cost or field service for tracer testing. Further information is 
required to provide an estimate of this cost. 

2.01.D.10 WesTech has not included a VFD for this budget. 

2.01.E WesTech cannot guarantee the location of the lower bearing will be within 4 in of the impeller. 
WesTech will also provide our standard mechanical seal in lieu of the specified tungsten carbide and 
cartridge system specified.  

2.01.F WesTech will provide our standard grease lubrication system that does not require a sensing 
assembly.  

2.01.H WesTech will not include a stabilizing guide as one is not needed with the rigid mixer housing. 

3.02.B WesTech will provide 304 stainless steel adhesive anchors in lieu of the specified 303 stainless 
steel anchors. The cost of 303 stainless steel anchors is more than double the cost of 304 stainless steel 
anchors without added benefit. 

Item B Exceptions 

1.04.A.2 WesTech has proposed a 15 hp mixer in lieu of a 10 hp mixer. Based on calculations taking into 
account the headless through the draft tube and wall tubes WesTech believes a 15 hp mixer is required. 

1.02.C.2 WesTech has not included the cost or field service for tracer testing. Further information is 
required to provide an estimate of this cost. 

2.01.D.10 WesTech has not included a VFD for this budget. 

2.01.E WesTech cannot guarantee the location of the lower bearing will be within 4 in of the impeller. 
WesTech will also provide our standard mechanical seal in lieu of the specified tungsten carbide and 
cartridge system specified.  

2.01.F WesTech will provide our standard grease lubrication system that does not require a sensing 
assembly.  

Page 268Page 268Page 268Page 268Page 268Page 268Page 268



 

 
 

Proposal: 1960798_Rev4 17 

2.01.H WesTech will not include a stabilizing guide as one is not needed with the rigid mixer housing. 

3.02.B WesTech will provide 304 stainless steel adhesive anchors in lieu of the specified 303 stainless 
steel anchors. The cost of 303 stainless steel anchors is more than double the cost of 304 stainless steel 
anchors without added benefit. 

  

Page 269Page 269Page 269Page 269Page 269Page 269Page 269



Proposal: 1960798_Rev4 18 

Commercial Proposal 
Proposal Name: Carroll WWTP 
Proposal Number: 1960798 
Friday, August 04, 2023 

1. Bidder's Contact Information
Company Name WesTech Engineering, LLC 
Primary Contact Name Tom Dumbaugh 
Phone (801) 265-1000
Email tdumbaugh@westech-inc.com
Address:   Number/Street 3665 S West Temple
Address:   City, State, Zip Salt Lake City, UT  84115

2. Budget Pricing Currency: USD 
Scope of Supply

A One (1) 24 in dia. ExtremeDuty™ Sludge Mixer, Model SME11H $295,000 

B One (1) 24 in dia. ExtremeDuty™ Sludge Mixer, Model SME11H $295,000 

Taxes (sales, use, VAT, IVA, IGV, duties, import fees, etc.) Not Included 
Prices are valid for a period not to exceed 30 days from date of proposal. 

Additional Field Service 
Daily Rate (Applicable Only to Field Service Not Included in Scope) $1,200 
Pricing does not include field service unless noted in scope of supply, but is available at the daily rate plus expenses.  The greater of a two week notice or 
visa procurement time is required prior to departure date. Our field service policy can be provided upon request for more details. 

3. Payment Terms
Purchase Order Acceptance and Contract Execution 10% 

Submittals Provided by WesTech 15% 

Release for Fabrication 35% 

Notification of Ready to Ship 40% 
All payments are net 30 days. Partial shipments are allowed. An approved Letter of Credit is required if Incoterms CIF, CFR, DAP, CIP, or CPT are 
applicable. Payment is required in full for all other Incoterms prior to international shipment. Other terms per WesTech proforma invoice. Please note 
that the advising bank must be named as: Wells Fargo Bank, International Department, 9000 Flair Drive, 3rd Floor, El Monte, California 91731, USA. 

4. Schedule
Submittals, after Purchase Order Acceptance and Contract Execution 8 to 10 weeks 

Ready to Ship, after Receipt of Final Submittal Approval 24 to 28 weeks 

Estimated Weeks to Ready to Ship 32 to 38 weeks* 
*Customer submittal approval is typically required to proceed with equipment fabrication and is not accounted for in the schedule above. Project 
schedule will be extended to account for time associated with receipt of customer submittal approval.

5. Freight
Domestic FOB Shipping Point - Full Freight Allowed to Jobsite (FSP-FFA) 
From Final Destination Number of Trucks or Containers 
WesTech Shops Carroll, IA Approximately 2 

Page 270Page 270Page 270Page 270Page 270Page 270Page 270



Proposal: 1960798_Rev4 19 

One-Year Warranty 
WesTech is meeting a global need for clean water through technology treatment solutions. We are 
proud that the equipment and systems we design, build, maintain, and operate are making the world a 
better place and creating a more sustainable environment for future generations. 

Equipment manufactured or sold by WesTech Engineering, LLC, once paid for in full, is backed by the 
following warranty: 

Subject to the terms below, WesTech warrants all new equipment manufactured or sold by 
WesTech Engineering, LLC to be unencumbered and free from defects in material and workmanship, 
and WesTech will replace or repair, F.O.B. its factories or other location it chooses, any part or parts 
returned to WesTech which WesTech’s examination and analysis determine have failed within the 
warranty period because of defects in material and workmanship. The warranty period is either, one 
calendar year immediately following start-up, or eighteen (18) months from when WesTech sent its 
ready-to-ship notification to the purchaser, whichever expires sooner. All repair or replacement 
parts qualifying under this warranty shall be free of charge. Purchaser will provide timely written 
notice to WesTech of any defects it believes should be repaired or replaced under this warranty. 
WesTech will reject as untimely any warranty defect claim that purchaser submits more than thirty 
(30) days after the possible warranty defect first occurred.  Unless specifically stated otherwise, this
warranty does not cover normal wear or consumables.  This warranty is not transferable.

  This warranty shall be void and shall not apply where the equipment or any part thereof 

a) has been dismantled, modified, repaired or connected to other equipment, outside of a
WesTech factory, or without WesTech’s written approval, or

b) has not been installed in complete adherence to all WesTech’s or parts manufacturer’s
requirements, recommendations, and procedures, or

c) has been subject to misuse, abuse, neglect, or accident, or has not at all times been operated
and maintained in strict compliance with all of WesTech’s requirements and recommendations
therefor, including, but not limited to, the relevant WesTech Operations & Maintenance Manual
and any other of WesTech’s specified guidelines & procedures, or

d) has been subject to force majeure events; use of chemicals not approved in writing by WesTech;
electrical surges; overloading; significant power, water or feed supply fluctuations; or non-
compliance with agreed feedwater or chemical volumes, specifications or procedures.

In any case where a part or component of equipment under this warranty is or may be faulty and the 
component or part is also covered under the warranty of a third party then the purchaser shall provide 
reasonable assistance to first pursue a claim under the third party warranty before making a claim under 
this warranty from WesTech.  WesTech Engineering, LLC gives no warranty with respect to parts, 
accessories, or components purchased other than through WesTech. The warranties which apply to such 
items are those offered by the respective manufacturers. 

Page 271Page 271Page 271Page 271Page 271Page 271Page 271



 

 
 

Proposal: 1960798_Rev4 20 

This warranty is expressly given by WesTech and accepted by purchaser in lieu of all other warranties 
whether written, oral, express, implied, statutory or otherwise, including without limitation, warranties 
of merchantability and fitness for particular purpose. WesTech neither accepts nor authorizes any other 
person to assume for it any other liability with respect to its equipment. WesTech shall not be liable for 
normal wear and tear, corrosion, or any contingent, incidental, or consequential damage or expense due 
to partial or complete inoperability of its equipment for any reason whatsoever. The purchaser’s 
exclusive and only remedy for breach of this warranty shall be the repair and or replacement of the 
defective part or parts within a reasonable time of WesTech’s accepting the validity of a warranty claim 
made by the purchaser. 

  

Page 272Page 272Page 272Page 272Page 272Page 272Page 272



 

 
 

Proposal: 1960798_Rev4 21 

Terms & Conditions 
Terms and Conditions appearing in any order based on this proposal which 
are inconsistent herewith shall not be binding on WesTech Engineering, LLC 
The sale and purchase of equipment described herein shall be governed 
exclusively by the foregoing proposal and the following provisions: 
 
1. SPECIFICATIONS: WesTech Engineering, LLC is furnishing its standard 
equipment as outlined in the proposal and as will be covered by final 
approved drawings. The equipment may not be in strict compliance with 
the Engineer’s/Owner’s plans, specifications, or addenda as there may be 
deviations. The equipment will, however, meet the general intention of the 
mechanical specifications of these documents. 
 
2. ITEMS INCLUDED:  This proposal includes only the equipment specified 
herein and does not include erection, installation, accessories, nor 
associated materials such as controls, piping, etc., unless specifically listed. 
 
3. PARTIES TO CONTRACT:  WesTech Engineering, LLC is not a party to or 
bound by the terms of any contract between WesTech Engineering, LLC’s 
customer and any other party. WesTech Engineering, LLC’s undertakings 
are limited to those defined in the contract between WesTech Engineering, 
LLC and its direct customers. 
 
4. PRICE AND DELIVERY:  All selling prices quoted are subject to change 
without notice after 30 days from the date of this proposal unless specified 
otherwise. Unless otherwise stated, all prices are F.O.B. WesTech 
Engineering, LLC or its supplier’s shipping points. All claims for damage, 
delay or shortage arising from such equipment shall be made by Purchaser 
directly against the carrier. When shipments are quoted F.O.B. job site or 
other designation, Purchaser shall inspect the equipment shipped, 
notifying WesTech Engineering, LLC of any damage or shortage within 
forty-eight hours of receipt, and failure to so notify WesTech Engineering, 
LLC shall constitute acceptance by Purchaser, relieving WesTech 
Engineering, LLC of any liability for shipping damages or shortages. 
 
5. PAYMENTS: All invoices are net 30 days. Delinquencies are subject to a 
1.5 percent service charge per month or the maximum permitted by law, 
whichever is less on all past due accounts. Pro rata payments are due as 
shipments are made. If shipments are delayed by the Purchaser, invoices 
shall be sent on the date when WesTech Engineering, LLC is prepared to 
make shipment and payment shall become due under standard invoicing 
terms. If the work to be performed hereunder is delayed by the Purchaser, 
payments shall be based on the purchase price and percentage of 
completion. Products held for the Purchaser shall be at the risk and 
expense of the Purchaser. Unless specifically stated otherwise, prices 
quoted are for equipment only. These terms are independent of and not 
contingent upon the time and manner in which the Purchaser receives 
payment from the owner. 
 
6. PAYMENT TERMS:  Credit is subject to acceptance by WesTech 
Engineering, LLC’s Credit Department. If the financial condition of the 
Purchaser at any time is such as to give WesTech Engineering, LLC, in its 
judgment, doubt concerning the Purchaser’s ability to pay, WesTech 
Engineering, LLC may require full or partial payment in advance or may 
suspend any further deliveries or continuance of the work to be performed 
by the WesTech Engineering, LLC until such payment has been received. 
 
7. ESCALATION: If between the proposal date and actual procurement and 
through no fault of the Seller, the relevant cost of labor, material, freight, 
tariffs, and other Seller costs combined relating to the contract, increase by 
greater than 2.5% of the overall contract price, then the contract price shall 
be subject to escalation and increased.  Such increase shall be verified by 
documentation and the amount of contract price escalation shall be 
calculated as either the actual increased cost to the Seller or, if agreed by 
the Parties, the equivalent increase of a relevant industry recognized third-

party index, and in both cases without any additional profit or margin being 
added.   
 
8. APPROVAL:  If approval of equipment submittals by Purchaser or others 
is required, a condition precedent to WesTech Engineering, LLC supplying 
any equipment shall be such complete approval. 
 
9. INSTALLATION SUPERVISION:  Prices quoted for equipment do not 
include installation supervision. WesTech Engineering, LLC recommends 
and will, upon request, make available, at WesTech Engineering, LLC’s then 
current rate, an experienced installation supervisor to act as the 
Purchaser’s employee and agent to supervise installation of the 
equipment. Purchaser shall at its sole expense furnish all necessary labor 
equipment, and materials needed for installation. 
 
Responsibility for proper operation of equipment, if not installed by 
WesTech Engineering, LLC or installed in accordance with WesTech 
Engineering, LLC’s instructions, and inspected and accepted in writing by 
WesTech Engineering, LLC, rests entirely with Purchaser; and any work 
performed by WesTech Engineering, LLC personnel in making adjustment 
or changes must be paid for at WesTech Engineering, LLC’s then current 
per diem rates plus living and traveling expenses. 
 
WesTech Engineering, LLC will supply the safety devices described in this 
proposal or shown in WesTech Engineering, LLC’s drawings furnished as 
part of this order but excepting these, WesTech Engineering, LLC shall not 
be required to supply or install any safety devices whether required by law 
or otherwise. The Purchaser hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless 
WesTech Engineering, LLC from any claims or losses arising due to alleged 
or actual insufficiency or inadequacy of the safety devices offered or 
supplied hereunder, whether specified by WesTech Engineering, LLC or 
Purchaser, and from any damage resulting from the use of the equipment 
supplied hereunder. 
 
10. ACCEPTANCE OF PRODUCTS: Products will be deemed accepted 
without any claim by Purchaser unless written notice of non-acceptance is 
received by WesTech Engineering, LLC within 30 days of delivery if shipped 
F.O.B. point of shipment, or 48 hours of delivery if shipped F.O.B. point of 
destination. Such written notice shall not be considered received by 
WesTech Engineering, LLC unless it is accompanied by all freight bills for 
said shipment, with Purchaser’s notations as to damages, shortages and 
conditions of equipment, containers, and seals. Non-accepted products are 
subject to the return policy stated below. 
 
11. TAXES:  Any federal, state, or local sales, use or other taxes applicable 
to this transaction, unless specifically included in the price, shall be for 
Purchaser’s account. 
 
12. TITLE:  The equipment specified herein, and any replacements or 
substitutes therefore shall, regardless of the manner in which affixed to or 
used in connection with realty, remain the sole and personal property of 
WesTech Engineering, LLC until the full purchase price has been paid. 
Purchaser agrees to do all things necessary to protect and maintain 
WesTech Engineering, LLC’s title and interest in and to such equipment; 
and upon Purchaser’s default, WesTech Engineering, LLC may retain as 
liquidated damages any and all partial payments made and shall be free to 
enter the premises where such equipment is located and remove the same 
as its property without prejudice to any further claims on account of 
damages or loss which WesTech Engineering, LLC may suffer from any 
cause. 
 
13. INSURANCE: From date of shipment until the invoice is paid in full, 
Purchaser agrees to provide and maintain at its expense, but for WesTech 
Engineering, LLC’s benefit, adequate insurance including, but not limited 

Page 273Page 273Page 273Page 273Page 273Page 273Page 273



 

 
 

Proposal: 1960798_Rev4 22 

to, builders risk insurance on the equipment against any loss of any nature 
whatsoever. 
 
14. SHIPMENTS:  Any shipment of delivery dates recited represent 
WesTech Engineering, LLC’s best estimate but no liability, direct or indirect, 
is assumed by WesTech Engineering, LLC for failure to ship or deliver on 
such dates. 
 
WesTech Engineering, LLC shall have the right to make partial shipments; 
and invoices covering the same shall be due and payable by Purchaser in 
accordance with the payment terms thereof. If Purchaser defaults in any 
payment when due hereunder, WesTech Engineering, LLC may, without 
incurring any liability therefore to Purchaser or Purchaser’s customers, 
declare all payments immediately due and payable with maximum legal 
interest thereon from due date of said payment, and at its option, stop all 
further work and shipments until all past due payments have been made, 
and/or require that any further deliveries be paid for prior to shipment. 
 
If Purchaser requests postponements of shipments, the purchase price 
shall be due and payable upon notice from WesTech Engineering, LLC that 
the equipment is ready for shipment; and thereafter any storage or other 
charge WesTech Engineering, LLC incurs on account of the equipment shall 
be for the Purchaser’s account.  
 
If delivery is specified at a point other than WesTech Engineering, LLC or its 
supplier’s shipping points, and delivery is postponed or prevented by strike, 
accident, embargo, or other cause beyond WesTech Engineering, LLC’s 
reasonable control and occurring at a location other than WesTech 
Engineering, LLC or its supplier’s shipping points, WesTech Engineering, LLC 
assumes no liability in delivery delay. If Purchaser refuses such delivery, 
WesTech Engineering, LLC may store the equipment at Purchaser’s 
expense. For all purposes of this agreement such tender of delivery or 
storage shall constitute delivery. 
 
15. WARRANTY:    WesTech Engineering LLC warrants equipment it 
supplies only in accordance with the attached WesTech Warranty.   This 
warranty is expressly given by WesTech and accepted by purchaser in lieu 
of all other warranties whether written, oral, express, implied, statutory or 
otherwise, including without limitation, warranties of merchantability and 
fitness for particular purpose. WesTech neither accepts nor authorizes any 
other person to assume for it any other liability with respect to its 
equipment. WesTech shall not be liable for normal wear and tear, 
corrosion, or any contingent, incidental, or consequential damage or 
expense due to partial or complete inoperability of its equipment for any 
reason whatsoever. The purchaser’s exclusive and only remedy for breach 
of this warranty shall be the repair and or replacement of the defective 
part or parts within a reasonable time of WesTech’s accepting the validity 
of a warranty claim made by the purchaser. 
 
16. PATENTS:  WesTech Engineering, LLC agrees that it will, at its own 
expense, defend all suits or proceedings instituted against Purchaser and 
pay any award of damages assessed against it in such suits or proceedings, 
so far as the same are based on any claim that the said equipment or any 
part thereof constitutes an infringement of any apparatus patent of the 
United States issued at the date of this Agreement, provided WesTech 
Engineering, LLC is given prompt notice in writing of the institution or 
threatened institution of any suit or proceeding and is given full control of 
the defense, settlement, or compromise of any such action; and Purchaser 
agrees to give WesTech Engineering, LLC needed information, assistance, 
and authority to enable WesTech Engineering, LLC so to do. In the event 
said equipment is held or conceded to infringe such a patent, WesTech 
Engineering, LLC shall have the right at its sole option and expense to a) 
modify the equipment to be non-infringing, b) obtain for Purchaser the 
license to continue using said equipment, or c) accept return of the 
equipment and refund to the Purchaser the purchase price thereof less a 
reasonable charge for the use thereof. WesTech Engineering, LLC will 
reimburse Purchaser for actual out-of-pocket expenses, exclusive of legal 
fees, incurred in preparing such information and rendering such assistance 

at WesTech Engineering, LLC’s request. The foregoing states the entire 
liability of WesTech Engineering, LLC, with respect to patent infringement; 
and except as otherwise agreed to in writing, WesTech Engineering, LLC 
assumes no responsibility for process patent infringement. 
 
17. SURFACE PREPARATION AND PAINTING: If furnished, shop primer 
paint is intended to serve only as minimal protective finish. WesTech 
Engineering, LLC will not be responsible for the condition of primed or 
finish painted surfaces after equipment leaves its shops. Purchasers are 
invited to inspect paint in shops for proper preparation and application 
prior to shipment. WesTech Engineering, LLC assumes no responsibility for 
field surface preparation or touch-up of shipping damage to paint. Painting 
of fasteners and other touch-up to painted surfaces will be by Purchaser’s 
painting contractor after mechanism installation. 
 
Motors, gear motors, and other components not manufactured by 
WesTech Engineering, LLC will be painted with that manufacturer’s 
standard paint system. It is WesTech Engineering, LLC’s intention to ship 
major steel components as soon as fabricated, often before drive, motors, 
and other manufactured components. Unless Purchaser can ensure that 
shop primed steel shall be field painted within thirty (30) days after arrival 
at the job site, WesTech Engineering, LLC encourages the Purchaser to 
order these components without primer.  
  
WesTech Engineering, LLC’s prices are based on paints and surface 
preparations as outlined in the main body of this proposal. In the event 
that an alternate paint system is selected, WesTech Engineering, LLC 
requests that Purchaser’s order advise of the paint selection. WesTech 
Engineering, LLC will then either adjust the price as may be necessary to 
comply or ship the material unpainted if compliance is not possible due to 
application problems or environmental controls. 
 
18. CANCELLATION, SUSPENSION, OR DELAY: After acceptance by 
WesTech Engineering, LLC, this proposal, or Purchaser’s order based on this 
proposal, shall be a firm agreement and is not subject to cancellation, 
suspension, or delay except upon payment by Purchaser of appropriate 
charges which shall include all costs incurred by WesTech Engineering, LLC 
to date of cancellation, suspension, or delay plus a reasonable profit. 
Additionally, all charges related to storage and/or resumption of work, at 
WesTech Engineering, LLC’s plant or elsewhere, shall be for Purchaser’s 
sole account; and all risks incidental to storage shall be assumed by 
Purchaser. 
 
19. FORCE MAJEURE:  Neither party hereto shall be liable to the other for 
default or delay in delivery caused by extreme weather or other act of God, 
strike or other labor shortage or disturbance, fire, accident, war or civil 
disturbance, act of government, pandemic, delay of carriers, failure of 
normal sources of supply, complete or partial shutdown of plant by reason 
of inability to attain sufficient raw materials or power, and/or other similar 
contingency beyond the reasonable control of the respective parties.  The 
time for delivery specified herein shall be extended during the continuance 
of such conditions, or any other cause beyond such party’s reasonable 
control.  Escalation resulting from a Force Majeure event shall be equitably 
adjusted per the escalation policy stated above.   
 
20. RETURN OF PRODUCTS:  No products may be returned to WesTech 
Engineering, LLC without WesTech Engineering, LLC’s prior written 
permission. Said permission may be withheld by WesTech Engineering, LLC 
at its sole discretion. 
 
21. BACKCHARGES:  WesTech Engineering LLC will not approve or accept 
backcharges for labor, materials, or other costs incurred by Purchaser or 
others in modification, adjustment, service, or repair of WesTech 
Engineering LLC furnished materials unless such back charge has been 
authorized in advance in writing by a WesTech Engineering LLC purchase 
order, or work requisition signed by WesTech Engineering LLC. 
 

Page 274Page 274Page 274Page 274Page 274Page 274Page 274



 

 
 

Proposal: 1960798_Rev4 23 

22. INDEMNIFICATION: Purchaser agrees to indemnify WesTech 
Engineering, LLC from all costs incurred, including but not limited to court 
costs and reasonable attorney fees, from enforcing any provisions of this 
contract, including but not limited to breach of contract or costs incurred in 
collecting monies owed on this contract. 
 
23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT:  This proposal expresses the entire agreement 
between the parties hereto superseding any prior understandings and is 
not subject to modification except by a writing signed by an authorized 
officer of each party. 
 
24. MOTORS AND MOTOR DRIVES:  In order to avoid shipment delays of 
WesTech Engineering, LLC equipment, the motor drives may be sent 
directly to the job site for installation by the equipment installer. Minor fit-
up may be required. 
 
25. EXTENDED STORAGE: Extended storage instructions will be part of 
information provided to shipment. If equipment installation and start-up is 
delayed more than 30 days, the provisions of the storage instructions must 
be followed to keep WARRANTY in force. 
 
26. LIABILITY: Professional liability insurance, including but not limited to, 
errors and omissions insurance, is not included. In any event, liability for 
errors and omissions shall be limited to the lesser of $100,000 USD or the 
value of the particular piece of equipment (not the value of the entire 
order) supplied by WesTech Engineering LLC against which a claim is 
sought. 
 
27. ARBITRATION NEGOTIATION: Any controversy or claim arising out of or 
relating to the performance of any contract resulting from this proposal or 

contract issued, or the breach thereof, shall be settled by arbitration in 
accordance with the Construction Industry Arbitration Rules of the 
American Arbitration Association, and judgment upon the award rendered 
by the arbitrator(s) may be entered to any court having jurisdiction. 
 
ACCEPTED BY PURCHASER 
 
Customer Name:       
 
Customer Address:      
 
       
 
       
 
Contact Name:      
 
Contact Phone:       
 
Contact Email:       
 
Signature:        
 
Printed Name:       
 
Title:        
 
Date:        
 
 

 

Page 275Page 275Page 275Page 275Page 275Page 275Page 275



 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX C 
 

Gas Handling & Gas Safety Equipment 

Page 276Page 276Page 276Page 276Page 276Page 276Page 276



Page 277Page 277Page 277Page 277Page 277Page 277Page 277



Page 278Page 278Page 278Page 278Page 278Page 278Page 278



Page 279Page 279Page 279Page 279Page 279Page 279Page 279



Page 280Page 280Page 280Page 280Page 280Page 280Page 280



Page 281Page 281Page 281Page 281Page 281Page 281Page 281



Page 282Page 282Page 282Page 282Page 282Page 282Page 282



Page 283Page 283Page 283Page 283Page 283Page 283Page 283



Page 284Page 284Page 284Page 284Page 284Page 284Page 284



Page 285Page 285Page 285Page 285Page 285Page 285Page 285



Page 286Page 286Page 286Page 286Page 286Page 286Page 286



Page 287Page 287Page 287Page 287Page 287Page 287Page 287



Page 288Page 288Page 288Page 288Page 288Page 288Page 288



Page 289Page 289Page 289Page 289Page 289Page 289Page 289



Page 290Page 290Page 290Page 290Page 290Page 290Page 290



Page 291Page 291Page 291Page 291Page 291Page 291Page 291



Page 292Page 292Page 292Page 292Page 292Page 292Page 292



Page 293Page 293Page 293Page 293Page 293Page 293Page 293



Page 294Page 294Page 294Page 294Page 294Page 294Page 294



Page 295Page 295Page 295Page 295Page 295Page 295Page 295



Page 296Page 296Page 296Page 296Page 296Page 296Page 296



Page 297Page 297Page 297Page 297Page 297Page 297Page 297



 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX D 
 

Aerobic Digester Equipment Proposal 

Page 298Page 298Page 298Page 298Page 298Page 298Page 298



Page 299Page 299Page 299Page 299Page 299Page 299Page 299



Page 300Page 300Page 300Page 300Page 300Page 300Page 300



OIL DRAIN
ASSEMBLY

FORKLIFT
POCKETS

EXHAUST FAN
(115V,60Hz,
25W,0.2A)

AB

C

D

E,F

J

 

N

P

G

T

V

 57" 

 7" 

K
L

J

I

J2

X

 32" 

 6" 

 17 1
2 " 

 25"  6 1
2 " 

 38" 

 11 1
2 " 

 29" 

 4x 3
4 " 

2"MNPT
DISCHARGE

ESTIMATED BLOWER PACKAGE WEIGHT: 800#
BLOWER ROTATION: CCW
MIN. SPEED: xxHZ
TOLERANCE:  1/2"
DISCHARGE PIPING MUST BE INDEPENDENTLY SUPPORTED,
SUPPORT DIRECTLY BELOW RELIEF VALVE.
COMPONENTS J2, K, & L WILL SHIP LOOSE.
NOTE: ATTACH FORKLIFT POCKET COVERS AFTER
PACKAGE IN INSTALLED.

REV. DESCRIPTION DATE BY

DWG#:

9/23/2022DATE:

REV#:

#2 COMPACT 0

1:22

PRELIMINARY DRAWING
BLANDON, PENNSYLVANIA

P.O.# 
DIMENSIONS SUBJECT TO CHANGE

SCALE: Page 301Page 301Page 301Page 301Page 301Page 301Page 301



 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX E 
 

WWTP Aluminum Domes Proposal 

Page 302Page 302Page 302Page 302Page 302Page 302Page 302



Hydro Application Consulting Group, LLC.  
435 Nichols Rd., Suite 200, Kansas City MO 64112 

PHONE: (913) 901.7708 

FAX: (913) 273.9460 

Email: arih@hacll.com 

 
 

 
  

 

 

 

 
  

 

 

 
 

 
 

  

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

Equipment Proposal
HAC- 083123-SPR0

  For the

WWTP Aluminum Domes
2023 Project

City of Carroll, IA

DATE:
August 31, 2023

EQUIPMENT SUPPLIER:
Hydro Application Consulting (HAC) Group, LLC.

Page 303Page 303Page 303Page 303Page 303Page 303Page 303



Hydro Application Consulting Group, LLC.  
435 Nichols Rd., Suite 200, Kansas City MO 64112 

PHONE: (913) 901.7708 

FAX: (913) 273.9460 

Email: arih@hacll.com 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

       

 
 

 

  

 
 

 

HAC Group - City of Carroll, Iowa - WWTP Aluminum Domes
Two (2) Clear Span, Self-Supporting Aluminum Geo-Dome roof covers for Concrete Digesters.

We are pleased to offer the following proposal for your consideration for Specification section 113800 and 
as follows:

DOME DESIGN DATA:
 AWWA D108-10, ADM 2015, and ASCE 7-16, IBC 2018
 Concrete Digesters 40FT ID; 35FT ID with 1’-0” wide walls (to be confirmed)

o Bottom Elevation: 1228.89
o Top of Wall Elevation: 1254.39
o Finished Ground Elev: approx. 1250

 Geo-Desic Dome Roof with a Clear Span design and Triangulated AL. panels
 Design Pressure: ATM
 Roof Design Snow Load: 25PSF
 Roof Design Live Load: 25PSF
 Dome Rise” Approx. 4-5FT at the apex
 Design Wind Speed: 119mph, Exposure C;
 Structure Occupancy Category: III
 Seismic: Use group II, Ie = 1.25; Ss = 0.059 and S1 = 0.044; Design cat. A
 Flashing and Bird/insect screen
 Silicone Sealant
 Roof Finish: AL Mill Finish
 Batten Bar design with extruded gasket
 All aluminum material as per AWWA D100-08std and the latest ADM 2015 (The Aluminum

  Association - Aluminum Design Manual).

Included in UIG’s Scope of Supply and Price:

1.  One (1) 40’ I.D. geodesic self-supporting aluminum dome roof cover
2.  One (1) 35’ I.D. geodesic self-supporting aluminum dome roof covers
3.  Two (2) std. #9 Dektite Pipe Boots up to 12” in dia. pipe
4.  One (1) #803 retrofit Dektite boot up to 8” dia pipe
5.  Two (2) per dome ¼” Acrylic skylights
6.  One (1) per dome 30” x 30” Aluminum Access hatch
7.  Two (2) per dome 20” dia off center ventilators with bird screen
8.  One (1) per dome 6” dia roof nozzle with blind flange composed of AL.
9.  Partial 5FT each way perimeter handrail with a toe board as per OSHA, composed of AL.
10.  One (1) ¾” dia SS Eyebolt at the apex. 5000lbs
11.  One (1) Single handrail with Non-skid traction tape to apex
12.  SS304 safety Line to Apex
13.  SS Anchor bolts as required to complete installation
14.  Dome roof flashing composed of AL
15.  SS Ground Cables
16.  SS300 series hardware
17.  IA PE stamped submittals.

Page 304Page 304Page 304Page 304Page 304Page 304Page 304



Hydro Application Consulting Group, LLC.  
435 Nichols Rd., Suite 200, Kansas City MO 64112 

PHONE: (913) 901.7708 

FAX: (913) 273.9460 

Email: arih@hacll.com 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

       

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 
  

                  
  

  

 
 

   

  

 

 

 Dome Design and Engineering: ………………………………………...................................
 40FT ID Dome Fabrication and Material Only: …………………..…….................................
 35FT ID Dome Fabrication and Material Only: …………………..…….................................
 Shipping to Site: ………………………………………………….............................................
 Mobilization/Demobilization:……………………………………………...................................
 Unloading of Material by UIG please add: …………………………..................................…
 40FT Dome Installation based on Open Shop Rates:………………...................................
 35FT Dome Installation based on Open Shop Rates:………………....................................

*Summer Rates (April-October). For winter erection please add 35%
**For Prevailing wages please add 35%

INSTALLATION NOTE: Domes will be assembled next to the tank and set in place atop of the 
tank wall by a forklift or crane.

SCHEDULE:

 Design and preparation of drawing submittal: estimated:  6-weeks after acceptance of your order and
  settlement of all details.

 Approval by client, estimated:  1-2 weeks

FABRICATION:

 Based on current mill and shop deliveries, we estimate that fabricated material shipments could be made
  approximately 12-14 weeks after approval of drawings and settlement of all details.

ERECTION: Estimated duration of the dome roof installations: Est. 1-week/each dome

WARRANTY: Material shall be free from defects due to faulty shop workmanship/fabrication under normal
  operation and maintenance for a period of One (1) year from the completion.

TERMS OF PAYMENT By Wire-Transfer or Check within 15-days of receipt of invoice as follows:

 35% with Order
 40% on Approval of Drawings and order of material
 10% on delivery to the jobsite and mobilization
 10% on completion of dome 1 installation
 5% on completion of dome 2 installation

Validity:
Prices quoted herein are valid for 30-days and may be subject to adjustment after this time, up to the 
receipt of a firm acceptable Purchase Order and initial payment.

Not Included in UIG Scope of Work:

 Supply of test water, pumps, hoses etc. for water-spray testing (to be supplied by others).
 Survey of top of wall in dgw format
 Only one new dome is included. No work for the existing roof is included.
 Any demolitions or tank modifications, welding, coating etc. by others
 Any site grading and all civil work by others.
 Foundation and tank construction by others.
 Any electrical wiring and controls by others.
 Any construction permits by others.
 Tank disinfection, if required, by others.
 Civil work, site preparation, construction/modification of the reservoir.
 Any Taxes

PRICING:..................................................................................................................................... Lump Sum

TOTAL LS: $343,850.00

Page 305Page 305Page 305Page 305Page 305Page 305Page 305



Hydro Application Consulting Group, LLC.  
435 Nichols Rd., Suite 200, Kansas City MO 64112 

PHONE: (913) 901.7708 

FAX: (913) 273.9460 

Email: arih@hacll.com 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

       

 

 

 
NOTES AND CLARIFICATIONS: 
 

 Addendums received: 0 
 Pricing subject to UIG Terms and Conditions of Sale. 
 In our proposal we have not included for Performance or Payment Bonds, if required please add 1.5% of the total 

contract price. 
 Any sales taxes are not included.  
 Pricing subject to UIG Terms and Conditions of Sale 
 Any items that are not specifically mentioned above are not included.  
 Our proposal is based on one mobilization and one demobilization. 
 Unloading of the material by others or additional as quoted above. 
 Out of roundness measurements by others or based on API 650std. 
 Reservoir internal dimensions to be within +/- 1”  
 Top of the tank shell shall be structurally suitable for attachment of the dome roof to structure. 
 All existing anchor bolts to be cut off and flush with top of tank by others. 
 During the new roof anchorage UIG will not be responsible for any cracks in tank walls. If any to appear they shall be 

repaired by others.  
 UIG is not responsible for the following: 

♦ Modifications required to the tank to mount the dome cover, or modifications required in the field to avoid 
interference with equipment or appurtenances not defined in the customer’s drawings. 

 Testing – if required Water and Water Hose for Water-Spray Test to be provided by the Purchaser or Owner.  
 Top Angle and Wind Girder to be provided by others. If additional dome leg supports will be required to overcome 

tank shell buckling – they are to be supplied and installed by others, or by UIG at an additional charge.  
 Tank coating, if applicable, to be performed after the dome roof installation is completed so that dome erection does 

not cause any kind of damage to the tank coating system during installation. If the dome roof to be installed after to 
the tank coating is completed, in this instance UIG will not be responsible for any damage to the tank coating system. 
Some touch-up might be required.  

 Due to current volatility in the steel market, material pricing here within, after the quote valid until date, will be subject 
to Producing Mill Increase and any applicable increase of material surcharges at the time of order placement. 

 This proposal represents our complete offering. 
 Unless otherwise noted, UIG has quoted our standard design, fabrication, accessories (perimeter handrails, ladders, 

etc.) and coatings. 
 If the Buyer orders extra work or makes changes by altering, adding to, or deducting from the work set forth in this 

quote, the price and any completion date quoted will be adjusted accordingly. The price adjustment will include but 
not be limited to engineering, shipping, manufacturing, materials, construction and administration expense. All 
changes will be due Net 15. 

 Change Orders: In the event of a deviation of scope, United Industries Group, Inc. will inform the on-site 
representative from the client company of the deviation and submit a written deviation form with costs and/or time and 
material estimate. This work will not commence until written approval of scope and costs from the client company 
have been accepted by the UIG on-site representative or authorized management personnel of UIG. 

 Any items or specifications not specifically mentioned above are not part of our proposal. Change Orders may impact 
delivery date. 

 This proposal does not include unloading, hauling, grouting, or washing, painting, welding, load lines or any other 
systems installation unless stated as being included. 

 Our price is based on site being easily accessible by a tractor-trailer and crane with no overhead or other obstructions 
and adequate room (within 30 feet) directly adjacent to the tank foundations for storage of materials and equipment. 

 Unloading of the material by others or additional as quoted above.  Material to be staged adjacent to foundation. 
BUYER to provide a suitable crane or track excavator to lift and place skids and boxes as directed by SELLER’s 
personnel.  Max skid weight = 10,000 lbs.  Lifting straps are to be used; no chains. 

 Domestic freight prices quoted are F.O.B. destination and do not include any permits, duty, sales and/or use taxes. 
 International freight charges listed within this quotation are estimated C.I.F. (cost, insurance and freight) per 

Incoterms 2010 based on current available rates, and do not include any permits, duty, sales and/or use taxes. 
 Due to circumstances beyond the control of UIG, freight will be based on actual charges incurred at time of shipment.  
 Our prices are based on standards as set forth by AWWA D103 and/or NFPA 22.   
 UIG does not include for water testing, cleaning of sedimentation or contamination caused by poor water quality. 
 All non-standard applications that do not include water or municipal wastewater require submittal of water chemistry 

by owner at time of bid.  UIG is not responsible for undisclosed water chemistry and warranty may be voided. 

Page 306Page 306Page 306Page 306Page 306Page 306Page 306



Hydro Application Consulting Group, LLC.  
435 Nichols Rd., Suite 200, Kansas City MO 64112 

PHONE: (913) 901.7708 

FAX: (913) 273.9460 

Email: arih@hacll.com 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

       

 

 

 In cold climates installation price is based on erection between months of April and October. Erection between 
months of March and November can be performed for an additional fee (tbd). 

 No backfill or any external force including flooding shall be placed against the tank sidewall without prior written 
approval and design review of UIG.  Any backfill, if allowed, shall be placed according to the strict instructions of UIG. 

 Customer to provide level tank site within 2’ grade. 
 Pricing is based on working six (6) 10-hour shifts per week with the 7th day available for a make-up in case of 

weather delays. 
 We have NOT included for site preparation. 
 Steel is not limited to US origin.  
 Job site access ways, service roads, and adjacent grounds must be suitable to support continuous installation 

operations under all typical or expected weather conditions. Ways, roads, and grounds must be clear of obstructions, 
provide sufficient clear space, be paved with compacted gravel (or better material), be able to support all lifting 
operations (e.g., cranes, man-lifts, etc.), and ensure no standing 
Water or mud is retained in the work area. 

 Our scope of supply stops at 1st exterior flange of the tank unless otherwise specified. 
 We do not provide for the handling, removal or disposal of any hazardous materials such as lead, asbestos, PCB’s, 

etc. 
 Piping, valves, mixers, lighting, electrical wiring, control wiring, control systems, and other auxiliary equipment are 

supplied and installed by others unless otherwise noted in our proposal. 
 Disinfection of tank interior is not included within the scope of this proposal unless noted above. 
 Customer shall furnish water quality test. 
 Installation price is based on weather conditions favorable to continuous erection operations. Increased costs apply 

during seasonal periods that experience weather conditions unfavorable to continuous tank erection operations. 
Conditions can include extreme cold or heat, excessive wind, snowfall/ice or rain.  UIG will follow regulatory 
guidelines for safe work temperatures.  Additional charges will apply based on unfavorable conditions resulting in 
non-productive time experienced at the time of the build. Charges will be calculated on total daily downtime due to 
inclement weather and charged at the UIG standard rate sheet. 

 We have not included for cost of obtaining any construction permits. 
 Should concealed, unusual, unexpected, and/or unrecorded conditions be encountered which interfere with normal 

fabrication procedures, UIG will advise the Buyer of conditions encountered and if the Buyer instructs UIG to perform 
the necessary work to overcome such conditions, Buyer will reimburse UIG for the extra expense. 

 Any time lost due to delays with performance of scheduled payment terms for achieved milestones on behalf of the 
buyer will be added to the completion time. 

 Approval of our drawings to be given within 2 - 3 weeks after receipt. Any delay in customer supplying complete 
information or approval of drawings will be added to the completion time. 

Page 307Page 307Page 307Page 307Page 307Page 307Page 307



Hydro Application Consulting Group, LLC.  
435 Nichols Rd., Suite 200, Kansas City MO 64112 

PHONE: (913) 901.7708 

FAX: (913) 273.9460 

Email: arih@hacll.com 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

       

 

 

 In our proposal we have not included for Performance Bond, License, Fees and/or any other such fees of any kind. 
 Buyer will supply the necessary sanitary facilities and palatable drinking water as required for the performance of the 

contract.  Buyer will ensure all tank parts are within 30 feet of tank foundation with no interfering objects. UIG will be 
allowed access for a truck to be placed and operated at the erection site.  

 Power supply for tools require a minimum 120volt, 20amp circuit 3-prong grounded, within 30 foot of foundation. 
 Foundation centerlines and base orientation will be established by others at 0 degrees, 90 degrees, 180 degrees, and 

270 degrees and marked on the pad, prior to erector arriving at jobsite. Additional charges and/or re-mobilization 
charges may apply should inaccuracies or deficiencies in foundation work, performed by others, cause lost time. 

 Foundation will be clean and clear of any obstruction, material, or equipment. Adequate clearance will be provided 
around the tank foundation area as well as overhead.  Minimum clearance of eight (8) feet is required between tanks, 
ten feet overhead.   

 Buyer responsible for Hydro-Test, if a leak is disclosed during the hydro-test, a UIG service personnel will be 
dispatched immediately. If UIG is to provide Hydro-Test, buyer shall have water available within 24 hours’ notice and 
begin filling water tank. Buyer shall provide water for Hydro-test and any subsequent fillings after that. Buyer is 
responsible for emptying and disposing of water after testing. Disinfections if required shall be the responsibility of 
others. Buyer shall furnish water quality test. Buyer is to blind flange all nozzles for water testing.  All water for 
Hydrotest is to be provided, piped, pumped in the tank and disposed of by others.  No post-hydro cleaning has been 
included. 

 Any Post hydro-cleaning required will be by T&M rates or performed by others. 
 UIG requires water to be supplied not more than 50-feet from the tank being tested at 250 GPM unrestricted flow.  

Water shall be gravity drained at an unrestricted flow into a drain or other no more than 50’ from the tank. 
 Buyer responsible for supplying trash dumpster at job site and for disposing of contents of dumpster. 
 UIG construction crews will operate within the rules and regulations of the Occupational Safety and Health 

Administration. If more stringent Federal, State and local safety standards apply, then UIG will follow the most 
stringent standard. 

 The customer is required to provide all current safety standards, rules, and regulations to UIG prior to order 
placement. If safety standards, rules or regulations are revised after the sale, then the Buyer is required to provide 
UIG with a copy of the recently revised safety standards, rules, and regulations no less than 30-days prior to the 
expected start date. Changes or additions to safety and health requirements that are not already covered by standard 
UIG safety and health policy may affect cost and schedule agreements. 

 Onsite safety orientation, not to exceed one hour in duration, is included. If additional safety orientation or classes are 
required, then additional charges are applicable. 

 Buyer will obtain insurance against loss by fire, lightning, removal, and all extended coverage perils, theft, vandalism, 
and malicious mischief, earthquake, negligence, and any other insurance which Buyer deems necessary (generally 
covered in Buyer’s Risk policies). Buyer need not cover tools owned by workers or tools and equipment owned or 
rented by installer. Buyer is required to provide protection to prevent theft of material from jobsite. 

 We reserve the right to have all or part of the work included in this proposal covered by an order or contract placed 
directly with UIG Parent Company or with a subsidiary or affiliated company or sublet or assigned by us or by any of 
the aforementioned companies to a subsidiary or affiliated company.   

 UIG, Inc. shall not be held liable or deemed in default if prevented from performing any of the obligations of the 
Agreement due to causes beyond its reasonable control such as fire, drought, act of God, war, riot, strikes, 
differences with workmen, lockouts, epidemics, quarantines, delays in transportation, shortage of cars, fuel, labor or 
materials, embargo, or government orders or actions which in any way interfere with the purchase or manufacture or 
flow of the necessary materials, products or labor required to manufacture or fabricate the products, materials or 
workmanship described or referred to in the proposal/contract. 

 UIG, Inc. utilizes those standards, specifications and/or interpretations and recommendations of professionally 
recognized agencies and groups such as AWWA D-100, AWWA D-103, ASCE7, IBC, ADM, API 12B, API 650, ACI, 
AISI, AWS, ASTM, NFPA, DIN, UL, ISO, FM, U.S. Government, UIG, etc. as the basis in establishing its own design, 
fabrications and quality criteria, practices methods and tolerances. 

 Orders are entered on a first-come first-served basis. 
 Every effort will be made to meet schedule requirements.  UIG is not responsible for delays due to: adverse weather 

conditions, building permits or any other delay out of the control of UIG. 
 Shipment – Promised shipping dates are approximate.  Such dates are estimated from (a) date of receipt of order 

with complete fabrication information and settlement of all details, and (b) the date of entry of such order by UIG.   
 

Page 308Page 308Page 308Page 308Page 308Page 308Page 308



Hydro Application Consulting Group, LLC.  
435 Nichols Rd., Suite 200, Kansas City MO 64112 

PHONE: (913) 901.7708 

FAX: (913) 273.9460 

Email: arih@hacll.com 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

       

 

 

  
NOTE:  
This proposal is the property of United Industries Group, Inc. [UIG] contains design concepts, specifications and 
calculations specifically prepared for your project requirements.  This information is considered confidential and 
shall not be released to others without prior written authorization from UIG.  

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SALE 
 

 

1. United Industries Group, Inc. (Seller) hereby provides Buyer a quote containing terms, conditions, specifications, 
pricing, and exceptions to provide goods and/or services pursuant to Seller’s understanding of Buyer’s needs and 
expectations. Buyer represents full knowledge and understanding of all terms, specifications, and exceptions in 
Seller’s quote known as the Proposal from this point forward. 

2. Buyer’s acceptance of the Proposal, whether by oral or written order, constitutes Buyer’s agreement to the general 
terms and conditions in this Agreement and the terms, conditions, specifications, pricing, and exceptions as 
described in the Proposal. Buyer further agrees upon date of order the terms, conditions, specifications, pricing, and 
exceptions as detailed in the Proposal meet all Buyer expectations and is hereby made a part of this Agreement. The 
Effective Date of this Agreement is the latter date of either Buyer’s order if written, or Seller’s Proposal. 

3. This agreement reflects the entire agreement between the parties with respect to its subject matter. Except for any 
nondisclosure agreements between the parties, all other oral or written agreements, contracts, understandings, 
conditions, or representations with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement are superseded by this 
Agreement. The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall only be amended if specifically changed in writing and 
signed by an executive officer of Seller. 

4. Unless otherwise stated on the face hereof, the price and delivery of all goods, are FOB Seller’s factory. Title to the 
goods shall pass to Buyer when the goods are duly delivered to Carrier at Seller’s factory, except where Buyer 
requests a delay in shipment, in which case the title shall pass to the Buyer when the goods are ready for shipment. 

5. The risk of loss to the goods shall pass to Buyer when the goods are duly delivered to the Carrier at Seller’s factory, 
except where the Buyer requests a delay in shipment as described above. The processing of freight claims or loss 
claims is the responsibility of Buyer. 

6. Seller warrants the goods against defects in workmanship and materials under normal and proper use and operating 
conditions for a period of 12 months from date of shipment. There are no understandings, agreements, 
representations, or warranties, either express or implied, including without limitation the implied warranties or 
merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose respecting the goods other than or different from the seller’s 
limited warranty. 
Seller’s Limited Warranty is subject to the following limitations and conditions: 

a. Seller’s Limited warranty shall become void and terminate if, during the warranty period, Buyer (1) transfers its 
ownership or use of goods to another person (other than initial transfer from Buyer to applicable original 
intermediaries and the final owner), or (2) puts goods to uses or operates them under conditions, including 
without limitation the storage of liquids or bulk material of different composition, bulk density, specific gravity, 
flow characteristics, or processes different from those represented to Seller prior to date of shipment, or (3) 
dismantles or moves tank from its original site, or (4) fails to complete all financial obligations of Seller’s sale 
agreement. 

b. Seller’s Limited Warranty shall become void and terminate if Buyer makes repairs or alterations to goods without 
obtaining Seller’s prior written approval. 

c. Seller’s Limited Warranty does not include (1) corrosion or erosion of goods caused by or resulting from elevated 
temperatures (above ambient), acids, chemicals, or other caustic substances, (2) the suitability of any material 
or part selected by Buyer for use with goods, (3) galvanic corrosion due to dissimilar metal interaction of 
internals, not supplied by Seller.  

d. On all materials, parts or accessories purchased by Seller from vendors, Seller’s Limited Warranty is limited to the 
duration and effect of the terms and conditions of any warranty given to Seller by such vendors, and then only 
to the extent that Seller is able to enforce such warranties in appropriate legal proceedings. 

e. Seller’s Limited Warranty excludes structural design (this is covered by the certifying engineers certification) and 
operating performance issued, problems or consequences attributable in whole or in part to the correctness of 
design and operating parameters provided by Buyer, the correctness of interfacing work, material or services to 
be provided by Buyer (such as foundations or attached process or control equipment), Buyer’s operating 
practices or maintenance, or any action by Buyer resulting in the application of abnormal pressures or weight 
to the structure. Buyer shall also have sole responsibility for determining whether its plans or specifications meet 
applicable local requirements. 

f. Seller’s Limited warranty does not cover routine maintenance. Seller’s Limited Warranty shall become void and 
terminate if tank is misused, neglected, or damaged after delivery thereof to Buyer or if it is not properly 
operated and maintained. This includes, but is not limited to, proper operation, filling and emptying. Ventilation 
and pressure/vacuum relief devices must be maintained by Buyer to assure that design and operating 
pressures and vacuums are not exceeded. Grouting, if required, must be installed, and properly maintained by 
Buyer. Tank and lining/coating must be maintained by Buyer as necessary to protect against wear and 
corrosion. 

g. No person, firm or corporation is authorized to make any representation or to incur any obligation in the name 
of or on behalf of Seller. 

h. This warranty does not cover damage caused by shipping, handling, or damage caused by operating or 
maintenance activities. 

i. This warranty is rendered null and void by force majeure (i.e., Acts of God, wars, violence, vandalism, civil 
unrest, and the like). 

Page 309Page 309Page 309Page 309Page 309Page 309Page 309



Hydro Application Consulting Group, LLC.  
435 Nichols Rd., Suite 200, Kansas City MO 64112 

PHONE: (913) 901.7708 

FAX: (913) 273.9460 

Email: arih@hacll.com 

  

 

 

 

 

  

       

 

 

7. In the event of any failure of goods to perform as warranted, Seller will, at Seller’s sole option, either replace or repair 
goods, or refund the purchase price of defective portion of goods supplied to Buyer. The liability of Seller is expressly 
limited to these remedial measures, and it is understood and agreed that the purchase price for goods is based upon 
Seller’s Limited Warranty and the Limitation of Remedies set out herein. In no event shall Seller be responsible for any 
INCIDENTAL, PUNITIVE OR CONSEQUENTIAL damages, or damages from tort or negligence (including any negligence 
by Seller) arising out of or in connection with the use of goods, including without limitation the loss of contents or loss 
of profits, or for the condition or quality of material stored in the tank, or for any liability of Buyer or provide product or 
service to any customer of Buyer. This exclusive remedy shall not be deemed to have failed its essential purpose so 
long as the Seller is willing and able to repair or replace defective Products or issue a credit to the Buyer within a 
reasonable time after the Buyer shows to Seller that a defect is involved. Total Seller’s liability shall be limited to the 
remaining prorated portion. Seller or its authorized representative will be the sole judge of whether or not any repairs 
are required under the terms of the warranty. Any action brought by Buyer arising out of or in connection with breach 
of Seller’s Limited Warranty shall be commenced within 90 days after such a cause of action shall have occurred. 
Unless noted, this agreement does not contemplate any future performance by Seller after the tender of delivery of 
goods. 
Any warranty claim shall be made to United Industries Group in writing. Once a claim has been made, Seller shall 
have the right to perform on-site inspection of goods. Such inspection including preparation of the tank for inspection 
or repair (such as removing product and washing down the tank) will be the sole responsibility and expense of the 
Buyer. In the alternative, if so instructed by Seller, Buyer shall ship goods, or any part thereof, claimed to be defective 
to Seller under its shipping instructions and by freight prepaid. If Seller is required to do work on Buyer’s premises, Seller 
shall be granted permission to perform such work with its own service personnel under non-union conditions. 

8. Buyer shall defend, release, indemnify and hold Seller, its Affiliates and Subcontractors harmless from and against any 
and all losses, liabilities, costs and expenses (including, without limitation, court costs and attorney’s fees) arising out 
of any claim or cause of action by Buyer employees or invitees, their representatives, agents, heirs, beneficiaries and 
assigns for injury to or death of Buyer’s employees or invitees or damage to Buyer’s property to the extent caused by 
the sole or contributory negligence of Buyer. 

9. Neither party shall be liable to the other for special, indirect, or consequential damages resulting from or arising out of 
this Agreement including, without limitation, damages claimed for loss of use of productive facilities or equipment, 
lost profits, lost production, or non-operation or increased expense of operation, whether claims or actions for such 
damages are based upon contract, tort, (including negligence), strict liability or otherwise. 

10. Seller’s total liability arising at any time from this Agreement shall not exceed the purchase price of the Agreement. 
These limitations apply whether the liability is based on contract, tort, strict liability or otherwise. 

11. All devices, designs, (including drawings, plans and specifications), estimates, prices, notes, electronic data and 
other documents or information prepared or disclosed by Seller, and all related intellectual property rights shall 
remain Seller’s property. Seller grants Buyer a non-exclusive, non-transferrable license to use any such material solely 
for Buyer’s use of the Goods. Neither Seller nor Buyer shall disclose any such material to third parties without the 
Seller’s prior written consent. 

12. All copyrights, patents, trade secrets, or other intellectual property rights associated with any ideas, concepts, 
techniques, inventions, processes, or works of authorship arising out of this Agreement shall belong exclusively to 
Seller. 

13. Seller’s products are supplied for export from the United States in accordance with U.S. Export Administration 
regulations for ultimate destination to the Buyer who shall not be located in a restricted country as defined by the U.S. 
Export Administration and diversion contrary to U.S. law is prohibited. Buyer further agrees and warrants that all 
exports will conform to this regulation. 

14. Buyer and Seller further agree that Seller’s Affiliates may perform work for Buyer. In such event, the references to Seller 
in this Agreement shall mean Seller and such Affiliate of Seller. The Affiliate and Buyer shall be deemed to ratify and 
agree to be bound by the terms and conditions of this Agreement with respect to its subject matter. 

15. Proposals specifically including freight or other transportation charges are based on rates in effect on the date of 
Buyer’s order and on the routing of shipment arranged by Seller. Seller will ship goods in accordance with Buyer’s 
routing whenever such routing will not result in an increase in freight or other transportation charges. In the event of 
such increases, the payment of any additional freight or other transportation charges is guaranteed by Buyer to 
Seller’s satisfaction. The goods shall be packaged for shipment at the lowest acceptable rate by common or other 
carrier, or any other method deemed necessary or advisable by Seller. Marking shall be in accordance with ordinary 
commercial practice at place of shipment, unless otherwise designated by Buyer and accepted by Seller. 

16. Shipping and delivery dates are approximate and are based upon Sellers ability to obtain all necessary labor, 
materials, and parts and, where applicable, the receipt of all necessary information, plans or specifications from 
Buyer. Seller shall not be liable for damages resulting from any delay or failure to deliver the goods, or otherwise 
perform under the Agreement, due to circumstances beyond its control and not occasioned by its fault or 
negligence, including but not being limited to, any act of government, inability to obtain materials, failure of vendors, 
strikes, labor disputes, civil commotion, acts of God, or other occurrences rendering Seller’s performance 
commercially impracticable, regardless of whether such occurrences are foreseeable. In the event of a production 
shortage, Seller shall have the right to allocate its available goods among its customers in such a manner as Seller 
shall desire. Page 310Page 310Page 310Page 310Page 310Page 310Page 310



Hydro Application Consulting Group, LLC.  
435 Nichols Rd., Suite 200, Kansas City MO 64112 

PHONE: (913) 901.7708 

FAX: (913) 273.9460 

Email: arih@hacll.com 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

       

 

 

17. Due to the custom nature of Seller’s products and equipment, the Buyer accepts title on the later of when the units 
are completed or the promised ship date. Buyer will be invoiced immediately and accept responsibility for payment 
and any applicable storage fees. 

18. One (1) weeks “grace period” from agreed upon promised ship date – no charge. A charge of $100/truck/week for 
bolted tanks will be assessed for weeks 2-7. A charge of $250/tank/week for welded tanks will be assessed for weeks 
2-7.  The maximum storage period is seven (7) weeks. Arrangements must be made for shipments so that the 
maximum storage period is not exceeded. 

19. Payment terms will be as stated in the TERMS OF PAYMENT section of the quote above. 
20. This Agreement is subject to (a) execution by Buyer of such additional contract documents, security agreements, 

notes or other instruments as Seller shall deem necessary or desirable and (b) Seller’s review and acceptance of the 
financial condition of Buyer. If the financial condition of Buyer at any time does not in the sole judgment of Seller, 
justify continuance of shipment under the terms of the Agreement, Seller reserves the right to ship under reservation, 
or to require full payment before shipment, delivery or erection. Additionally, Seller may at its discretion file such 
notices for financial protection under the lien or bond statutes of each state. 

21. The manufacturer reserves all drawback rights for materials it produces and sells to Buyer. If Buyer exports the product 
which Seller manufactures, it is agreed that evidence of exportation shall be supplied to Seller to facilitate its claim of 
drawback upon request and without charge to Seller. 

22. To secure payment for goods, Buyer grants to Seller a security interest in the goods and agrees that Seller shall have 
the rights and remedies of a secured party under the Uniform Commercial Code. Buyer designates Seller as its 
attorney-in-fact to execute any financing statements on behalf of Buyer necessary to perfect such security interest. 

23. Seller’s prices do not include sales, excise or similar taxes levied by government authority, either foreign or domestic. 
Consequently, in addition to the prices specified herein, the amount of any present or future sales, use, excise, or 
other similar tax applicable to this transaction, shall be paid by Buyer as part of the sale, or in lieu thereof, Buyer shall 
provide Seller with a tax exemption certificate acceptable to taxing authorities of the Shipped- To state. On any 
material picked up by Buyer at the plant, the tax jurisdiction of the FOB state is applicable. 

24. No extra labor, materials or parts will be furnished under this Agreement, unless it has been ordered by Buyer or 
Seller’s sales order form, and the prices and terms of sales are approved by Seller. Seller may at its option subcontract 
labor, material and parts required by this Agreement without Buyer’s consent. The goods shall be, at Seller’s option, 
subject to inspection and testing during manufacture. Any inspection by Buyer shall be made prior to shipment at 
Seller’s factory or point of shipment. Unless otherwise agreed to, Seller shall not be responsible for unpacking, storage, 
field assembly of goods, or construction of foundations. Furthermore, Seller shall not be responsible for the choice of 
use or linings, sealants, and gasket materials not sold hereunder; or the installation, attachment, or connection of 
piping, conveying and ventilating equipment, or other attachment of accessories or components not sold 
hereunder. 

25. Seller, at its own expense, shall defend the Buyer against any claims which may be instituted against the Buyer 
alleging infringement of United States Patents relating to the subject matter of the accompanying sales proposal, 
provided the Buyer gives Seller immediate notice in writing of any such alleged patent infringement claim and 
permits Seller, through its own counsel, to defend such claim. In such cases, Buyer shall furnish Seller with all needed 
information and assistance. The obligations of Seller hereunder shall not extend to any infringement claims arising as 
a result of the use of the equipment as part of any combination of other devices, machinery, or parts. 

26. Buyer’s cancellation of any order is required to be in writing.  A 10% charge of total order will apply if cancelled after 
order is placed;  15% of total order will be charged if order is cancelled after drawings are completed; 50% of total 
order will be charged if cancelled after materials are received; 75% of total order will be charged if cancellation 
occurs after fabrication starts and 100% of total order will be charged if cancellation occurs after 50% of fabrication.                  

27. The rights and obligations of the parties shall be governed by the domestic laws of the State of California without 
regard to its conflict of law rules or the United Nations Convention for the International Sale of Goods. 

28. Any dispute, controversy or claim arising under this agreement shall be settled by arbitration in Orange County, 
California, pursuant to the American Arbitration Association rules. 

29. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between Seller and Buyer, and no modification of this Agreement 
shall be binding upon Seller unless evidenced by an agreement amending this Agreement in writing signed by an 
executive officer of Seller after the Effective Date hereof. No oral or written statements by Seller’s sales 
representatives, or other agents, made after the date hereof shall modify or vary the express terms hereof unless 
evidenced by an agreement in writing signed by an executive officer of Seller after the date hereof. To the extent 
any advertising or promotional material of Seller contradicts or disagrees with the terms hereof, Seller and Buyer 
agree that the terms hereof shall control and that such advertising and/or promotional materials are not part of the 
agreement between Seller and Buyer. 

30. At all times hereafter, termination of this Agreement notwithstanding, Buyer shall treat as confidential and shall not, 
without Seller’s prior written consent, divulge to any third party or, except to the extent necessary for performance 
hereunder, make any use of any proprietary information process or thing, owned, or supplied by Seller or 
representatives of Seller which is disclosed or made available to Buyer by or on behalf of Seller. 

31. It is intended that if any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable for any reason, it shall be adjusted rather than 
voided, if possible, in order to achieve the intent of the parties. In any event, all other provisions of this Agreement 
shall be deemed valid, binding, and still enforceable. 

 Page 311Page 311Page 311Page 311Page 311Page 311Page 311



 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX F 
 

Anaerobic Digester Natural Gas Consumption 

Page 312Page 312Page 312Page 312Page 312Page 312Page 312



Carroll Digester Improvments
V&K Job. No. 27361
Digester No. 1 - 35-Foot Diameter

BOD Loading 4,735 lbs/day VSS/1,000 cf 97 18.10 Days

Sludge Production 0.7 lbs sludge/lb BOD/day Sludge Production 3314.5 lbs/day

Sludge Density 4% Sludge Volume 9,936 gallons per day

1,328 cf/day

VSS/TSS 70% Volatile Sludge Loading 2,320 lbs/day

VSS Reduction 50% Volatile Solids Destruction 1160.075 lbs VSS destroyed/day

Gas Production 15 cf gas/lb VSS destroyed Gas Produced 17,401 cf/day

BTU value of Gas 600 BTU/cf Heating Value 10,440,675 Btu/day

104.41 Therm/day

435,028 Btuh

Digester Diameter 35 ft Top Area 962 sf

Side Wall Depth 25 ft Bottom Area 7.07 sf

Total Depth 25 ft Volume 24,041 cf

Bottom Diameter 3 ft 179,824 gallons 

Wall Thickness 12 in

Exposed Elevation 3 ft

Maximum Average
Building Coverage, % 25% Sludge Heating

xposed Wall Insulation, R 8 Daily 3,728,813 Btu/d 2,900,188 Btu/d

Wall Area Exposed to Air 247.275 sf Hourly 155,367 Btu/hr 120,841 Btu/hr

 Area Exposed to Building 686.875 sf
Digester Heat loss 

Wall Area Exposed to Soil 1813.35 sf
Wall Area Exposed to Air 2,822 Btu/hr 1,478 Btu/hr

Cover  R value 4
Wall Area Exposed to Building 229 Btu/hr 229 Btu/hr

Slab Thickness 12 in
Wall Area Exposed to Soil 8,311 Btu/hr 7,556 Btu/hr

Slab 4,407 Btu/hr 4,007 Btu/hr
Minimum Average

Cover 25,243 Btu/hr 13,222 Btu/hr
Minimum -10 deg F 40 deg F

DIGESTER HEAT LOAD 196,380 Btu/hr 147,333 Btu/hr
Building Temp 55 deg F 55 deg F

1,290,638,115 Btu/year
Soil Temp 40 deg F 45 deg F

12,906 Therm/year
Digester Temp 95 deg F 95 deg F

$14,584 Cost per year in Natural Gas
Primary Sludge Temp 50 deg F 60 deg F

Natural Gas Cost $1.13 per therm

Page 313Page 313Page 313Page 313Page 313Page 313Page 313



Carroll Digester Improvments
V&K Job. No. 27361
Digester No. 2 - 40-Foot Diameter

BOD Loading 4,735 lbs/day VSS/1,000 cf 74 23.64 Days

Sludge Production 0.7 lbs sludge/lb BOD/day Sludge Production 3314.5 lbs/day

Sludge Density 4% Sludge Volume 9,936 gallons per day

1,328 cf/day

VSS/TSS 70% Volatile Sludge Loading 2,320 lbs/day

VSS Reduction 50% Volatile Solids Destruction 1160.075 lbs VSS destroyed/day

Gas Production 15 cf gas/lb VSS destroyed Gas Produced 17,401 cf/day

BTU value of Gas 600 BTU/cf Heating Value 10,440,675 Btu/day

104.41 Therm/day

435,028 Btuh

Digester Diameter 40 ft Top Area 1,256 sf

Side Wall Depth 25 ft Bottom Area 7.07 sf

Total Depth 25 ft Volume 31,400 cf

Bottom Diameter 3 ft 234,872 gallons 

Wall Thickness 12 in

Exposed Elevation 3 ft

Maximum Average
Building Coverage, % 25% Sludge Heating

xposed Wall Insulation, R 8 Daily 3,728,813 Btu/d 2,900,188 Btu/d

Wall Area Exposed to Air 282.6 sf Hourly 155,367 Btu/hr 120,841 Btu/hr

 Area Exposed to Building 785 sf
Digester Heat loss 

Wall Area Exposed to Soil 2072.4 sf
Wall Area Exposed to Air 3,225 Btu/hr 1,689 Btu/hr

Cover  R value 4
Wall Area Exposed to Building 262 Btu/hr 262 Btu/hr

Slab Thickness 12 in
Wall Area Exposed to Soil 9,499 Btu/hr 8,635 Btu/hr

Slab 5,757 Btu/hr 5,233 Btu/hr
Minimum Average

Cover 32,970 Btu/hr 17,270 Btu/hr
Minimum -10 deg F 40 deg F

DIGESTER HEAT LOAD 207,079 Btu/hr 153,931 Btu/hr
Building Temp 55 deg F 55 deg F

1,348,432,077 Btu/year
Soil Temp 40 deg F 45 deg F

13,484 Therm/year
Digester Temp 95 deg F 95 deg F

$15,237 Cost per year in Natural Gas
Primary Sludge Temp 50 deg F 60 deg F

Natural Gas Cost $1.13 per therm

Page 314Page 314Page 314Page 314Page 314Page 314Page 314



 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX G 
 

Aerobic Digester Power Consumption 

Page 315Page 315Page 315Page 315Page 315Page 315Page 315



   

 

 

O&M Requirements, Power 
Consumption & Parts Pricing 

CARROLL, IA 
XYLEM SANITAIRE VORELODOS/DIGESTER 
 

A. O & M Requirements  
 
NOTE:  We have provided the typical man-hours required for typical equipment 

operation and maintenance.  The labor rate to be estimated by OTHERS. 

 
The following lists estimated regular maintenance to be expected for each piece of 
equipment. 
 
Aeration Blowers:  Check inlet filters, lubrication levels, and grease fittings (weekly). 
Clean or replace inlet filter when inlet manometer shows excess clogging.  Inspect and 
adjust belt and sheaves between motor and blower per O&M manual (monthly).  Change 
blower oil every 1000-1500 hours, per O&M manual.  Grease blower bearings per O&M 
manual.  Re-grease motor bearings per O&M manual [0.5hr/blower/month]. 
 

Fine Bubble Aeration System:  The SANITAIRE fine bubble aeration system is designed 
to give maintenance free service. [Diffuser Replacement @ 12 years, replacement time 25 
diffusers per man-hour] 
 
Control Panel:  The control equipment needs no regular service. 
 
Submersible Mixers:  Inspect mixer assembly monthly for signs of rag build up and/or 
binding.  Inspect oil monthly for level and signs of water intrusion.  Add oil as needed.  
Replace oil and seals as indicated if there is evidence of water intrusion 
[1.0hr/mixer/month]. 
 
Probes.  The YSI FDO DO probes are self-calibrating.  The only maintenance required is 
replacement of the sensor cap every 3-5 years.   
 
 

  

Page 316Page 316Page 316Page 316Page 316Page 316Page 316



B.  Power Consumption: 
 

The following table gives estimated power consumption values for Design Average Daily 
flow.  Calculations included in the proposal. 
 
NOTE: Valve and control/instrument power does not contribute significantly to the total 
power requirements and is therefore excluded from the summary. 
 
VORELODOS POWER REQUIREMENTS (Design Average Daily Flow – PD Blowers) 

     KWH/DAY 

      
DIGESTER AIR BLOWERS (PD) 7 BHP 2 RUN @ 24 HRS/DAY 251 
      
MIXER – DIGESTER 1 1.9  BHP 1 RUN @ 24 HRS/DAY 34 
      
MIXER – DIGESTER 2 1.6  BHP 1 RUN @ 24 HRS/DAY 29 
      

    KWH/DAY 314 
 
Estimated Annual Power Cost ($0.08):  $9,169 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 317Page 317Page 317Page 317Page 317Page 317Page 317



C.  Typical Maintenance Parts Costs: 
 

 
 
Note:  Values quoted above, cover cost of materials only. 
 
* The Sanitaire fine bubble aeration system is a fixed grid system with no moving or 
wearing parts, other than the membrane discs which require replacement every 12-15 
years due to loss of elasticity.  The listed aeration system spares are recommended be 
kept on hand in case of inadvertent damage.   
 

EQUIPMENT ACCESSORIES QTY. FREQ. 
(YRS) 

UNIT COST 
(USD) 

     

BLOWER Oil and Grease 3 1 $400 

 V-Belt Set 3 10 $290 

 Inlet Filter/Blower 3 3 $75 

     

FB 
AERATION* 

Diffuser Replacement  
(SSII Membrane Disc) 

70 12 $6.00 

 Diffuser Retainer Rings * * $3.00 

 Air Distributor Supports * * $20.00 

 Air Distributor Repair Kits * * $150 

 Fixed Joint Assemblies * * $15 

     

MIXERS Oil 2 1 $100.00 

 Seals 2 3 $150.00 

     

D.O Probe Replacement of Sensor Cap 2 3 $150.00 

     

VALUE OF SPARES INCLUDED IN OFFERING 

Page 318Page 318Page 318Page 318Page 318Page 318Page 318



City of Carroll 
================================== ♦ ================================= 

627 N. Adams Street Carroll, Iowa 51401 (712) 792-1000 

MEMO TO: Aaron Kooiker, City Manager ~ ~ 

FROM: Randall M. Krauel, Director of Public Works 'jj/)/( 

DATE: November 8, 2023 

SUBJECT: West Golfview Subdivision 
Paving Section Selection 

FAX: (712) 792-0139 

One of the critical decisions in the development of the West Golfview Subdivision is the selection of 
the paving section for North West Street. The alternative paving sections are (1) Rural, as now exists 
with a shoulder and road ditch adjacent to the east edge of pavement, or (2) Urban, which includes 
construction of a curb and gutter adj acent to the east edge of pavement The paving section not only 
impacts the ultimate aesthetics of the Subdivision, but also immediately impacts the road right-of-way 
needs for platting and, in this case, the location of the sanitary sewer for construction plan preparation. 

Conceptual Opinions of Probable Cost for the proposed public improvements in the Subdivision 
have been prepared for both Rural and Urban paving sections as follows: 

Rural Urban 

Grading & Erosion Control $171,040 $345,840 
Roadway $0 $157,360 
Storm Sewer $43,850 $51,620 
Sanitary Sewer $619,910 $619,910 

Total $834,800 $1,174,730 

RECOMMENDATION: Mayor and City Council consideration and selection of a paving section 
for the West Golfview Subdivision. 

RMK:ds 

Page 319Page 319Page 319Page 319Page 319Page 319



 

City of Carroll  

627 N. Adams Street       Carroll, Iowa 51401           (712) 792-1000           FAX: (712) 792-0139 

 

  

 

 MEMO TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Member of the City Council 

 

         FROM:  Aaron Kooiker, City Manager  

 

          DATE:  November 7, 2023 

 

   SUBJECT:  West Golfview Subdivision – Property Tax Projection 

 

During discussion of the Golf Course development, staff felt it important to see what the possible tax 

implications of the development would be. Staff put together assumptions to show how much tax 

revenue would be generated over a 10-year period with the new houses added by this development.   If 

you look through the below Performa, with only 9 units being added the new tax revenue over a 10-

year period could be $264,204. Staff feels this is a very conservative number as on the smaller lots most 

developers have communicated that they would probably look at adding duplexes rather than single 

family homes. (Note: This is an estimate only as assumptions will likely change annually.)   

 

 Per Year  Per Year 

 (w/ tax abatement)  (w/o tax abatement) 

No. of houses: 4  4 

Assessed Value of each house:                     $700,000                           $700,000  

No. of houses: 5  5 

Assessed Value of each house:                     $450,000                           $450,000  

    
Total Assessed Value                  $5,050,000                        $5,050,000  
Less: Tax Abatement                     (675,000)                                       -    

                  $4,375,000                        $5,050,000  

Residential Rollback 47%  47% 

                   $2,056,250                        $2,373,500  

Less: Homestead Credit                       (43,650)                            (43,650) 

Taxable Valuation                  $2,012,600                       $2,329,850  

    

Taxable Valuation/$1,000                    $2,012.60                          $2,329.85  

City Tax Rate                     12.16844                           12.16844  

City Property Tax Bill                  $24,490.20                       $28,350.64  

    

First 5 years:                     $122,451    

Second 5 years:                            $141,753  

10 YEAR TOTAL                     $264,204   

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff feels that this is a viable project and would recommend an 

urban section for the new development. 
Page 320Page 320Page 320Page 320Page 320



City of Carroll 
=================================== ♦ =================================== 

627 N. Adams Street Carroll, Iowa 51401 (712) 792-1000 

MEMO TO: Aaron Kooiker, City Manager 

FROM: Randall M. Krauel, Director of Public Works R,A1K 

DATE: November 8, 2023 

SUBJECT: U.S. 30 Traffic Signal Removal Study 
Adams Street, Court Street 

FAX: (712) 792-0139 

In 2016, the City performed a traffic signal ren10val study that included the signals at Adams Street 
and Court Street. Following completion of the study the decision was made not to ren10ve the signals. 

It has now been proposed to, again, initiate a study for the removal of traffic signals at Adams Street 
and Court Street. The procedure for traffic signal removal, if an engineering study indicates that the 
traffic control signal is no longer justified and a decision is made to remove the signals, is as follows: 

A. Determine the appropriate traffic control to be used after removal of the signal. 
B. Remove any sight-distance restrictions, as necessary. 
C. Inform the public of the removal study. 
D. Cover the signal heads for a minimum of 90 days and install the appropriate stop control or other 

traffic control devices. 
E. Remove the signal if the engineering data collected during the removal study period confirms that 

the signal is no longer needed. 

A detailed timeline of the actions necessary during the traffic signal removal study is as follows: 

Schedule 
(days) 

-30 
-30 to +21 

0 to +90 
0 to +90 

0 to +90 
0 to +30 

0 to +30 
0 to +30 
0 to +90 

+90 

Action 

News Release 
Advanced notification signs 

TRAFFIC SIGNAL 
UNDERSTUDY 
FOR REMOVAL 

Deactivate traffic control signals, cover signal heads 
STOP signs: Adams Street 

Court Street 
Retune traffic control signal system 
STOP sign supplemental plates 

CROSS TRAFFIC DOES NOT STOP 
Flags on STOP sign posts 
STOP AHEAD signs 
Crosswalk closure: NB Court Street 
Removal consideration 

RECOMMENDATION: Mayor and City Council consideration of initiation of a traffic signal 
removal study for signals at Adams Street and Court Street. 

RMK:ds 

Page 321Page 321Page 321Page 321



City of Carroll  
Brad Burke, Chief of Police Police Department 

 
112 E. 5th Street Carroll, Iowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-3536 FAX: (712) 792-8088 

 
 
 
MEMO TO:  Aaron Kooiker, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brad Burke, Chief of Police 
 
DATE:  October 24, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: Police Vehicle Purchase  
 
The police department has solicited bids for two (2) 2024 model year Ford Police Interceptor 
patrol vehicles. This was for one (1) Ford Police Interceptor that will replace a 2018 Ford Police 
Interceptor Utility and add one (1) additional unit to our fleet as an administrative vehicle.  
 
Bids were requested and received from Champion Ford of Carroll and New Way Ford of Coon 
Rapids. Due to the high demand for fleet vehicles and short window to order, bids were 
requested on October 23, 2023 and received on October 24, 2023.  
   
The bids received were as follows: 
   
Police Interceptor New Way Ford Champion Ford         
Unit 15 $45,647 $47,544  
Unmarked $45,809 $47,711  
Total $91,456 $95,254  
  
One vehicle is a carry-over purchase from fiscal year 2023 as Ford was unable to meet demand 
for fleet purchases which cancelled our order. One vehicle was budgeted for fiscal year 2024. 
Both vehicle bids are under budget.  
 
Due to only receiving bids from two vendors, purchase policy 501 will need to be waived to move 
forward with this purchase. Policy 501 asks for bids from three vendors for purchases within this 
dollar value.  
 
We will not be trading the old vehicle to the dealer but will sell the vehicle through an online 
auction house, GovDeals.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Council consideration of the bids as submitted and approval to waive 
purchase policy 501 to authorize the purchase of two (2) 2024 Ford Police Interceptor Utility 
patrol vehicles as specified, for $91,456 from New Way Ford. Second, to approve the sale of a 
2018 Ford Police Interceptor through GovDeals.  

Page 322Page 322Page 322



Page 323Page 323



Page 324Page 324



Page 325Page 325



Page 326Page 326



Page 327Page 327



Page 328Page 328



PARKS, RECREATION AND CULTURAL ADVISORY BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
November 6, 2023 @ 5:15 PM 

Carroll City Hall 
 

The Parks, Recreation and Cultural Advisory Board met in person on this date at 5:15 
P.M. Members Present:  Jean Ludwig, Sheila Dentlinger, Cynthia Scaturico, Mary Bruner 
via Zoom, Deb Quandt, and Chase Werden. Absent: Casey Berlau, Josh Sporer, Chad 
Ross (arrived at 5:17). Staff Present: Chad Tiemeyer. Council Member: Lavern Dirkx. 
 
The meeting was called to order at 5:15 P.M.  
 

*      *      *      *      *      *      * 
It was moved by Werden and seconded by Scaturico to approve the November 6, 2023; 
agenda as presented. All present voted aye. Nays: none. Abstain: none. Absent: Berlau,  
Sporrer and Ross. Motion carried 6-0. 
 

*      *      *      *      *      *      * 
It was moved by Werden and seconded by Dentlinger to approve the October 2023, 
minutes. All present voted aye. Nays: none. Abstain: none. Absent: Berlau, Sporrer and 
Ross. Motion carried 6-0. 
 

*      *      *      *      *      *      * 
Ross entered the meeting at 5:17.  
 

*      *      *      *      *      *      * 
Public Comments: None.  
 

*      *      *      *      *      *      * 
Director of Parks and Recreation Report: Tiemeyer discussed projects in the parks and 
getting ready for winter. 
 

*      *      *      *      *      *      * 
Merchants Park: Destination Iowa has reopened with another 6 million in funding. 
Carroll will be seeking this funding. No Action Taken. 
 

*      *      *      *      *      *      * 
Golf Course: Best financial year in the history of the golf course. We had great numbers 
across the board. No Action Taken. 
 

*      *      *      *      *      *      * 
Carroll Rec Center Building Improvement Project updates: Tiemeyer discussed the ups 
and downs of the project. Several unexpected items that popped up that weren’t 
technically related to the project, that had to be resolved before the project could 
continue. The scheduled opening date for the weight room and pool is November 13th. 
No Action Taken. 
 

Page 329



*      *      *      *      *      *      * 
Future Projects:  Tiemeyer asked the board to come up with ideas for future projects for 
Carroll Parks and Recreation. Items discussed- splash pad, outdoor work out 
equipment, and a new all season shelter house. We discussed pricing estimates, 
funding sources, and locations. Scaturico inquired about a public survey, to see what 
amenities the public would like to see. Tiemeyer will get estimates on costs for this 
public survey.  
 

*      *      *      *      *      *      * 
Adjournment: Motioned by Scaturico, seconded by Werden for adjournment. All present 
voted aye. Nays: none. Abstain: none. Absent: Berlau and Sporrer. Motion carried 6-0.  
 

 
  

 
 

 

Page 330


	City Council Meeting
	Sheet1
	Facility Plan - WWTP - Anaerobic Digester Evaluation - City of Carroll - 10-25-2023.pdf
	1 Cover
	01 Chapter 1 - General
	02 Chapter 2 - Population, Flows and Loadings
	03 Chapter 3 - Effluent Limitations
	GENERAL

	04 Chapter 4 - Existing Anerobic Sludge Digestion
	05 Chapter 5 - Digester Improvement Alternatives
	Description
	Mobilization
	Demolition
	Digester Covers
	Boiler
	Draft Tube Mixing & Heat Exchanger
	Gas Handling and Gas Safety Equipment
	Inside Process Piping, Valves and Flow Meters
	HVAC Equipment
	Interior and Exterior Lighting
	Electrical & SCADA
	Membrane Roofing
	Painting
	                                              Construction Subtotal
	                                                     Construction Cost
	Engineering, Legal & Administration @ 15%
	Estimated Project Cost
	Description
	Mobilization
	Demolition
	Blowers & Air Diffusers
	Aluminum Geodesic Domes
	Inside Process Piping, Valves and Flow Meters
	HVAC Equipment
	Interior and Exterior Lighting
	Electrical
	Membrane Roofing
	Painting
	                                              Construction Subtotal
	                                              Contingencies @ 10%
	                                                     Construction Cost
	                                            Estimated Project Cost

	Figure 5-1
	Sheets and Views
	-


	07 Chapter 7 - Environmental Impact
	08 Chapter 8 - Financing
	CHAPTER 8 - FINANCING

	Appendix A - Digester Cover Proposal
	220523 Carroll, IA  - Budget Letter - Appendix A
	Appendix B - Draft Tube Mixer Proposal
	Budget_1960798_x4 p1 - Appendix B
	Appendix C - Gas Handling & Gas Safety Equipment
	Appendix C - Combined
	Appendix D - Aerobic Digester Equipment Proposal
	Xylem Cost Equipment Cost Estimate - Appendix D
	Xylem Cost Equipment Cost Estimate - Appendix D.pdf
	#2 GEN IV ASSEMBLY DRAWING.PDF
	PRELIMINARY
	Drawing View187
	Drawing View188
	Drawing View189
	Drawing View190



	Appendix E - WWTP Aluminum Domes Proposal
	HAC - UIG Everdome Q23-0829-0-AY-40_35 r0 - Apppendix E
	Appendix F - Anaerobic Digester Natural Gas Consumption
	Carroll Digester No. 1 - 35-Foot Diameter - Appendix F
	A

	Carroll Digester No. 2 - 40-Foot Diameter - Appendix F
	A

	Appendix G - Aerobic Digester Power Consumption
	OM Annual Cost_Vorelodos Digester_Carroll IA (v31869-23) - Appendix G

	2 CERTIFY.doc.pdf
	00.2 Contents.pdf
	06 Chapter 6 - Analysis of Alternatives.pdf
	Description
	Mobilization
	Demolition
	Blowers & Air Diffusers
	Aluminum Geodesic Domes
	Inside Process Piping, Valves and Flow Meters
	HVAC Equipment
	Interior and Exterior Lighting
	Electrical
	Membrane Roofing
	Painting
	                                              Construction Subtotal
	                                              Contingencies @ 10%
	                                                     Construction Cost
	                                            Estimated Project Cost




